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In the foregoing chapter I have revieved the nature or chareeteristic of
the July incident ns e murder case, Particulerly I heve made e generesl
explanntion of the position and responsibility of Iwonemi's subordinatcs who
enme to poarticpete in the July incident by the order of Iwanami, I would like
now to deliver r seperate ergument in behalf of the defendants Oishi, Tetsuo;
hLsarure, Shunpei; Yoshisews, Kensaburo; rnd Taneke, Tokunosuke,

1, In behalf of Oishi, Tetsuo,

If we just glence superficiclly et the nets of 0ishi ot the sccne of the
ineidont thet day, it eprears cs if he pleyed on important pert together with
Twonami, After 1istening to the testimony of the prosccution witnesses, ©
onsunl obscrver mey suffer from a misunderstrnding thet it scema Oishi wes
involved in the incident to a coneiderable degreo,

Two months before this incident, we find Oishi just being promoted to the
rank of surgeon lieutcnant in the navy, He wee just e young medical officer,
renking 14th among the 18 mocical officers ottached to the Fourth Neval
Hospitel then, Thereforc in the July exccution ineident which wee held eg if
it were en cvent of the hospitel under a general assembly, and when we consicdcy
Oishi'e position and charaetcr, ordinari’y it would heve been the netural thing
I believe, to find him wetehing from the roer of the officers' line, but on the
dey of the incident he wee pulled out by the order of Iwanemi, the head of the
hospital, into the center of the scene, and ordered to play the pert which
seemed to be thet of the commander of the execution sceno. Furthermore he wes
ordored to cut the neck of the prisoners, Why wes this so? In spite of all
the officcrs assemblod thet dry, why wes hc the one seleeted and ordered to |
do the rbove dutice by the head of tho bospital Iwanamd? This is the question
which fifst sbove nll must be solved in order to eveluate justly the
responsibility of Oishi in the present incident,

It the time of the ineident, Oishi was concurrently under appointment as
hond of the Sclf Defensc Unit, Pursuent to tho order of the Fourth Fleect
1ssucd on nbout May, this Self Defense Unit was erganiged with about fifty
enlisted men of the -ospitel, its duty wes to escort petionts of the hospital
in cvacueting to o previously designetcd safoty zonc, whenover the L 'Iaf
Porors started their landing operation, Therefore 1t wes not a concentrated
and permenent unit, For weapons they were provided with only thirty rifles.
it thet time, it wes additional work for the mon appointed as mombcrs of the
Self Dofcnse Unit to go through o simple drill two hours every Sundey morning,
0ishi's duty as its heed, was merely to participete and supcrvise vwhen there
wna ﬂﬂuinﬂ.

Then, woe this incident planned, prepered and exccuted by Iwvanemi and
the Self Defense Unit and its heed Oishi acting under Iwensmi's order? The
accused Ivanami, Kesfikewa end 0ishi have all denied thie in their testimony,
However, et first Jwanami wented the Solf Defense Unit to do it, Oishi wro
heard of this ingention of Iwanami from the adjutant Kemikawa, regarded it ns
ageinst the purpose of organizging the Sclf Defenso Unit to undcrtake such a
task, and olso because his personal foeling did not prefer this, He took the
initiative end firmly told the adjutent of his firm oprosition and requested
the r nt to refuse to do it to Ivanami for him, Loorning of Oishi's
opposition and refusal, Iwenapd gove up heving the Self Defense Unit underteke
it, The above facts cen be cleerly acknowledged from the testimony of the.
nocused Qishi, Kemikawe, Ivanami and the witnoss Mineto,
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Furthermore, it was not plenncd in advance that the petty officcrs who
viere ordered to stob at the scone thet day, be somc particular petty officers
of the Self Defonse Unit, nor were thoy sclected from the petty officers of the
Sclf.Defense Unit at the scenc, Witncss for the prosccution Haynshi testified
a8 follews: "Iwonami upon arriving at the scene, ordercd ‘the petty officers
to step forwerd, but they hesiteted ond did not. So, Oishi wrs then ordered
to do so, Pnd he aprroached the line of the corpsmen petty officers lined up
according to their renks, and mecde cn eppropriete division frow the heed of
the 1ine, and hed ther step forverd,® This fect clearly csteblishcs thet thi:
incident wes not carricd out by the Self Defonse Unit,

The attitude of Oishi who shomcd full understanding of the truc purpesc
of the organizetion of the Self Defense Unit, nnd the menner in which he
definitely ommoscd the porformance of the cxeeution by the Self Defensc Unit,
prior to officiel ordcrs by Iwenemi, should be preised, This incident might
not have occurred if the ronking officers of the hospitel fully understood
the true objective of tho militrry hespitel and like Oishi mainteincd a fimm
ettitude towerd the herd of the hospital,

Then, not undor the cepacity of the heed of the Self Defense Unit, but
r.8 one of Iwonami's subordinotes, did Oishi plen this cxecutirn? Did he .
make preparations nccording to this plan end was he the commandér of "the
petty officers at the scene? Vas it previously arranged between Oishi end
Iwnnami to hove the petty officers stab the nrisoners with boyoncts and sperrs
rnd after thet cut the neck of tho prisoners? The testimony of Oishi and
Iwvanomi definitely gives the lie to any such plen or arrangement, Iwrnemi
testified thet he rbsolutely did not confer with Oishi about the execution
or make arrengements in advence,

In Tkeya's stotoment which wns produced ps evidonce by the judge ndvoeate,
it is eteted: "One day in the later part of July, I went to the efternoon
muster, and e8 I wers not on duty ot the werd I remained as a worker ne usunl,
The officerecf=the=dey, Liecutenant Oishi, gave out the working plen of the
day to the senior petty officer (then chief petty officer,) I was then given
an order by & senior renking petty officcr vhose name I do not reocell and
vithout knowing where I wre going went sboard e truck lerd by Petty Officer
Trnoke,* He goce on to state, that after that thoy went to the Forty-first
Guard Unit on the truck and brought the two prisoncrs to the hoepitel,

We con elerrly understand from Ikcye's statement thet Oishi gave the
plan of the dey to the senior petty officer but ve eennot elerrly understand
from this statement thet he commanded the petty officcre to go end reccive the
priscners from the Forty=first Guord Unit, But, he hes written it in a
manner to imply this faet somavhet,

Tkeya wrote this stetemcnt in May of this yorr, Then on the lst of July,
he was relryed by interproter Sevory the reoquest of the judge edvocete to
odd the linee thet tho contents of the statement are sworn to be the truth,
He ndded the worde of orth in unscttled hendwriting which scemcd 1like thot of
o @ifferent person, Thet night he committed suicide, Why did Tkeyn take hie
own life? Judging from the nbove eircumstancc which toock place on the dey of
tho suleide, couldn't it heve been, becrusc he could not sweer to the contonin
of the stntemcnt written before? I believe thot the entire contents of Tkeye'c
statement cannot be accepted ns credible cvidence,

Therc is nc evidence thet Oishi ordered the petty officer to go to the

Fortyefiret Guard Unit ond get tho prisomcrs thet day, Rat!er, it has been

of Iwanemi thet re¢ wes no such feot, Heyeshi,
e tostified, "About 2 o'elock
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in the aftcrnoon of the day of the incident, there wos o call for general
sssombly, I assembled in front of the rdministration building of the
hospitel and togother with obout forty enlistcd men went to the hill in brek
of the officers' quorters, On the hill, there were alrcedy cdjutent Kemdkowe,
Oishi and ebout twonty enlisted men surrounding two prisoners, end making
proparetions," ¥itness Hoyokawa, Hiroyuki however stotcd, "Some men were
going to the hill in back of the officers' quarters, I bocame curious end ven®
to the hill, On the hill, two white prisoncrs were scated in the center of
the hill, About forty cnlisted men werc assembled srcund thom, So I took

o pieture of this with thc comera I happened to cerry., After I tock the
picture, other enlisted men led by Oishi ceme up the hill, I do not remember
whﬂ'l'.dtl:una enlisted men had or how meny there were, Oishi, hovever hed o
sword,

In spite of the frct thet both of these witnesscs were produced by the
judge advoente, thoir testimopy concerning Oishi is inconsistont, [lccording
to their testimony, Oishi would have to do two different things with one body
et the same time, Thorcfore, I ever thet tho testimony of the ebove two
witnosses concerning Oishi, is not ercdible.

At this point, I should like to eommont on the credibility of the
vitnesses produced by the judge advoecate, The judge ndvocate statod ot the
ond of his opening stetement: "All of the statoments thet the judge advoeete
hes mnde will be proved by witncsscs produced by him, However, lot the court
be coutioncd thot ncerly 1l of the witncsses who sholl be shortly produced
before this court ore compotriots of the accuscd, Neerly a'l of thom were
onlookers, either in the dispensery or on the hill, Neerly all of them know
a complcte end full story, and ncerly ell of them cen be eounted on to
produce only a frogment of the tele which has just boen unfolded, Some of
the witnoeses will not tell all thet they know, scrme of the witncsscs through
possible fesr of implicrtion mey twist their version of the cvents recounted
by the judge edvocete,”

These words tell one phesc of the truth eoncerning the witncssos produced
by the judge advocatc, But, I request the ecommission to take note of the
other phese, The things tcstified by the witnesscs produced by the judge
ndvocete, hanpencd three yeers ago, Some of them et first, werc treatcd os
suspects. 4&nd only recently, after submitting o concluded stotcment, were
they treetcd ns witnosses., I believe there were sore who voluntarily wrote
a statement, in order to be transferred to & freer life in the witncss camp
then thet of ¢ suspect, But most of them werc prospective witnesscs fronm
the boginning and heve lived together with other vitncsees from the end of the
wer up to this day, This Yiving together wrs a gort of collective confinement
composed of witnosscs of tho same easc. Thcrefore, in some cases, the true
memory of & person, thc memories of others are ndded, Some P ve mede Thedr
momory vhrt they hcerd from others, Therc worc some witnesses who were bellev:.
to be guards rt tho scene of the exeoution end cctunl'y d44 not sco the
stabbing, tcetifying cs: "He wee im tho line of gtabbers,” end noming ten
odd petty officore, To the witnessce, these nccuscd were some of them superior
officers end some subordinates during the wer, Thore ig a possibility that
some, from thoir pcrsonal feclings during the wer made up © story beneficiel
to some accused end dotrimental to other accusod, In whet thoy cell their
recollection, the clemonts "must be® or "ought to be" ebide in a disorderly
faghion, For instance, since ho wee the adjutant, he must have mode
preperations thet day. &8 ho wes the heed of the Solf Defense Unit, he must
have led the Self Defonse Section up the hill, The petty offiecrs senior in
rank werc divided by Oishi, and es he is e petty officer of high renk he must
heve been in the line of stebbors, Since he is a petty officer of high rate,
we ought to heve lmmﬂm if ho were not actually in
the line, It sccme a/[ is 11k,
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411 in 11, the judge advoonte statcs "nerrly all of them know a econplete
apd full story," but we on the contery wish to hold that, "thoy herdly poescss
e complote ond full reeollection purely of their own, concerning the happening:
of the ineident thot dey, It is not thet thoy did not wont to tell ell thei
they knew, but rether, they have told more then they knew,

In summory, ncerly a)l the witnesscs produced by the judge sdvocate erc
not quelificd as witnesses in the true mcening of the word, But I firmly
believe as the judge ndvocete states, "However, this commiseion through its
cxperionce will be rble to avelurte the testimony of these witnesses."

I shall now return to the acts of Oishi at the time of the ineident, For
there still remrdin some points which I must argues

Oishi toock the witnecss stand on his own behelf and testified coneerning
how he esre to be on the hill in back of the officers' querters, where the
prisoncrs were executed thet day, ae follows:

"34. Q. How did you come to go to the scone of this incident?

L. On the afternocn of the dey of the incident, I was reeding o book in the
wnrdroon when I herrd hurried footsteps in the parden and in the corridor and
T asked on en'isted pan who wes going by vhet wes the metter and he steted
thot it wne a gencrrl essembly on the hill in beck of the hoepitrl end that
there woere prisoners there, Lt this tine there were doubts, I thought I helf
belicved thet the prisoners would be oxceuted because I perceived this by
rcmombering the talk I hed with the edjutant when I went to sce him at his
quertcrs and steted if the hend of the hospital is trying to get the Sclf
Defonsc Scetion to dispose of the prisoners, I refuse, and the edjutent
atatcd this is not an order. This is not en order, end he also stated thrt
he wns agoinst thie end rleo wore the officers; therefore, this dispeeition
of prisocnors would not trke place. I knew ebout this conversction, but I did
not know rbout the ineident until the gencrel ssserbly, Ae mony enlisted men
were going by, I thought I would heve to assemble clso, and together with
Eneign Yokote, vho wes close by, we went to the scene, When general esscumbly
wes erlled, even though you did not want to go at this time, you were not
nllowed to refusec; cven though you didn't want to go."

Concerning this point, witnese Yokota, Horuo who was beside Ois'i at that
tine, geve about the scme testimony and corroboratcd the veraclty of Oishi's
testimony cited above, It ean rerdily be ccknowledged fron this, thot the
facts thet Oishi hed made preperstions of the hill prior to the exeecuticn, or
thrt he led the enlisted men uyp the hill, ernnot be.

Lfter going up the hill with Ensign Yokota, we find Oishi going brek to
his quarters for his sword, {s to this point he testified as follows:

"3, Q. What did you do there?

L. I wee there o short time, I slso saw kepok trece with o cross=brr ticd
betveon them and there vere also officcrs, and + that time, I noticed throt
elmost a1l the officers hed swords with them, fs I did not teke my sword at
that time, I thought I hrd to have my sword, so I returned to my quorters

and come peck for n sword, I did not go ond get this sword with the intention
to ki1l tho prisoncrs with it, In tho navy, during my cxperience in the

nevy, vhenever on assembly is called it is olways stated how to be dressed,

or whet you vill hove to weer end when I sew them with swords, I thought this
asscmbly wes o reguler assanbly in vhich swords are used,”
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From the facts thet Oishi went to the hill even though he hnlf doubted
whether priscncrs were going to be exccuted, and after sceing tho prisoners
were going to be exeented, and after sceing the prisoners on the hill he tock
the trouble to go beck to his quarters to get hie sword, would be a most
prejudiciel eonjecture to interpret these frets to say thet he knew rbout
the exccution of prisoners in ndvance and thet he personnlly had the intent
to perticipete in tho actual cet of execution, "The prisoncrs mey be
exccuted,” "But rs it wns a generel nssembly, I hed to go cven if I did not
want to go," "I noticcd thet £1l the other officers had swords, so I thought
I hed to have my sword," Rather, don't these thoughts vividly explain the al)
too nrtural mentel stnte, end the figuro of = young officcr, who hes becn in
the scrvice for only one yerr and ¢ half and is very particuler sbout militory
diseipline, o young officer whosc charactcr is too serious rnd too preeise,

I vish to heve this point well understood in order to meintain good faith for
hin, )

Ofter that, what did Oishi do ot the seone? Ivanami shouted in a loud
voice "Petty officers step forward," After erriving et the hill, but the
petty officers hcsiteted to step formerd, Suddenly Oishi wes called by
Imenamd and ordered him to have the petty officcrs step forwrrd, Oishi had
the petty officers wtep forword as ordercd,

Ster the two eolunns of sbout ten petty officers with ba;onets or speers
in hand end faeing %he prisoncrs were formed, Oishi was apein ordered by
Iwenani to stand bepide the line and woteh, so thet it rmight be performed in
en orderly fashiom, Odishi stood by the two colupns of petty officers rs
ordercd, After the gpocch of Ivanami, Oishi scid o fow words to the petty
officers in the colemn, While he wes still trlking, ho wes ordered by
Imanami to moke haste, He then gave the word of command to the petty officcrs
in the column to adwvancc and stab,

After, the stabhing was over, he wes ordered together with dsamure to
cut the neck of the prigoner s & ritual, NAs wes ordored, Oishi cut the neck
onc stroke, Thus, thceu are rll of Oishi's acts et tho sccno thot dey,

Whet we must note concorning Oishi's ncta et the scene, is thet erch ret
wns dene in accordance with ereh of Iwenomi's respeetive orders, This is
definite evidenco proving thnt, the part played by Oishi at tho scenc was not
erranged with Inanemd in madvence, thnt Oishi did not know whet to do as
regerds the execution, that Oishi acted undcr uncxpecet dly given orders by
Tranami, If Oishi had in advance with Iwanami planncd the cxecution of the
prisoners, arrongcd the exmeution, and decided upon whet he should do et the
sceno, then 1t would pot hrve been nocessery for Iwnnemi to give orders to
Oishi for crch of the rospeetive acts,

Then, why did Iwanami porticularly order Oishi to do these thinge in
spitc of the feet that ncarly cll of the officers of the hospitnl werc asscmbled
by order of gener-l 4ssembly$ Iwanami tostificd thet it wns bocouse Oishi wes
standing besido him ermed, But I do not be'icve this is the rerson, At
first, Iwonrmi intemded to bevoc the Sclf Defensc Unit perform the executicn,
but he hed $o give this up beceuse of opposition, So Oishi wes vividly
impreesod in Iwapami’s mind, And scoing tho heed of tho Sclf Defense Unit
Oishi at the scone, it suddemly ocourrcd to him and he geve ordcrs to Oishi,
I beliove this 1s tho truc stetc of Ivanami's mind, It indecd wes o mise
fortune for Ofshi thet ho hamponod to be the hend of the Sclf Defense Unit
then,
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The nete of Ofshi in their outward appecrance seem as if, 0ishi together
with Ivanami and the petty officers, stabbed and cut the necke of the
prisoncrs, From the point of view of Iwanami, ench of the respoctive acts
of Oishi wne connooted by the consistent intent whieh possessed one conclusive
meaning = to execute and kill the prisoners, But from Oishi's stapdpoint, his
cech respective act wes done whenever Twanemi gove him ecn.order and his ncta
aroc not connceted by ony consistent intent, It is impossible to acknowledgo
thot his net of giving the word of command to stab and his nct of cutting the
neck or the prisoner are connected by Oishi®s consistent intent, There is &
brenk in his intention betwcen the two acts, Therefore we cannot recognize
in Oishi's state of mind & consistent intent to kill the prisoners with malicc
rgiethuught, together with the concerted aections of Iwanerid end the petty
0 cers, K

It was Imanomd who ordored the petty officers to stab, At the end of hie
spcech, Ivanami gave orders to the petty officers in violent words, This
foot conforms with the testimony of all the witnesses, Oishi testified as
to the words of Ivensmi es follows: ®hese two prisoners ere to be executed,
You have nothing to hositate sbout, Stab the heart and kill them with one
stroke, Stab spiritedly,” It wes not, that Imenami ordered Oishi to excoute
the prisoners end meeording to this order Oishi geve the petty officcrs the
order to steb, The piturtion concerning this point should be coneidered with
utmost care, :

Therefore Af Oishi is to beor criminal responsibility for the result
of the prisoncrs deeth, it should be only for his nct of cutting one stroke
on tho ncek of the prisoners efter the stabbing wes over. Then docs this
rot eonstitute the crime of murder? This is a grave question,

After thoe stabbdng was over, Oishi wrs ordered by Twanomi and cut one
stroke around €he neck with a sword, This was the ono and only time thet
Oishi touched ¢he body of the prisoncrs 7ith a weapon, Oishi testified the
circumstonces os follews:

"g0, ., When I wes resting en enlisted man came to me and said, %The head of
the hospitel is celling you.'

"0, A, I vomt to where the heed of the hospital wes,

n71, L, I wns given the following order, ICut the nock of the prisencr with
p sword. As this is o rituel, it is not ncccssrry thet the herd be cut off.’

"2, &, Thie time I looked around and saw thet the 'U' shape hed been broken
up and the t they were grouped closer eround the prieoncrs, No one moved and
evoryone ties wrtehing me, holding their breath,

"73, A, I went to the prisoncrs and looked nt thom for e short while,

"7, A Thoy wero held up by a rope which wes ticd nround their breasts and
ticd to the cross-bar and Also by another rope which was tied around the
stomadh snd to the other end tied to the cross~bar apd their heads werc bowed
very doeply and their foct slumped, with both of their feot touching the
ground, Their complexion wrs & whitishegroen and vory pale, I could not
observe any movencnts of bpeathing. There wee no movement at ell, It was
elmo#t like a statue,

"5, be I wes standing by the prisoncre to the right facing the prisonocrs,
I dwow my sword and T swung oneo; 1 struck once. Iuda\umllmintha
Jeft shoulder, but I saw no blood coming out,

CERYJ¥IED 10 BE A TRUE COFY ngss(12)"
Gs.

b
i
&

.. 7 JAMES, P, KENNY
- “$deutenant, U.” Navy,

 Iadoas LMArvrmate




-y

"77. &+ I stepped beek from the prisoncr and I looked et the sword, {

"78, 4, Whon I locked at the sword, there wes no blood on the sword, nor wns
the blade nicked, but rbout threc or four inches from the tip of the sword, i
wos cloudcd as if there wrs some oil on it, When I looked, I sew a buckot wi
some woter in it, so I dipred the sword in some weter and wiped 1t off with o
handkerchicf, and ploccd it in the scabbard, I did this because I did not

fec) good to juet place the sword in the scabbard with the clouded port on it

w76, A, I was ordcred directly by the hoad of the hospitel in front of ny
supcerior officers end in front of my subordinetes who wcre holding their
breath wetching me, I wns still in this confused or agiteted state of mind an
I could not refuse, Tho hoed of the hospital had said 'rituel!, T know

thot in Jepen, cvon on persons who were dced, this cut with e sword was made
and my feeling et thet time wes not to mutilete the body, but ns a
rituelistic feeling in doing thie."

According to the nbove testimony of Oishi, when he eprroached the prisener to
delivor the ritual stroke, the prisoner had dropped his heed, his brertbing
hed storped, and motionless he wrs held up by the ropcs so he would not fall
to the ground, Oishi mede a small eut around the shoulder but no blood came
out, nor wes therc blood on his sword,

Summing up the above focts, it cen be affirmed even from comron knowledge
that when Oishi was ebout to cut, the prisoner wes elrcedy dcad, ' Murder is
only committod against e living pcrson and is not constituted ageinst a dead
person, It was after the sta™bing br bayonet and speer wes over that Oishi

\ cut, Under this circumstance, if Oishi ie going to be chorged with the
rosponsibility of murder, the fact that the prisoner wes alive when he cut |
must be proved, But the judge advoerte has not proved this fact, Assuming
thot the prisoner hed mot reeched the stage of death at thet time, aeccording
to the strictest medicml decision, in Oishi's mind et thet timo, he thought
the prisoners were nlrerdy deed, To Oishi the prisoner was considered a
corpse. This is olcrr from his following testimony; which I have cited.

"I hrd mo intentfom to mutilate the body of the prisoners", Thus it can
be dofinitely judged tHet when Oishi cut with the sword hc hed not the slight
intention of ¥illing o live prisoner, It is not permissidblo to hold a person
who did not have any intention to kill responsible for murder, Thus Oishi
is innocent of the chorge of murdor,

2, In behalf of Asamurs, Shunpei,

On the day of the ineident Asamure heerd that there were prisoners on tke
hill in back of the officers! quarters, &8 he had never scen a prisoner
beforc, and es he thought 1% would involve him, he wont to the hill to sece
them, After he hed sech thom and whon he crme to the front of the hospital
adpinistretion duilding, he was ordercd by the hend of the hospital Iwanami
' to go and wotch e the prisoners were going to be executed, After the stabbis
ws over, Iwanemi guddenly ordered him togethcr with Oiebi to cut the meck of
the prisoncr es o pituel, Aceerding to the order of Iwenami, he approached
the prisoncr and aiming ~t the meck cut once. He did not heve any intention
to cut off the homd, As o grort number of officors and enlisted men were
wotching him, he Loocsme excited and nervous, 8o he did not know vhere or how
meh he hed cut, but it was obvious thet the heed wes not eut off,

Thet wes nl), thet was done by him et the scene thet day, /nd it is as
he testified on the witnoss stan®® and thore ariscs no quosticn,
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In specificetion three of Charge I, it is nlleged that Asamura also,
togothor with Ivanemi end the other accused, did wilfully, foloniously,
vith premeditntion end malice aforethought, kill by stabbing with bayonet
and spoary beheeding with swords two imcricen prisoncrs of wars

l.semurn was ordered by the hond of the hospital to go weteh the
oxceution ond he thus went to the scenc, Up till the time he wes ordecred
to cut tho neck of the prisoner by Iwanami, he wrs virtually in the posi:
of an omlooker, It {8 apperent thet he hed not the slightest intention
of participeting in the actual act of execution, /Lnd he had no melice
aforethought to kill the prisoner with Iwonomi,

His only act in this ineidont wes thrt he cut the neck of onc of
the prisoncrs after the stebbing woe over, His act hes no connection with
the ot of stebbing, His rot itself ond aleo his intention had no
connection with the stabbing, Therefore, it is legelly not permissible
to apguc his responsibility conccrning the remalt of the prisoncrs dcath
by combining Fis act of eutting the meck with the cct of stebbing
done by the petiy officers, His rospcnsibility independently arises in
relrtion only to the act of his cutting the neek.

psemurn hnd cut the nock pursuant to Iwanami's order. And this
order wrs sudden ond totally uncxpected by Asemurn, He obeyed the order
of Iwannmi,

Originelly lAsamura wes on cnsign attached to the Forty-first Guard
Umit, Ho wes not an officer belonging to the hospitel, tround Junc of
thrt yorr, ho hed been oppointed the Commanding officor of a squad
defending thc peminsule where the hospitel was situcted ond it wes
chiefly engoged in construction of dofensivo mensurce of the peninsula,
Ho and his fifty men hed their quartcrs in one of the buildings of the
hospital, Hc had his meols with tho officers of the hospitol rt the
offiecrs' moss, Through this rclation he hed meny chenccs to come in
aontnet with Iveanami, Perticularly Iwanemi liked the fronk ond submissive
attitude of Asemurn, Morcover Iwanami wes different from tho ordinary
medierl officer, nnd wrs very amxous and zocclous cbout the dofense of
Truk. He wes constantly decply conccrned obout vhet should be done with
tho hospital, and rbout how should the petients be protected when the
enemy lended, .

Asamure was $he commanding officer of the squad defending the
peninsula, t thet time, Truk wes setursted with the feeling of urgoncy
thet the Ameriecen forece would land, The amnl]l forcee led by lLsomura was
Twanami's only hope, Iwanaml who was goaloue in overy work, teught and -
instructed young Asermure who just was appointed an onsign ond who wee like
his child, with an attitude as if Asamura wes his own subordinate, Iwanam?
gave deteiled instructions and precsuticns to lsamura as to how to dig

_ tank ditches end how operational training should dbe conducted.

Theoretically, Iwanami hed no authority of commend towerd Asamura,
But 8 he wes wnrned bty Commandor Nekesc executive officer of the Forty-
first Gurrd Unit Asamuro oboycd the instructions of Iwenemi cs for as
possible, Thera wes lot to learn from the dcep and long cxperience of
Iwanami, Furthermoro, fsemurn had been teught in thoe Nevel Lendemy strict
obedicnce to supericr ordors., Iwanaml wes o ceptain, Asamura wes just
promoted to be mn onsign, We een understand it to be only nntural thet
Lereure 2V ewg ghey & tie crfor ~nf instruetion of Ivencmi s 1f he wes
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his subordinnte, A4nd it was only noturel that Asamure streightforwnrdly
oboyed vhen he weas ordcred to watech the exceution on the dey of the
incident, and thet Asamure submissively obeycd when he wrs ordcred to cut
the neck of the prisoner by Iwanemi, I belicve any one with common scnsc
will not bleme him for obeying thc rbovementicned ordor of Iwensmi,

Now let us sce whether the prisoncr waes still elive when fAsamura o'
There ie no definite evidence shcwing thet the prisoncr wons elive,
Rather, ovidence showing thrt the prisoncr wes derd is predominant,

The prisoncr thet Asamur- hed cut wes the prisoncr to the left, Thi:
is cleer bocruse Oishi who wos given orders at the same time had cut the
ono on the right, This prisoner whom Lsemura cut wrs the one Hommn had
stabbed first, Homma teostified thnt the prisoner secmed to be dend nfter
his steb, [Lsemura testificd as to how the prisoncr appesrcd as follows:
"b.4e I wont towerd the prisoner to the left and stood to the right of the
prisoner, The hend of the prisoner wos bowed deeply, the lefr wore bent,
his focc wrs colorless, The flow of the blood from the wound had alrerdy
stopped, 48 he wrs in the srme position as whoen he wes stnbbed and in a
vory difficult position to cut, I wondered how to go about it, Everybody
there wes looking nt me and I sew the herd of the hospitel, but focling
it wrs as if the focling is the same as when you are rbout to jump off e
stand which is ten motcrs high and sbout to jump, It was a worridd end
a sort of hurried foeling. Anyway, I delivered the blow, It did not go
well; tho feeling up to which time I hed forced upon mysclf end kept me
going, left me at this time, I folt sick and started to go to the reer,
I beeeme all the more sick eand ns I passcd Yoshigawa, I esked him, 'Hold
this sword for me?' and I wont down to the head in brck of the head of |
the hospital's querters, Thet ie whet I did," When we consider together
the tostimony of Homma and the testimony of Asemure as to how the prisoncr
appeered to him, I believe it is proper to regard the ‘priscner as elreedy
domd, Thus, £samurn inflicted his blow upon a dead body end his sct has
no eonncetion whrtsocver with the cause of the nrisoncr's desth, Thus,
Asamurs cannot be hald responsible for murder in reletion to hie ect,
Concerning this point I heve already argued in reletion to Oishi, thus
I shall refrain from repeating, ’

In concluding, the chorge of rmurder spainst Asamure has not becn
proved beyond reasonable doubti Therefore I urge a finding of not guilty
for Lsamurn o8 to specification threo of Charge I,

3. In behalf of Yoshiszawa, Konsaburo,

Yoshizawe tock the witncss stand ond testified in bhis own behalf,
[ ceording to his tostimony, whrt ho did on that day et the scene eon be
surnrnrized ns follows: In the aftcrnoon of the day of the ineident, he
was ropeiring the roed with three gunsokus, Shortly aftor he begen the
work he sew e truck running towerd the hospitel with several srmed enlisto’
men on it, He continued the working, ond while doing so, he ernin sow
some enlisted men volking up tho hill in front of the officers' quarters,
He rondered vhat it wrs, and went up the hill., He wore nothing but
shorts sinco ho was dressed as such whilo working, On the hill he saw
two prismoers, about ton officcrs end fifty petty officers and onlisted
men asscmbling, &8s he saw the prisoncrs he felt soc sorry for them thot
ho geve them cigerecttes, Ho found a plece of copre which the prisoners
hed put in their pockots like somo procious thing, He felt pitiful of
it ond wented to give thom some benenas, so he went back to his quartcrs
to get them. Thoy wore grecn and not ripe yet. 8o he turncd toward the
hill belf-noked as before, On tho hill, he saw almoet oll of tho officers

of the hospital, not to speck of Ivanami, potty officare and enlisted mon
nssombling and nlso the two prisoners tied to a cross=bar. Sinee he was
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halfeneked he did not onter the line of petty officers and stood outside
of the line, The blindfolds were next taken off by order of Ivanomi, Tho |
one of the prisoners scemed to suffor from cerebral ancmia and foninted,
He approached him end tanped 1ightly nround his neck so thet he would
recover, In the moantime, Isanemi, the heed of the hospitrl made a violc”
specch, rnd soid that he was going to execcute the prisonecrs and thot cver
body hed to stab, He wrs watching the stebbing from outside the lines.
Lftor tho stobbing was over Oishi ond Asamura used their swords against
the prisoncrs, Asamura grew very palc nnd rsked Yoshizava to hold his
(Asemura's) sword for a vhile end left, Then the head of the hospital
suddenly ordered Yoshizawa a8 o riturl to cut the neck of the prieoncr
which he thought Asamure had cut. He obeyed the order and cut his necek
1ightly as a ritual with a sword which Asamura hed givon him, Ho had no
intention to cut off the neck and noturelly the ncck was not cut off.

Thet is nll Yoshizawe did.

However, the witnesses produced by the judge advocntes have added
other nets to the sctunl acts by Yoshizowa whieh I heve releted above.

1, Witness Yemngishi, Michio,teetificd: "When the generel asscmbly
was ordered, nnd when I wos going, I met Yoshigawa on the way. Yoshizewa
nskod me where I wns going, so I told him thet T was going to the hill
where the genernl nssembly wes ordcred, Then Yoshizawa ordored me te
bring a sword for him from the roocm of the senior petty officer, So I
went to his room, took bis sword and gave it to him on the hill."

This testimony of Yamagishi is quite incomprehensible, According to
his testimony, it mey be imagined that Yoshizews hed an intent from the
beginning to cut the prisoncrs with his ovword, But Yoshizawa uscd l
Asnrurn's sword when he cut the neck of the prisoner, We have the
testimony of Yoshizawa and Asamura conccrning this noint, so it ie
indisputable sbout it, Yoshizawa cut with Asamura's sword, This is e
powerful cvidence to prove that Yoshizaua hed no sword at thet tine,
Therefore, I cen maintain thet the snid testimony of Yamagishi is entirely
felsec,

Captain Tencda also testificd thrt he thought it might be Yoshizawa
who hed a Japaneec sword, But this testimony is also contradictory like
thet of Yamegishi'e, I think that an inpression of the figure of half=
naked Yoshizewa cutting the prisoner romeins 1n his reeollecticn ond that
he drow n conclusion thet Yoshisawa hed a sword from the boginning from
the impression, I think this is his ristoke,

2, Witnoss Teknhashi, Masahi testificd, "When the general anssembly
wes ordercd I went to the front of the adminintmtiun building. /bout
f1ftocn or sixtoen men mssembled therc, We were conducted to the hill
by Yoshiseawa," . .

Ls Yoshizawa hnd been repairing the road on that day, ho wre bolfe
naked and wore only shorts, Witnoss Hnyashi also testificd so, There=
fore, I think thet the frct that he was half-naked is not ¢ mistake, So
I bolicve the situation of the beepital where military diseipline was
strictly enforced ot thot time, would not possibly permit Yoshiszawa who
wes halfennked to leed the men wp who hed asserbled by gencrnl assembly.
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Hayonshi, Masaji, seid in his testimony thet the men went up the hill
in o column from the administration building but thrt the lead of the i
column wns neither Homma nor Yoshizewa,

From these ~oints, the testimony of Tekehnshi is ineredible, The
witncss, Haynshi, Mnsaji, testified thet Yoshizawa, Homma end some other
non ticd the prisoncrs to the cross=ber, but before he gnve this testi-
mony, Hnyashi in reply to.o question by the judge ndvoecte, "fho tiecd
the prisoners?™ replicd, I do not know who tied the prisoncrs, I just
romember thnt Yoshizewn and Homma were standing by the prisoners," Thus
1% wne not until he wee shown & writton statenent by the judge ndvoerte
thrt ho testificd thet he sow Yoshizawe also tie the prisoners, The
testirony of the witness Hnynshi, is not very eredible, It is unlikely
thnt, vhen there were many men availrble, thet the senior petty offlcer
would tic the prisoncrs himself, Iwcnami hrs tostified thet he directly
ordcred the ren to tie them end hed them tied by them, Heo did not order
the senirr ranking petty officers Yoshizawa or Homma to do 80,

Thus, eoncerning the acts of Yoshizewn in the July execution incident
we ern ncknowledge thet the truth consiste of these fnote thet he himseclf
hne testified to, If this is tho cnse all thnt Yoshizawa, can bc held
roeountable for in this oxeeution of the prisoners, is hie aet of cuttlrg
the neck of a prisoncr, He is not in a position thnt he should shoulder
the common responsibility for the net of stabbing done by the other
petty officcrs, From the beginning he did not hove the intent to kill
the prisoners nor did he wish to cut the hends of the prisoners.

fter the stabbing was over, Oishi, and Asamure, Werc ordered to do
the ritucl cutting of the neck of the prisoners by Imanemi, Put, 08
Asomura, bungled the job of cutting, Twanemi nomed Yoshizewa, and ordered !
hin to perform it correctly pecording to the ritunl, The reason that
Twanemi, named Yoshizowe rust heve bocn beenuse Yoshizawe was the best
gwordsmnn rt the hospital, Yoshizawc, was surprised at this sudden and
unexpected order but, cs it wns the order of the herd of the hospitnl,
he could not very well reject it, therefore he oboyed the order and cut
1ightly in the neighborhood of the nock nccording to etiquette, He did
not cut off tho hend, if ho hnd hed the intention to cut off the herd
how ensy it must have been for a person of hie ability, The prisoner
thnt Yoshizowa cut was the prisoner thot Asarura hed failed in cutting.
There i8 no conerete evidence whieh shows that the priscner wes yot
plive when Yoshiznwe cut but rather it shou’d be reeognized that the
prisoncrs wore dend ns I have alreedy argued in beholf of Lsapure,
Yochizawa,in his tecstimony, has tostificd as follows on how the prisonecr
loocked ot this time:

"29, 4, It aprearcd that the prisonor was not breething, he had not
strongth in his body, His legs were bent and he wes slumned down and he
wes held up by the ropes.”

In Yoshizawa's ease algo, even though the prisoncr was retunlly alivc,
in Yoshizawa's mind the prisoncr wre already dead, It can be rerdily
surmised thet Yoshizowa did not swing his eword with the intention to
%i11 o person whe wes alive, [Lnd we should understend thet he merely
rlnced the sword as a ritual and a formality and hed mo intention to
oven mutilate the dord body. Tho renson thrt his act of cutting the nock
of the prisonere does not constitute the crime of murder is the samec as I
have stetod in. the case of Oishi and Lsamura, Therefore, Yoshisawe should
elso be found not guilty of Charge I and its specification,
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4. In behalf of Tancka, Tekunosuke,

The defendant Tennka, together with the defendants Kuwabora and
Tkeye who comritted suicide, according to orders, went %o the Forty=-first
Guard Unit in the afternoon of the day of the ineident, to roceive the
two prisoncrs of the July {ncident,

On receiving the above order, he wes told thet the prisoners were
being brought to the hospital for physical exrminetion and he understood
it to be so, He nbsolutely did not know thrt the prisoners were being
brought to be cxecuted that day, Concerning this point, it is cleor
from the testimony of defendant Kusrobara tvho stoted: "When I asked :
Tennka, 'Is anything the mottor with those prisoners,' he replied, 'they
are going to have a physicel ecxaminntion at the hospitel,'® Thorefore,
we connot allege, in view of Tennka's act in going over to receive the
prisoners, that he knew of the plan to exccute the priscners or thct be
hnd partieipated in the plan, Thie act of Taneka, should be underatood
a8 having no relstion with his responsibility in the execution incident,

In specificetion threc of Charge I, Tancka is elso charged with
murder, Among the witnesses for the prosccution, there are nany who
testifiod thet Tanaka with o bayonct or spear in hand, was in the two
colume of petty officers foecing tho prisoners., Then, did Tanrke
volunterily entcr the two columns of potty officers with the abovg weapon
in hand, with the intent to stab and kill the prisoner? Definitely not.

How wns this column of petty officers in which Tanckn wos said to be
formed? Witness for the prosecution Hryashi tostified os regerds this
point as follows: "0n the afternoon of the day of the incident, & genorc’
nsserbly wrs called, Almost all of tho officers and enlisted men of the I
hospital assambled on the hill in beck of the of ficers' quarters. Lftor
the herd of the hospitel hed arrived on the hill, the two prisoners wore
ticd to a cross-bor tied between two trees, Aftor the spaech of the heac
of the hospital wns over, Ivenomi gove orders reloycd by Oishi for the
petty officcre to step forwerd, The potty officers were ordercd by
Lieutenant Oishi to oome forwerd and for a short time there wee o
hesitation and no one céme forwnrd, and during this period, when I saw
0ishi, he lcoked os if he wos thinking very hard, and I remerber the hero
of the hospitel saying forcafully to begin the execution. Then Lieutcnai’
0ishi hed all the petty officers from a cartain polnt ceme forword, and
the petty officers were brought forwerd, lined up, 28 1 remember,
according to renk in front of the prisoncrs, Then the hayonets ond
spears were honded to these petty officers,” Defendants Oishi and Horma
nlso pave about the seme testimony ns thet of thnshi_mantinnad above,
Only one point seems to differ, thet is, Hayeshi testified thet the two
columns of petty officere werc formed cfter the epcoch of Iwanomd, wheren!
0ishi and Homma testificd thet it vwas before the speech, I believe this
a misrecollection on the part of Haycehi, ,

fccording to this tcatimony, Tanaka assembled on the hill beccuse ol
n generel assembly, without knowing whet was going to take place; end
while he wos linod up with the other potty officers, he woe forced to
step forward and enter the two columrs of petty officcrs by 0ishi acting
under the order of Ivanami, tho heed of the hospitel., It is clear thet
he did not stop fogward on his owm,
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Under the elrcumstances in which he wes plaged that time, could he
have refused to step forward? I believe it would be impossible in the
arned forces of any country for a petty officer under the sbove mentiocned
eireumstences to rcfuse the orders of his superior, It 48 more so in the
Japrresc armed forces, where the men are trained under iron rule to
inplicit obcdience to suporior orders rcgordless of whether the substance
of those orders werc proper or improper, possible or impossible, Tancka
was virtually ferced to enter the two columns of petty officors, Could
nnyone criticize Tanekm for entering the 1ine?

Furthermore, witness for the rrosecution Kikuchi, Goro testified
thet he sew Tanske stab with o beyonet, If this is true, vhy did Tanaka
stab? Did he stab of his own free will? No, definitely not, Ivanami
shouted cxeitodly, "We are now going to execute the [mcricen aviators
who unlawfully bembed our hospital, Stab spiritedly.® Then Olshi geve
the words of command, "Forwerd," Sore men in the front wont charging.
When Taneke's turn came, he heerd the seme word of command, He moved
mochanieally ond he unconsciously charged with the bayonct.

This nct of Tencka entirely differe in noture with acts generally
¥nown a8 dcne in accordance with superior orders. This pct of Tanaka

wne done under eemplete pesychological compulsion breught rbout by the worc

of comrond, How doce the ™word of command" reaect or operatc upon an
onlisted mon whe received it? In partiewlar upon the enlisted men who
are lined up? In meny cescs, it reacts upon thon stronger than if
physical compulsion were imposed, The purpose of the "word of command"
in the rrmed forees is to move the roceiver as intended by the comrander,
as if he were moving tho plcces in a chese game, Herein, lics the
essence of tho "word of command,® The receiver ie placed in a siturtion
in which he is completely deprived of his froe mill, On this point,

the acte of a person motivated by the "word of comnand" should be clearly
distinguished from the generally known macte done in accordance with
superior order.,” In general "ects done in- accordance with superior
order," the frce will of the receiver exists, to some extent, But free
w11l is not ncknewledred to the rcceiver of o Wyord of command™ in the
ormed forees, Thus, I believe.we could dafinitely coneludec that the
rocolver has no responsibility concerning his ncts which ere done
pursuant to the "word of command® 4n the militery,

Acts done in accordance with supericr orders Are goenerally precludec
of unlevfulncss, Acts pursuant to the "word of commend® can be regorded,
a8 o coneept, as one kind of act done in accordance with superior orders.
But in rcality, from the point of view of the receiver, in acts pursuant
o ™rord of commend® he is doprived of individual will, ond he heg no
frecdor of will, Could anyone who experienced even © single day of
pilitary 1ifc, dore to deny this position and psychology of the reeeiver?
Thue in e crim'nal ect, the criminal intent of such e doer should
nrturelly be pre¢luded,

Now then, d4d the bayonct which Taneke hed, rctually pierce tho
body of tho prisoncrs? If it did, vhet pert of the body wee stabbed?
Did the priscner die ty the stab of Paneka? Concerning these points,
the judge advocote hrs produced no cvidence vhat ®ever, Witness for the
prosecution, Hosepewa, merely tostificd: "hen it wns Tanaka's turn, the
prisoner wos alrendy bleeding from being stebbed, and I do not know
whether 11ood cemo out when Taneka stebbed.”

ﬁ?zmmmgmmm. 0535 (19)°
Fo N s (

/

y -!T';IES P, KENNY
eutenant, U Mas

Judge Adovast, i

=




Is this sufficient evidence to find Taneke guilty for murder? "I sm
Tanoka stab®, only by this evidence such rs this could he be guilty for
such o grove crime as murder, No, definitely not. Then, should Tanaka
take the responsibility of killing the prisoncr by corbining the rosults
brought about by the other stobbers? Definitely not, Jmong the petty
officers who were forcod te line up, therc wos no apreement to kill the
priscners tied in front of them, by concerted action, Theee potty
officors in two columns including Teneke, nfter being forced to step
forward, heerd the spcceh of the herd of the hospitel, ond for the first
time upecificrﬁf Jeerncd thnt those prisoncrs werc going to be executod,
They realized t the herd of the hospitrl wrs going to moke them stob
the prisoners, Then, they were only ordered to steb scparately with thels
sporre ond bayoncts, There 1s absolutely mo proof thet Tancka personally
hed the intent to kill the prisoners ticc in fromt of him, Rather, the
ncturl siturtion et that time which hrs boen established by testimony
of verious witnossce will contradict this. And re for the fret thet he
had wilfully, with malice eforcthcught did so ond so it is on'y too
obvious thrt he had none.

The points I hove brought up concerning Tancka cen be similerly
seid of the other petty officers who were foreed with Tencke to line in
tho two eolumns, handed the weapons, then for the first timc showm what
the weapons were going to be used for, ond rccording to the word of
command advenced end stebbed the prisoncre,

When it ern be neknowlodged thet ™ony porson in the same position
a8 the dofondent, would have produccd tho same result," the defendent
is frec of eriminel rcsponsibility. Thie is o principle gencrally
rocognized in tho theory of eriminal lew of todoy., I believe it is not
tho purpose of the criminal trials to demond suporhumen awercness of
morrl scnsoc from the defendrnts,

T sk your special ond dcep consideration conecrning the responsibil-
ity rnd position of the petty of ficcrs who stebbed in the presont crse,

- me THREE -

Tho issucs of the present case are tho purders of prisoncrs of wor
o1l ocourring ot a Japanese Navel Hospitel on Truk Atoll, There has
been, however, no definite avidence that the prisoncrs were lmerican
prisoners of wnr, But, the fret thnt they were prisoncrs of wer under
Phe custody of tho Forty=first Gusrd Unit at Truk, has boon osteblished
to some oxtent. I, poersonally as ¢ Jepanosc, regrot vory much that
murder by medical officor, particulerly thrt of nrisoncrs of wrr, should
heve occurrcd ot a military hespitel, whose rrineipel duty is to seve the
1ives of the siek and wounded in the battle fields, and which bocause of
this duty is trected with speciel protection under interneticnol law,

It is scid thet tho history of tho Japencsc raec gros back 2600 odd
yonrs, but the historic cvents which we cre eble to know through
docunents, definitely end in detoil, nro traced back about 1600 yenrs,
During this long peried of ¥ime, the occasions are very faw, where the
Japrnese rece ongoged themselves in warfere with other countrice, If I
should cmmerete them, there were only twe such gvents,

‘bout 700 ycers ogo, the forces of the Mopgolian roce which rose
to power in the China eontinent, inveded the shores of Kyushu, and o

battle tms wrged, Bub this invasion ves on & small seele and soon coasce.
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The other oecasion occurred about 300 years after this Mongolisn invansion,
when the main Jepancse forces swcpt into the Korcan peninsula end ongoaged.
in hostility with the Korean forccs, But this wer also did mot last long.
From thet time up until the Meiji Restoration which took place rbout 80
yoors from the present dey, Jepan suspended communicctions with the
outside world end indulged in peccoful dreams within hor islend, During
this period, she did not oven experience single civil wer, not to spcak
of vrr with cnothar netlon.

this period of yoors, Japan was under the rule of Tokupawm
Shogunato (military leeders) and this period is known cs the Era of
Scolusion in Japenese history, The government was by the Shopun (militory
loeder), but in actuality the government was not onc of militery rulc,.
Favored vith this pe-cc of 300 years, the Japnnese roca with celm and
posscssed attitude, seriously meditatod end studicd such problems as "whet
is ran", “how should men be®, "hov should men act in socicl end family
1ifc", with roforence to the torchings of Confucius, Furthormore, during
this period, Buddhism cost away ite transcondentol philosophicel
meditetion, and eerncstly cnd understandobly prerched the spirit of merey
to the mosscs, It wre morelity of Confucius end the spirit of the Budchic
which taught mercy, thet dominrted the pinds of the people during this
pﬂricd-'

In this ere, rescnrchcs concerning rrecédenl scicnce were prohibited
ag n poliey by thc peonle, Thus enlightenmcnt by way of scicntific
civiligation of Burope wes greotly retarded, Nevertheless, thie duration
of perceful 1ife losting 300 yeers in which extornnl ond civil wer was
forgotton, wes significant in pronoting the spiritual and roral life of
the Japencsc people, and moulding the typical Japencse charectoristice.

Tt is undisputeble thrt the Jepenese underwent f gortoin eultursl training
during thie pcriod,

In this orn, the "samural® (soldier) constituted a priviliged cless,
But, at thet timec the samurel, or soldier, wrs in name only, and not much
tine wag epent by then in polishing their militery art, They mostly
oxerted themsclves in philosophicel meditetion such rs, "how should e
garmral be", "how can onc boeome on exemplary, courteous men®, "whnt is
the true purpose of wielding the Japrneso sword," The sharp sword neen=
vhile rusted unused in the hilt and the borutiful ermor peculier to Japen
wes put up in the rlcoves to be edmired os a plece of fino art,

By 1543, the rifle wes alrcedy introduced into Jepen by o Portugese.
Subsequently, mony improvements were made on it, by the dexterous Japanes:
artisen, so thrt it had becone & highly elabornte wearon. But, it too wr:
left hanging on the vall to rust, forgotten as an instrument of wrrfare,
for there wes no chonee to use it, At this time the Japrnose people were,
rather, 1iving in soft, effeminnte atmosphere, rcmotely distrnt from
militerien,

Tt wre not until the ndoption of a prtional structure under a
Europecn breis end the oeteblishment of & modern nrtionsl militery eystem,
subsequently rocliged after the abolition of the feucalists rcgime under
Tokugava by the Meiji restoration, did militerism in the true scnsc of
the word, teke rise in modern Japan, ind 1t wrs not until the Russo=
Japencse wrr which broke out in 1904 some 43 yoars sgo, thrt tho Japancse
for the first time under a united nationnl consciousnces, engoged them=
sclvee in & big scale war with another country.
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At this time, no {nternatirnal treety es regerds to troatment of
prisoncrs of wrr, existed es yet, But, an idca vas teking riee in Eurcpe,
that the prisocners should be treeted, excent for certain necessary
rostrictions of their freedom, in the same manner as the soldicrs under
vhose country's authority the prisoncrs were teken, It wes eftor the
Russo=Japenese wer in the yerr 1907, that the Hague Convention wrs
concluded and provisions were set forth to the sbove effect.

[t this time, Jopanese militerism was stil1 possecssed with ample
morality, During the Russo=Jaranoee wer therc wes no trouble rogerding
the treotment and hendling of nrisoncrs, On the contrery, prisoncrs werc
trocted with utmost eere, This wes not déne in obligetion to any trerty,
but in nccordonce with natural human sontiment thet o prisoncr of ver,
~ even though he be a foe, should be protected when he hes eurrendered his

erms. Perticulerly, rs the Japancsc people hnd not expericneed the
eufforing brought rbout by being conqueraed or invaded by other nrtions up
to this time, they did not hove the slightest feeling of recinl prejudico.
hetred or rotribution toverds pther netions,

Tn the battle of Japen Sea, between tho Jepencsc and the Ruseion
novies, a captain of a Japenceo wershin, sceing meny members of o sunken
Russian ship helplesely crifting, could not beer lorving them in this
giturtion, so he suspended the oneretions which he hed been ordered to
carry out, ond saved these Russian scemen fron drowning, This is & well
xnown incident. Again, when the Comnondcr in Chief Rogestwinsky of
Russion For Ecst Flcet wes wounded ond captrucd, Ldmiral Togo of Chief of
the Japancse Combined Flect ealled upon him and honed for his immedinte
recovery, Commender in Chicf Rogestuinsky, with terrs in his cycs, warml}
shook hands with ldniral Togo ond thanked him for his kind trontnent end
coneiderrtion,

There is » touching episode, which happencd in & lend battle of this

Russo=J-:cnesc wore Thet is, after Port Arthur ecpituloted the commending

of ficer of the Japenese forces, Genernl Nogl erd Commanding officer of

the Russicn troope Generel Stesscl mot ot Suishici, Generel Nogi greoted
the deferted General Stossel at this confercnee, vith the utmost courtcsy
It sc(med Gonecral Nogl cxerted every offort so thrt Gonerel Steoseel would

not fool any humiliation of defoct end surrcnder. This attitude of Gener::

Nogi, vms preisecd by e1l1 his countrymen. The cvents of this confercnce
were written into e berutiful poom by & Japancsc noct. Loter, it was
edoptcd in the Jepancsc Noticnel Reeder, and sct to © beeutiful rhythm whic
hos been sung by slrost all of the people, The meening of the first port
of this poom is es follows: Lt tho fell of Port frthur, Genernl Stesscl
of the Russien /rmy surrendered to Generel Nogi of the Impcrial Jeponcse
Army in o smell Manchurian villago cel’ed Suishiel.

Thoy met in o tumble down shock, Therc wes r jujubc troe in the
porden, its trunk nerkod by numerous bullcts and shells.

f1though yostorday thoy were encmice, they hed become fricnds, Thoy
spoke fronkly nnd cordially, Nogil sdmired the strong defensc of Stosscl',
ermy, while the letter praiscd Nogi's fighting spirit,

"I hoard", seid Stossol sorrowfully, wthat you lost your two sons
during thet furious battle, I can understend how grieved you miet be,"

Nogi replicd in a dccp voice, "Yos, I lost them. But thoy died
gloriourly in action. I fcol it is the honor of the poldier and I'm not
grieved with their deaths,” '
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They had lunch togaether and contimed their friendly conversation.

"I have a nice horse," said Stessel, "and I would be very delighted
if you accept it as @ momento,"*

Whrok you very much, General," replied Nogi, wif the army
rerulations permit me to accept it, I will take good cere of 1t."

s, they parted. The bettle wes over an’

After cordially shaking hand
ring hours before were

the horrible sounds of firing which hed been ro@
not heerd,

The oppressive and impolite attitude of Japanese Genersl Yemeshite,
Tomoyuki, displayed in his conference at Bukitema Hill, Singapore,

with the Commanding Officer of the British forces, General Percival who
had hoisted the fleg of truce, cannot possibly be imegined from the
sentiments of thet Japanese militery steff consisting of Nogi, Togo end
others of the Russo=Japanese Wer, The difference of attitude of the hced
military men shown in these examples, indicetes the fundamentel differen”

in disposition betrecen the militery leadcrs of the Russo=Jepenese For
Period and the present one.

Furthermore, during World War I, there wes no cesc of strocity
o fought et Chingtac, China end vere

concerning the German prisoners wh

confined by tho Jepanese. It wes totally impossible oven to imagine
such en incident as murdering prisonors. The attitudes of the politiccl
jerders of wrr and the sentiment of the Jepancee people towrrd the
Germon prisoners of wer, were most sympethetic end friendly, There were
many Germen prisonecrs vho even cemo to love the Jepancse feeling and

Japen's boeutiful views, so thri they medc up thoir minds to stey and
gtored, In this

not return to their mother country after peacc wes e
period, morality gtill reraingd in the hoarts of tho militerists of this
time, But in Buropc during World Wer I, the belligercnts were

oriticizing the measures which the hostile power had taken pgainet them

concerning the troetment of nrisonors, bescd upon tho Hegue Convention.
Thue in 1929 a now treety was concluded conecrning the treotment of
prisoners, rcflecting tho experiences of Forld Wer I, This trcety
osteblished far more detailed provisions then the Heguo Convention
regerding tho treatment of prisoncrs of wecr.

Now, how did the belligerents in the profent war deel mith the
prisoners? How were the prisoners troated? I en unawarc of the situsti
of othor countrics, but I must admit thet thero wero mony Crrors concert.
ing tho trentmont of prisoncrs comritted by the Japancsc militery in the
present wer, which could not have possibly been tFought of by the
Jepancse people, during tho Russo=-Jepencse Wer, As @ result, those who
committed the errors are being severely criticized in the wer orime
trisls, Yus, there was no dgreement concerning the treatment of
prisonere during the Russo=Japenese War, but the Jepencse military

protected them with highest courtesy in conformity with the universal
ent wer whon dotriled provisions

morelity of menkind, During this pree

concerning the treatment of prisoncrs of ver hed elreedy been sct forth
in the international lew, t+is phencmena of the Jepenese militery :
comritting reny greve errors, sonc of them of evil nature, i8 @ problen %
of utmost importance to menkind, thet should be noted and reflected upon W

not only by the Japenese people but all netions of this world.
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The following significant words by St, Paul ore found in Romens 4:15
Mfhere thore is no lew, neither is thore transgression,"

The mords are simple but their implicetion is nrofound and menifold,
It is e ponctreting eriticism of civilization, Thesc words mey be
construed to imply that subscquent moking of lows, does not mean progrce
of mankind, but its retrogression,

Japan did not have eny machincguns, not to mention airplencs, during
the Russo=Japencsc Wer, But in the last wor, she designed end mede
airplencs end super=battleships of 60,000 tons such es the MUSASHI end
YAMATO, Truly, Jeran hed made grert advance in the field of sciontifie
civilizetion, in corperison with tho doys of Russo=Jopencese War, But,
Japan cormitted meny moral errors in the treetment of prisoners and
othors, Thie exemple of Jepen or Germeny, I belleve, hrs offered us
valucble dnta showing thet keen criticism end strong reflection should
be madc upon modern scientific eivilizntdon, Such incidents concerning
prisoncrs es erc ncw before this court, I believe would not have
occurred under the attitude shown by the politierl and nilitery leaders
at the time of the Russo=Jepencse Wer and under the notionad gentiment
vhich wrs promoted and guided by these leeders. I ray even venture to
say that thero wes absolutely no chence for such an incident to occur
under the ctmosphere prevelent in thosc devs,

Me find, rt this point, thet the following opinion of & famous
Euroncen scholer of cririnal lew, most eppropriate: "A will erainst
morm end lev may be indicetcd €8s o morbid will, And thies will is the
product of sociel wrong surrounding thrt individusl, We must seck the
couse of this discesc in men's will, not in nature, but in socicty. So
long s we nccount only the psyeholoricel operntion within an individunl
and so long as ve obsorve the vorious acts of en individual npart from
a1l rcletions with scciety, we wi'l never rttain e true concept of eithe
the wrong will nor rightful will, When e study closcly the functicn
between the individual and the soeioty, ve will notice thot it is twofol’
Thrt is, socicty exprosses itself, on the one hond, as the produccr of
character of man, and on the other hand formuletor of motive," He
further stotes: "Crime is the product of socicty. The root of ¢ social
phenomene known rs crime is truly cmbedded in the society rs & whole,
end in the rggrogete causcs cmennting from society." Moreover, it vre
Montcsgicu, n French jurist end philosopher, who soid: ™A good
logisletor endervors to prevent erime rethor then to punish it, Such
logisl~tor wil) give us good monners and crstome rother then punishmeont,
And he too gresped the truth thet crime wrs not o product of the
individurl but thrt of the society in which he lives,

A court of the precent dey wil) not bold e eriminal responsible
for 011 tho consequencee, ecturl hrrm or loss, whieh scemed to heve
resulted directly from or in reletion to o certein cet of the eriminal,
The eourt first of all, eegregetes those consequences dircotly connccted
with the intent of the criminal, and holde him rcsnonsible thereto,
Thon, if therc is rry rcsponsibility to be ettiibuted for his conceptio.
or realizetion of his eriminal intont to the socioty in vhich the
eriminel resides, such responsibility will be precluded from the
responsibility of the cririnal, And when the court finde o responsibil-
ity vhich the society me a vhole should shoulder, it will wrrn the

society and the stet n who lerds the society by the judgment it gives.
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The purpose of the criminal trial in no way, 1ics only in moting
out punishment to the eriminal and for his crime in retaliantion thereof,
I bolieve this is commen sense todays And it ie my convieticn thot the
seme moints should also be considered in the wrr crime trials,

Moreover, it is my desire to understand thet the prinoiple objoctdvs
and esrential function of & war crime triel llcs in percieving with
wisdom from the concrete example of wer crimes, vhet ethicel requircmente
erc demonded of modern men and modern stete, rrther then punish ench
individuel eriminal, and in informing the wier erininels and his people
of thet perception in order to demend their reflecticn, and in announeinf
this to the whole world to wrrn them of the futvro,

Former Prine Minister of England, Winstcn Churehill, wrote on
ert¥cle for a cortain American megezine in Janurry, titled, "High Roed
of the Future,” In it, I found the following rords of profound meening-

"The on'y worthwhile prize of viectory is the power to forgive and
guide,”

Members of the commission, [& for thesc accused, if therc ere
rersons to forgive, I ssk your forgiveness; if there arc possibilitice
to guide, I nsk your guidance, and I beg thet they mey be given an
opportunity to show their abilities and the gocd vhieh they have in
them. This.shell be my last word of request to this commission,

SLIZ0 SUZUKI

I certify the above, consisting of twenty-five (25) typevritten
peges, to be & true and complete translation of the original argument
of Suzuki, Saizo, to the best of my sbility.

EUGENE E. KERRICK, jr.,
Lieutenent, USKR,
Interpreter,
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INTRODUCTION.,

If it please the commission,

I would like to argue in behalf of the accused WATANABE, Mitsuo, SAWADA,
Tsuneo, KUTABARA, Hiroyuki and NAMATAME, Kaguo among the 18 accused involved
in the so-called July incident and charged in Charge I of Specification 3.

The above mentioned 4 accused who I am defending, were all emgaged in
their own respective work at the scene and did not participate in the stabbers
column, as I shall establish in the main part of my argument.

In my argument I will clarify the acts of these accused and point out
the errors in the evidence produced by the judge advoocate,

As the facts concerning WATANABE and SAWADA are identical, I shall
argue in behalf of them jointly., But as to the accused KUWABARA and NAMATAME,
I shall have to argue separately because their circumstances are differenmt.

Thie incident which alleges that two prisoners were killed is very
simple, As some facts are common to all the petty officers, I shall try to
avoid any repetition by arguing first in full detail concerning these common
points in the portion of my argument concerning the petty officers of the
paymaster section. And I shall omit from the above nortion anything concern-
ing the other accused and obviate repetition.

Despite the fact that this is a simole incident, 1t seems it has be-
come unnecessarily involved, The chief reason for this is because of the
unnecesearily large mumber of persons indicted, It is clear that IWANAMI,
the head of the 4th Naval Hospital ordered some petty officers to stab two
prisoners, but the vital point as to who the persons were who stabbed is not
elear, This has been the obstacle in this case.

This incident occurred im July 1944, almost a year before the end of
the war,

The battle condition of the central Pacific at that time was, that
Saipan and Tinian had already fallen, air-raide became ever intense, com=
mmication with Japan was completely suspended and the movements towards
the end of the war was being accelerated with gread speed, Thus I believe
that everyone on Truk at that time resolved upon death and never even dream-
ed of seeing his home again, Furthermore, I believe no one ever thought that
this July incident would be tried before this court as it is being done to-
day. The last year and a half prior to the end of the war were days of
guffering hovering between 1ife and death, Therefore it is a mogt difficult
if not imposeible task to have the persons comnected with the incident to
recall who did the incident in killing two prisoners,

411 can only remember, oven their own acts, as if they were a dream,
But 1t is olear that two -risoners were killed, Confronted with the ultimate
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problem, thrt someone must toke the responsibility, the aeccused of this

case were chosen, Thus I belicve thet we should note with eare thrt among
these ncoused there rre persons chnrged ns the ones responsible who actunlly
did not participate in the stcobbing,

MLIN_LRGUMENT.

For reesons stated in spoecification thrce of Cherge I, "on or chout
20 July 1944, ot Dublon Island, Truk Atoll, Carocline Islands, at o time
when p stote of wor cxisted botween the Undted Statcs of lmorica, ita
£11ice ond Dependencies, end the Imperianl Japrnese Empire, wilfully,
foloniously, with promeditetion end malice aforethought, and without
juetifinble erusc, assault, strike and kill, by beyoneting with fixed
boyonets, epecring with specrs, nnd by bcheading with swords, two (2)
Imeriesn Prisoncrs of Wrr, names to the reletor unknown, both then end
there held eoptive by the prmed forces of Japrnge...." the accused Watanbe,
Sewnda, Kuwebare, snd Nemetame ore cherged with murder, To prove this
nllcpation the judge sdvoente produced evidence through the testimony of
witnessos Kikuchi, Yomnmoto, Tokehoshi, Hescgnwn, Hamede, and Hoyashi and
r. stetement of Ikoya apninst the aceused Wetnnebe, ond Sawedn, ond epainst
the recused Kuwobere the tostimony of witnesscs Hemeda, Hascprwe and
Mosenibik, n nrtive of Truk and o stetcment of Ikeye rnd ageinst the
necuscd Nematome the testinony of witnesscs Homade, Tokahnshi, ond Hascgova

But all of this testimony is very vegue, We were not rble to find
out from this tcstimony how thesc accused got into the line of stnbbers,
in vh-t linc thoy were, in wheot position of the 1ine, whrt kind of weapon
they hed, nor which priscncr they stnbbed, These witnesses who reealled
meny pames of the recused only reerlled onc point, in other words, "The
nomes of persens® end did not reenl] any other points, This cs o recollcc-
tion of o person cen not be, Supposin? a person- did heve such o reeolleeti
we con not rceognize this rs n rocollection which hes an objcctive value,
Thorafore I firmly belicve thrt testimony which dovs not have veluc is
not sufficiont ovidence to prove the guilt of a very serious erima such ns
murder ogainst theec accuscd, The necused who were the petty officers of
the peymnster section, nemely Wntancbe end Sawade were led by their
comnending of ficer, Paymaster Warrant Offiecr Ota the afternoon of the day
of the ineident and were drilling, While drilling r rumner crmo to
announce thrt the gonernl nsscmbly was called and by following this order
they were lod up the hill in bdeck of the hospital, eond cssemblcd as ono
group to the rcar of the corpsman scction, The strbbers in this ineidcent
by orders of the hord of the hospital werc lincd up in front of the
nrisoners., Thoy werc the eight of ten persons who worc separrted from the
herd of the cormsmen scetion formetion, Therc i8 no connection whrtsocver
with the neeused rtannbe, ond Secwadn, who belonged to the paymester
soetion, Furthermore the nccuscd Wetonebe and Sawada did not lerve the
1line of tre paymnstor seetion nt any time, There ie no rerson vhy they
should go into the column after the others were eerorcted and lined up
in front of the priscners, and this point has not been proved by the judge
ndvoeste ot 211, I think the commission too hes clenrly understood as
shovm through verious facts whieh were brought out in this court up until
today, how the purecns in the columen in front of the rrisoncrs were
pieked and thot the paymester scction wes lined up sepcrately.

I will bring ocut this point lotor by quoting verious testimony,
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There is the fret thot the neeused Kuwcbara, together with coedefendant

Tanrkn went tc the Forty=first Guord Unit to get the prisoncrs of this

ineidont, but in repnrd to his nction ~t tho scanec ns cloarly testified

by the scoused Kumobara, he wes standing neer the rrisoners as a puard \

for the prisoncrs, Furthermore this noint hes boon mede known by Nematame '
| who wes standing noer Kuwebera, It 18 not cleer as to how the secused

Kuvabara wns ordercd to such a duty, but we connot help but surniso thet

it wns because he, with tho co=defondant Yoshisewn, did such eonspienous

ecte o8 giving eigerottes nnd wotor to drink to the prisoncrs, Becousc of

this, he did not 1ine up in the lino where the corpsmen were lincd up;

therefore he wus not pulled out into the columns o8 n stabber,

It 18 clecr from his own tostimony thet Namoteme wes dipging & hole on
the dry of the ineident, The relation in time of when the rceuscd Namotame
woe digging o hole and when the stobbing took plnec is e very important
faetor in order to understond the ection of the neoused Nameteme, OAs it
is elcerly toetifiod by him this work e~n be divided into two steps, In
other words first, they dug o hole to r spccified size, This wes the first
step in their work, Theoy were then told thet the hole wne too shellow, so
thoy sterted to dip erpein, This wrs the sccond step of their work. Whon
they finished the first step of their work, it urs just beforc thc rrison-
crs were brought to the secne, Ind subscquently the eceond step in their
work wos contimucd, Therefore, whon the would be strbbers cf this
ineident werc sclected, he wes in the hole and did not perticipate, It
cennot be possible thrt eftcr he eame out of the hole, he then went into
the linc of stnbbers, PFurthormore, considoring the faet thet he wes not
yet o petty officer rt th~t time, I think the fact he did not prrtiecipate
in the stabbing cen be ensily understeood,

I hrve cxploined in the above the cetions of erch accused on thet dayr,
and now et this time I would 1ike to further inquire into this, hy
t comparing it with the cvidence produced by the judpe ndvoerte, |

First I will start with the potty officcrs of the paymnster section

Watenebe and Sewndr, The fret thet on the aftcrnocn of the dey of the

k incident the fiftecen or sixtecn men of the paymastcr seetion with the
exception of the men on duty rt the pel ey, were dril'ing is elenrly shomm
by the witncss, Ote, Seiichi, who testificd, "I led about 15=16 men who
hnd not duty and worc heving ficld training," and by the testimony of the
accused Fetannbe who stated, "In the morning ve worked ns usual and at thot
time in the rnymaster section with the excention of Saturdey and Suncay
afternoon we hod drilling every afternoon; so thet eftcrnoon toc, ns usual
we wore drilling." The accused Sawadn who also testificd likewise, Therc~

| fore this fret is cloer from the rhove testimony ond there is no evidence

! to retut this foet, In regerd to this noint I think the judpe ndvoeate

' too has no objcetion,

Then, why did the peymester scction which was drilling grther up on
the hill? This too is stated clerrly in the testimony of the above
witncsses who 01l testificd thet a eertoin young sailor of the corpsman

* section come to pletoon lcader Otr and relayed an order for them to
cssemble on top of the hill, the platoon leader, Ote, stopped the drilling
' ond led the platoon to the seene without changing their attire, To this
fret witnoss Ota, Sciiehi testifiod, "A runner crme to me and seid for ue
to eissemble on the hill in brek of the officcrs' quarters; so I led the
pletoon in e formotion in vhieh they wore training, up the hill,® The
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nocused Tatensbe nnd Sawade also hove testified similerly, Next, the fret
thrt at tho secne the paymnster section was 1ined@ up separntely in beck

of the corpsmen section, too, hrs been testified to by crch witness,
Furthormore & vitness of the prosceuticn, nemely Hnyeshi, toetificd to the
above frct by £17ustreting with o cdiogram. tnd there is no cvidence whot=
socver apainst this fret,

This fret thrt the paymaster section was nssembled scparrtely, I think.
is n point in which cven the judge ndvoeete ogroes, Lt this time I would

11ke to ndd thrt the paymoster sectlon which wos rt the scenc wrs the

group that wrs troining thet cey and wes comoscé of only helf of the
members of the peymaster section, and the other half which wes on duty thet
dey wos working in the gelley prepering focd for the members of the
hospitel ond the potients, snd that theec who were working did not assemble
at the scene., Now, the point to vwhich we mst especinlly toke notice in
erch testimony is the point cs regerds whether or not the men of the
paymester section loter rent into the tvo columns in front of the

prisoncrs nt the sccne.

Before wo discuss this point, ve mst consider the vital point ne
to whnt orders and when these men went out to form the two colunns in
front of the prisomers, .4s to this point there wes only one witnoss of
the prosccution, Heynehi who tostificd rceurntely to this noint, In other
words, in emstvcr to the question 28 which wrs rut to him, he stotes:

"The petty officerse were ordered by Licutonrnt Oishi to como forurrd
end for o short time therc wrs o hesitetion rnd no one cAme forwerd, and
during this period, whon I sow Oishi, he locked os if he wre thinking ver;
hnrd, pnd I remomber the hoed of tho hospitel saying forccfully to begin
the oxceution, Then Licutenont Oishi hod a1l the petty offiecrs from a
cortein point sten forurrd, end the petty officers were brought forwerd,
1ined up, ne I remember, according to renk in front of the prisoncrs,"”

Other than Hoyeshi nll the other witnesscs of the prosecution only
testificd thrt whon thoy went to the scenc, the stabbers were elrendy in
the columns, and they did not give any testimony regrrding this noint,
Ind eoncerning this roint as to who nede the petty officers vho stabbed
come forword, this wes testificd to by the sccuscd Trenemi and Oishi when
they took the witness stand, They teetificd thet Oishi himsclf by orcers
of Ivenoml somarated e pert of the onlisted men'e formetion end made them
ecome forwrrd, This point apnroximetely conforms with the eforemcntioncd
tostimony of the witness, Hnyeshi, In regerd to the seperotion of a perd
of the men from the enlistod men's form~tion, the vitness of tho prosccut .o
Hayashi, 11lustrrtod this voint with o diegrem, ond testificd thet they
wero separrted from e pert of tho ecorpsnon scction to the right foeing toe
prisoners, Te should note thet this witnoss did not testify th-t the
stor scction vas also similarily sepercted, In other words, he
tostificd 4n answor to question 288:

I do reccll the cornemen scction being seperated, but I do not reenll
the paymestor sceticn being separatod.”

Purthermorc the accused 0ishi testifiod to tho offcet that the potty
officors he seperatcd werc thosc of the corpsman section ~nd there wore ne
potty offieccrs of the peymnstor scetion in line from thet group, /nd
fyrther, tho scouscd Nommn vho wee onc of the men to bc scperated tostificd
tht the formrtion of the cornsman soction vos scpernted and thet there
wore no persons of the paymester sooction ameng them, A48 I beve stated,
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I think it is quite clerr thet the petty officers vho werc mnde to come
fornerd to form the two eolumns were mert of the corpsman sceticn end by
Imanemi's order and by the direction of Oishi they were made to come for-
werd, Then the quostion arisecs es to whon theee petty officers wore mede
to comc forward £s in the sbove mamnner, To this the acecuscd Irenomi
testified ra followe:

m.ftor T ordercd the rrisoncrs to be ticd to the cross-ber, I ordered
Lieutonent Oishi to got about ten petty offiecrs end line them up in two
columns, Then, I ordered the wecpons to be handed over to crch of these
petty offiecrs, and then I mede my spocch,”

Furthermorc, the cccuscd Oishi testifiod:

"The hond of thc hospital erme, end thc nrisoncrs were made to stond.
under the cross-bar, Then, the herd of tho hospital shouted in # loud
voice, 'Pctty officcrs come cut in front,' Lt which time it was very quicd
at the secnc rnd therc wos not onc petty officor to step forverd, The
heed of the hospitnl suddonly ealled out my namc and said, 'Iicutenant
Oishi met the pettr officers out in front,' So then, 1 ordercd, 'Petty
officcrs step formard,! but rt this time there wrs no onc thet came out,
Becouse I had no other menns end whon I locked cround, I sow thrt the
enlisted men were 1ined up eprroximotoly sccording to their ranks, I
seporrted them from a certain point with my hand rnd made them step
forwerd, Then the hend of the hospitel scdd in e loud voicc to form in
columns rn¢ then said to hend them tho rifles with fixed baroncts and the
iron sperrs, He thon eaid to line thoem up nlternrtely, the ones with
rifles with fixod bayoncte and these with iron sperrs, The enlisted men
who were wetehing from sround the sidc hended them the reapons, Then the
heed of the hespital mode the speoeh,”

He thus testificd without lerving o single fret thet haprencd during this
tinc,

s to this point the rccusod, Homme who wrs mode to step forwnrd cleo
has similerly testificd, U4s 1s ninﬂr from cech of the rhove testimonics,
1t 18 definite thrt those two columps were formed during the time after
the prisoncrs wore tiod to the cross=bor end before the specch of the heod
of the hespitel, in other words, Juet before tho speech of the hend of thc
hospitel,

The tcstimony of tho witnesscs for the rrosecution nancly, Kikuchi.
Yomamoto, Takehashi, Hascrowe, end Homade in regerd to the petty officere
vho were in the two columns are cxposec C8 absolutely prepostorous false
statements, In othor vords, ell the rbove witnesscs testified thrt when
they wont up the hill, the persons who socnod to bo the would=be=stabbeys
wore nlrcedy lined up in the centor, end thet yorious thinge hepnencd until
the herd of the hospitel erme to the seone end "o the specch,
perticuler Kikuchi end Tekehashi, pave such testimony s, the rrisoncrs
werc ticd to the cross-bar nfter the hend of the hospitel made the speech.

The fret thet these witnesses who reenll eleerly the ten odd potty
officors being mt the seene vhich took plocc threc yonrs rgo, geve such
disercpont testimony in regrrd to these vory clerr frets, gives rise to
doubts ns to vhother their tostimony is the truth, vhether their recollect~
ions are so vrong re to show thet their teetimony; is made un on the brecs
of fabriention eontrery to the freta,
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We cannot possibly bolieve their testimony, These two columns were
petually formed sfter the hend of the hrspitel crme to the sconc and after
he ordered Iicutenrnt Oishi to get them out in front. In other words,
before the heed of the heepital come to the secne no one knew who wes to
stab, or did they cven know thet a stebbing wos to take ploce. After the
heed of the hespitnl csmc to the scene and by his order the petty offieccrs
were mede to step formard, Thon he made the speech, ond bocausc of this
spcech it was known for the first time who worc to be the stabbers nnd
ench person definitoly found out thet the killing of the prisonors wes to
tnke plnce, The testimony ns stnted by the witncsscs for tho proeceution,
thnt the would=Le=stolLbers werc nlrendy designoted, eon not be anything clce
but & complete frlschood, Especiclly, we absolutely cannot believe such
tostimony of Tskchashi when he stetcd thrt when the generol esscmbly wns
enlled, the armed persons rroccedcd to the scene £ 1ittle before the
others,

I boliove thot the members of the commission have come to understand
cleorly the detrils concerning the formntion of thc tvo colurne, And
furthermore, I belicve it is clcrrly understood thet the persons who
storned forvrrd morc not those of the paymester scction, The fact thet
the paymoster scetion had token o sepnrate action on thot dey end thrt ther
ossombled ot the scenc by the dircetion of Peymaster Verrant Officcr Ote
is ns 1 hrve stoted before., I have reiterrted before thet Wetanabe ond
Savedn wore both in the line of the poymester section, f4nd the frct that
no onc loft this line of the paymneter scction's rank was testified to
clerrly by the witncss Ota, who wes in chrrge ond commended the naymostor
scetion re follows:

WNo one of the noymaeter scction who were in the line left the Jlinc
thoy were in,"

ind the ~ccused Metennbe cnd Saweda too heve testified to the scme effect,
I helicve thot the fret thot both Wetanrhe and Sawnde did not lerve thir
paymaster section's line enn be readily understood for the fol'owing
rensons, Nnmely, while drilling they were led un the hill, sec theoy did
not h~vc eny idee why they were led up the hill, Thore wes no reason b=
soover for “ntancbe ond Stwnda to enter the column of the stebbers withovs
rny ordes from rnyone. Furthermore in thinking over the condition nt the
scenc thrt day, it wees ns the accused Oishi etoted in his tcstimony, thrt
1s: When tho hond of the hosp’ tol errived st the scene end orcorcd the
petty officers Lo step forward, 2 hush fc11 upon the scene and there wes
one to step rorverd; so Iieutenont Oishi was ordercd by the herd of the
hospitol to get them out quickly. Therefore, Lieutenont Oishi divided th»
herd of the 1ine of the cornsmon scetion with iis hand and mode the mea 23
the herd of %he line step forwnrd, From this fect, if lietarnbe and Sawicca
who were in tho 1ine of tho paymaster section which wes not divided, hac
stopned forunrd, thoy must heve come out on thelr owm, If we vuppose tunk
thoy ceme out on their own, they must have been alrerdy out in front when
the herd of the hospitel soid, TPotty officere ‘step forwerd," But when w3
consider the siturtion thet no one sterped out rt that time it shows thet
no one wis willing to volunteer to step forwerd to stab, ‘the only reason
they stepred forwrrd wrs becnuse they were ordered to do so, Howewver,
Fatanebe and Smmdn of the rnymoster section wore not ordercd to step
forwerd by enyonc., In regord to this point it is clear from the following
questi' n and answer of thc witness Ota: .
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nQ, Did the herd of the hospitnl or cnyone elsc ordcr the men of the
paymaster scetion to toke ~art,® "\, There wrs no orders or eonversetion
from rnyore,® I think the rbove fect is understoed from this testimony.
Thrt is, they did not step forvard bocunse there wrs no orcer given and
becouse they did nct po out, they did not leave their lines, Thoretorc
thoy did not steb, If they hod left the line, witnces Ota who wns thelx
officer in charge, could not heve possibly missed sccing them, Tho renscn
for this ie becouse “hey were led up while they were dril ing, their ronks
were medo us of tuo colamns while being led un to the scenc, ond frum Shic
tvo colun Fforartion, thay were only mrde to right chout frca, «8 0
resu)c the renk of the peymaster section wrs 12ned ap horizontelly with
the herd of the line Lo the left and facing the srisoners, The rord whieh
led to thie hill ermo up from the right freing the prisoncrs; 8o whon o
column of men come up the hill, the end of the column would be to the right
freing the prisonors cond the hand of the colurn would be to the left,
Thorefere, in order to free this solumn so th-t it would freo the
priegonors, they must bake o right nbout fece, Thon, it would hecome o Tank
w:ith the Lend of the iine to the left. Tn otacr vords, the herd of the
line e heor the officors section, Pecruse vitness Ota wrs in *he end |
of tho officers line, he was in a position th~t wee very ncer the herd of
the Yine of tho puymieter’ scction, Beeruse Wntanrbe ond Scinda were the
scndor potty officcrs of the peymnstor scetion, they were 1t the hend of
the 1inc, 'hus, it could bc easily undcrstood that they were in line ncar
tho offirors! sida, Then, if both Trtaarbe and Sewade @id lerve the
linc, Ota vould be the firsi to sce them, Howover, he hes clenrly
tostified thrt no ono loft the line of the raymnster secticn,

In the testimony of thc witness Otn, he strted that before the
st~bbing. he wert dowr the hill for sbout fiftecn minutcs to supervise tae
gnlley, Furthermore, he testified thot vhen he returned the stahbing v
just rbout to no into actlon; so thinking thrt scro of the rmen of the
paymnster scetlon mirht hove gonc out whilo ho wes nvay, hc locked rt the
lincs of the pnymnster sectlcn which he vos in chorec, but enw thet no ons
hod left the lare; so ho wee Very rolioved, Therefore Ota testiiied tuct
Yatencbe ond Savade cbsolutely did not stob,

74 ~t *his time th2 t7o above mentioned men were in the two columng,
then, vhen did thoylerve thoir line and go cut to the front? So~n cftour
these t-u eolunrs wern -fogacd, the hend of the hospitnl macde his spocely,
enc socn rfior this the stolbing took place, There wee no time whaeBouvay
to recntcr shis line of stehbers which hrd alrendy been formed, T2 ean
ergily underetrrd thie when e eonsider this rtmosphere of the ameae and
the fret thet nobady etoprad forarrd wace the order wns first glven,

Tt urs roo bien rhovn in rny wey from the widence prodvscd by the
progoerticn thrt the rayrostors went into “his 1ine, The poymesiers Aaé
not break bhelr formetion nor did enyonc lerve the 1ina until k2 was
ddamigsed in front of the gelley ns hes been brought oat by the testimony
of the vorisus rcws2c ~nd witness Ote, We enrnot find cny cvidonce
denying this, Fhat urs draveht out by the prosecution vitncases wns only
thrt they saw Wrtanrbe an’ Seunde in the line, and that some of them suw
I'ntanrbe and Savada steb, The wi%nesses who rastificd thrt thoy eaw
Viatannbe st~b were five perscns, namoly Kikuchi, Yememoto, Hasegeva,
Takehnshi, ond Hemnde, Evon one witnoss among these five witnesses, did
not ¥now how Vstenrbo ond Sawnda werc dresscd, vhet they hrd nor whore thoy
vere 1ined, L8 to this point, the some can be srid nbout witnessce Hamada
ond Hrsegewe who testificd arrinet the rccused Kuvabere, witnossce
Takrhrshi, Bemada, and Hesogewa who tegtificd against Namatame, That they
morcly sow cannot be erodible testimony, I beliove cnyonc ern mercly ey,
"I saw;" oven th i mety age 4t, Ve must express whet we
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recognizoed in a concrote manner in order to justify our subjective coge-
nizance that we nctually scw, Therofore, in order to hold that the testi-
mony must objectively cxpress the truth im concrete manner to o eortain
intellipeble degrec,

Roviewing the testimony of Kikuchi, ¥amomoto, Hasegown, Takrhashi,
end Hryashi ms rogerds this point, none of them hrve tostified as to where
Watenebe ond Seweda were Jined up in the columm, whethor they were in the
right eolumn or the left, whrt caech had, which rrisoncr they stabbed, the
right or the left prisoncr, ond so forth, They all testificd thrt they did
not reenll es regerds these points,

Prrticulerly, Kikuehi, Yrmemoto, Takehnshi, end Hemede grve no
spocific explancrtion as to this noint in spite of the fret they testificd
socing Watenabe and Sewnda stab, Whrt conerete explonntion fid these
mitnessce produce to cstablish thot the persons they snw were Wrtennbe end
Sawada? Nothing whatsoever. We enn not possibly mnintein that sugh
testimony is ercdible, Furthcrmore there rre meny inconsistencics in the
tostimonics of thesc titnesses, for expmplo, counsel put the followlng
question to witness Kikuchl in the cross=cxnminrtion:

"Q, Hew frr from tho prisoners wers vou standing?™ To this he
answered, "I dn not remember,® Ho not only testificd thet he @id not know
where he wns stonding but elso did not know who werc beside him, &8 for
Tekrhashi, he testified thet ho remembercd none of the fiftcen men who
went up tho hill with him thet day. In spitc of this, they all pointed
out Hommo who wne ot the head of the column farthest away from them, and
yot did not recrll anything mbout the column nerrcst them, It ie an
improbebly inconsistency, that these witnosses who pointed out ten odd
mon a8 being in the line, to remembor those porseons in the farthost column
and heve no rocolloction cs to who wes in whrt part of the nerrcst column
or who wes rt the hoed of the menrest column which wrs more onsily
noticcable.

Hemada Tho wns one of these witnesses, replicd to the judge advocotetp
questiont

nQ, Did any of thosec men that you have named over leave those two

rowe?
A, I recrll thet there wewo none thnt left the line,"

Kikuchi also testified:

»Q, Did you ever see anyone locve thrt line?
"L, No,*

Both of these witnesscs could not hove possibly testified ns they did, if
thoy hed nct constently wetehed the two 1ines, Assuming thrt they wcre 8o
coutious, then they should at lenst remomber who vas et the herd of the
line closcst to them, And they shouwld heve clerrly romombered such facts ae
vho wne the lest one to steb,

Witnees Kikuchi testifiod that all those 1lined in front of the
prisoncrs worc crmed persons who were presumod to be stabbers. Then where
would the peymasters bo 1ined up? Could it be possible that the paymasters
yere not at the seeno?
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Witnoss Hayashi wes one among meny prosccuticn yritnesses who testificd
in detail in comparison with the others, He testificd thet the petty
officers who were made to step forwrrd in front of the prisoncrs were
divided from a port of the corpeman's linc, This Hoynshi testifiod as
to Tetenabe and Soveda thet he thinks he reeells them being in the line,
end he is not clecr on this point, I belicve Haynshi wns under rn illusion
when he thinks he recalls Untanrbe end Sewada who were ot the head of the
paymasters 1inc being in that column, beenause the roer of those two
columns and the he~d of the paymosters lino were comperatively closc to
creh other, nnd beecuse the ren of the paymastors were ell erncd owing to
the fact thet thoy had been drilling thot dny., This illusion cen rerdily
be understood whon the relation between his position and the rear of the

two columns and tho herd of the paymester's line is teken into considerotion.

Surming up the sbove points, we cre eble to understrnd rerdily thet
the recollections of these witncsecs were vegue ond Jocked clority. The
some thing ern olso he said, in thot thoir testimony wee in perfoet confom ~
ity in sorme portions whilo rs o vhole their testimony wns of the same
rode ond form, I wes dublous ns to why thesc rrosecuticn vitnesses naned
two scnicr ronking potty officers of the peymnster scction from such
vague memorics, But my doudbt wre clcered vhen I found out the following
fnets,

In Jonurry of this yorr, a prrt of the accuscd petty officers, Kikuchi,
Yemamoto, end othors who tock the stend os witnesses, hed ¢ ncoting in
order to deeide the persons responsible for the ineident, in the presence
of one Lmcrienn officor rnd interpreter Srvory. The accuscd Wetanobe wrs
present at this mocting, rnd he testified ~bout this meeting when he tock
the stand on his own behelf, But we vere not sble to hear the substance
of the testimony beeause of the objection by the judge cdvoeate,

I believe it is impossible to grasp the truth of such ¢ compliceted
incident ns this, which occurrcd mony ycors ago and involving & gront
munber of people, by derending merely upon direct cvidenco. Therefore
tho facts of this mecting are highly relcvant in understending the
present case, This mecting wns held becunse it wrs not elesr who w8 in
brek of this incident, vhrt neoplc were concerned in it, and also to
rolerse the innoecent young soldicrs from the suffcrings of confinement,
.nd another purposc of this mceting wes to deelde the person rosponsible
in this mceting in order to re~ch tn cxpoditious solution of the caso,
The motive of the person who planned this meceting should truly be noted,
This person was cfraid thrt this incident would lerd to o trepedy, o feud
botwoen brothers, This mecting however ended in a foilure, The recern
for this foilure wos hecausc they formelly tried to detormine the
roeponsibility of the persons in the ineldent, Yemrmoto, o witneces for
the prosccution tricd to sssert that the head of the Fospitel should take
thercsponsibil:ty concerncd with the hosnital, and thet the scnior petty
officcr of orch divieion should tnkc the responsibility involving the
onlisted men. In opposition to this allegetion, Votannbe firmly held thet
the ones tho acturlly did the nct should toke the responsibility end thot
thore wns no recson for tho persons vho did not, to be held responsible,
In roply to this, interpreter Savory snid thet this ineldent wre murder
and 1t would not be well t6 produce eny ono ns being responsible who
cetunlly had ne port in it. Thus this moeting erme to & closc without
ony result, I firmly believe thot if Tntonebe had nny pert in the cetual
cet, he covld not have this opposed so strongly. I&nd we rust teke special
noto of the faet thet the allegetion of Yemamoto, Kikuchi, end others at
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this meetirg materializod beforo this court, I believe the focts of this
neoting have been clarified, ond T om surc you heve undorstood why two
petty officers of the paymaster soetion were nemed by theso prosceution
vitnesscs, The judge ndvocote stated he could not undergtand vhy the
poymasters were in this line with the corpsmen, but I believe that the
judge advocnte wil' have fully understood why this wce eo,

Next T would like to nrgue in behalf of the nceusod Kuwnbarn, The
nooused Kusabara when he took the vitness stand on his om behef,
tostificd in detnil his action on the day of the incident, In other
words, rfter the nfternoon muster to Mturn to," he was developing ecne
X=ray pleturcs ~t his post when he wee told to go to the Forty=first

Guord Unit by his superior, But he rcfuscd, saying that he wrs busy with

his work now, Then he wos teld thrt everyonc vas busy with his work and
thet he must comej so he storped his work and wert to pot the rrisoners,
0f course he did not know for vhet purpose he wes going, On the vay he
psked Petty Officor Tanckn who went with him end found out for the first
time thrt therc wes to be a physicrl examincticn, Thus, the prisoners
were brought to the hospital and they were handed over to the working
perty in frent of the PJX, in back of the officers'! quarters, He then
planned to go beek to do his Xeray work, but herring thrt thore wme &
general cesenbly, he went to tho scene, He testified very clerrly when
hoe took the stand ns to bis ncticn rt the scene.

Thy did the accused Kuabora at the seone give the rrisoners cigarettcs
and wetor? And why did ho, the lowcst ronking petty officer nt the
Fourth Noval Hosrital do such a bold act? Probebly the witnesses of
the prosceution hed o very strong impression of this bold notion of his,
But T find it nccossary to rrobe into his mental state ot the sconc,

He performed spceial cduty in getting the prisoncrs, He gave thesc
unresisting and pitiful prisoners eipoarettes ond let ‘them sce the seeoncry
nt the beach, To must notice thrt there wes ¢ big difforence between the
foclines he had tovard the prisoners and that of the persons vho csscmbled
ot the seena by the goneral asserbly vho sew the prisoncrs for the first
tine, This difforence of feeling wns oxpressed o8 o bold oeticn on his
part, which wns eonspicuoue to all,

Probrbly this wos the rerson he wes ordored to act re guard for the
prisoners, Thnt the recuscd Kuwabara wns not in tho line of stobbers con
be understood from the faet that when the blindfolds wore takon fron the

" prisoners, one of tho rrisoncre fainted ond he gave this prisoncr some

unter. When tho blindfolds were taken off the nrisoncrs, the stobbers ycr:
1ined un in front of thom with wonpons; so whon the prisoncr sav this in
frant of his cyce, he wos frightencd and fointed, The above fret was
elorrly testificd to in the testdnony of the nccused Yoshizawo o8

follows: ™The blindfolds were taken off from the rrisoncrs and whon the
skinny prisoner saw before his oyes the two columns, he feinted,"

»

Thus, when he gove the water to the prieoner, the two golurns of
atobbore were already formed. If wo assume thrt the cccused Kuwabara wos
in thesc two eolumns which were formed by the order of the hend of the
hosnital he would not have been able to leave this column whencver ho fclt
14ke it ond pive wnter to the rrisoncr, He was not in the :::lm of
stobbors, fnd boenuse he wes standing norr the prisoncrs, ‘was able to
do the acts which I hnve Just related, '
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: In regard to the point that the accused Kuwabara wes standing neor
the prisoncr the nccused Namatoame in his testimony acknowledped this, I
heve mentioned this once before, But in the testimony of the following
vitnesscs of the prosccution Homoda, Hasegnwa, end Mosenibik and in the
stotoment of Ikoyn thoy testified thet they saw the accused Kuvabara in
the columns of stabbers, In reperd to the witnesses Homede ond Hesogewa
it is oxnetly the same cs I have alrendy stotod in my crpument for the
petty officers Untannbe and Sawade of the paymastcr section, Thoy testi-
ficd thet the nceused Kuwabera was in the column, but could not testify
vhrt colunn he was in, vhot poeition in the line, vhat kind of weapon
he hod nor which prisoner he stabbed, '

Furthermore, another fact we must note is, among the witnesses of
the prosccution who pointed out many noames, Kikuehi, Yamemoto, Tekaheshi
ond Heynshi did not point out the name of the occused Kuvnbera,
Espociclly, Hoyashi did not even mention his neme cmong the persons who
he thinks he recalls os being in the column, In other words in regerd to
Kuvabara almost nll of the vitncsses have hardly any recollection of hin,
But bocause hé took such ‘a bold acticn at the scene, sore of the witnessc.
fecl thrt he right have heen in the column, end I think they testified
from this vague recollection,

At this point I wish to call your ettention to the statement of
Tkeya, On 11 July the judge advocate announced here in this court that
Tkoya, Kyoichi on 2 July hrd committed suicide at the witness enmp on Guan,
I experionced a feeling of cold run through my spine vhen I heerd this ond
nlso of the suicife of witness Nakamura vho testified apeinst the necused
Sokegomd ,

Furthernore, according to the statement of Tkeyn, just o day before
he committed suicide, nomely, on 1 July he ndded to his stetement as
follovs:

"T ascar thrt the contents of the ahove statcment is the truth,
"lst July, 1947
WIKEYL, Kyoichi"

The very next dny efter he had odded these words to his stoterment,
to be exnct, ct midnight of thet very doy he commitied suicide ond
disarmerred forever from us,

From the words of the accuscd Kumohara who knew Tkeya it is said
thet Tkoya was e sinccre and quiet person, This sincere Ikcya after
ndding to the contents of his statemont the words of cortificaticn nmention.?
shove, committed suieide, Whnt doce this ell mcen? I fcel thet he wase
worrying rbout this statement written under authoritrtive influence,

On top of this he wes mede to add to it, the words of an onth, I think
he finelly, in reking for forgiveness of thecse accuscd for this responsib-
{1ity committed suicide, For the accuscd Kuwabern, Ikeyr wes © witnoss
who had & very importnt connection with his ellogod crime, The fact
that we were not able to crosse=examine such o witnoss in this court, wes
nost unfevornble to the eecused Kuvabara and the othor recused 1isted in
hie statoment, The stotement of a person whon were not cble to cross=
exorine is I think improper ae cvidonce,

Im]_l)l
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In looking into this stoterent we find definite errors which are ne

follows: Thrt is, he strtes thet after the priscners werc brought fronm
the Gurrd Unit, thoy were handed to sore officers rt tho scene. [nd thern
he went brek to the wrrd rnd while weehing his body he herrd the order foo
generel assembly, If we compare this with the testiromy of the aecused
Kuwrhrrn, he testified thet he planncd to roturn to do his unfinished
work, but he wns werried rbout the generrl asscrbly so he could not, If
nt this time there wes no pencrsol assombly s Ikeyastetos, the accused
Kuwobora would heve n~turnlly returned tc do his unfinished work, The
rongon Kuorbarn eould net return wee beeruse of the order for pencrel
csscmbly, But Ikeyn states thot he heord the order for gencral nssenbly
aftor he roturncd to the word and while vwashing up, ond his ceticn ofter
th~t differs in no oy withk thrt of Kikuehi, Yrmemoto and the cthere,
I cxprees my sinecrc rogrot for Tkeya who diod beemuse he could not beer
his guilty conscience within hin which wee erused by foreed investigeticr
in orécr to elorify the uncertrin frete, £nd I also regret thrt there -
such grent sserificc on the prrt of the potty officers in this ineident:

Next, I must sey r work in repard to Mesenibik, a Truk n~tive who
testifie” thrt he sow the reeusced Kuwebere in the column ond wos the
fourth one in tho column, But his testirony is sueh vwild t~lk thet with
our common sensc we crnnot possess the courcpe to trke issuc with it, Ho
vns wrtehing fror the ton of a cocomut tree necr the secne vwhere there
verc mrny gpurrds posted, Moreover, he wes wrtehing from o plece higher
thrn the eciling of this court ond has testified thrt the nriscners werc
susrendc” sbout onc foot frorm the pround, Is it pessible for bim to sce
how the priscncre were suspended by wrtching the scene fron such & high
rlace? As shown in tho testirony of Kuwrhers, he éid not sce the cecuscd
nt the scene, but rrobably erme to know Kurnbare when he trectod him
lotor. Le strted above, the evidence of the rrosceution cgrinst the
nccused Kuwahera is truly insufficient and uncertnin, To decide the
ruilt ~roinst the necused Kuwabora for the crime of murder vith such
ovidcnee whieh is vory werk is impossible., Furthormore, the rrosceution
hes not shown any ovidenece to demy the action of the occused Kuwnbera,

The accused Kumnbarn is the eldest of the six brothers rnd sistors
rnd wos born in r neoeeful forming villape in Hokknido. FHe entered the
novy on 1 June 1940 end he hes served ur to the present, During this
time he recceived important ecucrtion as a cormsron ot tho Yokosuke Reval
Hoepital rs n rrirory eorremen student, ond grecunted stonding seeond fov
the tor in his grrduntion class of mony corpsmen, Furthermore, on Marc!i
1943 he wes sclceted from smong the many cormsmen to obtain higher ekill
in this ficld end entercd the Yokosukn Novnl Hosritel ernin es an advrnec
cornsmon student, Therefore he hes beecme highly skilled in this specie.
ort, Here too, he grodunted with Yigh honors rs fifth in his elass, hec Lk~
r promising future indeed,

He is very checrful ond brondminded end very cerpest in his work,
Thie ern be understood from his hich rceord ns a student, nnd strenucus
offorts in the crnstructicn of the bronch hospitrl of the Fourth Nevel
Hoepi rl on vrrious islands, shows thet he wre on orrnest and frithful
cnlisted men,

ft hore he is the only one who cen helr his fether, ond is in a
nosition to hcln bring up his brothers end sisters s his fother's right-
hand mnn, I sinccroly hope thet such a ‘young men who hes such ¢ greant
respensibility end of such outstonding record con stert over erain 08 0
gocd eitisen ms soon ns nossible ond ecn return to his ncaccful femily
of hie ycung brothors, sisters, cnd his aged fother,
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The President rnd the membere of the commission, I ssk your utmost
considerntion of the eesily mistrken cction of the accused Kuwebera on
thrt day,

Next, I would like to rrgue in beholf of the accused Nemntame,

48 the eccused Nemetame, himself, testified ~s to bis cetion during
the dny of this incident when he took the vitnese stond in his own bchrlf,
he reccived nn order from his superior to dig ¢ hole ond wrs cigging the
hole with four or five men on the hill in brek of the hesrital, Of courso
the nceused Nemntame nnd others did not know for whrt rurpcee the hole was
being dug. Thoir nttitule in digging tre hole without any rerecn for
susnicion cAn be crsily understood because rt thrt tire there were many
holes heing dug for dumping sercrs nnd ns nrir roid shelters, £&nd conenin®is
fecte of this work, re thc rceused himself testified elearly, the hole
vre dug to o size npproxirately six feot in length; four feet in vidth,
rnd three feot in depth in rbout one hour and ¢ helf to two hours tire,
ind while Nomatame ond the others werc resting nerr the eomplcted hole,

e grort number of perscns ceme up the hill snd ono of the officers amon,.
thom snid thrt they hed to dig it deeper or it won't be of ony usc; theic-
fore they vent on digping the hole aprin, This fret wes elerrly testific!
by the accuscd himeclf, Furthermore, co-defendnnt, Homme hes testificd
the fret that when he went up the hill to the scenc the vorkine rerty

vne digging ¢ hele, Ind when Nemotare finished f4rring the socond timé and
como out of the hole, the nrisoncrs wcre nlready tled to the ercas=brr

and the stabbers wore lined up in front of the rrisoncrs, This foect hes
been testified to by the nccuscd himsclf, Furthermore, Homme testificd
thrt when the line he vas in wns soperrtcd and made to step forward in
front of the rrisoncrs, the working party thet was dipging the hole vra
still continuing their work, This holc wes nerr the rrisoncrs; so I
believe it wns creily seen by Homma, The action of the cocusced Nnretamo
after thrt wes clerrly testified to by himsclf and co=defendent Kurnbrru,
He wes juet stonding and votehing the stebbing from norr the hole. After
tho stehbing the cormsce were buricd end he returnec, This wns his

entire rcticn during thrt day.

Thus, because the nccused Nerotome had special work to perform,
namoly digeing o hole, he did not participete in the stabbing. But the
threc witnesses for the rrosceution Hemnda, Hrsegrwa, and Teknhrshi
testified thrt they sow Nematame in the colurmn of stabbers, T se¢ thres
witnesses a1l tostified thet when thoy venmt to the scene, the porsons wh
seomed’ to be the stabbers were in the eenter lined up in two colurns 8
compered from the perscns who scemed to be the gpcetators, Furthermore
from their testimony, the cccused Memeterme scems to have becn nlreedy 1.
the column in the ccnter when thoy ceme to t'e scene, But os I have show
before, Hommo who wae et the head of the stebbers testified thrt when he
storned formrrd and the two columns were formed, the digping of the hole
mas still eontimuing, Ve cen eosily understend thet this tostimony of
Hommn coineides in roletion to the time required by Nematame for hie work.
In ~ther words, they vere ordered to dig decper because the hole wrs too
shnllow when the rrisoncrs nrrived st the scene, Assuming that they
started dipping for the second time then, from compering the time roquircd
to dig the holc tho first time, they would et lonst trke obout ono hour
to finmish digging the second time, Then, how wes the nocused Nemotame
eble to entef the columms of stabbers? In the testimony of Hemndn, who
mont to tho seenc befere the hesd of the hospital, he stoted thrt he sew
Nematame in the columm, but this actusl’y could not have harrencd, More-
over, these witnesses of the nrosecutirn eould not even tostify in whet
colurm Nnmntome was or n-hr‘l".& W Q:; woenon he had, Ind nll the other
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witnesscs of the nrosecution nomely, Kikuehi, Yeremoto, Ikeyn, end

Hayashi di¢ not mention the name of the necuscd Nemetame, The reason that
only sone of them named Nrmetame wes beeruse after Namatame finished
dipping the hole, he wes standing neer the hole ond wrtehing when the
stebbing tock place; ond this morely impresscd itsclf upon their reeollacet -
icns veguely. I hove stetod before thrt this incident vrs nerformed by
the retty officers who vere scp-ratod by the order of the herd of the
hesnitel, this is cormerstively eleer. It sccns thnt the judge adveerte
also b~z not changed hie rlleprtion thrt the petty officers rerticipeted
in the returl nction, But the nccuscd Nepatame wos not a petty offic.r
but n corpsman lerding seamen rt the time of this incidont, Thie point
wne clenrly testificd by binm, Formally he wrs rromcted te be cerrsman
petty officer second cless on 1 Moy 1944, but it wes nct until rfter
Sortenber thrt the notice of his pronotion eeme to him end he wre trected
ns n petty officer scecnc clrss. Phorcfore in July vhon the inelden*
tock place his rromoticn vrs unknorn cnd therefore he wes not in fret
rromcted, He was trerted ne o lcnding seamni and vre pivon duties only
re o lording sceman, In the Jrranesc nevy the rromcticn of & scemar ¥
done ot creh organizetion, But the promotion rnd the rppointront of trs
retty officcr is under the ruthority of the navrl stetion to vhich thn
orpanizotion beléngs; thercfore, the oprointment to retty officer end
promotion of netty officer is deeided by then ot o spccified dete,

narely on 1 May and 1 November of ench yerr. Therefore, cech orpandacti-r
does nct ¥now until it reecives r notice whother a perscn is rroroted or
is nppointed to e a petty officer. Thus, in the crse of Nometnre cven
though on Mey let he hnd the required yorre to his eredit tc become &
petty officer, it is not know whether he was erpointed or not until the
notiee hrd rrrived, LAnd moreover, netty officers connot be ornointed o
pronoted until the notice is received,

T think thot it hes been fully understood thrt the recused Nametais
rn8 not a petty officer rt the time of the ineident, &8 I have stoted
nhove, the sccused Noretome, beenuse he was working in digging the holuy
aid not prrticirate in the stabbing. I would elso like you to note
fully thc foet thet he wne nct yet o petty officer ot thet timo,

At this tire I would like to present to you in hehelf of the accu. ¢
Namatane the fact of how tragic his family is. His fether dicd scvera.
yonrs ago rn’ his only Wwrothor wns conseripted into the ermy end it is
not knewm whether he is fesd or alive in Menchuria., Gt present the fon i
consists of his mother, wife of this brother, ond his hrother's three
children., During the tine the eceused Narntane wee in the navy, from g A
emel) smount he recéived as pay he sent most of it to his femily for o
pert of their 1living expensc, it preesent with his hrother gone he hes -
berr the grent respcnsibility of mainteining the livelihood of hie frru'y,
Sinec the time he wrs confined in the Suprno Prison, Tokyo r8 &n neeus >’
of this case, his fem 1y hos lost any roens of 1ivlibood, His rped LOT.c”
rné his brother's wife with threc small ehildren in her hand are berely
roking their deily living by ferming the small plot of lond they heve
borrowed, 48 1 heve stated above, becauce of the ver, his brother's
vhercrbouts 48 unknewn and he is new tricd es n wrr eririnel, Inceed R'E
famdly is in n very trreic state of offcirs. The cn'y wey to sove tris
trapic fomily is for the neccused Nematame to po brek to his frmily. If
he hed pertieipnted in the stebbing of this ineident, he would hrve
submitted contentedly to this sufforing. But I rrrim thet he hed Do
comnoction whetever with the stabbing, The President and the membors of’
tho comrission, I requost your considerction of his tregic femily ond I
nsk you not to ecnvict bim of o erime of which he is innocent on the hralt
of the uncertein testimony of the prosceution,
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CONCLUSION,

In the forogoing, I have elarified the ncts of the sceused Wrtanchc,
Cawade, Kurabera, and Nemetame nt the time of the ineident and have
demonsirnted thrt they did not participate in the stnbbing,

A1 in rll, the points eoncerning who did vhat in this ineicdent.wor:
rrde u~ under the rssumption of "it ought to be"™ brsed upon vepue rercl-
lections, Thus the evidence produced by the judge ndvoente wrs excecai:s |
vogue,

Therefore, I firmly belicve thet these nccusocd cannot he found
ruilty of a scrious crime such ns murder, on such uncertein cvidoneco.

KIRASITL, Tokand

I cortify thet the above, consisting of fiftcen (15) typewritten
pepes, to be e true and complcte trenslotion of the originel argument of
Mr, Koreasawn, to the hest of my rbility,

EUGENE E, KERRICK, jr.,
Licutenrnt, USHR,

Interpreter,
"guu(15)"
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CLOSING LRGUMENT OF DEFENSE COUNSEL KU¥/T!, HIDEO OF TOKYO, IN BEH/LF OF
{ - HOMMA, HACHIROj K/WISHIMA, TATSUSLBUROj AKABORI, TOICHIRO; TSUTSUI, \
: TAKL RO,
CONTRNIS

Introduction
Chapter I On the focts of the cese,
Chapter II On the law of the casc,

Section 1 On the preclusion of unlawfulness.

Section 2 On the preclusion of criminal intent.

Section 3 On stete of emergency.

Scetion 4 On menslaughter,

Section 5 On individuelity of responsibility in complicity.
INTRODUCTION

Honoreble President end the members of the commission, In behalf of
the six cccused persons, Homma, Hachiro; Kewashima, Tatsusoburoy
lkebori, Toichiro; Tentsui, Kiseburc; Tekeishi, Susumu; rnd Mitsuhashi,
Kichigoro among the ninetecn accused persons, I wish to deliver this
argument in defense, taoking into ecnslderaticn the facts ond the laws
of this case,
t

Sinee the beginning of the trial on June 10, seventy=-four days
have elapsed up to this day, end during this period thirty-cight '
sessicns heve bcen held. Notwithstending the torturing heet, you have -
heerd most patiently and impertielly the testimony of various witness e
and the finel statements of the accuscd, [fnd todry I am offered the
oprortunity to deliver this argument, 1 am most honoreds And I wisa ®o
ndd thet 211 of the occused and I erc most thankful for the thoughifu’
and imperticl manner in which you hove acted during this heoring.,

My srgument consists of thrce perts, nemely on the facts of the
cnse, on the law of the cnse and on the circumstences of the ccee, I
the first part (on the facts of the cese) I will try to show that the
nbovementioned accused, with the exception of Homma and Kawnshima shoul
be amequitted on the ground of insufficient evidence, In the second pur’
(on the law of the cese) I will ergue thet the acts of Homma and
Kowashima ere free of unlewfulness cnd even if the unlawfulncss of their
ncts is not precluded, then owing to the fect thrt eriminel intent is
nbsent, I shall urge they should not be held culpable, If, however, ny
foregoing ergument is disposed of and these pecused rre to be found
guilty, I shall still hold the argument thet the erime comritted by thesc
nccused doee not correspond to the concept of murder: as alleged in
spocificetion three of Charge I, but can be ecknowledged to constitute
manslaughter, end therefore the critinal responsibility imposed upon
them should be lopally mitigated in comparison with thet of murder. Even
if their sct constituted the crime of murder, I shall then show that
their punishment should be duly reduced or mitigatod considering the
position or status of the accused,
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Finally, I shnll relate the ciroumstences under which these accused
verc placed and rsk your consideration, Therefore my ergument in
Chapter II will meinly be in behalf of Homme ond Kewashima, but if the
commission should ccnsider the ovidence produced against the nccuscd
‘kabori, Tsutsui, Tekeishi and Mitsuhashi sufficient to convict them,

I should like to inelude them elso together with Homma rnd Kewashima in
my nrgumcnt beginning with Chapter II,

Chapter I = On the Fects of the Casc,

Three yecrs have clepsed since the occurrence of this incident. As
ves truly seid by Iwanami on the witness stand, neither he nor all the
others concerned with the cese, over dreamed thet this incident would be
tried as a so=cnlled wer erime, Therefore, we could not possibly expect
thet the pcrsons involved, observed every single ection which took place
minutely and reerll it with precision, On the other hond, as I have
stated, three long years have elepsed and during thrt period, they hed
to forberr reute shorteges of food ond elothing, and then the
inccesnnt bembing of the ‘meriean plancs until the end of the war, Stiil
they hrd to struggle on, Then, ceme thc surrender, [ short time latur,
they were confined in the Truk stockede, They undcrwent untold sufferisy
and egony which they had nevcr ecxpericnced nor cven enticipeted beforc.
This drrstic chenge in their environment up to the present dey, céan only
be neccunted for by the words "chenges end vicissitudes of the seculer
world,™ The roeson for their verying memorlcs and inconsistent testi-
mony can well be understood, The mnteriel witnesscs produced by the
judge rdvoente were nll personrel of the former Fourth Navel Hospital,
and nmong them were some whose nosition in the ineident wrs only
slightly rcmoved fror involvement, Nekeorura, Shigeyoshi, witness ecgains®
the accused Sakagemi, Tonede, Tsunco, witness arninst the accused
Kamikewn, and Hesegawa, Tomio, witness cgninst Ivaneml were in this
eategory., [ind, me cannot say thrt there werc nene smong the vwitnesros
vho in order to defend their own position, did not unwittingly dismcry
the truth, Vo can also imaginc tket, sincc the investigetion by the
American cuthorities commenced, verious plcts mnd conspirceics hav: b ex
hrtehed smong the persons concerned ns regerds the disposition of
responsibility. Beeausc of thc rbove remsons, it is almost impossil i.
to gresp the entire truth about the incident,

.8 to the credibility of testimony in generrl, it is requested th: i
the commissirn pey speeinl attention to Secticn 269 of Nevel Courts a'ic
Boards under the hending of "Witmesscs excmined opert from erch other.”
end to fectirn 297 of the semo reference under the hecding of ™#ltnecss
may be verned not to converse upon metters poertaining to the trial,”

In detail, the former roeference stetes: "Witnesecs sre cxnmined
apert from erch other; no witness is rllowed to be present during the
exnminetirn of another, Before the chorges and specificrtions rre
rerd to the accused, the president of the court directs pll witnesscs to
vithdrew and not return until they arc officially colled, At the outsct
of esch deys' proceedings the direction to withdraw shall be repeeted
to all who rre cited s witnesses and may chence to be present,....

Fhen the court hes finished with 2 vitness ho shall be directed to
withdrew end ¢ minute shall be entered on the record to the effect
thet the witness withdrowe in order to show thet two witnesses ere not
in court at tho same time,
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i "Should a witness inedvertently be precent during the examineticn {
of another witness, or should he be present cven in vicletion of the
court's order, he is not thereby disquolificd from testifying, but such
fect should be brought cut in crossecxeminetion es affecting the
eredibility of the witness,” While the letter refercnce states:
"The resson thot no vitness is permitted in court during the cxaminction
of snother witness is to provent cithcr the deliberate or unconscious
coloring of the testimeny of eny witness, For exnctly theee some
reesons it is highly undcsirrble end improper for witnessce to an
oceurrence which mny probably be the subject of judicinl inveetigrtion
to converse with ench other concerning the testirony whieh thcy would
give should they be called es witnesses, or, heving testified, to
diselose to persons not present the testirony which they give, or to
converse with amybody, ineluding thosc present in the court room,
concerning the details of the teetimony given by then."

Great importance must be atteched to these rules by tho limericen
lev nurporting to prevent cither the deliberetc or unconscicus coloring
of the tcstimony of a witness, This cenclusion can be ensgily drawn
from tho fact thnt the sentenco, "Ne witnesses not otherwise eonnceted
writh the trial werc prosent,® is entered immedintcly ofter the entry
of the introduction of every new witness in thc reccord of each dey'a
proceedings; and the President does neot fell to remark, "The witness
1s ceutioned not to discuss mettors pertoining to the trial durins its
continuancc outside of this court room except with the proper authoriti ::
just bofore n witness leceves the stand.

i These steps ere considored most promer and lerve nothing to be
desired for the prevention of the influencc of the vwitnesses upon one |
rnother during the time thoy ere giving their tostimony end ofter tho;
hove given their testimony, I em vfroid, however, thrt the stops

y taken during end efter the tostimony is pgiven are not sulfficicut .-

thenselves for the complete eliminetion of thc coloring of tle tesrl-
mony. The rurity or complete lack of colering of testimony cen net o
be guerantced unless the intorcormuniceti-n of vitnessce is striculy
forbidden before their testimony is to be given, rs well as durin? =t
rfter the testimony is given,

;8 for the witncsscs introduccd for the prosccution in this trial,
most of them have lived together in groups for n long tire in the i r:
camp in the vieinity of the Wer Cririnnl Stockade, The defensc cours.’
did not fril to makc every offort in cross=cynminction of these
witnesses to hove the court acquainted with this fact, But their
endervors vorc all in vain beccuse the judge cdvocote objoeted on tha
grounde thet it wrs irrelevent and immntorial to the issucs of this
cose, I believe, however, thet it is & well known fect, at least among
tho partics concerned with this triel, and o fact of whioch judieial
notice should be taken and which needs no cvidence te be proved,

Generally speeking, it is only noturel thrt persons who ere
strangers to erch other should cone to be close in the course of Jiving
together for o considerable period of time, This faet is still more
so of these witnesscs who once sorved together in the Fourth Navrl
Hoepitel ond who heve been well aequainted with ono another, No one
can venture to deny the feet thet in the course of this trial there b~
never boen two or morc witnesscs present in the eourt room et the seme
tire ond orch witnoss hes boen speeifically coutioncd by tho Preeident
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, ruthoritics, In other words, the aforementioned two rules hove been {
\ strictly observed, I believe, thercfore, the witnesses are nrudent

enough not to discuss the contents of their testirony with erch other.

I em rfreid, however, thrt these witnesses who netually sev, or are

presumed to hove scen, this ineident with their own eyes, and who have

been mell cequrinted with it, could cecsily infer from the exnminrtions

of investigntors or -judfc ndvocotes whet would be asked in the court

room ond what should be ensvered to the questions, and have hnd the

oprortunity of discussing mntters topether so 28 to reach o common

conclusion,

Le o motter of fret, of the tcstimony of the witnesees introduced
by the judre advocate, thot given by Kikuechi, Goro, Tokohashi,
Mersayoshiy Yemnmoto, Hideichi; H-screwa, Mreoncey ~n? Heredre,
Toshihisc, is almost idonticel, Perticularly vhen they testified thot
they found the stabbers rnd the bystanders distinetly soparated when
they nrrived at the scene of the incident, the tone in which they gove
this testimony and the words they used werc neerly the seme, ond thir
pert of their testimony sccmed rother funny for us vho could understind
Japoncse and grosp the indeseribeble delicncy of the words, the tcnew,
the nttitude nnd other circumstonccs under which these witnesses pevc
their testimony, Hayrshi, Mrsnji, wns the only witness who eould pivc

testimony unique in this recepcct,

For the rensons stoted above it can be safely ccncluded thet the
tectimony of those witnesscs brought before the court for the prosccut-
ion does nct deserve much weipht tc be plven thercto. Concerning the
| credibility of thoir testirony, my collecguc, Mr. Kerascwn has cited
mumcrous exemples end mede e deteiled comrentery on them, So, I shall |
not discuss this roint eny further. & fow outstanding cxnmrlcs cn thie
point I hove elrecdy cited, however, thie mry scrve es & reicrence i
your considerrticn end impertiel judement, I shell in the fol ow.r<
nort of my orpument discuss nbout the accuscd whose charpe I berr.

I urge » finding of not guilty for the accused Lkabori, Tsut~.i
Tekoishi rnd Mitsuhrshi on the pround that the facts of the crime '~
not been sufficiently proved. The judge sdvocnte alleges thrt tro
nbove rccused, did torother with codefendant Ivonami, et the Four:ch
Neval Hospitnl, Truk Ltoll, by bayoncting with fixed bayonets, sperr: .
with spears, kill two ‘/mericen priscncrs of wer, But I believe, tic
r1leged focts of the crime have not as yet been proved by the avidcr- ..
csteblished by the judge ndvocate up to this day. Thet is, three
witnesees, Hosegawa, Mcsannoj Hoynshi, Masaji; and Homede, Toshihisa
werc the only oncs whose testimony egreed ccncerning the crime of th.
rbove rccused Lkrbori, Tsutsui, Tekeishi, cnd Mitsuhashi, Other tre.
them, witnesses Kikuchi, Goro and Trkahashi, Nesoji only referred %o
the above four nccuscd in part end their tostimony did net inelude ol.
of them, These witnesscs merely testified thrt they recell these
nccused in the Jine of tho stabbers, but there wes no testimony ns to
vwhether they vere in the right eolumn or the left, or whet their
relative order in the line wes, or what sort of weapons they had,

In perticuler, there wrs nct o single witness who testified that he
observed the actunl stabbing of these rccused, It is most dangerous
to estoblish the crime of these nccused by such cireumstantial evidcnec
and by such ambiguous testimony, rnd I believe thet the homoreble
members of the commission nlso will sgrce with me on this point, Thun,
I am firmly convincced thrt you will find the accused Akebori, Tsutsul,
Takaishi, rnd Mitsuhrshi not puilty of the charge, on the ground thrt
their crimes »pmd yoomRdy Tt oo v
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Chapter II = On the Lew of the Casc.

A erime is r culpeble end unlawful cct which fulfills the require=~
nmente or component elements provided in statute 1ow &8 being n erimes
A wer crime is elsc clossified os crime, therefore, it also must hrve
the seme requirenments rs &n ordinary crime, The rerson the judge
ndvoerte alleped in the charges ond specifications wrilfully, feloniously.
with premeditation and malice oforethought, and without juetifiable
spuse enn nlso be sttributed tc this., It is presumed without error thot
the terms, wilfully, feloniocusly, with premediaticn ond nalice efcre=
thought, rre invarinbly peenlier to Imericen and English law, end I
am unawere of the existence of such terms in the eriminal lew of the
continental systers, which literclly correspond to these terms.

I heve not had the opportunity to fomiliorize myself with the
theory of [mericen encd Englis>® Cririn-l Lew ns yet, so it is difficult
for me tv noke r procise distinction betwecn wilfully, felonicusly,
botween premeditetion and mrlice aforethoughts But I believe thet thac
torme have been dedveed by enolyzing the substence of eriminnl intent.
Thus, if we were to add the term "without justifinrble cnuse™ to thecc
terms, I believe I moy assort without grent error, thrt in the fmeric’.
end English lavs too, the mentel condition of the person ~ko hee the
rosponsibility (intent and noglipence) and unlavfulness €re the
determining fectore required to constitute a crima,

On considerstion, I find the ects of these cocused correspend to
the type of erime called homicide, And yet I believe these rcts do no.
econstitute e crimc bocnuse they werc done with justifiable ceusc, end
gven if therc was no justifiable ceuse, thon beccuse of the absence €7
eriminel intent, The srgument I shall {ntroduce in this chapter witl
neinly be directed tovrrd rebutting thet porticn of the plleprtion L
the charge and speeificntion, which stotes, wilfully, feloniously, "
prepeditrtlion and rolice aforethought end vithout justifinble eoLEE

It this peint I st egk your undorstending of the fret thou
subscquent nortion of my rrgunont T shall be citing the provisione -
thoories of the Jopanese Crininel Code, beccuse of my unfaniliacits
vith English and (nerican lew, But I sinccre'y bellcve thet this o' ..
in no way herpcr your understanding bccruse the source of overy eri;do !l
1ew is founded upon the fundarentel morele of huren helings. Crinine.
low is the basie law of every povemnent, Its nature is universels
In every country, vhether old or new, where there js ony kind of
governing body, wie ere sure to find o criminal code, no metter how
primitive it moy be., Moreower, this body of low is herdly ever offac. ¢
by differencce in climate, custors, sentiments, lengufge, religions,
ote, Becruse of this noture end cherncteristics of eriminel 1lem, I
am sure that the points I bring up in ny following crgument will be
fully understood by youe :

Seection 1 = On preclusion of unlerfulness.

First of r11, I firnly believe thet the ncts of the accused do rou
constitute # crime because their ccts ere precluded of unlarfulness.

Now, even if & certoin act has externally fulfilled the requirenciu
vhich constitute & crime = though it is ncknowledped that the qunlity

of ¢ certein act fulf$)1ing the roquirements of o erire ordinnril{ ]
includes ite unlawfulness, particulerly in cese of ¢ malum in 86 name.i;”
e erime bosed on nphm ~3pwjooBECA ORISR whieh 48 cvel in itself) and
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vhen there nre eﬁnaptiunnl cireunstances to preclude the unlawfulness of
that act, then we eonnot insist thet the acts constitutcd ¢ crimo,

Referring to the present case, the accused did not conmit the
elleped acts of their own request or of thoir own preferencc, The
testimony of 1l the witnesscs egreces thrt they did the ect in
nccordonee with the orders of their superior officer, Tvanermi, whe 18
a co=defondant in this eaee, A1l eririnel lows in every nodern
civilized country hrve agreed upon ccknowledging thrt acts done in
nccordance with superior orders orc regarded os nets done in pursuance
of officiel duty of the government or public offieinls cnd their
unlowfulnces shovld be nopated or precluded, 08 hos been the cese with
ncts done in recordrnce with lewe ond ordinanccs, Concerning this
point, I hrve not as yct inguired in dotail into the thecory of [fmerican
and Enplish lew, but considering this in the light of the Jopancse
Cririnnl Code, trt. 35 provides: “‘cts done in nccordence with lews
ond ordinencc or in pursuence of o lopitimote business rre not
punisheble," and thus ite purports is clerrly sect forth thet unlomfuiro:
of sets donc in recordence with laws nnd ordinnnecce era precluded o
negetod, Incidentrlly, this erticle from its wording, epreers 08 17 70
be construed mercly to nerrte the possibility of punishing en nct, D
it not only nesctcs the forsibility of runishment but also gocs a sioy
further and purports to nepate the constitution of a erire, 411
jurists hove egreed and scknowlodped this purprrt. Let us inquire into
the opinions of verious authoritics concerning this point. Makino,
Eichi, Doctor of Law, former Professor of Tokyo Imperial University
stetos in his "Revised Jepencsc Crininel Lew® ns follows:

Mhen & ecrtein act is rcgerded as a right or duty in o 1rw ™
ordinancc, then such nete will not constitute n crime so Jong o8 “he;
~pc within the sconc of that duty or right, In this scnse, &b oot
formally ere free of unlevfulnces. (1) Exceution of legitimete 4 % =
bueiness, Exccution of legitimcte duty cen be divided into thet -
povernment or publie of ficinl who does it in accordance with supcr.””
orders, end thet of a person doing it on his ovn euthority. In c¢’.%

cese, it does not constitute o erime." (Refcr pegcs 349-350 ol &) ..

. Concerning these nccused who are enlistcd men, there arc no ir¥ s
or ordinnneces which direcetly set forth their duty end cutrority bus
nercly rrovides thet they should exclusively reccive end obey the erlLr
of their supcriors, Therefore, there is no queetion about their cct”
corresponding to "acts done in aceordance with suporior orders," in .-
sbove clessificaticn of execution of officiel duty,

Furthernore, Tekigawa, Koshin, Profossor of Kyoto Imperial
University in his "Introduction to Criminal Law" scys:

(1) Acts done in accordence with laws ond ordinances.

Even if ve do not rcsort to iArt, 35, it is only nntursl ond pron
that cete dome in necordonce with lews and orders hrve no clcment of
unlavfulness, We con only enumernte by glving specific excmples, whn®
cets are ncts in sccordance with laws cnd ordinnnecs, HActs concorning
judicature (for exarple, exccution of eentenee, scorch, errost,
dotention, civil attachment) acte concerning administrative eontrol sic
ne police, finence, cte. ere the main exarmples.”

ts I have stated abovc, tho ncts of these nccused aro performonc:
of offie or legitimote business, in accordance with superior order.;
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thet is, their acts are formally precluded of their unlawfulncss cs
being "acts done in accordance with laws and ordinances® provided in
Art, 35 of the Japanese Criminal Code, Consequently, I believe they

do not constitute n crime, But concerning this opinion, there would
eti11 be room for objection, Though the acts of these cocuscd were
done in accordence with the order of their superior, Inanarni, who 18

» co=defendnnt, the substence of the order purported "to kill two
fmerican prisoners of wer.® In general, to kill a person, is in itself
unlawful, fccordingly, Article 199 of the Japenese Criminal Code
stipuletes, "Every person who has killed enother person shell be
condemned to deoth or punished with pemal servitude for life or not
less then threc years," and set forth stern punishment for hemicide.

In particular, & prisoner of wer hrns & certein strtus in Internaticnal
lav, and his life, body, rrorerty, honor cte. nre all protected therein,
This purport is clenrly set forth in the Hegue Convention, in "Rogulat
ions respecting the lews ond Custors of War on Land", Article 4 of
vhich reads: "Prisoncre of wer ere in the powcr of the hostile Govern:
nent, but not of the individunl or corps who cepturc them. They must
be humencly treated, 2111 their personal belongings, oxcept arms,
horses, and military papers, remain their property.”

Thus, the order of the co=defencont, Ivanami, is contrary to i
noture of thirgs. It violates internetional law and con only be
regerded as unlavful, Thus the escte of thc accused, which were rut iate
prectice in cceordance with illegal superior order, cannct escope
being unlavful. Such would the objection be,

If such bc the erse, then is the order of the co-defendont
Trvanamd unlenful? I think it is not unlewful for the rcasons mentiono.
below. In order to judpe a persons cets are lepal or illeral. =e
cennot be setisfied by merely considering their outwerd asrccts, 'av -
mst serutinisc their substance, Te further must probe into the
purpose or motive of committing such ects, and finnlly ve mst considc
the circumstences ond other conditions under which the acta were douc.

Inquiring into the stete of mind of the co=defendpnt Ivenemd whe.:
he gave out the order to kill the Amerieen rrisoners of wer in gresti
1t can be reedily understood from the fact thet he corried out this
excoution of the nrisoners in the daytime in the presence of elmost
211 the members of the hospital end cspeeinlly from the specch that
Twanami mede immediately prior to the execution, that he wes convince .
of the justificeticn of killing the prisoners of wer at thot time,

In his epeceh, Ivenami deplored the fall of Seipen, eriticized the
unlavful bombing in broad daylirht of the Fourth Navel Hospital which
wre marked with Red Cross signs, He explained the lorge damnge
sustained by the hospitrl end the casurltics among the patients thereii
owing to such illegal bombings, and concluded that these prisoncrs

were tho oncs thot hod dored to do these unhumene acts and thet their
nnturc wos like that of o beast, He told them to cherge with courage,
without thinking thet they were human, And Ivenami was inclined to
stimulrte the spirits of those accused who were ept to hesitdte.

The inviolebility of hospitals situated rt the front is elerrly
set forth by the Red Cross Trecaty ond it ie obvicus thot the bombing
of the Fourth Noval Hospital by the Americen Adr Forces wos illegal,
not to epesk of mttocking such on establishment dlstinctly markec with
the Red Cross signs,
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It hrs been acknowledged in Internntional Law, thrt when in eourse
of ver there rrisecs an instonce where the hostile porty violotes
intornrtione] law, the opponent tokes netion corresponding to this
violation to induce their redonsiderction and subdue such on illepal
netion end on the other hend demend remedy for such unlawful acts,

A11 in all, when co-dofendant Imrnemi ordercd these nccused to kill the
two nrisoncrs in the prescnt cese, he hrd not the slightest coubt in
his mind rs to its unlowfulness, Can o subordinnte refuse an order of
his supcrior vho rcknonledpes it to be legitimnte, on the ground that
he is dublous of its legitimrey, or thet he is convinced of its
illcpality?

Lt this poirt, we arc confrontcd with ¢ difficult probienm in
administrrntive jvrisprudence = the requirements of the birdine power
of a superior over his subordinnte, Concerning this problem, it scenc
thet opinions vory among jurists, und true theory ncknowledped by el]
hoe not boen established ss yet, But the most common theory is, thet
the subordincte cen -examine the form of the order, but,has no ruthority
to inquire into its substrnce. Thus when the forn of an order is with. -
defect, cven though in substance it is illegel, it is held, thet the
subordinete is still obliged to obey. Thet is, regnrding a suberdinsi
vho is given an ordcr by his supcrior officer vho hes authority tno
corrend and vho within his capeeity ncknowledges it to be lepa, 1%
is held thrt the subordinnte must obey the order, cven though its
pubstance is objectively #llegel and the subordinnte himself believes
it to be illepal, Beceuse, when we view this, from the point of
neintedning sdministrotive order, it is proper that the ultimote
cuthority of interprotetion cs to the lepality or illepality of the
substance of an order, is vested in the supcrior officer.

In the ipstant corc, coedefendant Ivanami is the immedaate
superior of these accuscd, And the order wrs retunlly given verball
by Ivanemi himself in the free of these mccused, 4nd es I have statec.
the co=dofendent Ivenami did not have the slightest doubt es to its
legitimecy, Thus, this order, in form, did not have the slightest
defoet, Conscquently oven if these secused who were subordinates of
the supcrior Ivanami, werc convinced of the illepality of the urder,
it is only eppercnt thet they did not posscess the ruthority to refuse
it, considering the cormon opinion in sdministretive jurispruderce to
which I hove elready roferred, It is more so, es I shall stete later,
when thesc accused hrd not the slightcst doubt concerning its lepitinc- -
T shall further rsteblish my point, citing o Joponese puthority, Doctcr
of Lew Moteji, Shinkuma, former Ohief of the Supreme Court, Privy
Counecilor, in hig "Introduction to the Japencse Criminnl Lew" etetes:

®A porson who hes o certein duty or is engeged in o certain
capneity, must vwhen necessary hrve ruthority to interrret the lew end
osteblish the f-ots by himself, Thercfore, when on officinl, rcknow=
ledging in n certcin cose thrt the conditions required him to p rform
his officirl duty, cnd with intont to do it, performed 1it, in this crse.
oven if his discretion turned out to be poor cnd his conviction wes ot n
veriance with the objoctive facte, re connot cssert thet the ret wns ap
offieinl cct.....In conclusion, vhether the offieicl discretion corres-

s with the objective facts or not, has no necessory beering in the
constitution of rn officinl ~et,"




Consideri-g the present cnse, co=defendant Iwnn~mi subjectively wns
convineed of the legitimney to kill the Lreriean prisoncrs, rnd since
his order wre issucd upon this eonviction, cven if this conviction
did not corrospond with the objective facts, it wrs done with an
intention of exccuting officicl duty rnd thus the order wcs legel,
Consequently the rets of performing this ordcr by these accused were
also lowful, perticulerly in view of the provision of prregraph 3 of
irticle 2 of the Genevn Trenty concerning the trentment of Prisoners of
liar which olerrly prohibits £11 necns of retelintion upon Prisoners of
or,

Section 2 = Preclusion of Criminnl Intent,

In the preccding eection I hrve stated the rorsons for the
rreelusion of unlarfulness nnd cstoblished theweby thet the cets of
these recused do not constitute o crime notwithstonding the exterral
epnerrance of those nets which indiente they violated the lows end
customs of w~r by killing the prisoncrs in question,

% eriminal net such as killing rriscners of u~r, hovever, is no
doubt beyond the cepreity of co=defendent Ivmneri who wes tho hend of
e ncvel hospitel, cnd it is not diffieult to oxpoct nn orgument thoe
the mere fret thet Iworsmi nt the time of his piving out the order b o
been eonfineed in his mind of its unlawfulness, docs not efford any
rdequrte rorson for the preclusion or nogrtion of the unlenfulness
of the ordcr, ond the ects nerpctroted by these rccused who obeyed such
en 11legal order ore still unl~wful, Thercfore I would like to argue
cn this peint in detail, I firmly belicve thot even though the order
of the co=defendont Irancni is objectively 1llcgel, the ccts of ‘these
nccused should not be punishrble beecuse no eriminnl intent 1s
constituted on the part of these necused,

At this time, for your considcrrtion, I should like to review in
chronologicel order, the representntive thoorics in Jepan concorning
the substance of criminnl intent,

irt, 38, per, 1 of the Jepanese Criminel Code defines cririnul
intent as "intent to commit a crime", and in par, 3 of the some strter,
"Tgnorance of the law connot be invoked to estrblished absence of
criminal intent," Therefore, in former days, the comron theory in
Japn insisted that mere cognizance of frets constituting o crime wes
sufficient to cstrbliesh criminnl intent, and cognizance of unlewfulnes:
vre nct required for the constitution of cririnel intent, Thot is, it
wns hcld thet cognizance of unlarfulnces was not included in the sub=
stance of criminal intent,

This idce of eriminnl intent originates from the ancient thought
that "ignorence of the law is no excuse," and the sssertion "Nemo
censetur tgnorrre legem" (it cennot be acknowledped thot a person is
ignorent of the lew) or "punitive regulnticne must be sternly enforeed,”
nlso is besed on the same view, Faets which constitute e crimc ere in
themselves hormful to socicty nnd, if ¢ person ventures to rut the frets
into preetico in spite of the fret that he is awrre of the facts, we
must ery that his charncter is nnti=socirl,
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Doctor Motojd statcs, "Intenticn is ordinarily o recognition or
preconception of facts, Criminnl intent set forth in Lrt, 38, por, 1
of the Criminal Code is on intent to commit a crime, namely @ recogniticn
or preconccption of facts thet would constitute o crime, Therefore, where
recognition or preconception of focts which constitute o crime 18 ashsent,
the conception of crimincl intent docs not exist,® (Motoji, op.cit.

Pe 452,)

I believe this theory represcnts the nbove view, This thoory con
be applicd without much foult to erimes which erc evil in themeclves or
nela in se, such ns rurder, thef't, orson, cnd the like which in the apte
themsclves properly possces on anti-socicl cheracter, But the consequenccs
would be most prejuiicirl, if we were to oprly this theory o8 it is to
erimes whieh ere prohibitod by law or nrla prohibita, set forth for
edministretive purposes such os policc finance, and the likc, in whink
on enti=-social neture of the act orifinates from prohibition of strtue,
Henec, n theory hns erisen, steting ihet merc cognizence of fects
constituting a erime may be sufficiont for the constitution of the
eriminel intent of a somcelled melum in 8¢, but in ¢ so-cnlled malum
prohibitum, the cognizance of unlavwfulness is required in eddition to
the cognizence of fncts thet ecnstitute a crime.

I would like to trka adventege of this oppor tunity to meko e bt
corment on the distinction between the theory of norel responsibility
~nd thet of soeiel responsibi”ity in order to clerify the subsequent

arguments,

In the former, punishment is rororded rs censure rgninst en anti=
noral net from the morrl or cthicel point of vieu, while in the latter i%
is regerded cs one of the vrricus meons by which society protccts iteelfl
frem the injurics to be inflicted on it,

In the theory of morrl responsibility the beeis of responsibility
upon which punishnent is nossible 1ics in the froedom of will, In other
words, only when 2 person with frecdom of will rets in accordance with
the free determinnticn of his #i1l con the result produced by the oct
bo aseribed to the person, In spite of a person who has freedom of will
being rble to avold an unlewful cet in conformity with vhot his frec wil
orders hin to do, hec ventures to do the unlawful cet. This is tho reasc
why he descrved to be blomed on account of the commdssion of the
u.rllﬂm.T act.

On the other hand, in the theory of socirl responsibility, the
boeis of criminnl responeibility does not 1ie in the freedom of will,
but 1ics in the foct thrt man clways lives in groupe, J4ccording to this
thoory of man alwnys living in groups, ke vho docs o certain ection mst. .
be subjected to tho corresponding recction from society.

profossor Mckino holds, nlthough he steles in view of his thoory
of socinl rcspomsibility that mere cognizance of fects ernstituting a
erime 18 sufficicn in the substence of criminal intent and cogniscnce
of unlawfulness ie not perticularly required, thrt cogniszance of unlow=
fulness is nlso required in the subsicnce of criminnl intent of the so=
called molum prohibitum, This is because, the nct eonnot be said to be
anti-socirl vhen cognizance of unlowfulncse is obsent in that act
constituting e statutory crime, the anti-socinl noture of which, a8 I
have elrcedy stated, originntes from the prohibition by statuto,
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i Mekino stetes,. *I believe, eoneerning the mistake of law, a elecr
distinction should he mede in a case of a malum in se end in thot of ¢ |
! molum prohibitum beceuse, in o malum in sc, since the ncts are neturally
snti-socinl, the existence of the anti=socinl eharacter of a person ccn be
logicrlly inferred whon he determines to perform such sort of ncts upon
precise rccognition of them, Ls to n malum prohibitum, howover, the ect
beeomes anti=social as 2 consequence of prohibition by stetute, end 80
1t eon be said in the absence of & cognizance of its unlnvfulness, onti-
socinl intontion 1s not yot constituted, This view may also be adopted
in o molum in se when the doer in corivinced thet there are exeeptional
resecns for precluding the unlawfulness of a eertein rct should bo pre=
eluded for a ecrtain rerson, we may scy that the doer is free of cny
intention of violating the requirements of generel mornlity, Thus, in such
a cnse, where cognisance of unlawfulnoes is nbsent, we should sty thnt
eriminnl intent is not constituted," iMekino, oreCite Pe 192-193.)

From this roint of viow, Dr, Makino commented on the deecision rerched
by the First Division Court Martinl, on 8 December 1937 concerning the
lmekasu cose, His comments on this casc arc @8 follows: "The said court-
martierl acquitted the nccused in that case on the srounds thrt their ccbr
gerc committed, 'without incwing the foots corstituting & erime,M but tais
imekasu cese should be undcrstood as a mistake of iaw rather then thoe
foct, Indeed, n nistoke of law does not ordineril:: nepete the const i o
of o crime, But ns far rs this particular cese is concerncd, it is
neknowledped from the genercl strnderds of mornlity that the un) avfulnes:
of the nets should be precluded or ncgrted on the grounds thrt this
incident occurred under such cxceptionel eircumstrnecs as Martial Law

A wne in effect, and thot the superior giving out the order was always
highly estecmcd by the cccused, Hence eriminel intent wns not eonstitutcd
on the pert of the accused notwithstonding the fret thot the crimo |
cormitted by the cceused was murdor, one type of molum in se, ond their
orror did not lie in the frct, but in the law, Vicwing this crse ©s @
malum in se eonvertod to a malum prohibitum, he applicd the rbove theory
in commenting upon this judieinl prccedent.

But thosc who rdopt the theory based upon morol responsibility will
madntain thot the responsibility imposed upon o criminel as it is entire™
due to his violrtion of the eriterion sct up by the law, only when there
exists on intention to violate thot eriterion, is erimincl intent
constituted, In othor words, it is held that eriminnl intent includes
e copnizance of unlewfulness, and cven though there is © cognizance of
the frct (ﬂubatnnna} of the erime, if the cognizcnce of unlavfulness
nttached to the fret is obsent, criminnl intont is still negated, ond thni:
should be no differcnce in the applicrtion of thie rensoning between &
melvom in se and a malum prohibitum,

The scholers who uphold this view interpret ert, 38, pars 3 of the
Joprnese Criminal Code na follows, ™the responeibility ineurred from o
‘ mistake or ignorance of law is in itself thot of negligence, and yet

. should bo regerded in the seme manner cs.when eriminal intent existed,”
(Esscnco of Criminel Jurisprudence by the deccnsed moto, Eishu,
Dr. of L+, Forrer Prof, of Kyoto Imperial University); or ®this
provision (Art. 38 por, 3) should be construed as, "tho cognigzance of
ench speeific regulntion is not required to constitute eriminal intont.®
(from "Lecture on Criminal Lew", by Ono, Scichiro, Dr, of low, former
Prof, Tokyo Tmporicl Universitys)
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Professor Tonkigern is another seholrr who edopts the theory of
noral responsibility, stoting thnt eriminnl intent includes the cognizance
of unlavfulnese, He snys: M"The theory thrt erininnl intent requires the
doer to be owaere (or able to be avere) of the cevnluetion of the act, other
than his being psycholopically cvere of the objective haprenings, is
genernlly called a theory in which the cognizance of unlawfulness is a
component part of the substance of erinminal intent, The so=crlled
cognizence of unevfulness is classificd rs, (1) cognizance that the act
shall be punishrble, thrt is, recognition of the eriminal low, (2)
Recognition of the lews other than eriminel law, (3) Recognition of
the violetion of "L nrture des Choscs" (the neture of things), 4s I
have strted before, the cognizance of violrtion of "La nrture des ehoscs"
(the nature of thin‘s), is paramount in the rcquisitcs of eriminnl inten:.
This docs not meon thet cine must be censeious of the evalurticn of his
eet, othcr than the substence of the cioime, Tt merns thot the
conselousness of violrting "La noture des choses™ (the nature of thinge)
is of utmost importnnce and tho aworeness of the substonce of the erime
is no more then e secondery factor in determining the exdstence of
eriminrl intent, In other words, the psychologicrl element of the
erininel intent is not Jronrtent in itself, hut it is signifieant ae or
erdinery symptom of the cthicel clement of eramincl intenmt. lro. €,
prrt 3 sinply merns thal so long rs the ettitude ¢f the doer fuifill =
requisite of e crimc, ond he is avere of violrting "L mature des nhonir
(the neture of things), he will bo punished whether he is ewere of the
law or not. A4 person who recognizes his ret violates "la noture des
choscs™ (the nnture of things), is o person vho is well ewrre thrt his
nttitude is of ethieal value in the lenst, and n person who knove whet
he should do or should not do, whethcr the doer is aware thnt his ret is
legally permissible or not, is only of sccondary importence." (Tokigare

OPe €ite pe 146=147)

It can be ensily imegined from the discussion of the scholars cited
rbove, thet the generel trend of theories in Japan is shifting from the
oprinion of interpreting eriminnl intent merely as "cognizonce of the
substrnece {ff*ct:s’ vhich would constitute cripe,® to thrt which interprets
it o8 including torether with this cognizonce of the Mcognizance of
unlevfulness," this pinion orrears to be eoming predominont, The progr
of the theory of morrl responsibility which professcs thrt the cseence
of ceriminnl rcspensibility lice in the violrtion of mornlity, hons come
re its inevitrble sequel to place more weight on the ethicrl cspect
rother then on peychologicnl nspect, s regards the substence of erimina:
intent,

This trend is secen not cnly in the shifting of theory but also in
the principles of legislation, Art, 11 per, 3 of the draft of the
emendment for Jepanese Criminnl Code, states, "In crse of ignorsnce of
the lew, vhen there ie ronsonsble ground for o porson to believe thet his
rct vos lepally permissible, the punishment shell be rom-tted, This
dreft wes made n resolution ond sdopted in 1931 in the genersl meeting
of the Research Committec concerning emendment of Cririnal Lew and Prison
Lew, ond just when it wes to be introduced in the Dict to be cnacted into
legisletion, it wes withheld beccusc of radicel ehonges in the internal
stete of affairs end it wes discerded thereafter, The tide of
demoeretiznrtion which hes repidly revived in Jepan since the end of the
wer, I believe, will in the near future inevitrbly ceuse thie dreft to
be cneeted into lew, I believe you understend herchby, the generel trend
vhich modorn legisletion is undergoing.
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In thc foregoing, I have probed into thc substonce of eriminnl intent,
Now from the point of vicw of morel responsibility, which I have mentioned
rbove, I wish to clarify below the issues of the prescnt ensc,

The necuscd in the precent ceso were evare that the vietirs werc two
Amerieen nrieconers of wor end they ventured to trke up speers and bayoncts
to ¥i1l them., If we werce to edopt the view thot criminal intent is the
cognizrnece of the su“stonce (frets) of the erime, we should have to offirm
the constitution of eri-innl intent in the nets of these osccused, But
wheon ve view it in tho light of the foregoing theory of mornl responsibii-
ity, which professcs thot eriminel intont ineludes cognizence of un’awful:
noes in nddition to th~t of the substruce or faets of the crime, ve
eennot rendily hold th~t criminel infcnt erdsted in tho nets of these
recuscd, &8 o motter of foct, these nccuscd heve stoted thrt they
stebbed just os they were ordered to do by the herd of the hospitel,
without hoving time to consider the right or wrong of the set, <t the
moment of gtebbing these nccused did have time to mokc cny ethicol
cveluntion by apnerling to their morality, as to whether to do or not to
do the rct, Thon, crn these nceuscd bo held 1inhle for negligonce in no%
being -bla to meke on cilinel cvelurtion? In ordcr to deteraine thre
issuc, e must toke into considerrtlon the ciiew.etences under whish oo
ret wae dene, ’

This incident haprened in July 1944, when the Preific War wes in Lh:
fourth yenr cfter its outbreek, Guoadrlennel hed been token the yoor
bofore. Taraun ond Mokin hed fellen, Seipen had just boen occupicds
Every vontrge point in the South Preific wrs being occupicd in successicn
ond the defert of Jepn wes incviteble,

Truk "toll, Corolinc Islend, the post of thesc recuscd, wns lelt
strendcd under the incessnnt bombing of the fmcrlecn plancs, The men
vere furious ond thedr blood boiled, Since the turning of the tide
rgoinst Joprn the Central Government over-amxious about the giturtion,
endenvored with al) i+e power to oxelte hostility ond enmity, in order Lo
unite the sentiment and morsle of the peonle, which weorc alrendy on tho
dcelinc, Under such n siturtion, there now stood beforo these rceused
two .mericen prisoncrs of wer, Besides, the co=defondent Iwonomi, thoir
imrediete supcrior officer delivered o pep talk to them, £ tating thrt
these prisoncrs hnd bombed the hospitel in broed deylight, morked with
the Rod Cross sign, thrt the establibhment hed sustoincd great demege N
prtients greet cosueltics, thrt their ncts verc so ebomincble thet they
rere not humen end thet the nccused should steb them courageously.
Bosiccs the herd of the hospitel, slmost all of the officers were present
rt the scone of the erime, No word of admonition or objcction could be
henrd from these officere, Could we sefoly demend from these rceused,
vho wre placed under such circumstences and vho hed just herrd a fiory
spcech from their superior, o judgment of ciseriminction between right
and wrong? Could we oxpeet from them a from them & consciousncss thet
they were violeting "Le noture dcs chosos" (the nrturc of things?) I
bolieve it would be like trying to get o fish from ¢ traoce Tinen't the
stete of mind of tho eccuscd at thrt time, rethor inclined to imngine
thet it wns on'y nrturcl to kill the prisoncrs?

I should like to go & step furthor and inquire whether theso
necused were aware of the stoetus of o prisoncr n8 sct forth in interncticr
0l 1low, ond if they were not cuere of, %, whether thoy could heve knomm
it, If a pcrson lncks knowlcdge of the stotus of prisonors provided in
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internntional law, he is ept to be unavere of the vay in vhich they should
be trented, becouse ignorance of internctional law on the part of these
nceused moy tend to bring about the absonce of ccnsciousness of violeting
WLa nrturc des choses®™ (the neture of things) concerning the killing of
the prisoncrs, A4nd this abscnce mny immediately have & berring on the
eriminel intent of thesc accuscd,

Le T hrve steted in the proceding section, prisoncrs of wer heve &
ccrtein stotus provided in intornctionel lew; their 1ife, body, property,
honor, and nll other 1ccel interests belonging to them, nre protected and
sceurcd, These accused, however,did not know of such & stotus of priscn-
ors of wer as sct forth in internrtionel low, Now, lct us considor
whether they were lisble for negligerce in not knowing of such a status
of prisoncrs, For about onc yerr from 1941 to 1942, I teught stucd.ris oo
nn instructor of law in thc Navel Enginecring Lcodomy. I pave som.
1cetures on International Lavw, .But they werc mninly taken up by the
portion concerning rogulotions of naval werfare. With the nllottcd hours
for this subjcet, it wrs impossible for me to go into the field conecerning
1rnd worfore, So I did rot heve tho opnortunity to lecturc or the
gtotus of prisoncrs of wr~> is T had no intention of moking light cf
the stotus of the prisoncrs of war, 1f T had had an emple time, 1 '
have lectured on this subject vithout feil, But owing to the ingulsd
of rllottcd hours, I hed to satisfy mysclf by lceturing to the studcuur
on the outline of such an cssenticl part of nnval warferc rs meritine
prizes, fs it is usual thot the ermy should trke cere of the rrisoncrs
of wrr, Such wes thc cose with thosc who were to bocome officers in the
ncer future, thet I think, concerning thie subject, there e no need of
further reference to the situntion of the cceused who were petty officrr:
promoted from the renks, It is only nnturnl that theese accuscd should .o’
kxnow of the status of the prisonors of wer provided in internrtionel 1.

As fully discusscd above, taking into considerction the cirecumstrucci
under which tho erime in question was committod, ond in view of the
nbsence of ¥nowlcdge coneerning internrtionel low on the part of these
ageused, it ean be roodily nffirmed thet, rt the time of the commissior
of the nlleged crime, these pecused did not have ony recognition of
unlewfulness, and furthermore thnt they were not 1iable for ncgligence
in not being rvrre of its un’ awfulness.

Therefore, I meintain thet even though the nllcged ects are objects
ivoly unlawful, the eccts show no erimincl intent end they ghou’d not be

punisheble ccecordinglye.
Scetion 3 = Stdte of Emecrgoncy.

Lssuming thet rmy foregoing argumcnts are not sdoptcd by the
commission end thc accused rro found guilty, I would sti1l meintain thoi
they are not guilty of the ncts, on the ground thet thesc cceused, et
the timo of the act, wera placcd in en anovoideble position, that is,
beenuse we could not heve oxpeetod ony other logitimote act than rhat they
did, Thus, &8 a stete of cmergonsy Or neecssity, I still urge thoir
innocanec,

In order to enforce diseipline and medintein order of the members in
group life, we rust rocognize o predominont stotus of o certain person
{n the group, to whosc opinion other mombers must be subordinnte. This
is only obvious, It is uﬁﬁg for this rcoson, thet the State is predorincn
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over its peonle; and in order %o axceute its objective the State exereiscs
regerdless of the will of the individual sush powers ns police, taxntion,
punishment, confisertion, attnchment, ond other powers, and deprives or
rcstricts the 1ife, body, freedom, liberty, properly ond other lepgnl
benefits, The same con bo seid in socicty of the public end governmental
officinls, In order to meintein ond enforce official diseipline, the
predoninent nosition of tho Chief must be recognized, and the infecriors
must be subordinrte to him, Lccordingly, the relation of order rnd obedinr:
is hrought nrbout,

T heve alrcrdy discussed the rdministrative opinion of the binding
povier of the Chicf's orceyr over his subordincte, But in the militery
forace, whose objecetive is to maintcin netionnl sccurity and to ropcl
»11 rgrression, the bindi'y powar of n superior over his gubordiratc ~ua
not Le ecmpored on the sanc level with thet of the government official, du
the militrry forees, one st possces the ottitude "always be prepered,
Thercfore, military diseiplinc sthich unitcs the wills of the thousand
into onc, is regrrded ns the very 1ife of the military forccs. For this
rorson, violation of o suncrior order is considercd es ¢ crime, & sericas
erime in the militery forocs: while to o governmen? officinl 15 witl
only bc o reason for rerr.nend, This logic is true in the milifccr :
of every country, Esneciolly in the Japancse nilitery forecs from i .
foundetion 48 this true, Empcror Mciji in his Impcrial reseript tu i
mi*itery mon declered: "The orders of your supcrior shell rt once ke
roparded ne my orders" The Japeancsc mi'it-ry pcrson from the dey he
entors until hie discharge is continuously teught to obey surerior ordert
The fostering of obodicnce is the curx of training in militery ddseiplinn.
In the scrvicec, the dignity of one's individuelity or wisdom of eriti~isn
is not ollowod, Apert from the digeussion of merit or demerit eonecer.d T/
this roint, this wmes the -otuel situetion of the rclation botween supari.

ond subordincte in the Jeponese rdlitery forces.

5 S

Conecerning this point, even the professor of Tokyo Imperial Universsop
Dr. of Iew Minobe, Tntsukichi vwho was once scvercly criticized by
gsociety os an cxtreme 1iberalist, and vho suffercd great ostracism,
stetos 4n his "Outline of Politicel Sciences" as follows:

WThe neture of duty of an army and navy person to the state, in hic
copreity as e militery person differs in no voy from thet of the ordincy -
government officiel, except the diseipline of the militrry person is str.-
ator and consequently the degrec of constraint upon him from this aspect
is far preator than thet of the government officinl, The most importert
point of difference in of ficial cduty between the militrry person end the
ordinary govermment official Jies in the duty of obedicnce. In order to
promote the fighting power of the armed forcee end in order to attein iho
objectivos of armament, nilitery order must heve unity, superior order
pust heve implieit effcet end the crmed forccs must be 8o troined thet
they will opcrete as if they verc & singlo organic body with one mind,
The govcrnment official will only be reprimanded for rosisting & superior
order but the militery person will suffer punishment,

WOf course, c military person is roguired to obey superior orders
only whon they rro volid, But it should be observed thot a militery
order differs from on officiel order of & governnent officiol im the
following two respects,
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"a, As for the militery person, cven his conduct in private 1iTe 1=
to a groet cerl subject to militery diseipline. The scono of his private
1ife which is ocknovledged ag not heving relotion to his of ficial duty,
i very narrow, thcrefore a militory order which soems, at & glance, to
bolong in privete lifey in most cascs gti1l docs not lose its offcct as
e valid order, Particulerly, those military persons vho arc in service
or who are in the battle ficlds, cre subject to superior orders in every
phose of their life,

",, Military persons heve not, of course, any 1iability to obey
invelid orders, But, if the militery pcréon is piven the responeibilitics
of exemining the validity of an order, cnd is held responsible for obeying
an invalid order, then the military porson will foer to obey it. Tris
will lead to obstrueting unified militery discipline, Therefore it should
bc construod thnt rcte done in aceerdance with supcrior orders, even vhen
the orders ore not velid, do not meke the person who cxecutos thom
responsible but chicfly mokos the supcrior who grve out the order
rcsponsible, This logicnl sequence is producced, beesuse the 1ow compels
obedience by stern punishment,”

This theory well tekes into neeount the retuel situetion of the
militory foreo, It shows great understanding end sympethy for the
position of the nmilitery man, the subordinatcs in perticular, The ebove
citetion is in the words of Minobe, who did not eringe before the
poworful nor the rich nand who never surrendered his integrity. I am sure
you will understend the cetual situstion of the Japanese militory force,
through hie worde,

Le 1 heve stoted before in reletion to orders in militery forec,
the law compols obedience by gtern punishment, Consicering tho stotute
lew of Jeren on thie point Art. 55 of the Novel Criminel Code states:

WOne who resists the superior officer's order or who i8 not sub=
ordin-to to it, shall be condemned to such penelties os follows:

"1, In the frce of the enemy, he shall be condemned to derth or &
1ife term or chove ten yenrs! confinement,

n2, In war time or when in necd of emergency mereurcs of rescuing
shins, from above one to ten yerre' confinement,

3, In other cascs, under five yerrs' confincment,"

Thie is the so=-called provision of resisting orders, and approximetely
the seme proviaion is found in Art. 51 of the frmy Criminel Code, 48 to
the intorpretetion of this erticle I shall eite from the "Principlecs of
Army Criminel Code," by Army judicinl officer Sugeno, Yaewuki: "The
provision perteining to resisting orders was set forth in apder to proteot
the implicitnees of supcrior orders, and to meintein the sceurity and
rolinbility of military actions, ?’m obedience of a subordinate to his
superior offfcer is demanded to some extent in administrative law, but the
relation of order and obedience in the miitery ie fer closer, end is
ondowed with an almost religious sacrodness, In administretive law,
disobedience of an order is only l4able to rcprimand, whereaes disobedience
of an order in tho military is instantly lirble to punishment, This ie
only meturnl, beceuse the paremount duty of the m1itary in fighting end
ite ultimete objective 48 vietory, The substencc of an ordor must be
mrttors within the authority of the surcrior officcr who is in the proper
line of eommand, The common thoory is thet, in gonmercl, the substence
urunuﬂarnaﬁnlmtuuprmemnd,hutmutepdt&nmﬂﬁf'
taining to military odmi nistration, becouse, it is oxtremely diffieult to

distinguish between the two :
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Next, when the substencc of an order pertains to matters which ere
lopelly impossible such rs 1o order a commission of a erire it is
nrturelly invelid, But the lerel offeect produecd by oboying such an
order must be considercd scparatelys The form of an order cen be verbel
or written, So long es it is issuec by on immedicte supcrior, or
supcrior who hes proper euthority of cormand, .the order is seid to be
intcet in form, There is no doubt thrt en order is valid when it is
given by n supcrior who hns offiecinl authority, ond vhen it is within his
authority, But, whether therc is atill room to mnintein ite validity
when it is not perfect in form and substonce, is & point of controversy
in ndpinistrotive law, The cormon theory is thet, vhen an order is
se¥nowledped to be o suprior order, it is rogarded as velid, In other
words, the subordinrte cannot refusc such en order, on the rrounds thri
his interprctetion of the lew verics , or thet he diffors in opinion of
to the feets. But in the militery, relrtion between order and obedicnge
ig further stressed, &s © rule, cven an invelid order ernnot be refused
oxeepting in cases when it con be intuitively perceived thet cormission
or non=cormigsicn of on ret constituting the substence of an order,
would constitute o criminel cct. Beyond this 1imit, it 1s not permissible
in ony way to cdiscuss the rrorricty of cn order,

The common theory of edministrrtive low coneerning the binding
power of supcrior order over the subordinnte, which I heve alrcedy
discussod, namely, the opinion that tho subordinnte hes right to
inguire into the form of r suncrior ofder but not its substence, cennot be
applicd es it is, to supcrior ordors in the militery, becrusc, in the
militery, it is hcld thrt subordinotecs rre not only uneble to examine tho
substence of an order but also are not allowed to cxamine its form, From
this noint of vicw, we must sey thet the ncts of thesc cccused done in
nocordance with their superior officcr, Inanami's order rre not liable
in themselves, Some may object to this vicw ond state thet, becousc, cvel
the obove eited outhoritics heve ncknowledged thrt there ere cascs where
on order in the militery forec is invelid thrt the implicitnecss of order
canrot he concluded from this vicw. The invelidity of a supcrior order
~nd the responsibility of a subordinrte who reted upon obedicnce to the
invnlid order, ere, however, entirely two different things. In fact
Dr, Minobe st~tecs, "Therefore it should be construcd thet scts done in
accordence with o superior order, even when the order is not velid, do
not meke o person who oxecutes them rosponsible, but the supcrior who
gnve out the crder rosponsible,” bLlso Mr, Supeno stetes, "When the
substenee of an order perteins to matters which orc leogelly impossible,
such ns to order a cormission of erimo, the order is neturclly invelid,
But the legrl effect produced by obeying such on order must be considered
scperately,” Thus we must know th-t the above objection or eriticism is
not propor, But we shall not be sntisficd by such supcrficial robuttal,
but shrll probe into the mntter further.

The substrnce of Iwenami's order in the instent case, was to kill two
rrisoners of wer, At a glancc, this oprder in its form, involvcs &
eriminnl offense, . But we must sce whether this eorresponds to vhet Mr,
Sugano stetcs o8, Woxcentionel eases when it can be intuitively perceived
‘thet the comrission or nonecomrission of an act constituting the substence
of the order, constitutes a oriminel cect," As to thie roint, I hrve
rlrendy relrted my opinion in doteil, in the foregoing sccticn entitled,
won nreclusion of criminol intent,®
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Teking into considerrtion the circumstcnecs, under which the
contents of Iranemi's spccch, the status and eepacity of thesc nccused,
the other subjective and objoctive frets under whieh these acts werc
comritted, nemely I must offirm thet it wos not an exccptional cose,
vhere the oets could heve boen intuitively percelved o8 eonstituting o
eririnnl offense, The sccuscd were legelly constrained to obey the order
of Ivensmi, If they had disobeyed they would heve bcen morally violoting
the spirit of the Imperiel reseript; foiling in their cduty ns military
men; end whet is more could not have osceped being lcpally condemned for
the crime of rcsisting en order, They eould not heve esceped punishment
for rceisting orders in the bettle ficld end in the face of the enemy,
which imposce denth st the maxinum and 10 yeors' imprisonment at the
minimum, Theee eecuscd were confronted with the horns of dilemna, If
they advenced they would Vill the prisoncrs; if they retrcated, stern
eopital punishment auvnitcd thenm 14kc o devil, Indeccd this woe € difficult
position, & srpge once said: MIf I werec %o bo loyel to ny country, I
should not be £ilirl to my perents,® If these cecuscd did nct stcb the
prisoners, their own lives were in danger, Indcod, the neth of life is
difficult, "Neeissity dofies Law" is ¢ well-knovn saying in Romen law,
frt, 37, Prr, 1 of the Japencse Criminal Code stetes: "Uncvoidable acts
done in order to avert prosenmt denger to life, body, 1iberty or property
of oneself or snother person ere not punisheble, provided the injury
ocensioncd by such nets does not oxeeced in degree the injury cndervorec we
be nvaerted." In order to rescue these cccused from this difficult
siturticn, we cen only rely upon this -rovision end no other. The
requircments of the above provision pertaining to ncceesity in the
Japanesc Criminel Cocde arc rigid; and I pm not ccrtein es to whether this
provision crn be liternlly applied, without crror, in this cose, But T
belicve, there ere sufficicnt grouncs to infer the aprlicrtion of the
purport of thie erticle to the nresent case,

In the proceding discussion, I have gstoblished, from the legal point
of view, thet the scte of these aceueed were done under ahsoluto coercica.
Now, I wish to shif$ my point of vicw to the frcts of the case and show
the sene.

Mhother under legel or actunl coercion, judicirl rcts done under
ebsolute coercion rre not valid, Whether the actual coercion is mentel
or phrsicel 18 not meterial, The snmc lopic is nrleo cpplicable to the
ficld of eriminnl low, Even if we should not ~eknoviledge the mart of
legrl coercion in the prescnt casc we cannot yet deny thrt thore wes
acturl cocreion. Even if we should say thrt there weos no physicol
coercion, we cernot yet make the psycholoricnl coercion, which oppresscd
these recuscd like e prodigious monster,

Fo must reeall the siturtion et the time of the ineident, The wor
wns 8t11]1 being woged, Those eecuscd werc free to free with their onery.
Morcover, ot thot time, thc tide of the ver hed ~Ireedy turned ageinst
Jrpan, -'Ir-ru::n'u dofcat wos eprcrent, Still the centrel Government was
issuing propegends thet the cnemy should be resisted with the utmost vim
ené vigor to instigete more hostility against the cnemy, ond it wos trying
in n frensy to further the spirit in the last battle on the heme land,

The neychologicrl oxeitcment and exnsneratirn which tho accuscd cxporicneed
at this time can wcll be imogincd, Ivnnemi wes ot this time a surgoon
eeptoin nnd those rccused lowly potty offieers. The spece between ranks
wore comprrable to the distence between the sky rnd the eerth, Moreover,
Twenami was a rnn of strong self assertion, & men who would etrongly
condern others, This characteristic hos been brought out by various
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testimony before this commission, Under such eircumstences, having such
a superior officer, and hnving been taught, from their very first steps
in the Japnnese nrval service nepotion of sclf under striect rogulrtions,
could theso reecused have rcfused the fiery ond stern order of Ivianami?
We must reelize th-t this cctual cocreion on thelr strte of mind could
vory wecll heve surmountoc tha lopal cocrcion stnted before,

Thus, these recused at the time of tho net were uncvoldebly obliged
to po through this commission, It would only be seking the impossible to
oxpect any other lewful act from them, I believe, thercfore, thet the
acts of theose nccused erc not liable on the grouncs, th~t thoy were acts
undcr o stnte of cmergency.

Leeording to o trertise in a mrgazine which I recently rerd, it sccms
thet in the Nuremburg tricls also, the besie of eriminnl responsibility lhins
been sct uvon the nossibility of morel chkoice, The trectisc rceds: "Who
should teke the responsibility for ordinery ver cerimes (cue)r oo rigtrorte
nent of nrisoncrs) ond crimes apeinst humonity (snuch es atrocity)? Shouid
the soldicr who setunlly performed the set or the suncrior who geve out
the order, be held responsible? To vhet extent should the reepensibilit
for giving cut the order or pcrmiseion, oxtend? Conccrning this noint,
Art, 8 of the Chartor of the Intcrnetional Trierl ot Nuremburg provides:

"The fret thrt the defondent octed pursuent to order of his Governndno
or of o superior shall not free him from responsibility, but mey be
conaidered in mitigetion of runishment,!

Lnd the deeleion of the Tribunrl reveals o notevorthy interpretrtion of
this crticle rs follows:

! The nrovisions of this chrrter ere in conformity with the lave of
a1l netions, Thet o soldicr wrs ordercd to kill or torturec in
violrtion of the intcrnational law of wrr hns never becn recognized s
e defense to such acts of brute’ity, though, 78 the Chrrter here
providcs, the order mey be urped in nitipetion of the punishment.,

The truc tost, which is found in verying degreces in the criminol

law of rost netions, is not the oxistence of the order, but whether
morel choice wns in fect possible.!

Lecording to the ebove reason, crininnl responsibility is besed uncn th:
poseibility of moral choice, Thet is, criminal rosponsibility is cloerly
rccopnized to be founded upon morel responsibility, Thus, it would be thed
n sbldier vho acted pursucnt to o superior order under such circumstanccn
rs he ehsolutcly could not rcfuse thet superior ordcr, is frce from
rcepopsibility, (From the 'Leow Magezine' No, 734, srticle entitled ‘
VLogal opinion on the Nuremburn decision,' by Dr, of Lew, Ono, Seichiro, )"

Thus, from the foregoing citeticn I believe you will notice thet the
theory of "a stnte in which any other evful ret connot be expected from
the doer of e certain rct," I have alrcady revenled, is edopted in the
Internationel Tribunel at Nuremburg, &nd I firmly believe thet the scme
lopie should be adopted by this comrission to which the SCAP Rules may be

end sometimes ere npplied,

Seetirn 4 = On Mansloughtor.

1 firmly meintain thot the acts of these eccused do not in eny way
constitute ¢ erime owing to the cbove str ensons, Thrt is, in
@ me porformed in obedience to
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the lawful order of their immediate supcrior Iwanemi, Thus the unlawful=-
ness of the acte should be precluded, as acte in pursuance of official
duty by an officer, in other words, as lewful acts, Secondly, assuming
that the substance of Iwanemi's order concerned matters beyond the scope
of his official duty end violated International Lew, also assuming in
epite of the fact thet he was subjectively convinced of its unlawfulness,
the ordor was still illegel in the objoctive point of view, cven then
these accused were not awere of its unlawfulness at the time of the
incident; end reflecting upon the subjective and objcctive ecircumstances
at the time of the incident, it is cognizable beyond reasonable doubt
thet these accused were not avare of 1te unlawfulness, hence criminal
intent on the pert of the accused is not congtituted, Thirdly, let us
grant thet the existence of eriminal intent of these accused was affirmed
from the point of vicw thet mere cognizance of the substance of the

crime is sufficient for the existence of criminal intent and that recog=
nition of unlewfulness accompanying the fec’s 18 not required; even then,
it would be foreing an impo=sibility on them %o expect from these accuscd
other lawful ac's then whet they hed doac, o8 these eccused were soldiers
of & comperetively low renk, and under absoiute psycholopicel pressure In
which they had to obey the ordors of their ruperirr, cven though et &
glance they were able to be aware of its 117epmlity in substance, not %u
speek of its form they were obliged to perform or rather unevoidably
performed the scts alleged in the present cese, Thus as e case of
emergency, thelr culpability should be exem~tod, Nov, even if my first
point should be ignored ond the act of Iwenami be Ccemed illegnl, it is
no exaggeration to say thet the nets of these’'nccused who were without
eriminal intent or who were compelled to implicit obedience and whose
position wes just like thet of an instrument or machine were mercly
utilized by Imaneml in realizing his criminal intert, Consequently
Twanami mey not be cxcmpted from 1isbility es on indircet principel, tu®
1 firmly believe these accuscd ere not puilty.

Therefore, I should not ehoose to burden the members of the commissd o
by further argument on this néint, but I must coneider thet ell the fere-
going noints of my argument may be disposed of and the ~ccused found
guilty. Thereforc I shel) try to esteblish the rconson thet the puniﬂhmﬂnt
for their acts should he legally mitiroted in comporison with murder,
boepuse their acts do not conmstitute rmurder as allcped 4n the charges o
speeifications, but mcrely mansloughter, cvon though their acts constit. tel
a crime.

Aceording to the Navel Courts and Beards, it scems thet *he diffemcnm
between murder and mansloughter, lics in whether molice nforethought
oxists or not, That is, murder is honicide with meliec nforothought,
vwhile manslaughter is homicide wit! out malice aforethoughte. And I firmliy
believe thet mnlice aforethought is absent in the scts of these ncouscd
in the present case,

As hes been brought out by the tcstimony of the verious witnesses,
these accused suddenly heerd while cngeged in thelir work et their
respective rosts tho call of gonersl esscmbly on the dey of the incident
and sccordingly esscmbled on the hill at the beck of the of ficers' quarters
within the Fourth Nevel Hospital, witheut knowing the purpose of the
assembly, After arriving et the scene of the erimg, they were then
ordered by the hend of the hoepitel to step forwerd and line up in columne
in front of the soners, and not until they had heerd the specch of the
hoad of the hoepital did they become awere thot the purpose of the
nssembly on thet dey wos the cxecution of prisoners, Moraeover, the
reesrn for these a iib‘%ﬁ'glactad was bocause they happened to be ot
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tho head of the line es seniors among the men, and it was 2 motter of mero \
aceidence, Henee, it ie obvious that until right up to the moment of the

erime, these accused did not have any premeditetion or eforctrought to

commit tho crime, And it is only obvious, too, thet thesc cecused had

taken no pert in the plenning or plotting of tho crime prior to its

commission,

Scetion 119 of the Novel Courts cnd Borrds page 114 pertoining to
Menslrughter reads:

"Voluntery mensleughter is distinguished from murder by the fect thet
it is committed not with malice nforethought, express or impli d, tut
in the hort of passion or heat of blood couscd by rersonnble provocat-
ion, When a man, in killing snotlier, acts under the influcnze of
sudden passion ceuscd by reasonchle provocation, but not in neeccscery
defense of his life, nor in order to prevent bodily harm, the lew
does not excusc him beceuse of the provoention; but it docs not hold
him guilty of murder. To reduce a romicide from murder to mansleughticr
‘the provocrtion must be ~dequrte in the oye of the law, ~nd to be se
‘4t must be so grent es reasonrbly T oncite pee tu s Tk &f tloci,
Prssion without adequete provoention i not cpoughs -leasondhlerc.e .-
the test, The law contemplatcs the case of r rersorable men and
requires thet the provocation shell be such ne - ight nrturally indves
such a mén, in the enger of the moment, to comanit the deed,"

’s it is apparent from the above citetion, provocaticn must be 8o
greet ps reasonably to excite passion end the heed of one's blood, end
vwhether the provocotion of the hoet of passion is reasonrble (adaqu&t&) |
or not, dopends upon whether the provocotion is such rs micht heve nctu:elly
induced o receconeble men to comrit the dced. I holieve such proveeation b,
a third perty is proper #8 being the rouse of provocation of passion,
beceuse though it ie possible to construe provocation cs being confined
to the provocation caused by the ncts of the opposing party or the vietin,
I ennnot find any recson tr interpret it in this strict sensc.

The direct couse which drove these accused to comrit the stabbing of
the priscncrs in the present case wos Twanemi's speech which wes mede o'
the seene of the crime just before the commission of the crime, Then, V't 3
Ivanami's spcech so violent as rensonably to provoke the heat of pessior’
Also, did Ivanami's speech excite & ressonable (adequete) provocetion of’
pecaion of these accused? If we should roca’] the verious circumstencec
surrounding the commission of the erime which I heve reiterated in the
foregoing, such £s the condition of the Pacific Ver, the bettle condatiur
on Truk, the cosuelties sustained ot the hospitel by the bombings, the
eireumstonces surrounding the scene of the crime, the character of Iwen-rl.
the contents of his speech, the sttitude of Iwvenami during his speech,
perticulerly the tone in which he delivered the speech and the like, ve
must sey thet 1t wee only nrtural thet the heat of passion should be
provoked on the port of these accused by Iwanami's spcech, Thus when we
view the pcte of those eccused in the 1ight of Americen Criminel Law, $hcir
ncts were not murder, but ghould be regarded s nonslaughter; voluntary
monslnrghter in the heat of pession caused by reasonable provocation, I
firmly believe, thercfore, the punishment should be loprlly mitigated to
n considercble degree in cofparison with thnt of murder.

Section § = On tho individuelity of responsibility in complicity,

In the preceding chapter I have argued that the punishment of these
accused should be legelly mitigeted in comparison with murder on the groundls
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| thot their acts did not constitute murder as alleged in the chrrges hut |
merely manslrughter, cven though their acts constituted o erime, In this

chapter I sholl erguec the position of these accused under the subject of

"Tndividunlity of responsibility in complicity" and estrblish the reason

for mitiging their punishment,

Honorshle President and the members of the commiseion, I further nsk
your peticnee,

If the ncte of these accused erc culpoble end illegel, the erime
of the instant case would bo called complicity in eriminel law, Eech
participant in the complicity influenccs to some cxtent inflicting the
danger or actval hera incurred by the erime, Put its rcturl ~onsequence
varies in dogrec, This ic the rcason why tre stotute lew of crch counury
differcntiates crimes es thosc of joint prineipals, insticotors ond
rocessorics, One school of scholers maintain thot the degrece of nrenclbyr
to be imposed upon & co=perticipent in o complicity should be left to tkre
discrotion of the court, end thrt the legisletive distinction between
principal and sceondery should be cholished, Perticnlarly, in Amcricen
ond English levr, I heve hesrd that tris distinction is nos raconizec.
But, tonsidering the function of gsecwmity p.aved Ly erinind law, 1
believe thrt there ere roesons for establishing 2 gorcral distinetdonr,
Following the exrmples of other foreign countrics th: Japrnese Crimiral
Coce has edopted the method of differentiation,

From this point of view, let us now cxamine the position of these
: reccused in relation to the co=defendent Iwancmi, First of rll, lct us
congider whether the position of the sccused is ns joint principels in
roletion to Tvenami, A joint prineipal means thet a person with on intcot |
to commit crime mutunlly discusscs this intent with another (intent of |
eid) and collrborating with cach other, they bring cbout (net of ciding)
the substance of this mutually planned criminnl intent in their acts.
Thug the positions of the pertieipaste in a jointeprincipal crime are on
cque? level,

On the dey of the incident the aceused in the rreeent casc, responci:n.
to the en'l of gencrel sssembly went up the hill in brek of the officer‘s
quarters, Prior to this time, they were net told by Iwanemi of hie
criminel intent, nor did they know of the purpose of this cssombly, /&
short time later Imanemd appeered at the scene, With two prisoncrs befor:
then, Tvanomi in a ficry tone mede & speceeh to the assembled poreons
consisting of almost all of the cntire hospitel, He firmly esserted the
rerson for killing the prisoners and oncoureged the netion of these
pccuscd, It was at this instent, that these ccecused knew ebout the erime
end were told of his intontion to commit the act, If we contrast the
shove fects and the ides of joint=prineipel which I heve just givep, 1t
becomes epparent thrt these cccused are not in a position to be regarded
es joint-prineiprls in reepect to Iwonenmi,

e B

Noxt, lot us sce whether these nccused ore in o position of accessorier
in reletion to Imanami, In other words, is Iwanami o principal and are
these accused acgessories? Concorning the differentiation of principal
and nccessory, theorics very, I shall nc heve time to go into a deteiled
discussion, regarding this problem, but I shall introduce the various
theordes to the cxtent necessery to find e solutdon for this issue,

ow(22)"
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An objective theory stetes:

"The parson who actuclly cerries out the commission is the principel
offender end the one who rerticipates in the preprrotory stoge of o crime
is on occessory,"

Lnother objcctive theory states:

"/, principel is the person who brings obout on importont effcet in
the complotioncf a crime and on acccssory is the porson whe only brings
sbout o slight offect,”

Next the zubjectivo thuory stotes:

"} person who commiis an net witl. clc intention to co.rit his orn
erime is o piincipal, &4 person who has the intention of pesiating ~notrer
in committing another's crime 18 nn ncecssory," [Lnothcr school of
soholars base their theory upon the position which en offender holds in
the jeint relation, and roveal end unique theory, sirting that the nmerson

who holds ¢ main poeition is the princincl rnd he wh heoads oily o sub-
ordinnte nosition is the recossory. Thic m 7 he cclied th: taeews of =07
neychology.

According to the subjective theory ond the mob psychology theory, e
ney say safely thrt these accuscd nrc in a rosition of acceasorics, in
relotion to Iwenemi, because, these accused committcd the alleged crimes
with meroly the intention of nssisting Iwanemi's crime; and in the
rcletionship of this case, Twenami is the cne who occupics the position n&
the prineipnl and the other accuscd heve only subordimate nesitions. Tre
distinction between joint principals instigeticn nnd accessory, however,
originelly took rise from the objective theory; and from the point of
subicctive theory there is no nced of meking this differcntiation rs showa
by the opinion of the scholar which I have alrcady cited., Thorefore, we
mst folow the objective theory {n ordcr to makc an interpretrtion of the
stotute Jow which sets forth thie distinction, When we consider the
present erse through the objective theory, these accuscd shared a pert Iiv
the cxceution of the act of killing the prisoncrs, and nlso brought cbout
on importent effect in complcting the erime. Thus, from this point of
vicw, ve cre uprble to pcknowledge the distinetion of principel and
aceessory between Imanami end thc other accused,

Lastly, let us scc if the relation between It enami and these sccuscd
is that of the instigator and the ones who were instipated, Thet is, lect
us inquire whether Imanami is the instipator ond these pccused were the
nbottors, Instipgetion mcons to produce eriminal intent in snother porson
vho is free of such intention or to bring another's eriminel intent whieh
ig still unscttled or indefinite to fruition, This is why instigetion is
celled o erime of producihg intont.

If we wore to npply the sbove mentioned relation of acts to tho iden
of instigrtion, it is obvious thet the present cree 18 thrt of instigator
end the ~bbettors, Ivannmi ie the {nstigator cnd the nccuscd are the
abbottore, I esteblish the reletion between Ivenami end the aeccused in

the present cesc of complicity ns such, Thus establishing their reletions

whrt is the responsibility of the accused in the present ensa?
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"Iwo or more persons who have coopercted in committing o crime are {
(joint) principels,"”

"4 pereon who hos iretigoted another into committing o erime she'l be
punished to the scme oxtrnt as o prineipel,"”

nThe punishmont of tn nceessory sholl be the punishment of the
princinal in mitipated form,™

Those nre provisions in the Japnnese Criminal Code concerning
complicity, This form of fistinction is common to t)le cxamplce of
legislotion of vnrious countrics vhich cstnblish disvinetion betacen
rrincipal offcnder, insti~nLor oné nccessory in . complicity, Lecorcing
to these provisions it aprorrs es if th. responsibilitlcs of +La inntlec tos
nnd those who were the instigoted werc oe rame, Yor, izon bhu
phrascology of the provisien, it appeers os if they werc ideniiccd,

But in the end of Mcijiom Ere the gupreme Court of Japen seid: M.
there is a diffcrence in the degree of punishment among joipt-principels
necording to the circumstences of the crime it 18 noep™ 1.0t ther ba
difference in thc degree of penclty, ceerrding to tn: clicmstinre,
between principnl offcnder and instjgator," Thesc ~cré the opinlons
oxpressed by the Japrnesc Supreme Court ot the end of the Meiji Era,
Thereafter, judicial crsce followed this precedent, Nov cen We not
utilize this opinion s our puiding mark?

4s I have alrecdy stoted, the distinction between principal of fender,
instigntor nnd rececessory originally grew out of the objectivism of erimirn:
theory. But with the pradunl rise of subjectivism in eriminel theory, it |
hns been held thet the punishrent of the instigntor vhe induces eriminal
intent in o person frec of such intent or who changes & weok eriminal
intent to n strong one, should be graver then the joint principal, because
the situotions rre worse than thet of a joint-~rincipal, vho means to
nssist ond col’aborcte with one who elready hos o eriminal imtent, This
opinion hns not as yet been generclly adopted in the criminn] eode of
vorious countries, but it has been partiely rdopted in the form of special
gtntutes, I regret that I have not any meteriol to ecquoint you on this
noint, However, it is only too obvious, thot when we view the relrtion
in complicity through subjective theory or the nob=psychology theory, the
position of these accuscd ie thrt of accessorics in relation to Iwanamd,
Thus, I belicve thri the responsibilitics of these eccused should be
reduced in respeet to Ivenami's,

As o judiciel example of individurlizing the responsibility in
necordance with the positien of the co=dcfendent in & joint crime, I shall
cite tho provisions releting to civil wer end riot. Art, 77 peregraph 1
of the Jepernecse Criminal Code ronds:

"Every person who has comritted on insurrectionary oF seditious act
with intent to overthrow the Govornment, soigc the territory of the state,
or otherwise subvert the notionel constitution sholl be (guilty of) the
erine of eivil wer and runished subject to the following distineticn:

1, The ringleaders, with derth or imprisonment for 1ife;

2 Those who hove participated in the plot or held @ cormend in the
mob, with imprisonment for 1ife or not less then threc yerrs;
tBose who heve cpgaged in various other capecities (functions)
with imprisomment for not less then one yeor not more thon ten

yoors, s
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3, Thosc who hove merely joined in the insurrectionary off seditious
net o8 follows, with imprisonmont for not more thon three yoers,®

Next, Art, 105 of thc same recds, "Persons who WY ngsaritlirg in lerge
nurbors have used viclenac or threats ghall ho punishcd for riot nnd in
necordenea with the folloving cleasificotion:

1, The riaglender, with penal servitude or impriscnment fer not lces
than one Yesr no» more then ten yoors.

2, Thosc who have directed or heve led others and cncovrnped (the
disturbance), with ponal servitude or imprisonmcnt for not less
then six menths nore more thar scver yeores

3, Mrosc 1o have {mcraly) folloved, wath o finc act xe.cding
Ten 0"

The erimes releting to civil wer rnl riot which I have jusi elted vic
spceinl types of complicity which the oooperation of two or more puLreons
is lepelly required to constitute theec erimes, ond it is obvicus from thic
view thet we should not annly to this sort of erimcs the ordinfry thaory
of complicity cs it is., Bvt, in order to dotermine ti pFHJthﬂnﬁ i1 the
prescnt cose Lhis provisicon renderg us ol csnellenv rofcernec, rE 0L
cxample of individuclizing rospongibilitics of the compa~ideiparts ia o
colloctive cnse, From the above provisicns, I wish to point out the®
oven though persens jointly cormittod » eriminal act, the erininal
responsibility of the ringleader end the follorers is cleerly distinguish-
ablo. Dirccting our attention to the {nstant cnse, if Iwenami cen bo
nssumed to be a ringlender, the other ~ocused cre mere follomers, For the
above rorsons, I hold that proper roduction or mitigetion should be
considered in dctormining thelr puni shment,

Chapter III = On the extenusting cirecunstonces of the casc,

In this lost phase of my ergument, I would like to stete a few words
concerning the extenueting eircumstences these ncpused in the present cosc
were placed, In imposing a punighment for o crime, Vo muet take into
considerntion the cherrcter of the offonder, ris age, the cnviromment
which surrounded him, the circumstonces of the crime, the condition after
the crime ond the other various fectors, U4nd in dotormining the circur=
stances of the crime, we must toke into considorction both the subjective
and objective phosecs surrounding the crime, such as the personsl rocord
of the offendcr, intoneity of the intent to commit the crime, the motive
and purpose of tho crime, peychological condition of the offender nt the
time of the crime, the mcthod of the crime, degree of domger OX netunl
injury inflicted by the erime, the ettitude of the offender aftcr the
crime and the like, Pnrticulrrly, in view of the subjective thoory of
orininnl law which states crime as being the expression of the ovil
chorsater of a criminal, when we are ahle to recognize by considering the
chorscter and environment of the offender, the motive and rurpcse of the
erime, the nsychologiccl pttitude of the offemnder ot the time of the
crime, cto.y thet the malice of the offender was yet weak, even though the
denger or actuel injury {incurred were grave, We should not impose on him
stern runishment for the crime, In the light of the rbove view, I shall
now consider the circumstances of the casc.

Lot us first examine the onvironment under which those ncoused were
placed, At thet time o war wose being waged and these pocused were in the
mattlofield, frce to free with the enemy. &8 I have already reitereted,
the conditions of wnr were turning ageinst Jepan dey by cey, and her
defent seemcd inevitable. Truk, wkier theee accuscd resolved to doefend
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wunte the last, wrs exposcd to the inee¢ssant bombing of the [mericons,

food end clothing shorteges beceme ceute, their quartcrs werc destroyed,
Morcovor, discase wrs prevelent, health eonditions become ~ri%ical and
innumerrble men dinc of -ickness, Tho Fourth Nevel ‘los~it~] rhese duty
wrs to nurse and t-cat the sick and woundcd, lost rlnces hulf of ita
ostablishnen’ b thc Surwing of the dmovicone, end its functior wrs nerrly
holted, The coativions of the potients prov worse ~nd wersc diy Ly dey,
and the number of dorth cnses begen to socr, The corpens in tle morgue
could not be disposcd of rs intended, nnd they werc lcft to rot, I orm
sure vou cen visunlize the unrost and irritable feel'ngs of thes:a raeused
undcr such eirecumstonces, And whet wrs more, the supcrior thar ard wes
Ivenamd; ¢ mon with o stoone scnee of -gclf-neserticn, 2a offizer vho
would on'y heve “iu wiy, r svrorlor whe wre nest scverc in llniday okore
nnd vho did not toierate ihe slightest foul® and negligzuce on trn moxt of
subordinotcs,

Conesidering the motive of the present cnse, I find that this incideru
was not consurmnted on the inmitietive ond preference of these necused,
They only blindly obeyed the stern order of Iwonami, becrusc as potiy
officers they were hound by strict militr1y diseiplinc, Thudr situadon
is cormerable to thet of mere tools or @ ¢ “mery, 1 &m wure Cort U2 0
con possibly think for a roment thrt theue iceused eon?d rave sti.l
rcfused the order of Iwonami; these rccused who were persistontly tonigid
ond had crammed into them implicit obediencc under strict military
diseipline frem the time they hod entered the navy, thesc accused who wcre
sroused and agitoted by the flery specch of Ivonermi with the two prison: rs
in front of them under the above related circumstonces, these cccused
who werc well ovrre thrt stern punishment would be imposed upon them if
they should disobey Ircnemi's order definitely could not refuse, If theie
points were tnken into considerstion I firmly belicve we are sure to '
renlize thrt the rets of these nccused were unevoidrble and thrt their
circumstances should be considered ns cxtenuntion,

In the following I shell individunlly sccount the pcrscnel history,
character, cnviromment, cte,, of the nccused whom I.em defending ns thelr
counscl, Presidont and the members of the commiesion, I esk your
consideration ond sympathy, -

The accused Homma, Hrchiro, after graduating from the higher sectior
of the primery school, entered the Young People's School; and while stil”
attending the said school, he volunteered to enter the navy and was
enlisted, On Junc 1, 1936 he entered the Yokoeuka Novel Troining Center
as & corpsmen, Ever sincc entering the scrvice he most faithfully dis-
cherged his duty and on Septomber 1945 wns promoted to the renk of
Urrront Officer for his outstending rceorde.

Ls you may hrve alreedy noticed, the nttitude of this necused is most
einecre, his spocch is elear, his actions cre brisk ond lively, he is
erlm and resolute; and if I moy so so he 18 n seaman of seamen, o potty
officer of petty officers, Thrt he was on exemplery potty officer cen
be acknowledgod from his record whrich showe thrt he wes epceinlly
rooommcndod fr-m nmong his senicrs cnd comrades to become & recruit
instructor ot the Yokosuke Navel Center, to imstruct tho recruits who
knew nothing about militrry discipline, and held this nost for a period
of one yerr ond & holf from October 1941 to March 1943, I believe he was
appointed to this post on accowit of his understanding of tho militery
epirit, his understonding of miditery diseipline, his comprebension of
the rnintim between commend and order for excecding those of his contem-

pornries, ae clesrly shown in his finnl stetement, And I on fully convinee
thrt such an exemplary militory men with such an outstending rccord as he
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hag will succced without fail iu.iﬁrfnrminp outstending works in eivilien !
life, Truly, I must say that hé a prontring younpg man, If I am

nllowed to usc e pnradoxical expréssiocn, it was because he wrs so
thoroughly. srturated with military spirit thet he ventured to steb the
prison'r withbut being rble to refuse the order of his superior, end ns
the result is being tried in court tofay ofter suffering in the stockede
almost a year and & half for it, I ernnot but feel the greatest sympethy
with him,

The nccused Kawashimn, Tatsusaburo nnd Tekeishi, Susumu efter
gradunting from the higher section of the primory school entered the navy
in Junc 1938, !nd aftcr completing the brsic principles and practicce
required for r corpsmon saw duty ot hospitel unite nnd aboard ships, They
both were promotcd to the rank of corpsmnn chicef potty officer in Novembor
1, 1944, for frithfully cxecuting their dutics. Thoy both rre pentle,
sincere, diligent end reticent, end hed promising futurcs né junior
officers, I em surc thet such sincerc and cnrncst young men will
contributc 2 grert deal to the socicty rs ordincry civilicns, It would
bo most regrotrble to confinc them in prison for a leng period end oxpel
them from society,

The accused Akebori, Toichiro, after grodusting from the higher
scction of the primory school, entered the nrvy on Jonuary 1940, /L8 n
result of feithful cxceution of his duty he meade an excellent record, ond
wns promoted to cornsman C,P,0, in the novy, His father dicd when he wre
still young, /nd now at home he is left writh his cped mother ond small
brothers nnd sisters, {8 there wns no cne to rely upon, his family hed
nnxiously awrited his return, When in November of last yecer he wos
demobilized ond rcprtristed, the joy and relief of his frmily were beyon: |
n1l words to deserihc, But the joy and relicf of his rged mother,
brothers, and eisters werc only ephemerel, for after only six months he
nrs put into confinement ot the Supnmo Prison es ¢ suspect in this cesc,
not seeing thom enymore, The suffering cnd agony of the accused to lcovn
his aped mother and brothers, the lementetion of his mother rnd brothers
who would lese their only munns of subsistence, the mutucl sadncss of
deperting from their loved omes, I know you will understand, I heve hearc
that after her son left his mother was confined. to hor bed by sickness,
crusced by rnxdety ond suffering, Whon I see the accused, » prisoncr in
solitery confinemert, uneble to ottend his sick mother's bedside, my
heert breaks with grief,

R—

| The accuscd Tsutsul, Kisaburo, aftcr gradueting from the higher
scction of the primary school, worked in an iron works, In Janunry 1940
| he entered the novy as n corpemen and fulfilled his duty faithfully, and
wrs promoted to Corpesmen Chief Petty Officcr, But I must ask your specin.
nttention to the fect, which I belicve you have already noticed, thet he
ie 2 etemmerer, His stammoring hee been n setbrek to him, since his
’ ckildhood, and oming to this dofective erticulation he hns always sufforad
montally ond phyeically, Arte. 40 of the Jepancse Criminal Code provides:
"fcts of deafemutes (either) are not punishable or punishmont therefore
shnll be mitigoted.," T have heard that provisions to the same cffect are
also found in the criminel codes of other countries. Though the eccused
Tsutsui is not n denf=mute as provided in the ebove nrticle, vwe may stdll
apply the spirit of this prevision to the responsibility of the acecuscd in
the instent case.
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Considering tho stote of his family, his fother died while he wee still |
young, and after his fother's denth he wns entirely brought up by his '
mother, Honee, I wish to enll your attention also to the fret thet at his
home is loft his mother who has long been leading o solitory life,
nnodously owaiting for his repntrintion

The accuscd Mitsuhashi, Kichigorc after graduating from the higher
secticn of the primery school, remrined ot home and cngrped in forming,
| but lntor beceame e worker in o Mcdieine Mfg, Co, He entered the mavy in

Janurry 1940 end feithfully dischrrging his duty over since, ho finelly

vrge promoted to the renk of Corpsmen Chief Petty Officer, Soon after he
was demobilized in Januery 1946, he wes morried and his wife hegot a boy.
But frte did not fevor him, for without having time to scttle down in his
new married lifc and without expcriencing the joy of being a fether, only
ten deys ofter his son wns born, he wrs apprchanded ond plnced in Supamo
Prison, I om sure you 7ill undorstond his feeling when he left his
beloved wifc cnd child to be aprrohended, Lfter he left, his cged mother
suffering from cye troublec, his wife with a small beby, his little brother
and sister, are the only ones to loock ofter the home, It is only too
obvious whet hardships the femily ore cxperiencing in moking e living
under the present urgent situction of Japan,

As I hrve releted in the above, all of these accused heving finished
the course of compulsory cducction are all possessors of sound knowlcdge
and should not be regorded in the sore light o8 any ordinary criminal,

It wes bocouse of thce cxtroordinary circumetances which I have related,
that they perpetrnted the act of killing the prisoners, Under ordinery
conditiona, they all rre men who would not even commit r minor misdemeancc
not to spenk of murder, even if they wanted to do so, Faithfully |
dischrring their rospective duties from the time they entered tho nevy,
some for 5 yorrs, some for 10 yccrs, erch of them achieved an outstending
record and rs excmplary military men they were promoted, some to Chief
Petty Officcr ond some to Worrant Officer., {nd, we must not forget thet
these rccused are young nien only in their twenties. I firmly believe
thrt these nceused who achicved such en outstending record during their
nmilitery carcer will be surc in penco time to contribute to the country
and soeicty, cnd promote sociml progrcss and culture,

Honorable President and the Membors of the Commission, I csk your
considoretion of the vrrious cireumstonccs which I have releted in the
ebove, and solicit your lenient judgment for these accused,

i KUW.TA, HIDRO

! I certify the rbove, consisting of twenty=cight (28) typewritten page-,
f to be & true and complete troanslation of tho originel argumcnt of
Kuwota, Hidco, to the best of my ability,

EUGENE E. EEH.ICK, Jru'

Iieutonont, USNR,
Intorpreter,
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ZNTRODUCTION

Your Honor, the President, ond Gentlemen' of the Commission.

The dark elouds of wrr which covered the whole errth heve been swept
avny, and the hloocdy violences of the cevil have disapreered, #lthough tl.
peoples on the enrth sre suffering from stnrvoti ‘n and poverty, they hove
come to be rble to enjoy the penceful srring sun, With the hope end
rromise of the future, they ave endeervoring hord for the reccnstructicn
of their fntherland with hoes epd nxes in their burnt fields. Some of the
lost their r-~rents, children ond ‘rothers and sisters, some of them were
burned out from their prorerty, and were thrown into the derkness of hell,
These events have become nightmrres of the pest for them, This ie the .
present sctunl situntirn of the werld, PR

In Joran, we hrve throvm awny our pride in the tredition of 2,600
yerrs, Our nrtional constitution and our netional spirit have been comr!
ly rmonded, The Jopcnese have united together and hove made n stort in
building a truly peaceful sountry for eternal pence.

This hns concretely bocn manifested by the revolutionsry reformrticn
of the Jarrnese Constitution, On the 6th of Mrrch 1946, the Emperor
deelrred in his reseript:

"You must berr in mind thet you have determined to enjcy peacefwl
lives with your self-cwakening of justicc and to keep friendship rith the:,
reoplces of the world by giving up the war, Following the prineiple whici
sceks its foundrtion in the gencrnl will of the people end honors the
fundrmentnl rights of indivicuals, we hercby have rcformed the Constituti:
hopin~ thrt rou will solicify the foundation of the reconstructicn of .our
count. .." T!'is rescript was jssucd not fror the highest ncsition, bute.
ponifosted itasclf by $he desire ond the will of the whole mation of Jhrer,

Lrtiecle 9 of tho new conptitution strotes: ™lspiring sinecerely <to an
internoticnrl perce breed on justice and order, the Japcnese people foreve:
rencunce wnr rs o sovcreign right of the nrtion and the thrent or use of
f}qe a8 means of settling intcrnetionnl disputes, In ordor to ceecomplisiu
thé aim of tho precedins perapraph, land, scr, end nir foreces, ns well s
other wor potentinl will never be mnintaincd, The right of belligercncy
of the state will not be recognized, s

Thie nrticle boldly end frenkly expresses the ospirntion to perce of
the Japrnese poople at the storting point in their reconstruction, Thue
the Japrnese neople remownecd vor even for thoir self-defense. This is th
first renouncement of vry in the hist of the world, This shows an
cornost cdotorminetion to pet an exemple of forever renouneing wer in the
world and to cstablish o truly peeceful gountry while kcenly feeling
evils of wrr, We sineerely hore that not only the people of Jepan it @ °
the reoples of the world will be spared from the nightmere of war
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War is indecd tho work of devils, No mctter how we may advodate
Justice end humanity, we shell have to encourege hostile feelings, hnte
and revenge rroinet ench other in the cetunl stoge of wer, This 18 the
true strto of wer, In the foudnl nge, there wes o seying, "Murderers of
nrrents or the lord erc mortnl foes.® Rovenge agninst such rurdercrs wrs
dcemud the blossoming of loyslty or filial duty, but no one in the
civilized sceietice of today wil) sdwit tlhis., This is rost strictly for-
bidden rs rn inhumeno aet,

Herever, we can not deny thrt amy countrics were sctunlly cncournging
and foreing 4t in the wrr under the name of justice,

Wo rro rt nereco new ond weeh of us iv working hrrd for rehebilitaticn,
But nony officers and soldiers who were compelled hy the strte rre epending
thelir drys in jeils ne wer oriminnls, TWhen I sce meny defendente before me
I om filled with decp emotion,

For vh~t end for whom hnve they shouldered their guilt, Therc is no
one rrong them who dered to act rccording to his own intent knowing thet
it wre unleufu) to do so, If they hrd mot been borm in Jepen, the defeatc’
country, they would not heve sufferod from theese agonies rnd disgrnceces,

Gentleomen of the commission, when you cxamine them teday with the
sevcre laws of the pemee, you wil'® think thnt they cen not be forgiven.
However, the crinc shou'd “e judred in the subjcctive and objective circur -
stonecs surrounding its perpetration, It should not be judged by gencrnl,
nhestroet and icderlistic standerds of morality disrcperding the time of the
action, -

I think thrt the A=e¢lnss wer criminals should be nceused for their
responsitility, But I do not think it is proper to punish those who had tc
prriicirete in the aceidental ceses as vrr crimes which heppencd in
accordance with ebsolute orders and under the rbnorrcl conditions of wnr
rsychology, I beliove thnt it is especinlly necessery to pay erreful
considerrti-no to their punishments on the grcund of eriminnl nolicy.

SCLP Rules stote: "Purther, action rursuant to order of the accusoc’
supcrior,...shell not constitute a cefensc,.." I don't meen to say thet
this is wrong cs a prineciple, it is quite proper thrt the accuscc ecn not
be cxempted from guilt only beeauso he was so ordored, But in reality,
vhen the nceused ncted ns on instrument of hie suporior under the irrcsist
ible pressures and further the occused did not rccognize the unlevfulness
of his ret in hie strte of mind of thrt time, it is not prorer to punish
him in the same woy,

I most frankly ndmit thot this incident can not be approved bofore the
sovere lnvs of todey in tice of pcaee, I eclso feel very very scrry for
the victims of the ineident, I would rcepeetfully like to prey for their
harminces,

However, vc must notice that these dcofondrnts were foreced ond
instignted by their state to porticip~te in the incident, In the most
urgent battle field and with the ebnormal peychologies of thae wer time,
they only neted ce instruments yndor the preesure of absolute orders,
believing thrt whet they were sbout to do wre right, I sincerely ber thof
you will consicer the objective ciroumstancos of thrt time and the subjoct-
ivo stoto of mind of the necused in denling with this easo,

I would like to argue first for Snkagomi, Shinji, next for Mukni,
Yoshihisa, !‘nnrbo,chl%lmim, Hdohiro and lestly for Iwannmi,
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Fith ahsolute confidence, I meintein thet the acoused Sakagami, Shinji
i® not pguilty,

The second specificntion of the first eherge alleges: "Sakagemi
Shinji, then e cornsmen verrant officer, Imperial Japenese Navy, attae ed
to the mi’itery instelletions of the Imperiel Japrnese Nevy, and while ®o
serving et the said militery installstions of the Imperial Jap-nese Navy,
noting with Okuyeme, Tokikeszu, then o surgeon commander, Imperiel Jep-nese
Nevy, end cthers unknoin, did, et Duhlon Island, Truk Atoll, Caroline
Islands, on or about ] Februery 1944, wilfully, feloniously, with premedit.
etion end malice aforethought, and without juetifiable couse, oF
strike, injure, blast and kill, by explosions of dynamite and strangulotio
two {2" Americen prisoners of wer, this in violetion of the lavs ond
custors of wer,"

But this is not the true state of affairs and ie burdening the accusec
with ¢ responsibility which he should not ghoulder, I feel very doubtfvl
o8 to why this specification has been prepered, Sworn by God, thc accused
testified to the truth of the fects end gffirmed his innocence., I thought
‘ghet there wrs mot o bit of fabricotion in bhis testimony, end “istened to
them rith terrs, feeling thet Heeven will understend hie absolute sinecrity

I would like to cite sn outline of his gtetoment as follove:

One dey toverrd Jonuary 1944 Surgeon Commonder Okuyema came to my room
and psked me for a piece of block powcer which e vented to use for an
exncriment on dogs, so I gave it to him, Commender Okuysma esked me veriow
questions concerning the use of bleck powder ond I answered vhet I knew
about it,

One eftcrnoon, shout one week after thrt, Commonder Okuyeme celled on
me ebout three o'elock end told me epain thet he vanted me to have sore
more bleck powder for an cxperiment on & dog. Since I hed herrd rbout Hia
previocus experiment on dogs I hed no suspiecion about whet he wes going to
do. I vent together with Comnunder Okuyeme to the hill behind the
officers' quertcrs where black powder was kept. Ae he arrived ot the
place, Commandcr Ckuyome told me thet he vonted & long fuse for thet blacr
prmder, so I mrde it twice 28 long #& pn ordiinrry one. I rtteched 0
detonstor to the blac! powder so th~t it was rcrdy to be exploded and geve
it to hinm,

T intended to meke a round of imspection of the hosnital as I usuelly
did end I was rbout to lerve there when a surgeon, T d4d not know hies name.
ceme up tho hill, I took no notice of him, loft the hill end begon my
inspection of the epidemic vwerd, Aftor finishing my inspoctirn, I valked
terard my room and arrived in front of the officers! quarters when I woe
cal’od by Commender Okuyamn who 8 coming to me from the officers' querter:s
He said, "Deck offiecer, will you bring sm & box of sconolnmine opium
hydrobromide and syryehnine nitrote opd hypodcermie syringe, plcesc?®
T hed to go to the phermecy to get thenm, but as Commender Okuyrmr looked to
be in e hurry, I drompod in at the Pirst Internal Terd, which wee ncarby
end rogquested the drucs from ¥urse Hattori who soon geve them to me after
getting ncrmission from Surgeon licutenant Fukuda, I ran around the slope
of the hill end geve them to Okuyrme rt the yeter tapk ot the officers'
querters, Commonder Okuysme left mo going wp to the hill with the drugs
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and the syringe nnd necdle. I wondered whet he ves about to do, so out of
curiosity I followed him to the hill, On the top of the hill, I scw two
foroigners, They were gitting eide by side, their leps stretched out in
front of them, I guessed thet they werc ticd with their hends behind then,
but I did not actuel’'y see if their hende verc tied, Standi-g by the
prisoncrs, there wes Commonder Okuyeme end enother Surgeon vhose neme I
did not know, rnd they were preprring on injection of the drups I had givc
to Okuysmr, In the meantime Okuyeme injected scopolemine end the young
surgeon etrychnine into the foreignor's heerts, thet is, in the vieinlty
of their herrts,

I thought thet they were killing the nrisoners with these poison drug!

Siace I srv the prisoncre rt an uncxpected place end since 1 yitnesa:
them being injccted —ith poison into thoir herrts, 1 wos ostonighed, ond
T hurried to my quartcrs. I did not wont to be present if the prisoners
were being killed, 1 suepceted for vhrt rurpose Commander Okuyrma uscd th
bleek powder ond why he injected a lerge amount of poison, It was e grer:
troudble for me who took charge of black powder, rnd was glso & very unues
motter, Up until then I had no jdoe thrt Commonder Okuyemo and the other
surecon vho I now kncw a8 Lieutenent NeYerurs since he felsely testificd
neninst me mere nrobrbly killing nrisoncrs.

Lbout ten drys or two wecks sfter thrt, rt the officcrs! mess hell,
Surgeon Ceptein Ivanemi told me after breakfrst thet hc wanted to heve
sovers] nrtives for 2 working periy. I esked him where I should esscmble
them, He told me th~t there were four derd bodics covcred in straw mots
at the morgue end thnt I hed to tell thet netives to bury them rt the cle
bohind the hespital, BSo say’ng, he went towrrd his room, I erme beck to
my room, cnd, rftcr choeking the nttendence ghects of the netives, I
roleyed hie messace to severel mnle natives,

I wondered why the heed of the hospital tructed the nrtives to bury
the derd bodics end res afreid thet the nrtives might moke mistekes, 5o T
went with the nrtives to the morgnc. As I opened the door, I saw four de
bodics of foreigners, They \ere not covered by straw mnts, but werc
putrified rnd smclled bad, Being surpriscd, both I and the nrtivee
stopped brelmard, For a while, I wne stupificd with amezcment not knowd n
vhy they had died and from whore thoy had been brought to thnt room. Vg =
it good tc let ignorent netives sce such o droadful econe? Who declt i-
those prisoncrs? I wondered and wondered, But, enyhow, it wré impossibl
for o mon vho hrs & humene heart to leave the corpses 8 they werc.

It wre clorr that somcone had to bury them. I had been ordered to d
so., Ordinarily it is not the duty of the commending of ficer of the
hosnitel to bury deed persons, In wer it is probebly different, so I
enrricd out ordcrs rnd buricd them as I wne told to do so. I ordercd
the netives to carry the dend bodics to the slope behind the hospitel,
divided the doed bodics in two groups of two crch end buried thom in the

ground,

The netives, ofter finishing the buriel, said to me, *Is thet cnough:
I ordered them to cover the dead bodies vith much more soil and let them
work rgoin, While they were doing so, I "ent to my room ond got some srl:
When the graves were nicely mede, I asscmbled the natives, spreyed the
salt -and elcaned the place., Then we prayed for the consoletion of their
souls eccording to my command, The netives who perticipeted in the buric’
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csked me rfter the vraying, "Why were they killed?" "I do not know why,"
I replicd, but I recellcd that when I hrd given the bleck powder to
Commapder Okuyema, I sow two prisoners being injected on the hill behind
the officers! querters, I imegined thet Okuyema might heve used the blacl
povder for the experiment of these prisoncrs, snd told the nrtives vhrt

T imngined, Since I thought thet it would be s disgroce to the hospital
if the ineident nbout these deed bodics was told to othere, I told the
netives re follows: "Don't tell others about this burial, ¥ou moy nbeent
yourselves from your work this afternoon sc thet you may nray for the
consolation of tho souls of these deed prisoncrs," After telling them g0,
T ordered them to break up,

! ftor the ond of the wer, I heord thnt these four persons hnd died
hecause thoy hnd been injected vith poisoncus bacteria. This was only
runorcd end I do not know it of my own knovledge.

te I strted before, I was dispatehed to Tol on 8 July 1944 where I
engrged in the construction of the branch hospitrl, I called Dublon
severr] timce in regord to liaison nbout the tremsportrticn of meterirle t
Tol,

I hrve found the recson why I wos cherged with the dreedful erime of
mirder. In the first place, it is beeouse Surgeon Licutenent Nekamura
(I ¥ncw his neme for the first time in thie court) grve false tcstimony,
and noxt becruse I had told the soid natives vhat I hed imegined vhen we
hnd buried the four derd bodice, My imrginotion gove rise to their
imrginction cnd then it aprced, This imcgination of the nrtives beceme
tostirony in this eourt given by those netives, I think thet is the
recgon why I hove beon recused.

I wee put in the Amcriern stocknde at Moen, Truk itoll, on 12 Jenurr,
of lost yonr, end wes investignted by on lAmerican officcr. At thrt time,
he told me thrt I was confined rs & suspect who hed murdered two prisoncr
with dynmitc, so I told him thet I wos quite innocent and thrt I hed
nothing to do with the murder and begged him to rolense mc 88 8ocn a8
possible ofter his {investigotion.

Towerd July of the same ycrr, 1 ves investigoted sgein, I cxplained
as & mrtter of informetion thet I hed given black powder to Commander
Okuysma nnd thrt I saw e surgeon whose neme I did not know et thet time,

I begged the investigator to investigete these twc surgeons at once so thr
he wovld find thet I wrs innocent.

In August of the same yenT, I was tronsferrcd to the Guam stockede,
and, tovnrd November or December, I wos informed thrt Commondor Okuyeme ¥
dord, I wes very much ecnfused to herr the ncvs, rnd requceted apnin and
aroin thet the unknown surgeon 1ieutencnt be found, thinking that if the
surgeon were found my innocence would be nown, I engerly ovnited for th
dey!

Aftor Fobrurry of this yerr, I was told by the investigator cvery ti:
T wne irvostigrtod thet the trial would strt in tho noxt month, thed it
would begin soon, thet Okuyema hed died ond the other surgeon wes nob yet
locrted and that I should have to +-ke all the responsibility., Since I¥
nothing rbout the lew and brd no knowlcdge sbout the triel, I lived unor!
deys. I could nct understand why the death rnd disappeerence of erimin
wou d burden me with all of their responsibilitics., I was innocent rnd

know it. % the W,)nm thrt I am innocent?
[/~ JAMES_ P, KENNY
ldeutonant, ... Navy,
Jadge Adoveate, !
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Towerd Merch, when I ves investigrted, I wrs told t'et the surgeon whe
hrd scted with Commander Okuyeme wee crrested, I beggid bhim to show me
hiv picture if it was avnileble but I wers not pormittcd to sce his picturc {
\ or sce him or even told his nrme,

A long time hrs clapsced einec this incident occurred, end, besidcs,
I hod ncver telked with the surgeon whose neme I did not know, My
rocollection of his fonturcs wae very vague, but I thought thet I corld
identify him if I sew him, I wes looking forward to the dey when he would
emerge in front of me, He would surely say I wes innocent,

ffter that I was sskcd sboaut whet I hrd done, ond I stnted only whet
I had done, For the investigrtor told me thrt he knew a)l nbout other
men's ncts but thrt he wae not ecrtoin ebout me, So I did not tell whet
other mcn hed done,

Thie et~tement of his ¢learly showe the truc circumstonces of thot
dey, end I em convineed thet it is the true stete of nffeirs.

Then, vhy hes Sakrgemi been accuscd? Beceuse Commemdcr Okuyenma,
the retor in the dramn wre derd, the so-cel’ed "othcre unknown®" in the
snecifieeticn were not loerted, rnd, therefore, it wes only he, Sckagani,
who could prove the facts, Besides the prosecution hed eircumstantial
evidence from the netives,

Sakrpemi verv eegerly locked forwerd to the apmerrcnce of Commander
Okuyama and "others unknorm® who ccted jointly vwith the former, But he
wrs informed by en investigetor nt the Guam stockade thnt Okuyeme was derc
and he wee very discprointed, Hise o1y hope wes the apporrance of othere

A unkncin who acted jointly with Okuyeme, I think thet the judge rdvoccte
will know thrt he often begged the investigetor to find the "others 1
unknom,® Then, rt laost, the "othcrs unknown" ernerred, He wes very
dolightcd vhen he sew him, but his delight ©rs not Jong, The mon did not
tcl) the truth for Sekegami, He emerged in the ecourt as » prosccution's
vitncss, strtcd his neme ce N-¥emurr, Shigeyoshi, cnd disgreced Sakegamd o
o rurdcrer, The sadness nnd anger of Sekrgemi wes renlly beyond descripti:
Hovover, the witness Nakampurc committed suicide after he testified apninst
Sekagami ond during thc cross=cxaminetion of defense counsel, I do not
1ike to blame s dead porson, he wes elso our countryman, end I was elec
imprcsscd thet he wes not a bed men, However, he is not 2 witness of the
ineident who hed nothing to do rbout it rs e third perseon.

The specification elenrly nlleges: "ecting with Okuyrme, Tokiknrzu,
then a surgeon commander, Impericl Jap-nese Nevy, and others unknorn," T!
Mothere unknown® is elerrly the witness Nevemurn, Shigoyoshi, Nekamurn,
Shigeyoshi is eleerly cherged ns "other unknowm," it is clecr thet he wrs
reserved 8:nce his neme wos unknovn and he ' rs not loested. The cherge
rnd specificrtions themselves definitely show this foct. It hes beeore
ovident thot the "othcr unknowm® is Nakemura, Shigeyoshi, and he at last
wrs orrested. Then it is nceceseery that cither he should be nccuscd or
thet the fret of his conspirney should be stricken out frem the cherges
and spceificrtions if he is found to be innocent rs the result of investi-
mation, But the judgo sdvoecte did not strike out that foct from the
charges ond spocificrtions, So, I think thet this is because the Judge
advoerto did not sdmit thot Nekermura wos inpocent. Then ho wes elecrly a
conspirntor with Okuyama, end the conepirator bore witncses and woe the

ccution's witness, Theroforc, it may be elear thrt he would have
nrturn11ly been cherged if he testificd the fneots as it were,
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This is the recson why he gevo false tostimony end burdened Sekegomd
with his erime., After he testified egainst Sekegemi, he committed suicide
vhen he wre being crose-oxemincd by the defense. I think we shou’d have
special considcraticn as to those pointe. Then how did he pertieipate in
the incident? T shall pick out some of his tcstimony rs follows:

Dircct excminaticn of Surgeon Ideutenant Nekamura by the judge
ndvoente:

"Q, Thrt happened after elcvon ofclock?
L. This shock expcriment was over and Okuyem: stated thot he wne going to
do on experiment on the hill brck of the hospitel with dynamitc,

"Q, Tho did you find on the hill?

A, I found Okuycme ond Sokegemi, Two prisoncrs Tere sitting down wvith
thoir lors srrerd cut in front of them, Okuyema end Sokagami, together,
roticd them. At o distence of rhout onc meter in front of the out=sprecd
foct, r hole with e depth of ~bout ten contimeters wrs dug and dymamite
placed in it by Sekrgami, Okuyern ordcred me (Nrkrpura) to go to the sids
of the hill to be protectcd 'rom the cherge from the cxplosion of dynerit
The dyncmite cxploded rnd some of the foet were torn, but the prisoners
did not die.

nQ, Whet hrppened thic1?

L. As the prisoncr: : cre suffering greetly with pein, Commender Okuyrme
ordercd me to alleviate the pain by giving them injeetions of morphine,
rnd I did this, But morphine did not hrve too much effcet, Commandcr
Okuyrma ordered Sakngemi to choke them {n order to allevirte their pein,

nQ, Werc they elive before thet?
L, bAs I rceell they were nlive,

nQ, Did they dic when he finished choking therf?
'« As I receolleet, they died.

"Q, "hat h~prcned to the prisoncra ofter they were strongled?
2, They werc dissceted by Okuyrma rnd Ivenomi nrcund 4 p.m.

"Q, Whet did the disscetion show as to the couse of derth of these four

Lmeriern rriconcrs?
Lo It wes found thet tvo prisoncrs hed diod from shock; two hed died fro

shock cxplosions of dynamite nnd strengulation,
nCross=cxnmincd by the defense:

"Q, Fhy did you go to the hill in thet afternoon?

!+ Lftor the cxperiments discontinued ot the guerd unit, Commander Okuye:
told me thet experiments werc to be performed in the hill bede of the
hospitel this rftcrnorn, so I wont,

nQ, Why did you elimb the hill tiice?
A, Bocause the prisoncrs did not die vith the explosions of dynemitc and
were suffcring, Commander Okuyema ordered me to remove the pain by giviis

them morvhine,

"Q, How did you get this merphine?
t, I brought it from tho hospital ward,
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nQ, From whom did you rcccive this morphine?
t. 1 do not remembcr from whom I roccived this morphinc,

mQ, Did Okuycma ever tell you thot he wirs going to do exneriments with
dynarmito on dogs ond received the dymamite from Sekrgani?

!, No, But I have hcerd thet Cormander Okuyame hod exporimented vith
dymnmitc on dogs,

nQ, Whrt wrs the size of the dyncmite?
L, It wrs nhout the size of r person'e fist,

nQ, Wns n plece of dyarmito uscd for orch of the two prisoncrs?
lia Yos,

nQ, Wre thcre any pleces other than lcgs where they hed been woundcd by

this blrst of cxplosion = dynemitc?
!+ &8 I recrl), there wes dirt, smudge, nlrstcred to the chest and storrc

ng, You tcetificd thet you grve injections to the prisoncrs. Fhere did ¥
glve the injéction?
!e In thc arm,

"), Did the dynernite oxplode eimultencously?
Le &8 I rcerll there werc tvo cxnlosions.

ng, Whrt wee the length of the dynemito?
L. 08 I reerll it wrs gbout from 15 to 20 centimeters.

n0, How much morphine did you give them?
L. Two srmell empulcs,

nq, How much morphinc 1s neccserry for n person to die of it?
!+ I do not remember,

nq, Is it corrcct thrt Commander Okuyemr ordercd you to injeet the mornki
into the prisoners to relicve their pain?
L, 4s I recrl), thecre is no ristrka,

ng, Did Okuysma ordered Sekrgemi to choke thom to reolieve their pein?

Ohj eetion.

"Q, Decs mny pein occur through injoction of morphinc?
L. In the injcetion itself, when the nocdle is pleecd under the ekin 1%

hurts, but aftcr the injcction the pain should be relieved,

nQ, You stetod rs o result of the dissection you found the ccusc of deatl
of the prisoncrs hed been strangulrtion end dynemite, How did you determi.
this?

L. This is not truc in oll esscs, but it can be srid ss a result of
disscetion no mejor chenges enn be noticed in thc orgens,

"Q, When the dynomite was lightcd, wherc wns Okuycra?
L, He was with Sekogomi.®

liocording to his tostimony, btuyama and Sakagnmd cxploded blnck
porder, but the priscnere aid not die, end Nekmura injeeted mornhine by th
order of Okuyama, The rcason why he uscd morphine wrs not to kil® them bui
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to rcmove their prin., But morphine wes not of feetive rnd they werc etill
suffering from pein, Thereforo, in ordor to remove the pain, Okuyrna
ordcrod Sakngari to strengle them,

Tho prisoncrs died of stranguletion, As r result of their disscetiorn
i1t wrs found thrt the gouscs of tholr decth were oxplosion of dynamitc ond
stronguletion, But this conelusion uice not dravn from the chonges in
the intcrnel orgens of the prisoncrs ot the time of the disscction hut by
summing up vhet he sow in the cxperiment, He stated thet the injcetion
of morprinc ves not the cause of the derth,

Can you believe nll of this tostimony? As to the injection, Sakrgemi
tostificd as follows:

He sew surgcon Mrkopuro injceting strychninc nitrcte rnd Okuyrme
seonolemine onium hvdrobromide into the hoarts of the prisoncrs, He hed
been neked for theec drugs by Commnnder Okuynra, so he hed gone to the Fir
Tatornel Frrd and hod got them with hypodermic syringe from Murse Hettord
vho hed rcceived permission about thet from Licutenont Fukude, He though:
thot the prisoncrs dicd on rrcount of this injcetion,.so he told the
nrtives 0o,

Whose testimony is truc? It can cloarly be imegined from the testir
of cnch witncss thrt Mommander Okuyrme hrd en intent to ¥i)1 the prisoncr.

Neknmure, to the cross=cxaminetion of the dcfense, tcstificd: "Sinc
the prisoncrs did not die, Okuyrnn ordcred ne to injoct morphinc and Iadl
eo,® But the rcason of the injection wins not to ¥ill the prisoncrs but °
reneve pein from the prisoncrs. Morphinc wns not effcctive and Okuyrmo
ordored Sokrgomi to strrogle ther in ordcr to remove their poin, The
prisoncrs dicd of the stronguletion, This is what Nekarmurn testificd.

I think thet no one will belicve such prctecnsc rnd cxcuscs, Con nny”
belicve thnt Okuyemn hed different intent in the following two crscsi to
ordor strenguletion in order to romove the pain, rnd to ordcr injecticn
in order to rcmove the pain?

Wo can not knovw whother *he drug uscd nt thrt timc wes morphine e8
Nnkerurae testificd or strychninc rs Sokngomi testificd., LY ony rete, bet’
of thom rrec violcnt polsons. NeVapure vre o surgeon, He ghould know the
doscs of thesc drugs,

If Okuyema intended to kill, hc would not prefer stronpulction in
order to nttain his nurpose. Inybody ern know thrt the drug would sctiel
his intention.

Thore is also snother incredible point in Nokemura's testirony, He
tostificd thrt he hrd injected morphine into thc orms of the prisoncrs.
*ecording to his testimony, the prisoncrs werc ticd with thedr errs behir
co 1t ie unneturel to inject their erms. Nekerure snid thet he hed got t
norrhine from r ward, but snid thrt he did not »now from who he yecoived
it, Hec docs not even remember whother it wns o man or women vho Erve hir
the drug, From thceo points it 1ie uttcrly impossiblc to belicve his
testimony,
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I belicve the truth wrs thrt Nokemura injected the drug into the
hecerts of the priscncre according to the order of Okuyems end caused thei:
dcoth, If this be the truth, it is clcar that Nakemure himsclf should
heve been chrrged, So he ecncocted n story thet Sakogemi strengled them
to derth rffcr.the injection, This is the only nossible foet.

There 18 o proef of this rossible fret, thet 13 the rmendrent of tho
sccond spceificetion of the first chrrge, In thet spceificetion, the fre*
of strengulation wrs not alleged nt first, But ofter Nokemura wos
errcasted, strengulrtion wes oddcd in the speeificrtion., Sokrgomi teostifi
a8 to this point, nnd I think that the judge ndvoertc wil® probablr edmit
thie, Morcover, his tostimony thrt cs the result of the disscetion they
found th-t the dceth was crused by explosive and straongulatirn has no
scicntific backing and his testirony wrs only o poor excuse on his pert
to rnke odd ends noet, He stated o train of thought which hes no merning
Purthermore, in rcrerd to the black powder Sekrgami testified the fret on-
week nrior tc this, Okuynmn reccived from Sakeprmi sore bl-ck pordcr to
expcrinent on n dog end the fret that it wre uscd on the exneriment on
the dops In rcprrd to this roint Nekomure too hns tostificd that he herr:
thot 0l uynma used black nowdcr cxnlosive in the cxperiment on the dog,
ind thcrcfore, those two testimonics mrteh, Thorcfore, on the day of thc
incident when arein Okuyome camc to him and rsked for black powder to be
used in the cxpriment on the dog, he didn't think it wes enything unysuc.
rnd wont vith Okuyrmn up the hill to whaore it wrs stored rnd bended him
onc stick, [t thie tirc he was told th-t hc wanted the fusc to be long;
so it urs 1-de ahout twice ne long as usuel (sbout onc meter) and wns
handed to him, and Sekegermi went to inspcet the contngious discese werd
rccording to his deily schedule, He recelled thrt he herrd an cxplosion
of a blest, hut et thet time thcro w-s construction going on rround the
hospitel ~nd rs he hrnd boen herring the explosions often he did not thin
for a moment thet the cxplosion ho herrd wrs the one Okuyome uced, s T
stoted before, Sekepemi srw thet Nokemurn wes injecting strychnine nitrat
rnd scopolerine opium hydrobroride into the prisoners, so ho nrturclly
wondered if Nekomure might hrve used the oxplosive., On the next dey he
made n round of inspeetion, rnd found rt the plece scro enpty cmpules of
the seid drugs ond notiecd thrt the grosses were lying dewn around thnt
spot. 8o hc crme to suspcet thrt the explosive right have been uscd,

Therofore, he did not know vhether the explosive wes uscd, nnd the
testimony of Noketmrs is entircly fabriention,

Nrtive witneescs seid in theoir testimony thet thoy hed only herrd ti
sound of ‘the cxplosion, They elso testified, "The deck officcr (Sekagenm
told us, '"They heve killed the prisoners.'"™ Thet is 21) thoy testificd.

This tcstirony docs not prove the fret, .ny person will not tell b
erinc of murder tc others cspceielly to natives. It cen caeily be imagl:
thrt Sokegrmi told them so because ho thought thrt someone, not Sokegari
killed the prisoners, In feot the nntives testificd, "He told us, 'They
hrd ¥i17cd the nrisoncrs,'" Thoreforc it is clerr thet Sakrpami told the
rhout vhet enother person hed dene, Sckeprmi told vhrt he imagined to
the n~tives whon he ves eslcd by thom rt the time of the hurial, He snyr
thet this telk of his beeame o rumor end hes come back to eonfront nnd

nccuse him,

Sakrgomd pointcd out inconsistencics in the testimony of Nokemura o
the nrtivea, I wou'd like to cite it as follows!
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The testimony of Surgeon Lieutcnant Nakomura wes entirely felsc testd
mony, ond hc disgrrecd the morelity of human beings, I wonder why he
testificd 1ike thet I am surely eonvinced thot he wee a surgeon lieutcnant
who, ncting jointly with Commonder Okuyema, murdered two forcigners by
injoetion on the hill behind the officers' quarters,

In Surgeon Licutcnant Nakemurnls tcstimony:

1, He said thot the dynemite wes as large as @ fiet in thickness,
but whet I gove Okuyena was not so big. It wes only about 3/4 inehcs
in dinmeter, ond weer't even dymemite, I om sure if ho used vhet I grve
him T rnd not Nakemurc could have better deseribed it, Of courso I did
not sce the dynamiting so enything is noseible. ’

2, He said thnt the dynamite hed bcen 71t with 2 moteh. To light
n fuse of dynamitc is rpt to burn one's hcnd, beceuse the flame flares
out from the fuse, Those who experienccd the use of dynnmitc would necver
do thet, It is usunlly 1it with on inccnsc stick or metch cord,

3, He said thet two plcecs of dynamite werc lighted, But like an
olcetric cord, thc fuse is a cotton cord in which gunpowder ie packed end
the surface of tho cord is painted ond hard, So cven vhen the gunpowder
burns, the cotton cord remeins unburncd, (nd if onc piece of dynamite
oxplodcs, the fuse of nnother one would be blown aney by the explosion.

Thercfore, the other dynemite will usually not explode,

L. He said thet the prisencrs had their toes injurcd by the
oxplosicn, But sinee the dynemitc hed exploded about 10 em, in the groun:
it would spray etones,. send ahd soil vhich would esuee gorious injury
on the bodies of the prisoners, He espeeielly steted thrt two rieccs of
dynamitc hed cxpledcd nrbout one meter in front of the prisoncrs, If so,
T think it would injurc them very soriously. I also think thet when
dynamitc is buried in the rround ite cxplcsion wou'd extend obliquely
upwnrd, ond injuriecs to thoir faces and chests would heve been grertor
than those in their legs, Gucssing from the position of the prisoncrs
whieh hc gove in bhis testimony, the eree of the surfrec of their bodics
fneing towrrd tho dynomite wes grecter s to the urper port of their
bodice then to the legs, so it is strange th-t they were injured only in
thoir legs which wrs £ smeller surfece orea, Such & simple metter is
loctured rhout in thc medical officers school as & common knovledge of

surgceons.,

5, He said thet he had injected two ampules of morphine into each
of the prisoners in order to remove their pain, But morphine used in the
Japanese navy wes never used in excess of an ampule for any petients who
hed any serious pain, It is a matter of common knowledge of a surgeon
that lecs than one ampule should be used according to the condition of
the petient, ,

6. He said that he had injected it in the upper arm of the prisoners
but he also testified that their hands were tied behind them, Is it not
technically difficult to injeet the arm of a man whose hands are tied

behind? This testimony 1s very doubtful, Generally speaking, the
injection of morphine is mede subeutaneously in the chest or outside upper

arm of a man,
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7. He lastly testified thet the prisoners viere strangled to death,
once leerned thet in ceses of strangulation some visible ch~nges are seen
in the lungs, But he testified thet he hed found no visitlc changes after
dissecting them, .

1 foel thet the testimony of the natives egainst me were nothing but
a product of their uncertain imaginations and pure fabrication,

Before Truk was bembed on 17 Februory 1944, the laundry end cleaniag
of the rooms of the officers and warrant officers were teken charge of by
our orderlies, After the air raid, the hospitrl became 80O busy end the
orderlics became so few thet we sometines ordered the notives to wash owr
clothing., But before the air reid, we never ordered any natives to do so,
Such testimony by them is false,

They testified thrt they haed been wocdisg oround my house, but sinse
my house wcs beneath 7 very big mango tree thcre were no weeds around iG.

A netive celled Tukeo testified that he sav a truck stop in front of
my room with two prisoners and a guerd with ¢ rifle and heyonet, But
before the eir raid there wes not a single rifle in the hospital, Only
beeause of American air raids did someone order riflee and & defense unit,

A notive called Otis testified that I took two prisoncrs with Petty
Officer Homma, I wonder on vhet ground they gave such felse testimony.
It is rure febricetion, I had nothing to do with such a thing, It is
obsolutely a lie,

As T have steted, I preyed from my heert for the souls of the forr
dead bodies, ond I did nob behave rudely os the Truk nstives testified,
T know that thesc derd bolics had an honorrble burial,

£s you see in vhot I have mentioned, I did neither kil the prismers
nor assist in the killing. I can firmly swerr befoure man ond Cod that
I am inrocent,

If T cooily jucp: what I have mentioned nbove, I am convinced as to
the conclusion thrt therc wes not a bit of fnlschood in Sakegeami's toeti-
mony, I «m convsinced thet the commission will heve reeched to the samc
convievicn,

The judge ndvocete could prove nothing ageinst Sakagomi except by th-
testimory «f Nokemura, end the testimony of Nokemure is, o8 I heve poin®
out, very iperciible and worthless,

To tie question of the judge edvocote, "Why didn't you state to the
judge advoerte ar the 1nvestigator whrt Nekamura had done?" Sakagami

stated:

"I tried to explain from the beginning thet I had nothing to do with
this ineident, but thay did not believe me, Some Amerienn non-commission:
officer informed me even of the dete of my exceution, seying, 'You will
be sentcnced to death,! The investigotor said to me, 'Okvyama is dend,
and another surgeon is not yet locrted, I do not ¥now whether it wes said
by the investigator or by the interproter, Anyhow, it is cortein that
it vas spoken by interpreter Savory. I thought it was nccessary to find
out a young surgeon who had peted with Okuyama end to let him testify for
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me. I thought this was the only way to save me end looked forwerd to his
coming, Irerafore, it ves unbearable for me ns a humane person %o disclns2
whet this voung surgeon had lone, Since I witnesscd what he did, I vould
imagine wart the ourpose of his acts was, But it is nothing but wy
imeginetion, He was e surgeon end he might hove hed a speciol purpose,

T thought thrt I might give him trouble if I releted my mistoken imeginatior
So I did not desire to stats ebout him. But when I firet met my defense
counsel, I told them ell ebout thet. I +0ld it to Commender Carlson, Mr.
Akimoto, Mr, Snzuti, Mr, Kuwata end enother lawyer,."*

This is only humen neture end is & rational idea, There is no room
for suspicion,

When I coolly think, summing up the ebove focts, I can firmly meintain
that Sakergemi had nothing to do with the ineident, thet Sokagemi ie
absolutely innocent,

The judge edvocrte did not cerry out his burden of proof. The second
specificrtion of the firet cherge ogainst Sakegomi is not proved.

It is very dengerous to nunish the accused under such circumstances,
There is » seying, "It is worse to punish one innocent person than to
relense one thousend suspects,” Thie is o strict rule coneerning triel in
eny place of the world,

Your Honor, The President and Members of the Comrission, I sincerely
hope thet you will heve cereful considerstion rs to thie matter,

I would like to csk your ccnsiderction agein for the family condition
of the accuscd Sekrgomi, This is whot Sokogami told me:

npfter T orrived on Truk in June 1943, I had no chence to go home ond
have received no letter since then. So I do not know exactly how my fomily
18, I would likec to state my fomily condition for your informetion nceordin
to o letter whieh I reoceived three years ago and a posteerd which I
received lately.

My younger brother (33 yeors old) wrs celled into the army in 1943 rnd
went to the southern front, He hes nover been herrd of since. My second
younger brother wne en'isted in the navy cir forecs but no one kncus about
how he hoe been since thon, I wes informed thet my two sisters died during
the vor.

My femily wes.r tcnant family, On acoount of my brothers conseription,
my sisters' derth end the old ege of my perents, they could not meintain
their ferm and could not pey texes, So they sold their tenent-right and
moved to the outskirts of Sapporo City, HokYaido, My wife wes living in
Yokosukn, But she moved to my perents! house with her two children in
1945 when the eir reids beceme intonse,

T sent all my selery for the living expenses of my perents, wife and
children, ond they could menege to meke thoir living with that money, As
1 was the eldest son, I hed the duty of supporting my percnts,

I do not know how they are making their living now. A1l of our
relatives have died elrcady. My sister's husb-nd went to Russia during the
war and hee never been heard of since.
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T frther of my wife wes a merchant dealing with mil itery goods, so it
wes imnessable for him to continue his business efter the end of the vav,
and the present condition of her family I do not ret know,

Mr salery vhen I was in the nevy was very ‘ivtle, and ve could save nn
pnoney. J ¢m very anxicus ebnut how they con gel their living cxponscs now.
Especinll, vhen I thirk of the terrible infiation of Japen, I can not heve
any cosy time all dey long.

Nemes snd eddress of my femily:

Perranent Domicile: %17 Nishino, Ocze-Kamiteina, Teinemura, Sanporo=gun,
Hokkeido,
Present Address: Miyanoshita, 24 en, Kotojimura, Sarporo-gun, Hokkaido
Fomily: Sokagemi, Nisaburo (father) 65 years old, heed of the family.
Sakogemi, Kane (mother) 64 yeers old,
Snkrgami, Midori (wife) 30 yeers old.
Sekopami, Nobuyuki (eldest son) 8 yeors old.
Sekasami, Chicko (eldest deughter) 5 yerrs old,"

T beg your speciel coneideration for the accused Sakegeri, end esk thnt
you will acquit him e8 soon a8 possible by: o finding of not guilty.

I medintain that the defondents, Mukei, Yoshihise; Tanabe, Mamoru; ond
Kemikave, Hidchiro, ere not guilty.

The nbove persons verc brought to triel and charged vith the following
ns steted in specifieation three, cherge It WKAMI¥AWA, Hidehiro, then a
surgeon lieutenent, Imperial Japrnese Navy,eesesy T/N'BE, Mamoru, then a
cornsman chief petty officer, Imperial Japencse Navy,ees.ey MUKLI, Yoshihier
eevesy 011 attached to and serving ot the Fourth Navel Hospitel, attached
to the military installetions of the Imperial Japanese Navy, at Dublon
Islend, Truk Atoll, Ceroline Islend, cud others to the relator unknown, did,
erch rnd together, on or about 20 July 1944, et Dublon Islend, Truk ftoll,
Caroline Ieland, at & time vhen a state of wrr existed botwecn the United
States of America, ite [1lics end Dependencies, #nd the Imperial Jepencse
Empire, wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and melice eforethought,
and without justifieble ceuse, asseult, strike and k111, by beyoneting witk
fixod bayenets, sperring with sperrs, end by beheeding with swords, two (2)
Americen Prisoncrs of Wer, names to the reletor unknown, both then end ther
held captive by the armed forces of Jepen, this in violation of the law and
custors of wer,"

But, the defendents Kamikowa, Hidehiro; Trnabo, Memoru; and Mukai,
Yoehihise, all of them hrve strenuously denied thet they had onything to dc
with the ineident from the beginning of the investignotion, They were
cleared of suspicion and demobilized, While they were working in their
vorious peecetime pursuits they were suddenly placed in Sugamo prison, from
which they were sent to the wer crimes stockade on Guem, They still ennnot
understoend why thoy heve been token into custody.

How did these persons who were not {nvolved in the incident come to h
chorged? I was very interested in this point and did some investigrtions
concerning it, I wish thet the commission teke specicl natice of this
point,
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Thais incident coevrred over three yoers arcc -nd the persons why waie
involved erourt Lo ove: o hudred end ten some percoas, insiuling the
gpeatotcer, "L aen be egean mithout difficulty irru by tie nrtare of the
ineidert ~voeoveone muns velry oxelted ot thet time. TUnder thore cond il onn
how mary “e~pie would reacrber elerrly, who woe prescrt cnd whe w e Lot or
who asied tn. wae did roc act? I think it ‘s unasuel thet perwons oihcy
than spcasrl pesrone ir sneeirl eireunstrnccs ere eble to remaomber 2icerrly
whot went on. I rather think it 4s notursl thet they do not rementer, 7
think it is r fret th~t, whot the authoritice expericnced when they investbr-
gnted wes thet cvery ncrson told -~ 2ifferont story and thrt thcy could not
obtoin wh-t wes the truth ond whet weae not the truth, If it is stetod
frankly, it is a feet that persons heve made stetements apninst ench other
concerning other peoplc, without scying onything nbout their pert in the
incident, rnd on top of this they have eteted vague recollections rnd their
impginertion in o definitc nnd distinet menner, Because of this it beeome all
the more difficult to gein the truth, Both the persons in custody and the
cuthoritics must hrve becn afrrid thet they wov’d e11 have to be cherged,

In conscquence one doy with on fmericen officer ond the interpreter, Mr.
Savory, present, the sonior petty officers mer cnlled together nnd a mecetirg
held, £t this mcoting the interpreter Scvory steted, nis it is ot present
we cennot tell whe did it, In eddition to this the inecident will never be
clerred up, It will be nll the better for you if you confer among yoursclves
end hove some persons trke the responsibility.” The escnior ranking petty
officers agreed to this, There were some nersons who meinteincd that the
scnior petty officcrs regrrdless of whether they did act or not, whould teke
the responsibility cnd have the lower renking netty officers frced, This
nede n grert impression on the persons vho heard this, Howover, the personi
in this group who mainteincd thet they had nothing to do with the inecident
stoted strongly, "How can you ey such an ebsurd thing?" I cen understnnd

a sonior petty officcer teling the responsibility for en act thot came in

his 14ne of duty, but I scc no rerson for ¢ person vho had noti ‘ng to do
with it to teke the responsibdility for this kind of on incident, just
beenuse ho wne of a scnior renk, The persons who did it should trke the
responsibility for the law does not ellow thrt persons who.did not toke peri
teke the responsibility, I ~m rbsolutely sreinst it, If this is the kind

of mecting this is I wish it stopped." To this the interpreter Mr, Sevory
soid, "The authorities do not meem to hove a person who ie net responsible
teke the responsibility, We will stop this confercnce,” So this eonfercns.
vrs dismisscd, There is this foct, and conccrning this peint ve tricd to m.ov
it by the testimony of the defendant Watanabe, but through the objection of
the proseccution we were not permittcd to do so, I have just stated eoncern:ry
this as onc of the eircumstonces in this case.

This did not trke place solely on the instructions of the authoritics,
but, wes the linc of thought thot the persons who were held in eustody hed
et thot time, This line of thought not only prcvailed emong the persons
vwho were held in custody but even nmong the witncsees, /And then somo of
the defendents erme to think thrt, nTt's outragcous. He was & sonior petty
officer, Neturally, he should trke the responsibility, Ho wrs the edjutont,
It's coverdly to sy thet he docs not know anything ebout the incident, My
potty officers ore suffering, Rogerdless of how it wrs, he should toke the
responsibility," Such thoughts werc relaoycd from one person to another and
cventually it came to be steted ns if it werc the absolute truth thet, "Ho
yme ot the seene,” "I saw him there," "He vas in the line," or that "I sev
him steb.,® Thesc thoughts eirculated as if they were the truth, these rumors
oventually came out es the tcetimony of the witnesses and the statcments
of tho defendants, It is my firm belief thet thie {s the bosic reason thet
pade 4t so herd to gein the truth in this case,
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Consequently such tectimo-y ond stotements rs thet Kemikare wes at the
sceneé or thet he relayed orders, or testimony and statements thet Tenabe and
Mukai, were the stebbers were all false mede under these circumstanccs,

ask your deep considerction on this point,

Licutenant Oishi, in reply to the quostion by the judge sdvoerte
replicd s fo)lows; "The reason why I wrote this statemcnt for the judge
advodato wrs becnuse erong the persons in custody for the judge cdvoeato
there are persons who hnd nothing to do with the incident end they werc
suffering. The investigetion of this incident would go on for evers
Thinking nbout this I voluntoerad to write this stotement,”

Tngﬂther-nith the sbove eircumstrnecs we £re sble to understend the
line of thought which provailed.

I will now present furthcr srgument in behalf of Mukei, Tenobe, and
Kamikava, separately ond in thc sbove order,

Imong the defendents in this case Mukei, Yoshihisa, is e senior ranking
petty officer. Thereforc eccording to the vicws of sore petty officers that
the senior petty officers should teke the responeibility, he is in e
position in w)ich he would hrve to teke the responsibil ty. But, he wes
clenred of suspicion end demobilized, This fect did not make the others all
the happler, &8 ¢ compatriot of theirs I regret this very much but I
cannot bleme them because it is the common mentel stete of defendants who
havoe led o herd 1ife in confinemént, Lnywey the happiness of Mukni, vwrs
short=1ived and he ves srain teken into custody.

To moke the frets clenr I =+ish to cite the substrnce of Mukai's stete-
ment, in which he steted his actionsj

T wos atteched to the Fourth Naval Hospitn, Truk itoll, inm Lugust 1943,
and served there until December 1945. On the 28th of December, 1945, I wee
demobilized and worked as a farmor, But in Merch 1947, I was suddenly put
in Sugamo prison 08 ¢ War erininal, then transferred to Guem end heve been

charged in this triecl,

However, 1 eonnot understend why I heve been cherged, I did not stab
ony prisoncrs of war vhetsoever, I tried to explain my innoecence s best
as I cou'd to the judge advoerte, but he did not belleve me,

Some witnesses hove testificd that I stebbed, but this is a pure
fobricrtion, Evcrybody knove thet I aid not stab, perticularly Surgedn
Lieutenent Oishi knows thet I aid not stab, I affirm before men and God thet
T em innocent, #lthough I went to the hill behind the officers ' quarters
in sceordance with the commend of generel essombly with the other peotty
of ficers and onlisted men and sew the scenme and the prisoners,

I went up to the hill from tho front of the nurses guartcrs and I wont
to the right side freing the prisoners, 48 I hed not seen a prisoner before
end T was eurious, I left the line to see them, I was standing to the left
behind the officers end wetched the prisoners, In the meantime the heed of
the hospital began his speechs Then I heerd the eommend of Iieutenant
Oishi, but since I did not want to do anything to the prisoncrs, I kept
standing in the samo place and vas looking at thet whet wes going on withcut

going back to my division,
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of course, if I had returned to my division, I probably would have been
ordered to stab, and I would heve had to obey #he order, I do not know
whether it was fortunate or unfortunatc I was not with my division and I
did not heve to obey the order, Hut.uraiily I wes blamed by my comredes and
those who wanted me to take the blame called me a cowmard, Since I was a
senior petty officer I think I was selected to take the responsibility for
it, but I did not stab,

I did not disobey the order, I was not in my line at thet time, I
did not want to stab the prisoners. I eould not do that, If they blame
me as a coward on that accout, I cannot help it, However, is it right that
a men who did not stab take the responsibility as @ stabber? Some maintain
thot the senior petty officers should teke the responsibility even if they
did not stab, Under such circumstances, although I wae innocent, I was
said to be a stabber, I think thet i1s the renson why persong testified I
was a stabber, But is felse testimony. I did not steb at all, I am
innocent, I sweer this before God, I em certainly innocent and anyone who
testified agoinst me and soid I stabbed is not telling the truth, I am
cenvinced thet some testified before the examinetion of the judge advocates
thet I did not stab,

From eny point of view, I cannot take the responsibility because I &m
innocent.,

I beg your thorough consultation about this ineident gnd that you will
give me a fair verdict, I am innocent,

I an a head of my family and I have & wife, o deughter five yoers old
and » son one year old, If I do not work for them, they will starve,
again beg your: kind consideration for the condition of my family.

Ae stated in the statement of Mukei, I am convineed thet there can be
no doubt that Mukei, hed nothing ot all to do with this incident,

lieutencnt Oishi testified thet in his statement which he wrote for the
judge edvoeste,he scid es stated before, "Among the defendants there are
persons who hed nothing ot all to do with the incident and he thought, 1t
will never be eclerred un, This is not good end I wrote this statement,"
At this time in the statement thet he submitted to the judge advoorte he
stotod in substance thet Mukei sbsolutely did not steb and thet he had
nothing to do with the {neident, I proceeded to bring the substance of
this stetement forth, but I wes not allowed to do o, through the objections
of the judge edvocote, Coneerning thie point, Lieutenant 0ishi, replied to
ny questions as follows:

ng, Have you ever stated %o the judge cdvoeatcs persons whom you did not
ramm!ber stobbing the prisoners in this case?
A, Yes,

nQ, Whet did you state?
The judge edvocate mnda an objection and the objection was sustained.

ng, In your recollection do you remember anyone who did not stab the
prisoners in this eese?
A, Yes,
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"Q, Who are these persons?
A, Among the defendente present here it is Petty Officer Mukai, Yoshihise.

"Q, Why do you remember that Mukai did not stab?

A, When I mede the diviesion in the ranks of the petty officers according
to the orders of the heed of the hrspitel, and hed them line up in two
columen, Petty Officcr Mukai wes standing by the prisoners and wes not in
the columns,”

Thie testimony cleorly becks up the statement thet Mukei made, I
believe the commission is also thoroughly convinced of this point,

But the witnesses of the prosecution have testificd as followsj the
witness Takehashi testified, "Mukoi, was in the lines, everyone in the
lines stabbed," The witness Hayashi testified, "Mukei wes in the "ines,
he stebbed, but no blood came forth," The witness Hemadn, testified,

"I have & faint rocollection thet he was there," In reply to a question

by the judge adveerte in redirect examinntion he rcplied, "4s I stated

this morning, my roccllection of Petty Officer Mukai is very foint,® The
witnees Commender Okamure teetified that, "He did not have any recollection
of Mukri," The witnecss Masude tostified thet he did not know of Mukai
being thore, The witnesses Yememoto, Hascgewa, Yemepishi, and Kikuchi,
heve not testified concerning him at 2l), In other words, emong the nine
prosecution vitneeses, Tekahashi end Hayashi were the only two who testified
that they did stab, Even on this point only, it can be seid thet the
prosccution has not nroved the spceificotion thet he is cherged with, in
that he wee involved in this ense, In putting together the testimony of
the prosccution witnesses, I rother think it is in accord with the princinie
of cormon sense rcesoning thet this testimony can be judged in the negetive
sense, I think this is reasonnble, beceuse, even though the witnesscs
Tekahashi and Hayashi testified thet Mukai wes in the columns end that
everyone in the columms etabbed, it is not unnaturel thot, os Mukei has
testified, be was a senior petty officer and went up the hill, with others,
and persons who saw him could have misteken him as having been in the
columns, In addition to this when there are so meny defendnnts ond the
truth in this crse is so unclcrr ond when the made up propeganda and rumors
con be belicved to be the truth when it is not the truth, it is very
dangerous to use such veek matericl os cvidence,

T request thet you will be able to discern the truth and through
your grert powers of comprehension give him a feir judgment, I have no
doubt thet you will be convinced of the truth of Mukai's statement and the
testimony of Licutenant Oishi, With obsolute confidence I maintain that
he is not guilty,

Also the defendonts family wee supported vith the esrnings of the
dofendent, Sinece the defendent was trken into custody, his young wife hes
barely been nble to eke out an existence, She has a daughter of five and
a baby of eight monthe to look efter, Under the present conditions’ there
is no other wey but to sterve to death, If he ectually did commit a
erime, this is fete ond cannot be holped but if he wes innocent I cennot
but sympethize with his sufferings, I request that you will consider
deeply 2nd th-t you will find him not guilty,

Argument in bohalf of Tanabe,

The position of the defendant Tananbe at the Fourth Noval Hospital, is
the same as thrt of Mukni, a senior ranking petty officer., He was once

"YYY(18)"

CFRDIFIED TO BE A TRUE OCLY
72

¢ jaMES_ P, KENKY .
Iieutenant, Usly Navy, ;




eleared of suspicion and demobilized in December of 1945, after which he
worked in e percetime pursuit, But, on the 15th of June 1946, he wes taken
into custody and scnt to Guem, where the cireumstences and relntions with
the other prisoners were the same os Mukai, 1In order not to be repetitious
ond £8 the facts are the same 28 in the cese of Mukai, I wish that ell of
+hat I have steted coneerning Mukai be token into eonsiderction,

In other words, beceuse the defendant Tenebe, together with his
co=defendents Mukei, Wetanabe end Sevcda, were senior renking petty
officcrs, end in accordence vdth the opinion of some perscns thet the senior
petty officers should toke the responsibility regordless of who stabbed,
this beceme the genercl feeling, T feol thet is how perscns cventually
ceme out ond testified thet they - ere the stebbers,

_ The defemdent Tonrbe, bocame sick on the 13th of July, 1944, on the
i/th he wes examined by Doctor Komikera, end entered the hospitel werd on
the some dey, He wes dischrrged from the hosnitel vord on the 24th ond on
the 20th of July, o8 he wrs in the hospitel werd he hed no relation whrtso=-
cver with this incident, This fret is elenr through the testirony of
l4eutenant Commander Komika@a and Ensign Yoshizewa, but in order to meke
it a1l the clesrer I drar your sttention to the etotement of the defendent,

"On 27 December 1945, I errdived et the Yokosuka District Demobilisotior.
Carp; I wes demobilized on the 30th of the seme month, and ceme home, On
the 12th of Jenurry 1946, I beceme mombor of the Hitashitaishi Reilway
Disncnsery, the Tokyo Government Reilway Buresu, and I worked for epidemic
prevention and medical trortment of the railwey personnel ond their familice;
I mee arrested by a Japencse policeman on the 15th of June 1946, and was
sent to Guem where I was confineda

I shell never forget, thet on the 13th of July 1944, the lest hospital
ship entered the port of Pruk Atoll, Meny paticnts of the hospitsl were
embarked on the hospital ship, and we hed busy deys, On account of that,

T suffercd frem a high tempercture towerd evening, °nd on the next morning,
I consulted Iieutenant Kamikcra, o chief of the out-paticnts dispensery.

He sodd thet my tempernture wns 80O high thnt I hed %o rest in & room of the
surgical vrrd, I soon reported it to the sehior notty officer and hed a
rost on a bed by the eest window of the surgicel wrrd which wes closc to the
out-peticnts dispensary. My bed wes necer the verandn where there were

I rocall it wes on Mondey morning, 24 July 1944, thot I recovered my
heelth end begen my work agein, I recall thet I vos given medical treat-
nent on Saturday when the chief of the out-potient dispensrry srid to me
to teke ¢ rest for o few drye more beetcuso the next dey wes Bunday and to

begin my work on Monday morning.

On the morning of the 24th, ae I recovered my herlth, I reported it to
the senicr petty officor when I heerd obout the prisoners, 8O I know nothing
of vhet happened on the dey of the incident,

I really don't know on whet ground I wes cherged, Some of the
vitnesscs tcstified thet I stabbed, Some of them seid thet ell the hospital
personnel vere sssenbled on that dey end that the petty officers were
ordered by the heed of the hospitel to step formerd and were lined un, A
thot time, I ves & petty officer of ¢ higher rank end wos coting as e petty
officer of the dtvision, I imagine that these witnesses, without knowing
that I wes 111 eod in sickbay et that time, must heve thought thet T wes
also st the scene, or thet they mst hove thought thet I had to take
responsibility beeesuse I wos o senior petty officer at thot time,
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In fact, someone stressed thet senior petly officers had to teke
rosponsibility vhether or not they had perticipeted in the incident, I
think thet this is the ground of ry accusation, As for me, I wes delighted
that I wrs 111 on the day of the ineident,

However, I wes suddenly arrested by a Jepanese policeman on the 15th
of Junc 1946, I wes sent to Guam end have been cherged, I am very
rogretful ebout this.

There wes the follewing opinion meintained by somchodys ®Many deys
have elapsed sinee the incident, nnd no one knows the rorl fret about it,
Thet i8 the reoscn why the incident is not yot settled, I hope that five
or six scnior petty officers of the self=defense unit will toke tho
responsibility though it moy be pitiful for those vho hrd no ecomnection
with the incident." I scid to him, "Since I wre 111 rt thet time, I know
nothing rbout the ineident, 80 I have no rcsponsibility at all, I think
it ie not permissible by lew thet an innocent nerson receive runishment for
other's erimecs.” I firmly objected to that opinion and plan, but they did
not listen to me, I found out that some young petty officers became
nggreseive tovnrd me, end insisted thet I had to tcke the responsibility,

I, of course, did not witnees tHis inecident, so I do not know how it
was performed nor cen I teke any rosponsibility thercof.”

Concerning this point Lieutencnt Commender Kemikovae hos testified in
this court to the following cffcct., "The defendant Tanabe became sick on
the 14th end I examined him, He hed the follcwing symptoms; o fever of
38,9 degrecs contigrede and spots eoming out a1l over him, I diagnosed
i1t as dengue fever, and entered him in the surgiccl werd, He wes in the
hospital rbout ten deys, T think I reccll exrmining him on the dey of the

1ﬂcidﬁﬂt! l“

ind agein Ensign Yoshizawa hes tostificd to the following cffect:
"At the time of the ineident, I wrs the senior petty officer, Whenever an
enlistcd man ie sick ho would reprrt to the sonior petty officer, The
senior pctty officer would write this in his log ond send him over to the
out=patients exemination room to be exemined, I do not remember the exrct
time but I think it wes ebout a week before the incident, Tanabe, Memoru,
beeeme sick ond I remember hie repcrting it to me, /s I recoll it ves
three of four deys after the incident thot Tenabe, repcrting to me thet
he hnd recovered end hed been discharged from the w::.-;-:'n:’.'l_',i But, I do not
remcmber if it wrs in the nfternocn or in the morning,¥ I am sure that by
these testimonys it has been proved thet the testimony of Tensbe is true,

On ton of this, of the nipe witnosses for the prosecution, Okamura,
Tokrheshi, Yemamoto, Hamede, Hasegew?, Hayeshi, Mneude, Ynmegishi, and
Kikuchi, the only cne who testified thet Trnobe stabbed was Haynehd,
Takoheshi grve the names of perscns who were in the line of stabbers, end th
conclusion wes drawn thot Tanabe hed stobbed, This indircet way of
expressing this foeot is procf thot his memory is vegue, The witnesses
Kikuehi, Yrmemoto, Hamnde, end Hesegeva, testified thet they remember
his being in the line, but they do not remember thet they egaw him steb,
The witnesscs Okamurn, Mosuds and Yamcgishi, have testified thot they do
not remember his being in the line, In other words t'e only person who
testified thet Tanebe stebbed was Hayeshi, and the testimony of the other
witnesses wrs vegue, I believe it is esscntial to think deeply on why
such unelerr nnd conflieting testimony wos mede,
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In the first ploce, the vitnesecs nre living together in the seme place
nnd have mnny chances to talk among themselves, L1lso this incident wre one
which took plaece three years ngo, with o hundred persons porsons. To
renonber who wns present and who wes not is unusunl, excenting those who hrd
some spceinl gonnection, Hom can ¢ person who wes not involved have 8o
eleoer ¢ memory?

They, in roflecting on their vague recollcetions thought, "It wrs the
senior ronking Petty Officers,” “Tanabe rust heve been there,® &4 mistrke
in their recollection or moved by propagande brought this testimony about
T think nnd the prejudice thrt the senior ranking petty officers should toke
the responsibility,

Tt is very dnngerous to ecnsider such wenk end conflicting testimony as
ovidence, especially in this ersc when the cherge is murder, It is
insufficient,

I request thrt the comrission will reflect nnd dwell upon all of the
circunstances ond I ~ask you for o foir judppent. .

I on & person who cbsolwtely believes thot Tenrbe, Menoru is innocen®.
He entered the hospitel verd vith fever, Who gou'd order him to do such o
thing? He wes relieved of al’ work ond in the hospitel sick wrrd how could
a prtient have gone to this hill? '

There is the testimony of Doctor Kemikewe who exerined him nnd the
testimony of the senior petty officer, Yoshizava, to whom he repc rted, I%
is n clerr fret thet he v-s sick in the hospitel on the dey of the ineicdea.
If the prosceution is going to deny this fact he will heve to produce
evidence to rrove it,

With the werk, conflieting nnd vogue testimony of the rbovementioned
prosetution witnesses this eannot be done, T believe the prosecution hes
foiled completcly in rroving the specificotions in the ensc of Tenrbe.

T roquest thrt you will see the true light rnd find Tenabe not guilty.

Especinlly his home is in e pitiful stetc, where thcre is en eged
fathor and mother, Through the efforts of his poor wife they ere barely
sustaining themsclves, Without him it will be very difficult for them to
live, I wish thet you syrpothbiza with him,

Irgunent in behelf of Eenikewe:

I an ahsolutely eonvinced of the innoecnec of Kemikewa, Hidehiro, end
can argue with this eonvietion,

Is long o& Cortain Taneda, who wrs e high renking officer of the Fourth
Navrl Hospiterl, clee the herd of the first scetion and deputy hecd of the
hospitel is cxcentcd from being invelved in this case, all the pun firc is
being ccncentroted on X-mikawa, who hed no relationship ot ell in this
incident, beeruse he is the next remking officer to Iwanami, rmeng the
dofondonts ond was rlse the cdjutant, This is not an unusurl ogeurrence
in this world, There 48 ¢ saying in Jopen, Wrhe bigger the tree, the
stronger tho wind,* This is what I menn,
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Especially in this ersc where therc are from forty to fifty persons

. involved, onch one trice to put the blame on another person and protect {
| himself, There arc some in which it is very hard to meke a distinection '

between who 18 a defondant and who is a witness, [lso I belicve the

prosecution will odmit thet there rro conflicting interests cven among

the defendonts, In cddition the ineident took pleec over three yerrs ago

end no one hrs n clerr recollection, Rumore, propagrnde, plots all beecmo

mixed together and went florting oround as rumors, and reappenrcd 0s

testimony, this con cosily be scon, This was how the testimony ngainst

Kenikawa woe mrde up, I sineceroly bolieve thnt Kemikawa hod nothing to do

with the ineident end wes not in & position to have been charged

Kamikawe tostified ss follows in this ecourt: Two or three drys beforc
the ineident Captein Iwanami talked to the senior ranking officers of the
hospital, who were by him, obout exccuting prisoncrs,at the officers'
werdroom, He did not sey this to Kemikawa, but Kamiknwa, though® this
was a bad thing, His rank was low but as ho wos the adjutant he thought
he should espress his opinion rpainst this, so on the noxt day he said to
the hend of the hospite, "I vish you would reconsider and not go through
with 1t," But the herd of the hospital would not listen to him. On the
day of the incident he kept avay from it and stayed in his room end he
nbsolutely did not go to tho scene, Ho hne maintained very strongly thet
he had nothing to do with the ineident, that he had not aseisted in the
incident, nor had he reccived any ordcrs concerning the ineident and
noturally wrs nct taken into the conficdence of the hend of the hospital,
Concerning this, the hend of the hospitnl, Captnin Iwanami, hns stated thet
he did nct give any instructions or orders nor did he teke Knmikama into
hie confidence beforc or after the incident., He hns also testificd thit

4 he did not see Kamikawa, nt the scene, The witnesscs Ota, Selichi end
Yokota, Hrruo, hnve nlso testified thet thoy did not see Kemikeva nt the |
secne on the dny of the incidemt, Concorning Kemikawe, Iicutenart Oishi
hos testificd that on the day before the incident, he was told by Kamikawa
whet the he~d of the hospital hed been saying, ond thrt he hed rcfused it,
Exeept in this he did not confer with Kemikawa coneerning the incident, nor
did he receive any orders from the head of the hospital vie Kamikera, ond
neturelly Aid not see Komikovm, at the scene.

It hae been clesrly proved by the verious witnesses thrt Keriknwa hac
nothing to do with this ineident, The ten proscoution witncsees boginring
with Ceptain Tencdn hove tedtificd in ten different vays, Ls in the cese o”
Coptain Tancda, "While tolking, Kenlkawa cnme toword the heed of the hospit-il
roon, srluted and left., Latcr when I told this to tho herd of the hosnitol
1 he srid, "Is that so? Then the preparaticns must be roedy," implying thet
Kamikeva was involved in the preparctions,

As Tenoda himsclf hrs stated, he was the first person thet the herd of
. the hoenital had confided in, He woe the senior renking officer noxt to
! Teannrd. He wae nlso the hond of the first scetion nnd deputy hend of the
hospitrl, If he thought nbout it ns he hes steted, why did he not stop the
hend of the hospital? What wrrnings did hauiive the heed of the heepital?
. Did he try to teke any sters to stop 1t? N On the day of the incident
' he went up the hill together with the herd of the hospital, Isn't he
indirectly involved in this ineident? If Komikave tme involved in thie
incident, Tanedn through his poesition should know what he did, Why can't
he toetify cleerly that Kamikawa did such enc wrs involved in this incident?

CHAYTFIED TO BE A TRYE JCi. wyYY(22)"
i P
7 sns. P, KENNY

Lisutonans, .o Havy ] i
Mdpe Adoveate, Cy




Coneerning the facts at the top of the hill he testified as follows: it

the sccne Kemiknma come towerd me and sedd, 'Everything is all right,' So I

told him the heed of the hospital hod said to begin end he went bnck to vhere {
the enlisted men were lined up., He testificd in the seme vway, implying ns

in the case of the hend of the hospital's room vhcn he statod thet Kamikawa

sclutod and left, Concerning this testimony the homnd of the hospito} him=

solf hos tostificd spceifically that there wes no such thing, /[nyonec can

sec thot the testimony of Captain Tencda 1is felse and I for one believe thie

firnly.
Captain Tancde, in enswer to my eross~examination answered as follows:

"Q, Did you ever tell enyone thrt os Komikevo wos the rdjutant let ue say
that he wes there?® Ho answered, ".fter the end of the ver Kamikara sald
thet be @id not know anything rbout the incident. It is not good for
officers to say that they know not!ing about the incident," It is not
unressonrhle to think thrt through this he knew thot the rdjutont did mt
hove enything to do with the ineident but for some resson or another he
onnted to involve Karmikevr in the inoident because he wrs the ed jutant,

tgein efter the end of the wrr he srid to Kemikawe, "Even though you
ney not have had anything to do vith the ineident, because you were' the
cdjutant you hove a responsibility. Absolutely do not say n thing about thic
to nnyone in Japen, cven though you mey be killed," There is the fect that
agnin rt the branch hospitrl on Fefen, he osked ¢ subordinrte of his,
Tencbe, "Knmikawn is snying thet he wes not rt the sccne on the day of the
incident, is this true?" Tanrbe, replicd, "fs I wns sick in the hospital
verd T do not know," In sumrrizing thesc frets I cennot but believe thnd
his tostimony is febrierted and thet he is trying to invelv: Fardkowa, ‘Lo
onn eay thnt the witnesses who rre living together with him were At
influenced by hin? |

The vitnesses Kikuehi, Goro rnd Yrmemoto tostificd thet "Kirikawa aad
the head of the hoepitel eeme up the hill topcther." Tenede himeelf hes
sdmitted thet ho core up tho hill together with the herd of the rospitel rnd
tris hos boen clenrly testified to by tho herd of the hospitrl himsclf.

I think the witnesscs replaccd Tancéa with Kerikawe purpocely, lamerouve

hns testificd thrt score enlisted men romoved the clothing of tho prisorc? €~
the ordars of Ceptain Tencdr rnd thet he hed buricd them, On the otbur
hond Takshashi testificd thet K-w:1~:n ardercd the tying up of the prisoacri
Vra there any testimony thet confirmed this or cven led us to imagine ¢ p7I%
of the testimony that Taknhoshi gove? No metter whore you lock in the
evidence brought forth by either the prosecution or the dcfense this cepnct
bo found. Tt is the samc rs the testimony of the netives that Sekagami tock
the rrisoncrs up the hill in the July inaident = a scerlct lic which hes nc
foundrtion and is in his imngination,

- Cosmandor Okorure testified thet he thought he saw Kamikera there, hut
he does not know by whom he was stonding or whether he was snecking to mome
one., He rlso testified thnt he aid not ¥mow how long Kamikawa was therg or
when he loft, This shows that his memory is not clenr if Kamikawa vas ghere
i;l he did wne to state whrt he imegincd when he srid, "I think he wre

ero,”

The witness Hayekara in reply to a question by the judge ndvoorte seid,
I feintly recell secing his faec," rnd this seme witness rcplied in ecross-.
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examination os followss "fhen I say thet I sow Lieutenant Comrender Kamikawe
it ie as I hove statcd beforc o very foint reecollection, and I do not
remepbor where I sew hin ond when I saw hin " Even though this it can be
sean thet he hrd no recollection of Knmikave but that he had to testify
that he wos there, [gain when Yonomoto, Takahashi and Hayashi testified,
"It was given from the herd of the hospital to Komikowe end from Kenikowa
to Oishi," They made it up 80 thet it would seem ns if it had gone through
the usua?) line of command, everything go'ng fror the head of the hospital
to the rdjutant and from the cdjutant to the officer of the day. tho
herd of the heospital and Oiehi hove testified thot this ahsolutely wns not
true, Not only hove they testified thot Kopikora did not ret 08 o go=
between but heve also tostified thrt he wes not nt the ecene.

The herd of the hospital has stated frankly, that he deternined to do
this regerdless of anyone and Tithout telling the cnlisted ren why he geve
them orders, rede proparations through the soilor on Auty thet dey be had
him reley the order for gonercl esserbly and thet At the scene he directly
ordered it end hrd 1t corried out, Why go to 211 the trouble and why wes i+
necessrry to go ebout it in the usunl round about way, fron the herd of the
hospital to the pdjutent and from the odjutant to the officer of the day?
The renson thet 0ishi wrs given this order wrs becnuse Oishi wns stending
close by. The testimony of the prosccution witnesses thrt nmnde up the
story rbout the {nterncdiery occtions of the adjutent are not in ageordance
with the acturl objective cireumstonces of thot dny, I wish thrt the
cormission will ecnsider well the testirony of the persons connected with
the intident, the objective cireunstonces and judge then foirly.

I bring to your attention the mein points of Komikawe's testinony.

I vas demobilized in Janurry of 1946, While I was wrkirs ob L
Otoke minesweeping scction of the Second Demobilizntion Scetlon. I wa
suddenly called to the Otake police station fron where I wes gout to bvgoro

tson, On the 27th of the snme ronth I was sent dorn to Guom and came e
be tricd here, As for me this is ronlly unexpected, and I do not under=-
stand why I ceme to be suspected, I have no connection with the incidcen®
st 011, I think thot sorcone imogined that I should have done “u2h a7 Tugh
a thirg heenuse [ had been the edjutont, This imeeinntd ol A venopuf .ng
beeane & cruse of thc fovornhle scttlement of this inzidont,

Whot I directly kmow poncerning the {ncidente of the prisoners which
is said to have taken plece at the Fourth Navel Hospital at the end of

July 1944 is ne follovst

1 reeall thot during merl two or threc dnys before the incident,
Twanaikd, the hend of the hospitel wes telking to some senior officers who
were sitting neer him, and seid, "There ere some nrisoncrs »t the Forty-

first Navrl Gurrd Unit who are to be executed, 1 think thet they ‘hmﬂbﬁd the

T 1istened to his words without seying enything, but I thought that sueh o
rlon rust not be, On the next doy, when I met him near the reception roon
of the administration building of the hospital, I sald to him, "I have

but I should sey vou are vrong to exccute them and, of course, I did not

resist his ddeas, I only expressed my opinion which wns contrary to what
he wes thinking feeling that it wes the responeibility of the adjutant to
give opinions to the commending officer. But the head of the hospital wrs
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not one to listen nor did he Jisten to my edvice ot this timo, Ho snid ne

if he verc tolking to himself, "I hed better let the self dofonse unit do

_ 1t," "It is not ~ood either, if you lct them do it," I replicd, "I hope

a vou will think it over agein,® end we perted without further words, \

On the noxt dey I think it was et the beginning of the aftcrnoon work,
Lieutenant Oishi eprroached me in front of the ndministrortion building.
Thinking it would be better to inform hinm whrt the herd of the hcepital
vne intending, I told him hriefly, beeause at thrt time, Licutenant Oishi
wrs the lerder of the self defense section, Thrt evening Lieutenrnt Oishi
togother with Lioutenant Minsto erlled me ot ry room in the officor's
quarters end scid, "I do not like to dispose of the priscners of even heve
anything to do vith them, Please tell the herd of the hospitol thot I
rofuse to heve nnything to do vith them,* I told Oishi thet I hod also
objeeted to the proposnl of the herd of the hospitnl and soid that I therc-
fore understood Oishi's opinion,

I reecsll thet on the next morning when I met the herd of the hospital
I told hin thet Idocutenant Oishi also did not wont to be involved in the
incident., The herd of the hospitnl left without saying anything to me,

Iftor T hed objccted to the opinion of the hend of the hoepital he did
not eny snything more to me concerning the ineident,

On the doy of the incident, I reerll that I vorked as usunl and tha' I
did nothing unusucl, In tho morming I sew out potients and recd books 1.
the rdjutant's rocm, In the afternoon T vee in the adjutant's rcom workira
on nodicel strtisties rnd eome nminor affnirs, 't thrt tipe ve vere bney oo
the vork of elonging the bHollér und I reeall thrt I went out t- so* Ve
{ work, In nhout uwo hours ry work wes over, and I ~fme baek 4c 1w Jooi 2.
the officors' qurrters rnd hnd o rest, 1

{t that time I vee convoleseent, I hrd been sufforing from dysentary
and I hrd been token core of nt the contagious wverds fron the beplnning of
June, Towrrd thet time, the enety's forces Jended on Saipan, ord “fruk
boerre dongerous, So the heod of the hospitel nllored me to hne & rosh of
my rocms efter ry work rs ovVer.

On the wey to my room, I sew some potty officcers rnd men unlking towr oo
the semc direction in smrll proups, ond I aeked whot they werc going to dc.
They renlicd thet priscncrs hed arrived on the hill cné that they werc goir
to sce them,

I purposcly evoided going up the hill rnd went hnok to my room, J
wonted nothing to do with an exeeution, [bout two hours loter meny officcrs
pame Boek to the quertcrs and trlked abcut the execution, I recall that I
gold to soreone of them, I forpct his nrme, "If the enemy cormcs torerd me,

I shell be eble to fight with him beenuse he is the enomy. But I. cannot
ki1l cn enemy vho is n persom who connot dofend himself,"

T a1d not like to talk ebout the execution nfter that, and I did not
ask anything cbout it, .

;ftor the ineident tho nir reids beerme more and more furious, end we
vere fully oceupicd tvith werk every day, ~nd the incident wes ,tongpi’;tun.
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At the end of the wor I wat at the Umon bronch hospital, Then Surgeon
Captain Ivanami wes 111 nnd Surgeon Ceptein Tanedn was ncting ns the heed
| of the hospitol and Surgeon Commander Oknrmre was assisting him, Binee ve {
were strictly forbidden to talk sbout the incident we could not know the
renl story of the incident and what had been done in the way of settlement
of it even nfter the end of the war, .

On Janunry of 1945 I wns leaving the hospital to go beck to Japan vhen
Surgeon Captain Tancdon saicd to me, "Although you hed no connection with tho
{ncident you have a responsibility for it as the adjutent, You must not
speak rbout the incident after you arrive in Jannn on any recount, Don't
tell 1t even if you are killed."“

s I said nbove, I really had nothing to do with the incident I can
affirm it before mon nnd God with confidence, I believe there is not one
bid of fnlsity in his testimony,

I have stated the testimony of the prosecution witnesses, the testimony
of the defense witnesscs and the testimony of the defendant hinmself, If
this is summeriszed end judpged, it is cleer thrt the defendant is not guilty,

In other words, the foct thet Kemikawa hed nothing to do with the
{neident hae been proved by Ivanami and Oishi. It hos been proved by the
ritnessee Iwanomi, Oishi, Yokota and Ota, thet he wes not nt the sceno,.

It hns elso been clenrly proved by the testimoay of 0ishi and Juanemi thet
there 18 abeolutely ho truth 1 that Komdkewa neted us go=betwcen, when i
order vrs given Oishi from 'i:hunhoud of the hospital, But the witacsses Z<°
the prosecution Taneda and the others only gove snggostive tes inory vh..oh

\ inplied thet Famikara wes connected ia some wey with the ineldon:,  de2o” 33
of the chnrges nrd gpecificniions thet the proJecut-on has eh 2. hiv. U
been nroved, fLncomaing tu the testimony of the pres seubicon wivnaseas, M |
the testinony thot he wrs et the scene 18 recognizcd, the comm®ss’.0on of ¢
erime eonnot be determined by this, because therc werc over twent, offizera
ond almest one hundred enlisted men present, [bove nll, the lur Jdoes not
recognize that Kemikewn con be found guilty of murder on such veis and
un2lenr eviderza,

The prosecation hes failed completely in PALfL 40 1te Murten of
provf, Tuerc are the sayings in law which are ctrido:rd used in mokiag
judgrent in the onst ond in the west, They are cs fo.lows, "Tae doubtful
shall nct be punished,® "Though a thouserd persons ander suspicion escape,
do not punish an imnocent omc,"

I roquest that your honor the president of the comriseion and its
members will find the defondant not guilty.

In pertieular the family of the defendent Kamikewa consists of his wifc,
rge 28, eldcst son, ege 7, and caughter Junko, three years old and en eged
fother a fomily of four, The defendant's housc wrs borned and his mother aic
younger sister died pitifully owing to the. atomic bomb, which wes dropped ou
Hiroshima, His wife's fother and mother met a sorrowful denth by the same
bomh ond at the seme time her family house was also burned, The defendant’s
fathor ie sick in bed with ccrebral hemmornge, These are the pitifull
conditions under whioh his wife is trying to support her fardly by
herself, I ask speeic] mympathy in this case, I request that he be
relensed np oerly es posaible, '
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{RGUMENT IN BEHALF OF THE [.CCUSED IV/NIMI, HIROSHI.

It present when everybody has been relicved of the nbnormal excitoment
of the despercte bloody bettle field, nnd is enjoying neoce with the eool
rnd sovere eyes of the law, one may find numerous mistokes in the behavior
of the nocusod Imanami, However, -'e must notice that & man is & child of
onvironment, Is there anybody who does not love his fatherland? Even the
t=closs wor erininnls who ore being blomed as lenders of tho npgressive wor
aid so. None of them would think thet his rete violnted justice ond

humenity.

Still more, wrs there n warrior who had important responsibility and
duty in the frantie front, wherc the fomous bottles wore being waged, He
hod on cernest love of his country., He even abandoned himsclf in order to
perforn the ebsclute order of the jrresistible, powerful ect of his stote,
Ho only thought to do his best in his duty, However, the outlock of battle
turned ogninst him, [fter cefont aftor defect, he re-ched the verge of
annihilrtion. In such crscs, how wes the strtc of mind of this warrior?
1t is for heyond imnpinntion of those who ere enjoying pecce todey to knuow,

T-enami vre not a warrior, but he wes burdencd with much more importrar
respensibility thrn a varrior, At that time he wes 0 comnanding officer
of the Fourth Naval Hospital, Truk Ltoll which vas an important base of
the vanrncse novy in the Preifie [irons

Sirce he orrived ot the hospitel, he vwrs so o rnest in hia daty ti>
vas forratful of eleop or other comforts, He uscd to get up crly in b7
norninr heforc the urdincry onlisted men did. “n’ he worked Feed untli® %2
st mdghiie  In the torridble storvetdon ond rmicdsht ~-inn of sinclls, he twi.
his bo3ritul ot irsu, Luv it could acconndate oniv 500 to ALY potict &
On reconr.s of tae 2-y rnpd right oir ronida of thc cuenys, man’ perscns o
and suffcrcd from 12lnces, injury and verioud erddorics, In 3944, he hed
necomodrte more thon 1,000 prtients, After Februryy 1944, cepecially af-ce
the frl.. of Sainron, rir reics beerme very intcnse nnd brutel, They brro’
not on?y militrry inetnlloticns but clso the hospital, Eeuirnewt ot L1c
hospit-1 ms damppecd and meny notients werc killed or inj.rac, Evexv.r?
are nforid thet the cnnmy would eome to otteck the base, Fov only th
nilitery personnel h.t nlso the nonecorbntants resolved uo 2epat to Lue
1nst man., The ineidcnts in this case heppencé in such curcarstonces, I o™
the eommission to pay rttention to the sbnormel, spoeinl circumstances aro

peychologies of vartime vhon you derl with this casc,

t
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[ DR
LS

In his officicl position, the cccusod Iuanemi vas very lcyel and
striet, He might bo sometimes too strict tomerd his subordinotes but ke
had no lack of diseipline under his comrond even in the unfavornble
battle conditions, Everybody earried out his ordere faithfully, end his
duty wee completely carried out,

He is confined todey with his mony subordinetes, end is trerted cs a
wretehed prisoners, Being unable to beer tho rain of o nfinement some of
his feithful subordinetes might hove come to think that their cormanding
officer wrs wrong. They might have come to think thrt their eommanding
officor should be blamed for the poinful lives they ore leading in that
confinement and thoy have begun to blame or aooused him, I think it ecan no®
be helped, -

v
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However, we must think that vhen ho wes a commonding officer of o
department he hed no personal motives and shared every hardship with his
nen, [Although he wes in a bigh, poverful position, he wes never arrognnt,
He virs so unsclfieh th~t his family is now in a very poor, miserable
condition, Hies weck wife an?® doughter are working in order to moke their
living.

s an individuel, he wns & good neipghbor end n kind doctor, He was
filiel to his perents, ond wes a good frther ond a good husband at home,
I would like to cite his femily condition from his lettcr which he gave re,
I thin* thet you will know whrt ¥ind of a person Iwvanomi wee when he wase ot
hore,

"To Mpr, lkimoto:

"My frmily consists of my frther (81 yenrs old,) mother (72 yerre o0l¢,:
eldest deughter (18 yerrs old,), cldest eon (16 yerrs old) ond second
doughter (10 yonre old,) I cm the oldest of seven brothers, Besicdes, my
wife is the eldcst dnughter rf hor nrrente and their son died during the
tirre Thorcfore, I hove ¢ responsibility to suprort both of the two familics

"My prrents ore vcry old, so I took their plrce os the herd of tho
fomily to look after our femily, We had no property, snd I wos helping
fincneielly in their old rge, My brother wrs studying ot o university, ond
I hed to help him in his study too, Tho resson why I studied in order to
get the title of M,D, wos thet I ranted to delight my rerents whe were very
old, When I think of my porents, I grortly regret thnt I have beeh a8
undutiful eon,

"I received letters from my children, My eldest deughter, who is grc-.
up said, "hen you sce a tvinkling strr, plemse think that it is my oyes.®
My cldest scn vho is studying at a middle school said, 'I vish yom werc wit.
mo, For I think I could leern Emnplish from you,' My socond daughter who
is » pupil of a nrinrry school e-id, 'I forgot that you cmbreced me whon 1
weg fivo years old, Plerse cone back egein end embrace me.' When I rced {-
lettors of these pitiful childron in tho light of my unexpeeted fate, I foc.
ne if my herrt weore torn to pleccs,

"In order to commend ry tragle 1ife of 50 yoers ond to enjoy my later
prrt of 1life, I heve been working es herd r8 I could, I feel in a very
deplornble stote and om filled with deep emotion vhen I think of my
niserrble situation of todny." :

In order to know vwhrt kind of mon Iwanomi yre, I would like to cite o
prrt of his occosicnrl motes, He wrote down whot he thourht end whet “he
felt in his busy time of wrr, rnd it is a volume of 280 prges, He is a
prisoner now nnd he trought it mseloss to keep it, so he burned most of it,
He pave me o port of 1t, Of course it has no eomnectdon at all with the
cese, but I would like to eite juet a small pert of At to show his charactes

.mﬂ'
"In an opon space in front of the hospitel there is a big mango tree.

Its trupk is ns thick so three or four men would be able to gpread their
erne eround it, It strotehes its bronches ond leaves 8o denaely thet it has
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a wide, green shadow benceth it in the deytime, Petients who bomb to the
heenitel used to rest in the green shadow before they walkcd towerd the
werd, Patients often said that they felt os if they hed recovered their
hoalth ag soon o8 they entered the hospital ward, I think thet they got a
good impreseion of the hospital from this big mango tree.

"T wish T ecould give good impressicne to others without saying many
words, This is my most earnest desire,

"Once a men asked Yamamuro, Gumpeil of the Salvaticn /rmy, "Whet is your
businese throughout your life?" Yememuro answered, "It is to perfect my
personality," He is a very fine, cultured person, yct he says such, 1
sometimes feel regretful of ryself when I refleet upon myself,

MOne dey I bound my cssay book end asked Ldmiral Nagumo to write some=
thing et its beginning. 'Whot shell I write?' he srid, I replied, ' I om
not a man of virtue., Culture for me is not the problem of tomorrow but of
today, Will you write the following four letters?: 'Centrol myself and
cultivote virtue,' A long time hes passed sinee then, but I am stil) as I
wos. I am very regrotful, I nover srt end mediteted beneeth the big tree
of mengo, but I uscd to pnes by the tree, Driven to my wit's end, I once
appealed to the tree¢, saying, "If you have 2 sould big mango tree, will you
give me instructions?", and loocked up the tree, I have never felt before
or nfter thot time that the tree w-e really s great being.

Nagai, Kofu felt the sadness of 1ife when he saw a hollow in & trunk o
a tree, Mr, Mushakoji corposed o poem in praise of berutiful hexanity of
the world when he saw cedars growing up side by side, I #m not a writer
nor & poet, but I only express my agony in the things I write down,

Twanami wes & very excellent, studious scholar as o gcientific man,
He says thrt he got n title of doctor medicine because he desired to
delight hie prrents, But, think, he got the itle immedintely after he wne
greduated from his medical college when he was busy as a surgeon, I think
that thie shons his earmest desire toward hia study end his prominent
obility, It is admitted by many people that he contributed much for
medicel ort on the battlefield,

However, a man who is too earmest in his scientific reseerch is ept to
£a1l into temptetion, There is a tragedy thrt Dr. Kiyono, professor of the
Kyoto Imperial University, who wes too enrnest in his reserrch, stole a ror.
old book and was charged with thoft, But the people sympathised with him
rather then blemed him,

Okuyeme and Nebetani violeted military discipline but the accused
Iwanami did not punish them, and perticipeted in tho dissection of the
derd nfter the experiment, This is ¢ big mistrke in his 1ife, Mr, Susuki
stoted 1t with 1)lustration of angling. I think his explanation describes
Iwvanami's feeling very vell,

On sceount of the dissection he comsidered that he perticipeted in the
Jomuery incident, although he had nothing to do with it in fact, and be has
been charged as an necomplice of Okuyame and Nebetani, ‘It might be
unavoideble under sueh eiremmstences, but I foel very sorry for him,

The accused Imanemi has given up every hope now, FHe has not a bit of
coverdice in him, He nover intends to escape from the responsibility for
vhat he participated in, He admits the faets ce they were, He will never
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deny his portieipotfon in the Jonuory ineident, ns he scid in his statement,
Being unnble to csenpe from the temptotion, he rcted ns an neconplice in
the disseetion whieh he should net have tnken part ing rbd mcde snecimens

of the skulls, lHe told re whrt he had thought at thrt time as folloma,

I conunderstand his feeling, I bep your speecinl considerrtion rbout it:

"My state of mind when I took port in the disscetion whieh I should not
hrve donoq

"For threc yoers nfter I wns eppointed to be the hend of the heepital,
I hrd no chrnec to trect e petient, ond therofore I hod no chence of
dissection, Mr, Imcrurec, professor of the Mcdienl Deportment of the
Osokn University, dissectcd the corpse of his wife and investigerted the
couse of her deoth, The whole medieol vorld admired his errnestness in
study, vhile ordinary pcople rogrrded the disscetion either os a disproce
to the corpse or n brutel ret to cut derd bodics to pleccs., Such a
foolish mistoken viow should be corrceted by his corncstnoss for study whic:
stcod obove his gricf, I know hin cspeeinlly well, I not only edmired
what he hrd done hut nlso felt keenly the importonce of the dissecticn,

"Just ot thet tine, Okuyrme c¢one to me nnd seid, 'I on perforning a
disscction, Vill you crme rnd terch me ehout 1t?' Okuyane wes o vory
enrncst men in study, ond I was very delighted when he osked ny instruetion,
I folt o little proud of myself snd went out to the disscetion room where J
found derd bodice of white men, 8 I saw them I was astonished, for their
chests and bellye were elrerdy cut open, The disscetion wes being rerfornd”
There werc surpocns nnd corrsnen, Thoy were errnestly performing the
disscction, and looked delirhted vhen they sew me, I could not blame then
after cll,

"For o long tire, I hrd been trorting tuboreulosie, In order to Juds«
the X=rey picturc of the disemse accurantcly, cne rust disscet the lunss
referring to the pieture, Thet is vhy I hnd dene many dissecticns ond
nccurmloted the knowledpe and experiences of thet discese, I srv decd
bodics being dissected after threc yerrs intcrvel of time, . Stimulrted by
ry thought concerning the disscetion vhich I held at that tire, I was
spurred by ry crrnestness for rescerch, So I cnswered the questions of
cnrnest, studious Okuyrnn, ond dissccted the sccond corpese, Then I heard
thrt all of the prisoncrs werc uscd in experiments, I was vory nstonished,
I rocovercd ry rcesrn ond hurriedly quit the roon,

"My stete of mind vhon I sent the skull to o medical school,

"I rerd an eesny on rcscareh on the skulls of /imu in ordcr to rrove
vhether the Jorrnose are the descendents of the 'imu rece (Written by
Dr, Kodema, profeseor on disscction nt the Medieal Depertment of the
Hokknido University,) snd ecme to have an ecrncst interest in the skull,

"Just nt thot timo, when I -es lorving tho dissection room, Okuyora
said to me, "I will cromate these cornsce.® In the next morning, I recall:x
the disscetion, Since I hrd a grort intcrert in the skulls, I thought it
very reprotful to dispose of the corpsce beeruse I might be rble to know
the suncrior quality of /mcrieans from their skulls, Tho high eivilisotion
of /meriea wrs built by their execllent intellirenee, So I intended to
send the skulle to n military medicrl school to show then to experts so
thot tho surorior qurlity of the rnce might be nroved, I thought nt thrt
time thrt their suneriority might depend upon morriegcs between different
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rnd excellent racess I desired that they would study {4 in order to pet sore
surzestion of the future mrrricgo of the Japrnese race, To assume the
Jendershin of the Erst, Jnpan nust enjoy high eivilization rs /mericons do,

T thought of the future of our fethorlend so cornestly toet I mefe the
specimens,

"fhen I reflect upon it now, I am very regrotful as to vhy I did such
silly thinps,"

Your Honor, the Prceident and Members of the Commission, I beg you wil?
consider vhrt kind of person Inrnami wrs in nll of his rectivitics, as an
individurl, es an officinl men ond as @ seicentist,

Now, I would like to argue eoncerming erch specification of the
chargcs.

The first specificrtion of the first chorge states: "Ivanami, Hiroshi
then n surgeon cortoin, Impcriel Japrnesc Navy, Corrending Officer of the
Fourth Neval Hospitol, cttrehed to the nilitery instellotions of the
Inperiel Japrnese Navy,. Dublon Island, Truk ltoll, ond vhile so serving ot
the scildl Fourth Navrl Hospitel, with Okuyeme, Tokiknzu, docecascd, then a
surgeon commander, Impericl Japenese Nevy, and Nebetani, Reijiro, deecesec,
then n surpeon lieutoncnt, Imnerial Jon~nese Nevy, nttrched to the Fourth
Neval Hospite ond othor pcrsons unknovn,, did, at Dublon Island, Truk Ltoll,
on or nhout 30 Jonurry 1944, ot o tine vhen n state of wer existed betwecn
the United Stotce of /reriea, itse Lllics ond Dependeneics, ond the Imperie’
Jeprnese Empire, wilfully, fcloniously, with rremeditotion ané melice
nforethourht, ond without justifisble couse, rseoul t, strike, injuro,
infeet ond kill, hy experinmenting with injeceticne of virulent bocterie,
with exposuresé to sheck ond with other metrods, the exact naturc and
character of which to the rel-tore unknovn, six (6) Lmericon TPrisoncrs of
l'nr, namos to the relntor unknown, thon and there held coptive by the
nrmed forecs of Jeran, this in violrticn of the low ond custorms cf wor,"

The accused Ivanami strenuously denics this cllcgcd fret, This
{ineident wrs norformed by Okuyrme,. Nebotand nnd Nekerura, end the cecused
heé nothinr to do with it.

The beginning of thise ineident wrs whon Commonder Okuyane communierted
vith Licutcnant Heseraws, surgeon of the Forty=first Novel Guard Unit and
told Ivencmi that they wemt to perform o rhysicel exaninntion on the
prisoncrs, At that time, Okuyens was studying the relation between
physienl strongth and food, cnd he himself v~s prreteing onting two menls
a dny. Lceording to hie opipion, ony grosses that can be eaten by a here
nre odible for men, He stoted thet o man cAn maintnin his physical strengts
bv eeting grasses alcne cnd he eollected meny kinds of gresscs in his roon.
Tuenard onec rord his essay, It wrs reelly worth rerding, end he neyod
cortrin respect to him, It was Okuyoma who told him thet he vented to
exnmine the prisorers, so the aceuscd, Twancrd, hrd no suspieion ahcut thri
ond gove treit ecnsent to him,

At 7 n.me on the day before the ineident, Okuyrmo ond Hnsegata come %o
my room rt the hospitel and Okuyamn soid, "I om going to cxomine tomorrow
the blood pressurc ond the rhysieol condition of the prisoncrs ot the
dispensary of the Forty-first N-vnl Guord Unit,® I asked him whethcr he
would go thore rlone, and he replied th~t he gond teke Nokemurs with hin,
Thon Okuyrra and Hasogawa worc telking rhout scmething on the veranda of the
officc of the herd of the hospitel, anc I went out to visit Reer Adriral
Uekrbeyusht vho vos eiok ot thet tire,
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In the rorning of the day of the ineident, he said to me thet he wantod
to teke o dontist with him -8 he would oxrmine their teeth too, 04t thrt
tiro, rll the crrs of the hoepitel were out of order cxcent mine, end hesider
the fuel wes vory short, So I went to visit Tokoboynshi, took them in ry
cor to the Gurrd Unit, (Raknbeyoshi's ward wrs on the wey to the Gurrd Unit’
1 got out of the ecrr in front of the gote of the Guard Unit, £8 I hod nover
socn the disponsary of the Cuerd Unit, I intonded to sce it onec, so I went

with then,

Okuyona rnd other persons ontercd o room, which ves not the dispensrry
tut r reercntion room sccordin: to my recollection rt thot tine, 48 I,
entercd, I scw eight prisoners, one of whom woe & black ran, ‘round the
conter of the rrisoncrs, therc w78 Licutcnant Hrsepown, As soch nB ve
ontored there our brockfrst wes served; It wes rbout cight o'elock in the
morning, I tolked rith Okuyrre nnd Hosepowe end soid thet the ordinery
meol for enlisted rem wou'd not fit for thecse persons, Lfter the rerl,
Okuyeme srid to me thrt he vrs going to cdo a blood cxamination, I sew a

surgeon ncer me, (8 I hed iong experience in hlood oxaminetion, I

uanted to terch hin how to do it, I said, "Only e spall crount of blood
is noecsscry, You ruet nay attention to os not to couse them podn, Do
14ve this." So seying, I took somo blood from the enr of a nrisoner and
pove nn exarple to hin, Then Okuyrne told me thet he vanted to exemine
thor es he orme to thom, 50 I adviscd him, looking rt four bleod test
{nstrurents ~hich were on the desk, th~t he hrd betber exanine ther four
by four nccording to order, Then I left the room to visit Reer [Ldmiral
I ~¥abaynshi, I wre in the dispensery rbout trenty minutes end I hed no
connection with the ineident exeopt thot, I did not scc Captain Tanckr n<
244 I conteet him for the use of the disrensory.

T think thrt this stotoment is v:orth believing,

Four witncsscs of the nfosceution toock the stond conccrning thie
point, rnd I would 1ike to cxapine their testimonys 1 shrll point out tha
tastinony of Captain Tancka, Surpeon Lioutenant Hosepeva, Surgeon Licutcris
Neokemura, Comrnandcr Iino end the cceused Ivannmi end corpre then with ono
another,

Bofore refcrring to their tostimony, I think it is necessery to
consider the position of these witnessces in the inecident,

First: Surpcon Licutenont Hesegouc is not cherped in this cese. Buc
thore are rony suspieious points ahout him for which he might be chrrged.
He is not on cny account » third person in this ineidont, In order to te
exerpted fron being chorged, he wrs vory busy defending himself, [nycnc
enn imrgine this from his tcstinony.

Soeond: Surgeon Iicutenamt Nekamura wos p porson who wes concernec
in the incidont, He wne o surge D under tho command of Okuyema, end he
hirsolf hrs tostificd thet he perticipeted in the ineidont by the order of
Okuynre, Tho first specifiertion of the first thesrge states: "Mwith Okuynur
Tokikera, Nebetani, Reijiro, apd others unknown,...." It is now elenr
thet "others unknoon® is Surpeon Licutonant Nekemure, Shigeyoshi, At the
time of the investip~tion, Nekanuro wes not loenrted, Although it wes
pnéritted thaot Nokomuro wos o conspirator of the crime, they could not
chorge him, end 8o he wr8 not ineluded omong the anccused, Homever,
Nokerura arperred nfter the ehnrges werc served, If the Jjudge advoecte
eould hove found ‘thet Nekemuro hed not committed o erime, he should hove
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stricken out "others unknown® from the charges, But the judge ndvoerte did
not Jdo thot, I think that is because he admitted the guilt of Nekermura, The
judge advocste held brck from charging him and let him stand ne a prosceut- - \
jon's witness., I firmly believe this, I think that no one will object to
this belief of mine, Could Nakamurs tell the truth under such circumstances?
1f ho wns not a foolish man, he wou'd nrturally heve thought thet he would
{mmedintcly be cherged when he told the truth, Then, in distress, he
testified thet he had only kept the record. In the ense of Sokagami, which

T nrgued before, he confessed thet he injocted the prisoners, but mede an
excuse thot he injected a nroper amount of morphine in order to remove the
pain of the prisoner, To the eross=exnminnticn of the defense, he testificd
nesuming innocence thet he did not ¥now how much morphine is nocessary for o
mon to die. Thus he tried to shift his responsibility onto the shoulders cf
Sakegemi, I think anybody can guess this, Concerning Iwanami, he testificd
in the same way. He committed suicide vhen he was undor eross=examination
on the day when he testificd apeinst the accused, I hope that the commissio»
will judge whnt the cause of his suicide is.

I crnnot place my confidence in such testimony, Besides, thecro nre
rumerous inconsistencics ond suspicions in his testimony, I beg your
careful consideration upon this point,

1, Coptein Trnoka, Mescharu, prosecution's witness.

Q. Did you have ony conversaticn with Iwanami conecrning the prisoncre”
A, Ivenami ceme to visit me onco, Fhen he visited me I talked with
hin on the veranda of my qurrters, tt this time he said to me, "I would
1ike to uce the priscncrs for experinents, and 1 told him the hoandling of
prisoners is o greve matter. He egain stated thnt these were for the sak.
of the Jopanose navy, end thet "T will couse you no troublc.” But I rcfusna
it apain, |

Q. Did he soy, "Lend me prisoners for experiments?" cnd did he sy
vhere to perform thesc oxperimente?
IL. HCI‘

Q. Did he mcke ony request for the use of the dispensary at the Guerd
Unit?
L, No,

(Cross=cxnmined by the nccusod, )

Q. Then vhet you testified to regerding experiments at your own

dispenscry is only henrsoy?
L, It is only whet I henrds

2, Surgoon Lieutenant Hnsegewe, Tomio, prosecution's witncas,

Q. Did you ever talk with Iwenami and Okuyems at the hospital
concorning the prisoners (exeept those who wero given operaticns by Hascgove'

A, Yes, It was in Janucry 1944, about one weck after I had received
operation of my foot, I wos resting nt the veranda of the officers’
qurrters when Executive Officcr Neknse told me thot the gommanding officer
yms calling me, I went to the Commanding Officer's room where I saw .
Tvonami and Okuyama, They seld to me, ®T hear thrt there are eight prisoners
of war at the guard unit, Ve want to use it for -experimonte, Ve also vent
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to use some building of the guard unit for the experinent, Concerning the
experiments wo hove alrerdy been given permiseion the higheat authority and
the understanding of Commanding Officer Tanakn, Will you lend me a part of
the building of the guard unit for it1® T said, "I ean not give you the
answer before I receive permission from Chief Surgeon Iino,® but they said,
"We have alrerdy talked it with Iino ond ho understood it," Okuyemn said,
"ls soon es wo finish the oxperimentes we will eut the rrisoners® and he
showed how to cut them with his hands, Most part of these negotiantions were
spoken by Okuyama, After the talk wns over, I came back to tho dispensary
and moved the petients of the isolation ward to enother place, In the
evening, I tolephoned to Iino, but I eould not eall him, I recallod that
Iino had en understending rbout it, so I dotermined to telophone him next
morning and returncd to my quarters, Then after it wes dark, obout oight
DeMe, an cnlisted man of the reception room ceme to me with o reper on which
the names of the eight prisoners were written in English, I moved them fror
their plaec of eonfinement to the dispensery, Since I opernted on one of
them and he wrg in the dispensary, the prisoners I moved were seven, BEarly
in the next morning, I enlled Iino by phone nnd reported it, Bu® he sajd
he knew nothing rhout such a thing, I wos very confused and ren to the
dispensary, I intended to ston the oxperiments :f they had not yet Begun.,
But I henrd at the reception room that the experimeats alrerdy began, It
was too lote, So I went out to visit the prtients, After I finished my
sick call, I vent to the dispensary to greet them whon I saw Iwanami,
Okuyama, Nabctani end Nokemurn, (Then he referred to the experiments
performed by Otuyamn rnd Nabetond,)

Q. On the next day, when the experiments were over, did you meet tha
officers of the hospital?

Le The hend of the hospitel said to me through the window, “I'1l go
back to the hospitrl eince the cxperiments cre over,"

(Cross=examin~tion by the accuscd,)

Q. You testified thot you saw Ivanami, Okuyamo, Nnbotani, and Nekam:r.:
at the dispensary, But isn't it true that Ivanemi left the dispensary
shortly nftor he arrived?

A, It is true that Ivanmmi left thero shortly efter he arrived, He
said thnt he nns going to do sick enll in other places,

Q. Then is it true thot the head of the hospitel did not take part
in the experiments?
L. It is true,

Qs You testified that the hond of the hospital said to you through tha
window, "I will go back to the hospital since the experiments are over,"
Is thot true?

A, This morning, I testifiod that he wrs the hood of the hosrital, but
I do not remember exnetly whether it wos Iwanami or Okuynma, Although I
testified such this morning, I am not ecrtain about it, Flesse ask other
witnesses about it,

Q. You testified that Mwanami and Okuyamn talked with Captain Tanaka,
Which of Iwanami and Okuyama talkod with Tanaka?

4, I do not remember who talked with Tanake, But Okuyome spoke nost
prrt of the conversotion,
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Q, %ho scid the following: "I reccived the permission from the
%ghe:: authority, the understonding from Captodn Tanrke ond Ohlef Surgeon
no,"
£, T do not remember exactly,

Qs Did you report to Iino about the oxperiment after that?

Ly I telephoned him obout it beforehand; fbout five deys or one
weck after the experiment when I met him ot the officers ¥ quarters I
renorted to him that the experimonts wore overs

(Re exnminetion)

Q. (Shoring Horopowa's statenont which he vrote at the Sugemo prison
and pointea out ircorsictencics in his tentdnony,)

L. L thc incident huprened yoors 020, 1 connot reeell vho it wns. A%
that timc I ¢t ocusht it vne the hend of tho hesritel, but now I am n~t corinty
whother 1t vms the hond of tho hoepital or Okvynma, The more I think rbrut
it, *he lescs I ca certain rbout it.

3, Commender Surpeon Ifno, Shizuo,
(Dircet examinntion by the Jjudge edvoente)

Q. Did you cver talk with Hoserown conecrning the use of the diepenstty
by the officcce of the hoerital?

A, I ¢id, I cennot reeell the drto, He soid to me thot t-e officers
of the Fourth Navrl Hospital wented to use the dispensary for the plyed arl,
oxaminaticn of the mdscners, I ves surprised and said to him, *You nust o
nllor them to do so, lLet them leeve,", ond I nrohihited hinm to partinsipnie
in such n thinﬂl

4, Surgeon Lieutennnt Nakamurn, Shipeyoshi.
(Dirent cxaminction by the judge ndvoente)

L, I was a surgcon ond vics wncer the commend of Commander Olwyomn. I
vas ordered by Oluyema to keop record of the rhysieal examinction, Thon
I rocoived the order, therc wns orly Okuyanr ond I thero.

Q, Toll rbout tho conversntion between you and Okuyama,
L. Okuyamn soid to me that experinents coneerning shock and boeteria
would bo held nt the Gunrd Unit,

Q, What kind of experimcnts were done?
Experiments on pulse, blood pressure and blood were done. The hcad
of the hospital set o good exnmple of the test,

Lfter tho test wra over, whei happencd?
e hord of the hospdted divided them into trio groubs of o
prisoners ench then he went to the mext room, I think he wre there about
two hourse It 1s true thet Tvenazd wos not in Olagynme's rooms

Qs 014 Okuyema report to the hend of the hospital?
A, I think he didy Itmlunmumtﬁyndlrmnm&h

npmwdu&otmmml.

(Crossesuaninntion)
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Q. You tostified that the hend of tho hoepital set a good exnmple of
the tost, Thrt kind of tcst wrs it?
L, He tock emell cmount of blood from the eers of o rrisoner.

Q,. You testified thrt the hond of the hospital went to Nnbetani's
room whieh wrs the next one, How did you know that?

4, ( Hc could not answer, He wes wa ned agein and arain by the
Prosidept but kept silence for more then ton rdmutes end nt lnst he
tostified) T Morrd his footstopes.

Q, You tostified thnt Ivn-nmi wae in the next roor for two hours, How
@id you know thrt?

A. (Ho tould not amsvoyj &nd did nmot spock for e long timo, Ho wes
verned and rt Inet testified) I sew hin lesving,

Q, Ther did you sce it?
L, (He @@ not cemwor' for & few minutcs end at last rmeuered) I sew
nt the Forty=first Nevel Guard Unit,

5. Cn‘r!tl."'in Immi. !ﬂruﬂhi.
(Dircct cxnminotion by the ncoused)

Q, Tell chout the prisoncrs you 8Cv nt the Gusrd Unit on 20 Jenuory
1944«

L, Then I wne glaneing rt the documents at the room of the herd of th:
hospitnl, Ccrmarder Okuyome suddonly como to my room rnd said, "I nm going
to cxnmine the physicel condition of the rrisonors at the Guerd Unit,”
Oluyemn usod to odvoerte his two meals nrineiple, and study rbout edible
grasscs, He was such an carnest, studious perscn thnt I thought it wrs o
usurl physieal oxamincticn md bed no suspicion sbout thet, On the next dcy
vhen I was going to moke a sick. eell to Rerr Admirnl Tekebayeshi, I soid to
him, "I'1] take you to the Guerd Unit.® In the morning I took \me ,
Nekemurn end a dentist in my crr and we got out of tho err nt the gete of
the Guard Unit, I intonded to 800 inside of the Gurrd Unit, so I wont with
them, They onterod the reeroctiom room ond I @44 so too, In the room,

I sew oight rrisoncrs ond Burgoon Lioutenant Hascgowe was by them. In the
nerntime thoir menls were sorved, 1 talked with Hasogava ond Okuyoma ,
"hov will he uncblo to eat enlisted men's moals,” Thon Okuyrma told mo.
that ho would do o blood tcst, L8 I hod hod o long oxpericnec eo
thab1nodtnntImntdtomwhmmdoiﬁtunmgemumnnul. ou
must teke thoir blood like this,® so soying, I took o small cnount of blood
fron an cay of a rrisener onft sot the o c. Then I mado & sick ecll to
Mokobeyashi's quartors, 8o I wes ot the gunrd unit only for twomty pimutcs,

Q, Did you divide tho rrisoncre into two groups of four orgh?

L, No, I did not, it thot time Okuyrmn disinfected the oor of o
prisoncrs who wme ot the furthorest ond, /s I scw four hlood teat
inplemenges on the dosk and I ndvisod them, "You had botter tost them four
by four aystematically, ond thin I Teft,

Q@ P44 you moot Oaptain Tonnkn?

L, Cartain Mkn'ammtowrmrhlawl Hospitel when he
guffored from stomach diecaso, end I introdueed him to the ohicf of the
intornnl ward; Thet 48 tho only time I mot hism,
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Q. Did you tell Hasegawe thet you received the permission of the
hirhcst ‘cuthority concerning the oxporiments?
f. No, I nover cekod for sueh permission, ncr 1irisoned cbout it, I cnmo
herd of o depertmont ond used to sdvocate the striet mnintoncnee of rdlitrry
diseipline, So I eould nct do like that,

Q. Did you over talk with Hescpawn ond Okuyome in Tenoka's room in his
prescnoc?
L. No, I ncver vwent to his room,

First of all, let us point out diserepeneics ond inponsisteneics botrreen
Trneke's and Hrseprwa's testimony,

Captain Tonoke testificd: Ivonamd visitod hin onece, He said to him
(Tancka) that he vmntcd to examine prisoncrs for the stke of the Jeponesc
nrvy. But Toncka rofused it ecying, "Handling of prisoncrs is o greve
matter." There wes no such telk ns, "I vant to usc the prisoners for
experimonts® or ",....c¢0 1t at such nnd such n plece,® Ivenomd @4d not sny
thot ho vonted to do it at the Forty-first Nevrl Gunrd Unit, [And whot
Trnrkn testificd reprrding the experiments is only vhrt he herrd,

Surreon Licutonont Hesegowe tostified: Ivmancmi cnd Okuynma scid to
Hnsopevn in the prosence of Captoin Tencka, "Te wont to use eight prisoners
of the gurrd unit for tho oxperimonts, T'o oleo wont to hrve some plece in
the punrd unit for the exporimonts, L8 to the experiments, we hove recoived
tho permission of the highost suthority and the andmission of Captein Tencka,
Captoin Tencka did not say enything. T thought thot Chiof Surgeon Iino geve
permission for it, eo I lont them o port of the dispenscrye

L1though surgeon Hasegnwe mipht not xnow how to handle the prisoncrs,
Captain Tancka hed to Jmew it, I think thrt Toncke's testimony, "Hondling
of prisoncrs is ¢ greve matter," 4s crodible, Thon how could Tancke keep
silencc when they said in his proscnce thot they hed received rdnmission
fron him? It is clenr that tho testirony of Hoserrvia is fnlsc,

ts to this point, Irannmi testified thnt he met Trncke only oneo when
Trnekn come to the heepitel to cure his stonoch diseasc ond thot he intro-
duced Tannkn to the chicf of the intornal werd, Ho also tostifiod thot he
did not visit Tancka's room et ell, Therefore, it is doubtful vhother it
uns Iveneml or another person vho met Tancke. Tonoka served on Truk only
for 58 crys. He wans sent hoeck to Jepen sinee ho was thought to decrepit
to be equel to his duty, So ho wne only thirty-ocd doys on Truk ct the
timc of the ineident, DBoeides, he is ¢ vory old mon, Wo crnnot think thot
he eon elerrly roerll the ovents whieh haprcned threo yonrs afo. It might
be Okuyame, not Iwenomd twho met Tencke, I om afreicd thet he confused
Iranomd with Okuyrme,

Even Surgeon Licuteonont Hasegewt tostificd to the eross-cxaninntion
of the defense counscl: "Qe You testified thrt Ivaneml and Okuyame talked
with you in tho prcsenge of Coptein Tanckas The, Toonrmd or Okuyome epoke tc
you? &, I do not remember who spoke to mo, But T recnll that Okuycra
talked most pert of the conversction, To tho question: "iho snid, I
reecived the permission from the highost authority ond cdmissions from
Captain Tomoka ond Chief Surgeon Iino?" He ansvered, "I do not roemember
oxnotly," His testimony concorning Ivonemi is too vogue to be plreed
in confidenco, I conclude thrt the tostirony of Ivenomi 1s the truth,
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Espceinlly Hasegawa testified: Someone said to me, "I received the
permission from the highest authordty and perm’ssion from Captain Tanskn
and Chief Surgeon Iino,"® I trusted his words end began the preparation at
ence. T telephoned Iino in that evening, but I could not ¢all him on the {
phone, so I telephoned him agadn in the next morning. But Iino said to me,
"T did not give such pormiseion,” and I wes confused, I ran to the dispensar
to stop the cxporinments before it would begin, But I heard at the reception
thnt the experiments hed clreedy begun, It was too lete, 8o I went out fur
sick enll, v

Thie testimony is most ridiculous. No one will trust such child's play,
I beliove thet the judge advoccte himself will not trust it,

Hesegown is not a ehild, not ten or 15 yeers old, He 1s a surgeon
licutennnt. Iino wane chief surgeon of both the Fourth Navel Base and the
Forty=first Navel Guerd Unit, ond wes not et the gunrd unit, Therefore,
Honsegowa wes, in roality, the responsible person in the guard unit, He wrns
in such o responsible position, yet he trusted the words of the officer of
the hosrital, "I rocoived tho permission,"” and did not inform Iino by
telephone until the next merning. Iino used to visit the guard unit once or
tirico o weok, but he did not report the oxperiments until ton deys after
that, No one can justify whet he did, It mey be funny to soy ho was
confused by the noxt morning's telerhone call with Iino and ran to the
dispensery to stop the experiment before it vould begin, but when he honrd
that the experiments hrd elrendy bogun he went out for sick cell without
entering the dispensary. This is most inexcussble, I cannot help thinking
sbout how his stote of mind wes, If his words were true, he would have
ontered the dispensary cnd stopped the experiments eccording to the intert.::
of Iino, Probably they were doing blood tests at thot time, if the
experiment had begun, He could have checked the experiment before it grew

serious, 1

But ho did not stop it. Even without cntering the dispensary, he weno
out for sick eall, Thosc who are in a normel state of mind cannot under=
stond what he did.

Besidcs, according to the tostimony of Ivenomi, Hasegawe wos in tho
roon with the eight prisoners when Twanami ond other officers arrived et too
dispensery, and then the prisoncrs meal was served, Your Honor, the
President and Mombors of the Commission, I hone you will give e rensonablc
judgment rs to which of them is true,

Titncss Hasegawa testified to the eroes=exnmination of the defense
counscl, "It is certain thot Twenami loft immediately after he arrived, Id
said thnt he hed to visit o patient,® In this point, beth Iwenami's opd
Hosegewn's testimony coineides, But there is o differenpe as to whet tine
1t uns., Irenard said that he arrived at the guard unit about eight 8.8,

and left thore about twenty minutes after that to visit Wekabeyeshi, Whlle
Hesegnve said that he ontered tho dispensary aftor his sick call and 1§ wes
about 10 a.nm, :

Then, Hasogam's testimony that he ran to the dispensary to stop the
experiments but hcheard at the roceytion that the experiments had alroady
begun and he went out for siek eall is not true., He was in the room at'the
dispensary, Because he testified, "It is certain that Ivenami left shertly
after he arrived, He said that he had to visit a petient."” Then tbe defens
counsel osked, "Then it is true that Imepami did not perticipate in the

ot on that day?®  He answered, "It is true," Theee pumercus fRetse

experime
prove thot the ta% % W’:“' A
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Hnsegava ansvered to tho direet exoninertion of the judge ndvoerte,
"On the next dny, the hond of the hospitnl said to me through the window
thot tre exporiient w~s over ond thrt he vre lerving," Concerning this
tostinony, the rceused croes=exomincd in order to elerr the point, end he
snid, "I testified this morning thet it ves the head of the hospitel, But
I an not surc vhether it wns the heed of tho hospital or Okuyone, L1thougch
T teetified like thot this morning, I am not ccrtein aos to thnt point, I
hope you will nek rhout thet to other mitnesses,” From this testirony, you
con scc thot whet he scid apeinst Ivannrd is ineredible,

As I heve stoted, both Tancke ond Hesegova's testimony cannot prove
thnt Tranamd hed ony conncction with this incident, On the contrery, it is
1ikely to give an impressicn thrt Tvanard had nothing to do with the ineident

Tho judge edvoerte apedn oxardned the witness Hasopawa by showing his
statement vritten nt the Supemo prison, Then Hosegeawa testificd: "Since it
heproned yerrs npo, I ernnot reenll whrt it wes, At thot time I thought
it vos I ononml, But now I oam not sure vhother it wos Iwanard or Okuyemn,
The more I think nbout it the lcss I ean reerll it," I think this might be
hies truc woico,

Can such vock, voguo testimony prove the alleged focts crninst the
nccused Ira ord? Certainly, they ernnot.

T would like to cxamine the testiromy of Nekamurco, nexte

hrt Nokomurn testified to tho direct oxorinction of the judge advoeni
rre as follovs:

1. The herd of the hospitel did o okillful test,

2. The herd of the hespitel diviced the rrisoners in tvo prours of
four ench,

3. I think thrt the herd of the hospitrl wont 4o the next room wheie
Nebotond wre, I think thrt he stayed there sbout two hours,

4., I think thrt Okuyrne rerorted the experiment to the herd of the
hosritnl on tho next dey,

He nlso testified to the eross=cxrninati n of the defenge counscl ar
follows:

1, Skillful tost meens to toke n snell cnount of blood from o prisor.i
err,

2, Ls you noticed he could nrt onstuer the question ecneerning the fro®
thet I-nnami vent to the next room, Lftcr he wes wrrned cgnin ond apodn by
the President, he nnsvercd ot lnst, W think that I hesrd his footsteps.™

3, He eould not cxplein thet Ivanani wes in the noxt room for two
hours. He wns nlso worned ond seid resping, "I 8w thrt he vent out,"

4, He could not ensver the questicn, "Phen whore d4d you sce hin?®
He kept e long silence $il1 nt last he ansrered, "I sew him nt the Forty=
first Gurrd Unit,

T think thet the commission will remerbor this funny nnswor,
Le T statod before, Nokormurn wos one of the gonspirctors of Okuyema on'
is nlleped in the chargo. T bolieve thot he geve false testimony in order %

csecpe from heing aseuscd and that he tricd to tune himsclf with the judge
rdvoeate,
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Considering all or any testimony of the above witnesses of the proscoute
ion, the first specification of the first chorge ageinst Ivanomi 48 not
proved, The judge advoecte faniled to prove it except that Iwanami made a
ekill1ful teat by toking blood from a prisoner's car, - I om convinced that
he should naturelly be ncquitted a8 to this point, Iwanami, the rocused,
should nrturelly be found not guilty of this charge,

The second specification of the first cherge stetes: Iwanami, Hiroshi,
then o surgeon eaptrin, Imncrial Japanese Novy, cormanding officor of the
Fourth Noval Hospital, and Sekagami, Shinji, then c warrent officer,
Imperial Japenese Nevy, reting with Okuyome, Tokikasu, end others unknown,
did, ot Dublon Island, Truk itoll, Cnroline Islands, on or about 1 February
1944, wilfully, fcloniously, with premeditation end malice aforcthought,
ond without justifiable ceuse, assault, strike, injure, blest and kill, by
oxplosions of dyncrite cnd strenguletion two (2) imerican Prisoncrs of Var,
thon and thore held captive by the Armed forecs of Japen, this in violotion
of the lawe snd customs of wrr,

Ls to this elleged fret, I have already stated the innocence of the
accused Sekogomi in my argument, But hns Ivanami any connoction with thip
{neident? Iuanami hed really nothing to do with this nlleged fact, It is
hard for me to understand why this epeeification wes served against Iwenami.
Besides, the judge advoecte did not prove anything as to whrt Ivonami did
{n this nlleged fnet, I supnose thet the judge advocate might think that
this alleged fret has n eonnection with the fact alleged in the first
spceifiertion of the first charge, JAs I have expleined in detail, I proved
thot Iwanami hrd nothing to do in the alleged fret of the first specifi=-
ention of the first chorge. If the judge advocete mnintains thet there is
some relation betwoen these two alleged foets, I shall apnly what I have
stoted before in order to prove the innocence of the accused Iwanemi, But.
in any point of the alleged feect of this specificetion, I cannot find any
rolation with the alleged foet of the first specificrtion, . The rerson
Tranemi ves sccused in. this specificntion is hard to understand,

Lfter all, the accused Iwanami had nothing to do with the alleged fnct
of this spccification, I maintein thet this nlleged fret 15 groundlcas,
Sineo the judge advoeate rroved nothing rbout what Iwanami id in this
nlleged fact, I think it is unnecessary to argue any further, I think tort
the accused Iwanomi should noturally be acquitted from-the scgond
spocificntion of the first charge,

Tt is statod in specificaticn three of charge one thpty #In thet
Tvenami, Hiroshi, then a Surgeon Captein, Imperiel Jepenege Navy, Command::.

0fficer of the Fourth Navel Hospital end Chicf Surgeon e Fourth Fleet,
attached to the military installations of the Imperial J e Havy,
Dublon Islinnd, Truk Atoll, Crroline Islands, Kamikava, p then a

surgeon lieutenant, Imperial Japanese nvy, Oishi, Tetsuo, them a surgeon
lieutonant, Imperinl Japcnese Navy, Asamura, Shunmpei, then an ensign,
Tmperial Jeprnese evy, Yoshisawa, Kensnburo, them n corpsman chief petty
officer, Imperinl Japenese Navy, Homma, Heehiro, then a corpsman chief petty
of ficer, Imperial Jap-nese Navy, Watdnabe, Mitsuo, then a peymoster chief
petty officer, Imperial Japrnese Navy, Tanabe, Mamoru, then o corpsman ehief
petty offieer,Imperial Japanesc Navy, Mukni, Yoshihisa, then a corpsmam
chief potty officer, Imperial Jepemese Navy, Kewashima, Tatsusaburo, then a
corpamnn petty officer first class, hporini Japonese Navy, Sewadn, Teuneo,
thon a paymester petty officer first cleass, Impcriel Jopenese Novy, Tanake,
Tokunosuke, then o corpsmen petty officer first cless, Imporial Japonese
Novy, Namoteme, Kasuo, then a corpsmen potty officer second ¢lass, Tekamishi,
Susumu, then a eorpsmen petty officer first elass, Imnerial Jepenese Nevy,
Axebori, Tolehize, then o corpemen petty officer second class, Imperial
Jopanese Wawy, Duwnbars, Hireyuke, them & gorpsman petty officer second pluna

TFIED T0 BE A TRUE COM{ " {40)®
e

/ JAMES P, KENNY \
lieutenant, .. Havy,




Inperinl Jopanese Nevy, Tsutsui, Kisnburo, then o eorpsmcn pretty officer
second class, Imperiel Jnprnese Navy, Mitsuhashi, Kichigoro, then a corps=
ran petty officer second clnss, Tmrerial Jap~nese Nevy, nll nttrehed to and
sorvine ot the Fourth Nevnl Hospitnl, attrched to the militery installotions
of the Imperiel Jeponese Newy, ot Dublon Island, Truk Atoll, Ceroline
Islande, nnd others to the relrtor unknovm, dic, erch ond together, on or
about 20 July 1944, ot Dublon Islnnd, Truk Atoll, Ceroline Islands, at o
tinc Thon o state of vrr cxirted betweon the United States of Imcrica,

ite [.174es ond Dercndencics, ond the Imperianl Jap-nese Enpire, wilfully,
foloniously, with prereditotion end molice aforethourht, end without
justifinble cause, assouwlt, strike and ki11l, by hayoneting with fixed
hayoncts, sporring with speors, rnd by behording with gwords, two (2)
Inorienn risoncrs of U'ar, names to the relotor unknowm, both then and there
hold captive by the ormed forecs of Japan, this in violrtion of the law onc
custors of wer,

The defendant Itvanami, hes fronkly ndmitted the foete of his ects whick
coneerned him, other than thrt which relnted to eriminnl intent ond that
he eonspired with others, I8 is stated in his statement which rcrds c8
follows: It 48 I who cm to blome for the July incident, I cou’d nct beer
to see my hosritel vhich I estrblished aftor hord cxertion nfter ny rrrave.
broken to nicccs end meny retients killed or suffering fren injury, I
becrme indipnont especinlly becouse the bombing was done by the United
Strtes which I hrd edmired es a country of humanity, I thought it wns
righteous end lavful rs o method of werning in order to resist these
unlnwful borbince to protect the sccrodness of the Red Cross, However,
vhen I reflect upon it now, in c stete of crlmmess, everything scems to re
like & drern and every nct I did was brsed upon misteken views of riphtecas: .
Indoed, I did wrong things, I regrot it so much,

This honest but ristrken bolief of nine hrs hrought rbout a greve
rosult todey, I have nevor expected that my mnny loving, fine subordinntcs
should he brought to this court roon under the disgroceful neme of “wer
erimincl® end  thet they should suffer from hord mental cnd physicel poir
vhieh are much more serious than the ones thrt thoy hrd experienced during
tho wor. L8 n man responsible for that, everydey ond nicht I think whet
vords I shall say to them to beg their pardon for ry frult,

They wero foreed to nssemble without ¥noring amything cbout tho
incident, Thoy wore compulsorily ordered by mo to hold a hayonet or o
sponr and ret in aceordanee with my chsolute orders, These subordinates vo.
indced, nothing but instrumcnts,

Two ycors heve gone by since the end of the wer, Still they cemnoi v
heme ond must live thoir days in confinement es var criminels, Thinking c!f
thoir situsrtion end fcolinge, I fecl cs if ry herrt woro torn to pleces.
Thinking of tho griof of thoir families, I koonly feel and I have alroady
suffered o thousond derths, This hes o elose comnoetion with his motive
and objcotive eireumstrnccs rt thot time, I think I vill have to disocuse
thosc,

his mctive Ivenard hes stoted os follows: Mter 1 emterecd
theﬂﬂ.!uuttohuﬂummltml. I sew the conditions of the
comtry ond I ure struek vith rdrdretion en the follewing poimts; the high
dm-etoduntluludmnumt hmm:lu:eﬂimtdﬁm
proatly for it, In cvorydey life mwmwmnm
n fine and eivilisod eoumtry, e were walevfully bembed severel times,
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but as it wre in the night or errly in the morning I took it es being a
misteke, I did not think thet they hed wilfully bembed the hosrital whieh {
i wes clerrly merked with the Red Cross, The furious bombing on the 13th of
July, wes in the morning about nine o'clock, and es it was a clerr doy, they
could not possibly have missed seceing the clerr morkings of the hespital,
In the face of this four 250 kilogrem bombs. were dronred on the hospital
end the hosnritel that I hed worked so hard to complete, being completely
demolished in front of my eyes and sceing momy of the 1200 potients of the
hospitel being killed, (there werc some who were buried nlive.) ond the
petients sic! ness turning for the worse, I ecou’d not help but believe thot
the mony bombings since Februnry of this year were plenned and unlowful
bombings.,

Arain when I thought of the erueinl eonditions on Saipnn emd in Jepen,
I beeame very engry, I wrs ell tho more angry becouse it w s Amecrica who
hnd done this, n country thet I hed respected, I thought I should give
them o wrrning coneerning the Red Cross., Just et this time I hesrd foom
Commonder Ueno, herd medienl officer of the Forty=-first Neval Gurrd Uadt,
thnt there werc prisoners to be exceuted ol the gurrd unit, ncturally T
thourht all of the procedure concerning them wns over, I thought, "Ir tacy
ore prisoncrs to be executed, I would hhve them hended over to the hosritel
nnd executed herec, It will act os o method of werning to Amerien,
Concerning thie roint the vwitness Surgeon Comrmander Ueno testified, "It
wes the first of July when I telked with Captein Iwonemi, concerning
priscners, At this time therc were no prisoners et the Forty=first Noval
Gurrd Unit," At firet he testified to tho judge advocnte that, ®At this
time Captain Iverieml scid, 'I want you to do some rescerch on the kidneys,®
I replicd that I did not hove the experience end refuscd," In reply to
questions by the defense counsel he replied, "At this time r8 there were

t ne prisoners at the Forty=first Neval Gurrd Unit, I did not reply," Thic ]

testimony itself is not only conflieting, but it is nonsense thet o
pergon would rsk rescacch done on prisoncrs when there were no prisoners.
Ueno is o ncrson vho is chrrged o8 & defendant in the next “riel, I thirk
it con be seen thet mecording to how he testifics it relates direetly to
his specificrtions in the next eese and therefore he connot state the truth.

Commander Ueno testified as fo'lows: "In the middle of July, two
prisoncrs viere hernded over to the Forty=first Nevrl Guerd Unit from the
ermy, On the next dey by the order of the cxecutive officer, Nekese, to esk
the Fourth Nrvel Hospitel if they needed nny prisonmcrs, I telephoned the
hospitnl, but es the head of the hospitel could not be eonnceted by phonc

| I did not heer his onsver," This stetement cleerly supporte the truth of
Ivanerd's stetemont, Isn't it perfectly noturel that Ueno, who wes ordm cd
by the executive officer of the guard unit to teclephonc the hespital end
rek if the nceded eny prisconcrs tell thie to Captain Imvnnami after he hod
telephoned, /8 long nc it wes rskcd, "Do you want eny prisoners,™ it is thc
truth vhen Imanemi steted, "I thought they were to be exceuted end all the
procedure ecneerning thre cxceution of the rrisoncrs vas over,® It is not
unrcngonrble thet 2 rcrson who is & doctor cnd does not heve eny knowledge
of lrw helieve this, it is not arainst rerson thet he thought thet ke
wre executing the rrisoners in ploce of the gurrd unit and thet it wes not
unlswful, Thercforo, I think rns an ordinsry pcreon, it ves natural for
him to think thrt under the objective circumstsnces, na he stated before,
thet he wrs allowed to do this by lew, But, if Iwenami hed hod a little
more knowledre of lew and hnd been a little crlmer, he wou'd hove known thet
he should not do this, He wrs very excited, cs stated before and in the
cbove eircumstrnees, this might be possible, I fecl very sorry for hinm,
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Therefore, in thrt he made a mistrke in not recognizing the un)aufulness

of the act, it cennot be helped to be erlled to cecount for what he did

from the cold,hrrd standroint of law, but it is not unrensoncble thet it cen
be judged that he hed no eriminel intent to murder beceuse of the

objective circumstenecs, and the subjective stete of mind to vhich he wes

n vrey, Although we may not be eble to deny thnt therc wes s mistrke in

not rcecornizing the unlevfulness it is clerr thrt he did nct have the
eriminnl intent to murder. The crime of mansleurhter is not the scme erime
r8 murcar. On this neint 1% is unlrwful to charge him with murder in
speeificrtion three of cherge one, If he i® to be echerged with mnaslaughter
thet is differcrt, I em absolutely ageinst chrrging him in this case on a
chrrge of murder,

T wish the commiseion vill give profound thought to the mrtive of
Tvenomi, rad to the veluntacred words of the Forty=firat Neoval Guard Unit
oxccutive offiser. thet, “Tlere are prisoncrs to be exceused, dO you oLy
then?" and the* h2 hné nmrle rereon to belicve thet rll precadure for theia
execubdon hi.@ Loea eompletad., I wish deen ccnsiderntion to he givea o0 the
poirt thrt the cefen'rnc nbsolutely Aid not hrve the eriminal iment Lo
murc ar,

The first srecif’cotion of the second chorge stetes: "Iwanemi,
Hiroshi, then o surgeon cortrin, Imperial Japinese Hevy, commending
officor of tho Fourth Navel Hospitnrl,s,..., did cn or nbout 30 Jrnurry
194y e s unlovfully disreprrd and foil to dischernc his duty ag the
cormanding officer of the Fourth Navrl Hoeritnl *o n~cntrol the operations
of members of this corrarnd, And persons suhject 4o his coanirol rnd sumer=
vision, namely, O'uy~.n, Tokikesu, decensed, thea o surgeon sommender,
Imperiol Jopancse hevy, ctteched to the Fourth Navel Hospitrl and
Nrbetnni, Reijiro, docensed, then ¢ surreon licutenant, Impcrial Jrorencec

. Nrvy, nttoched to the Fourth Naval Hospitol, ornd others unknovn, permitil.g

ther thc ~foreseid porsons rnd persone unknown, to ki1l uniovfully end
couse to e killed uniewfully, on or ebout 30 January 1944, ~t Dublon
Ielnnd, Truk Atoll, C.rolinc Islends, with medieal end othnrr experimente,
six (65 ‘meriecn rrisencrs of wer, names to the relator unlnown, then m.d
thore hc1d eaptive by the rrmed forees of Jepen at srid Atoll, this in
vio ation of the law rnd customs of wer."

This specificeticn alleges the accuscd with the erime of neglect of
duty vhich is punished by the nrescnt war erimes triel,

But the charge of neglect of duty is permissible only when the aesuscc
18 not alleped with Trierscheft or principml offense.

So frr res the eacused is charged with hie princirel offense, 21l hie
rots are inelucded in 'is prineipel offense, Permission, acquiescence, i
diereperd by mistrke nre eli ineluded in his principel erire, They rre
only o pert of his principal erime, and so r11 thesc rcts should be
rllcged together, Th's fs o prineiple in eriminal rroccdure, These ncts
pre steps in the principel offemse, Thoy are neturally one net os a whole.
snd do not constitute separrte offenscs, This is the fundnmental nnture of
n prineipel erime,

If the first specificetion of the first charge anecused Ivenomi,
Hiroshi as a joint principel of the alleged frot, to charge him arain in
this poragraph vith neglect of duty is not only a mistcke in the eriminnl
procedure but elso rn illegal, impropcr misunderstending of the neture
of the rrineipal offense, I feel thot the nccuscd should be aequitted for
the cherge of negleat of cuty even hofore judging the alleged feet, There=
fore though I feel that it is unncccesery to ergue for the anlleged fret of
this chorge, I will ergue for caution's soke,
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As I have mimutoly ergued nbout the alleped fnet nrainst Commender
Okuynmn, Lieutensnt Nebetend and others unknovn in tho first specifiertion
of tho first cherge, Ivanami hed nothing to db with this alleged fret,
Twonamd did not know thot these nete were performed, so hc hes no
responsibility for thesc acts, As I hrve argued in cdetail concorning this
nlleped feet, I will not repert it again in this peragraph, In this cese,
1t is the reint whether Iwanaml wes burdencd with eriminel responsibility
or not on the ground thet he wes the commending officer of the hoenitel,
thet 1s, he wes in en administretive position to control end surervisc these
rersons, It is vory doubtful if such cllegetion is permissible r8 &
rrineirle of eriminel law,

Tt is of course nossible to accuse him cs fer ns administretive
responsibility irrespective of vhether he knew it or not cnd impose unon
him edministrotive punishments such es offieiel rerrimand, dismissol from
office, ete, This kind of administrrtive punishment hes been edorted in
every country of the world, Dut in order to accuse him of criminal
rosponsibility, it is neccssary thet his ret constitutes n crime when we
observe them recording to the prinsiples of the eriminal lew, But scmeone
snys thet in the preecnt wer crimes trinls, failure to discherge administro
tive responsibility is dharged as feilure to dischnrge criminel responsibil.”
is punished, Someone condcmnod this wey of punishment es & violetion of
the rrineirle of the criminal lew, I heve not sctuelly secn each vrr
erimes trisl vhich is now being held, but I believe thnt, even in nny
wer erines trial, the country with the highest civilizrtion will not
impose nunishments by violating the prineiples of eriminal law, Some acts
look like frilure to dischrrge adminiatretive responsibility in externcl
cspect, but they rre in reality the ones to discherge criminel reeponsibill.
I believe thet they cre punishable in such & cese,

Then in whrt casce is neplect of adrinistrative duty cherged for its
eriminel responsibility? I will cnumerete then ns follows:

1, Comrission by nonscormission,

e Pachenfcld statcd, this is a conmission of crime by meking use of
so=called other couses, When a mon who hes o lcgal duty under eoncrete
circumstrnces to perform a rositive acticn, does not carry it out and lets
it go by moking use of physiccl causes of others or other persons, he i8
nrturelly resronsible for the result of the ootion from ¢ socisl point of
view, heceuse he mrde use of cthers to perform the rction by hie non=
commission, In this cosc, if r erime 1s cormitted by these other persons,
the person who did not perform his duty should hrve the eriminal
responsibility for the crimo,

Now let us ecnsider this ersc, If Ivenamd had a responsibility to
control Okuyrmé, Nabetani and others unknotn, end if he pgeve tacit consent
knowing their eriminel acts end intent and let therm do it, he should
neturnlly be acecused of the responsibility, But ce I have argued e8 to the
i?rut snecificetion of the first chrrge, there wrs no understending between

-anomd cnd Okuyame, Nabetani and others unknown, Iwvenaml kncw nothing chout
it et the time of ite commission, Bosides the judge edvocete did not rive
nositive proof concerning this point, Under such ciroumstanccs, it is not
permissible to accused Ivanemi of the eriminal rosponsibility, elthough it
is permissible to accuse him of néministrotive responeibility.
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2, HAction causcd by o greve nistrke,

This ie when & pcrson, who hos & responsibility to rrevent o certain
aoction of others, neplocts to rrevent it by his cereleseness, knowing o \
prrt of the setion nnd kpowing that the petion will cause o certain result,
and caused o eriminnl nction, ks r prineiple, misteke {s besed upon
ignorance of feet, But in this eese, he lnovs & part of the faet and could
expoct o eertoin result by his kncrledge, hut he feils to exnect it by his
crrelessnoss, Abstrectly sperking, the standard of the nower of cereful=
ness ies thet of an ordinary cereful person, bhut more specificrlly it is an
cstoblished theory thot the astenderd should be detormincd eecording te the
depree of oarefulnees aperorrirte in the specifie gituntion of the man who
did the net, Thorcfore, {f a rcrson vho is rceponsible for preventing such
en reticn feiled to dischrrge his duty through enrelcssness whieh is thought
rponer for ordinnry 1 rsons end cruses a certnin crinn,' he must be
responsible for it.

Le I have ergued in detoil in my ergument concerning the first
specificention of the first cherge, Tvenami ¥new rt that time thet Okuyomn
vos intending to perform o physienl cxrminction of the nrisoncrs, Irenamd
belicved thrt the physierl oxemin-tion consisted of o blood test nnd .
oxarinrtion of the hlood pressure. After he took them to the gurrd unit,
he teught & young surgeon howr to take blooc rccording to his experience
and then left. Therefore, he hed nothing to do with the cxperiments, He
also did not know vhrt Okuyoma ~nd Nobetani had done before that, Other
then these points, the judge rdvocote aid not give any positive rroof,

Then could the accused Toonend expect the murder of tho prisoners by
Okuyena nnd Nabotani rnd others with the abowe seid knovledpe? [Ny
considernte person could not exnect with this 1ittle knowledre thot the
netions of Okuysme, Nebetani ~nd others will result in murdaor, |

In erse of hoth commiesion by non=corrission and action couscd by
nistake, & certein determinction of the eriminel for the jnfringement of
the right rrotectc? by the 1w is the necessary condition for the
constitution of o erime = thet ie a eriminal intent is necosscry for the
constitution of o crime, Bubt in this ease, wo connot find any criminal
intont on the pert of the recused Ivanomd, Therefore, therc is no rerson
thet he should be aceused for his eriminel responsibility.

On these grounds, I think thrt the pecused I-anami should ncturally be
aequitted of this sreeifiertion, He rust be not guilty.

The seeond specificotion of the second charge states: "Twanomi,
Hiroshi, then 2 surgeon captein, Imrcriel Japanese Nevy, cormanding
officer of the Fourth Navel Hospitel, ottrehed to the rilitery instellsticne
of the Imperial Japanese Navy, Dublon Island, Truk Ltoll, Caroline Islends,
saanny d4id on or rhout 1 Fﬂbrm‘l'? 1%. semanj lm-lp“m-lr diﬂrﬂg?rﬂ Elﬂ
£r11 to discharge his duty rs the ecommanding cfficer of the said Fourth
Navsl Hosnital to contrcl the operctions of nembors of his commancd and
persons subject to hie control and gupcrvisicn, nemely, Okuyams, Tokikasu,
deccesed, then a surgeon cormander, Imperial Japcnese Nevy, ané Sakeramd,
Shinji, then a eorpsntn warrant officer, Imperiol Jepencee Nevy, end other
pcrsons unknowm, permitting them the nforesaid persons and norsons unkneown
to ki1l unlnrrfully rnc cause to bo killed unlawfully, on OF ebout 1 Februrry
1944, ot Dublon Islond, Truk /toll, Crroline Islancs hy explosions of
dynamic rnd strangalaticn, tvo Imerican Prisonecrs of Wrr, nemes to the
relrtor unknorn, then and there held eantive by tho eymed forecs of Japen
nt the said ntoll, this in violrtion of the 1w ond customs of nre”
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In short, this speeifiertion alleges thet Imanami disregerded rnd
fniled to discherge his duty by permitting the persons to do the fret
rllcped in the second epccifieation of the first charge,

As I have clreedy orgucd o8 to the first specifiertirn of tho first
charge, these allepged note should be included in the rrincirel offense in-
sofar ne the necuscd is cherged ns nrincirel offender, Thercforc, to
pocuscd him rceording to tno aifferent charges violrtes erininnl proccdurc
rnd the rrineirlcs of eriminnl law, So it ie dmproper, L4s to this point
I hnve alrendy stoted in my ergument, I belicve thet he should be acquitted
vefore judging the alleged fret, Bepoeinlly the Judge rdvocete proved
nothing ne to the alleged foct of this spceifierticn, just cs he did not
rrove anything about the scecnd specificetion of the first charge, I hope
you will pay speciel attontion es to this point, MWy lepel opindon r8 to
tho crinminal rosponsibility of the necused for his nerlect of .cduty
rcparding this speeificrtion is as samec A8 T have stoted ps to the firet
spceificrtion of the sceond cherge, 1 meintein that the accuscd shonld
be acquitteod of this upcnifin*tign.

In the third spceificoticn of tho esecond cherge, it ie alleged thot
under the same condition Iraneri, Hiroshi, unlawfully Adisrcgarded and
f-iled to dischrrgc his duty cs commending of ficer of the said Fourth
Nevel Hospitel tc toke such mersurce r8 were within bis porer and arproprinte
in the circumstences to protect two (2) Lncrican Prisoncrs of Wer, in
violrtion of the law rnd customs of vrr,

Tne cntire meaning of this speeificoticn 18 just s thet of specificrti ..
tvo, Charge II, The only ‘istinet’on between them is the difference of
cxrression, I eem perdly understand vhy the srme thing is chrrged again ir
this speeification, This 18 clerrly o dupliertion of chorge and this
spocificetion should nrturslly be rejected, In the sceond snecificrtion,

14 is alleged, "disregerd end £ail to dischrrpe his cduty oe comme nding

of ficer of the Fourth Navel Hospitel," while the third spccificaticn

ell pes, "disregerd end £011 to discherge his duty rs cormnnding officer of
the Fourth Novel Hosnitel to toke guch meosurcs as verc within his power

and aprroprinte in the eircunstrnecs to rrotectoeaeed® The differcnece
hotrcen theee two epecificrtions is only thct the third specificrtion has

en exrlennticn of the duty of tho sceused Ivenomi, If it is the duty of

the commending officer of the hospitel to protect the prisoncrs, he ghould
be neeused for his responsibility to protect the rrisoners irrespective of
tho rédition of such an exrlnnrtion, It is encugh to allege naisreperd anc
fei1l to Aischerge his duty ecs corronding officer of the hospiteless.s,” 88
in the seeond speeifie tion, The nhrascology, "to teke guch mersures ne
more within his pover and eprropriate in the circumstances to rrotectees..’
is surrlus, There is no roeson thot this surrlue phrose should beer
another crimes In short these two specifications allegoe the sepe fact and
sueh mcthod 1s Blearly improners

Respousibility of the sommanding officor of the hospitel to protect
nrisoncrs nds upon whether or not the prisoners are pccommodated in tho
hoepital or Whether or not they vere patiente who rocoived trentment at the
hosrital, BN ®he judge rdvoente did not refer to this point in his
nrosecution, Woedless to sey, © hosritel hre no legal responsibility to
protect any pecrsod unlecss he il treeted in the hospitnl,

Thercfors, from eny point of view, the agoused should be nequitted of
this speoificetion,
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The fourth spccificotion of the second chorge stotes: "Ivenami,
Hiroshi, then a surgeon captain, Immerial Japenese Nevy, conmnnding officer
of the Fourth Nnvel Hospitel, atteched to the military installetions of
the Imperiel Jepenese Novy, Dublon Island, Truk /toll, Caroline Islands,
end while so sorving et the Fourth Nevrl Hospitel, did, on or nbout 20 July
1944, at & time when a stote of ver existed between the United States of
Imerien, its Allics #nd Dependeneics, cnd the Imperinl Jenencse Empire,
unloufully disreperd and fell to discherge bis duty es commanding of ficer
of the seid Fourth Naval Hospital, to eontrol the operctions of rembers of
his comrend snd nersons subject to his control and surervision, namely,
...(18 porsons).,., And others unknown, permitting them, to strike un'aufully,
asseult and kill, and ceusc to be killed, by beyoncting with fixed boyoncts,
spearing with eporrs, rnd by behending with swords, two (2) rrieoncrs of
wrr, nomes to the reletor unknown, scid tmeriern Prisonere of Frr belng then
and there hold ceptive by the ermed forcecs of Jnpan on gnrid i1slend, this in
violntion of the 1w anc custons of wrr,"

As I hove repectodly stotod, this i o meaningloss specifiertion since
the third specificrtion of the first chrrge nlleges the nccused ns ©
prineipal offender, Negleet of duty, such cs, nTo permit® or "to disregrrd
rnd fril to diseherge his duty to controless..” eonnot he eenarcted from
the rrincipal offense, A1l ections should nnturclly be alleped topether,
Noedless to sey, it is ¢ elecr rerson of lew thet it is not permiseible
to allege them sepnrrteoly in eriminel procedure or from the eririnel roint
of viow, Esnceirlly the cecused rdmitted this rlleped foet, eo it is only
nocessary to judge his action cs e princirel offense, It is entircly
unnoeessary to scrarrto o rort of the offemse in order to judge 1t, I think
that the scoused should rroperly be ncquitted of the epecifiention before
judping the nlleped fect of the epecificrtion, I8 to ncrlect of duty,

T have nlrerdy explaincd in my erpument concerning the first specificntion
of the second chrrge, I maintoin thot the anccused is net guilty of the
fourth srecifiention,

The £1fth snocificetion of the seecnd chrge states: "Ivenami,
Hiroshi, then a surgeen cartain, Imperirl Jepancse Nevy, commanding
officer of the Fourth Nevel Hospitrl, ond chief surgeon of the Fourth
Flect, nttrched to the militrry installrtions of the Imperial Japenese
Novy, Dublon Islend, Truk /toll, Coroline Islands, rnd while so serving
ot the soid Fourth Naval Hospitel, did, nt Dublon Island, Truk Ltoll,
Cnroline Islends, on or ebout 20 July 1944, t o tine when o stete of var
cxisted between the United States of Lmeries, its L11ies ond Dencndencics
and the Imperial Jepancse Empire, unlowfully disreperd and fril to disehergo
his duty re commending officer of the said Fourth Nevel Hospital, to toke
euch measures ns werc within his power and ~prropricte in the cireumstnncos
to protoct two (2) Imericen Prisoners of Ter, names to the relrtor unknown,
thon ond thore held centive by the rrmed forecs of Japen, ot Dublon Islend,
Truk ftoll, C-roline Is'ands, ce it wrs his duty to do, in thet he
permitted the unlewful killing with hayoncts, sperrs and swords, bv members
of his commrnd nnd nersons subjoeted to his control and surcrivision, of
scid two (2) Lmeriecn Prisoncrs of Frr, in violrtion of the low ond custons
of nrr,*

The substonce of this specifiention is the same 08 the fourth
spocificrtion of the socond ehargo, But the expression is different. Just
cs the socond nnd third specifiertions hove the scme substance, so the fourth
rnd f£ifth spocifications fre tho sore, Thet 181
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1, The fourth specificrtion enumerrtes the nomes of those who
pertieipnted in the nlleged fret and nllrges that Ivanomi permitted them to
kill or crugc to be killed the nrisoncrs, while the fifth specifierticon
nllcpes thot Iwvenami permitted the unlewful killing by merbers of his
comrand ond persons subjcctod to hie control end surorvieion, There is not
a bit of difference between the two spoeifiertione os to this point,

2, The former mlleges thrt Iwanomi unlewfully disregerded and friled
te dischorge his duty as cormanding officor of the Fourth Nnvrl Hospitel,
while the latter cllepes thet he did unlerfully disreprrd end fedl to
cischrrye his duty cs comranding officer of the Fourth Navrl Hosnitel to
trke such nersures ng were within his poror end rprrorrirte in the
eircumstances to protect two /mericnn FPrisoncrs of War, The latter is
exploining the cfuty and ecircumstonccs of the commanding officer of the
hoepitel but the former omits the cxplanmation, so there is no difference
betwicon these two nlleged foets, If o comranding officer of & hespitel hee
e lepel duty to rrotcet prisoncrs, it is unncccsenry to e4d oxplennticns
rbout thrt. The deseription, "disrcgard and foll to discherge his duty ons
commonding officer of te hosritrl,® ie encugh for thnt ollegrtion, 1If o
cormanding offieccr of » hosritel hos no leprl duty to rrotect rrisoners,
rny exnrlencticn in the cherge will meke ne difference of the fect (thet
he hos no duty to do so,) In short, the alleged fact of the fifth speeifi-
ention is quite the scme as that of the fourth speeificotion, thercfore,
this spcelficrticn should be rejected, But this epecificrtion wes actunlly
scrved, so it is necessery for the commission to give n finding for this
speeifiertion, But £s this ie elcrrly o dupliertion, I think thrt the
rccused should be found not puilty without judging the alleped fret.

By thc vy, I vould 1like to stnte o fev words rhout the duty to rrotect
rrieoners,

Nrturelly, mecfical nrt is the rrt of benevolence, Therefore, it con
he srid thot o hospitel hrs rn rhetraet end moral cuty to protcet the lives
of persons, But its lerrl duty for their protection hns o "imit, The lrw
does not requirc infinite duty of the rrotection only heenuse it is o
hosnital or he is ¢ coctor, L doctor hes a duty to proteet the rntients
vhon he trerts, cnd o hospitel hrs e duty to nrotect the rrtients who
entered the hesritel, ! commrncding officer of » hespitel hrs the same duty,

In this cree, the Forty-firet Nevnl Guard Unit hed o responsibility for
the custody of theee prisoncrs, snd the rrisoncrs were not patients who
entercd the Fourth Novel Hospitel, Therefore, there wes no lcrel cduty of
the hosritrl to proteect them, It is & mistake to chrrge the eccuscd for
hie spceirl duty ae commanding officor of the Fourth Navael Hospitel, Fron
rny point of vicw, these specifiertions nre cleerly o durlicrtion eond
improrer,

For cruticns seke; I have elreedy stoted my legrl opinion as %o the
point thot the accused disregerded and failed to discharge his duty in my
rrpument conecrning the first nnd fourth spceifiertion of the second chrrge,
so I will not repert it apein, I meintein thet the neeuscd should be
nequitted of the fifth specificction of the sccond charge,

It is steted in the sixth specifiention of the sceond charge: "In thot
Irvonomi, Hiroshi, then o surgeon eaptein, Imperiel Japonese Nevy, commancing
officer of the Fourth Naval Hospital, ettrched to the military installrtions
of the Imperiel Jancnose. Nevy, Dublon Islond, Truk .toll, Ceroline Islends,
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ond vhile so serving ot the sanid Fourth Navel Hospitel with Okuyrme,
Tokikesu, deccesed, then a surgeon cormender, Imperial Janrnese Nrvy,
nttached to the Fourth Navel Hospitel end Nebotani, Reijiro, decensed, then
a surpeon licutenont, Imperinl Joprnese Nevy, atteched to the Fourth Nevrl
Hespital, end others unknovm, did, at Dublon Island, Truk ’toll, Ceroline
Ielands, on or rhout the third of Februery 1944, ot o time when e stato of
wnr exdstcd between the Imperinl Japenese Enpire, wilfully end unlavfully
nrevent ond couse to be prevented the honorrhle buriel of cight (8)
'merican Prisoncrs of ¥Wer, namcs to the relrtor unknotrn, vhe died in the
coptivity of the Jarancec rrmec forces, by dissecticn and mutilation of the
hoddcs of the snid prisoncrs, in violetion of the lrw and customs of wrr,

Of the cight dced hodics of the mrisoncrs, the defendent hes ndmitted
the disscetion of two of tho ~eed bodics, Thrt the defendent hrd ncthing
+o do with the other six derd bodies and thrt it wns somcthing other persons
had donc, is ae I heve alrendy stoted ond is elerr, It is grented without

arpument thot 1) the judre hdvoeate hes proved ecnecrning this defendent,
coneerns itsclf with only two derd bodics,

On the motives end the circumstences on how the defendent came to
perform the disscctions on the two derd hodies, I heve previously ergucd ir
deteil, end I belicve the commission understonds it well, I cean understonc
his netions were netursl becouse of his forvent feeling for rescerch as
¢ seientist when I think upon the conditions nt thet time, Can this
constitute a crime nceording to Intornotional Low? Does this constitute
the erime of mutilation of dead bodics from the standpoint of criminel 1n?
This i1 have to be thought nhout e~refully,

In peragreph threc, cherter 76 of the Gencve Prisoncr of Tar
Convention, of 27 July 1929, it stetes the following: "Carc should be
tekon that perscons dying in the ceptivity of an enomy should he
respectfully buried rnd o1l the neccessary iterms pleced on the grove and
marked. They shell also be reepectfully taken crre of pccordingly.”

There 18 this scetion, hut as Jepen aid not ratify this convention, L
r strict sensc of Internationel Lew 1t docs not bind Jepan to it, HowevcT,
1 do now wish at this time to jc into such fornmplitics of law, I am not
trying to deny thet thcse should he ehided by es o moral responslbi” ity to
humenity, but, this is not r respcnsihility that wes rleced on the hoanitol:
This was the responsibility of the person who ie in charge of the rrisoncer.
In this ensc it might hrve been the Forty-first Nevel Guard Unit, {8 there
is no chorge concerning the wriel and its hendling, this is o scrarante
prtter and I do not feel it is neccesery te go into it at tiis time, The
only thing thet matters is, does a disscetion violete this rule? I say
definitely thet the foet of the dissection doos not hrve amy direet relrtinn
to these rules, The only issues ere, in whet positionm end for whrt motive,
n1so whether he hed the intent to mutilete end desecrcte the doed bodica?
ie the defendent hns alrcady stcted, Doctor Imerurs, professor at the
Osakn Modienl University dissected his beloved wife, thet he night
eontribute to humanity, Therc were somc persons whe rrotested this, In
reply to these protests a ecortoin medical mapmzine rrote an article in
roply which I remember thrt arpued thot it is e mietoke to Judge o
disscetion with the low feoling thnt it is but o rert of e conerote physical
ret, You willhove to teke into ecnsidercticn the mental state of the
seiontist vhose motive and will wes for the ovorlasting hapniness of
humenity, so thet he di{ssected the deed body of his holoved wife., The
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sctions and fecling of Doctor Imemurc, ore not to be eondemmed, but he should
he preised end thonked, {

\ Thon therc is the esse of the professor rt the medicol derertment of
Keio University vho toucht rhysiology. During the tine he wrs alive he
toupht the theory of humrn rhysiclogy to the meny students, 1like e father
ond vre the center of rospeet, Ho tried to bonefit humenity cven ritor
his derth by steting in his will thet he wished his derd hody used rs 2
phyeiology specimen, Thereforc the specimen of thies professor is kert in
the physiclogy room of the medienl derertmoent in the university., It ie

l contributing greetly ns rcecerch motcrial for the students there,

This is the noble mentel stete of o ssicntist, It is e misteke to
jufpe with our usuel feelings, on only the eoncrete rets of rirring cnd
cutting of the flesh, 411 thot Ivanami cid evncerning the dissceticn end
the skulls wrs but an nttitude of the scientist in trying to eontribute
to humen civilizetion, It is elcrr through Iranomi's staterent whieh he
hne rord before thot there wrs never enything personal rbout bhia acts, I
heliove without doubt thrt cven [meriea recognizcs disscctions on the
stondpoint of medieine rnd ccicnee, L reccnt cxrmple, is the cisscetion
performed by en lmcrienn doctor on the derd bedy of tﬁe -rosccution witnesc
Nrkemura, Shigceyoshi, who committed suiecice ofter he hrd testified, This
vns testificd to by Doctor Krufmon, This act ecennot be thought of ns an ceb
rith the w1l ~nd motive to mutilrte ¢ derd hody., I believe thia dissccticn
rng nerformed to look into the cruse of derth end to eontribute to hunaonivy
fror the standroint of medieinc nnd seicnce, If this ret is recornized,
the net of the dofendant, Ivenami, will also hrve to be rccognized,

There is o diffcrence in the ehove example nnd this ccse in the dire~d
! motive end neture of the ineident, but look rt in in e broed scnse, For |

exemple, the drrepe which wes inflieted upon the eiviliens, hy drorring tuc
rtonie homb on Hiroshime end Nrgasoki turncd rut to he the grerteet disesucy
in history. Ve hrve henrd thet the rcrson 1t wrs used wrs to hurry the
ond of the mer ond sove the reople of the world from the rrvopes of wrr,
Fe can understrnd this os being rcosonable, We crmnot lock ot a rert of
the foets vith only onr usunl feolings ~nd arrive et the truth, but we mu:i
look well upon them nrd only then crn we arrdve rt the truth of the facts.
The acts of Tweremi ir this caee were not done with the wi1] end rotive t»
mutilrte and nrevent the honorshle hurial of ameriern militery personnel,

Conc: rning the buriel es I steted before it is not thc rcsponsibi ity
of the hosnital, I brlicve it is the same in Imericq, thet the hespriteld
18 not responeitle- fcr the burial of o derd bedy,

I request thrt your Honor, the Fresident of the Commissirn ord its
merbers wil) considcr vell on this point and find the defencent not guiits,

On the rots of I-anrmi I have argued in detail on erch of the specifi-
enticns of Chorpe T and II, I request a verdict of net puilty in the firut
nnd sceond specificetions of the firet cherge ond in the first, sccond,
third, fourth, fifth end sixth erocificotions of the second cherge.

On the third spceificrtion of the first choerpe, the defendent edmits
the specifiertion in whrt he has steted, tut, I have srgued in detnil thrt
in his objective cireumstences he hnd & mieteken conviction thet it wrs
lawful ond thet he had en ample resson to believe this mistoken econvictdon,
I believe the commipsion undbrstends this vwell, Even though he mry be

v guilty of a crime, ww K e outsicde of his medienl
] "~ ,ff,fﬁizgj,. »YYY(50)"

../ mGES P, K
AL ~Jdeutenant, 1 . Mavy,
‘o Jdudge Adoveat:,

L]




profession performed it under the convietion thrt it wes lawful under the
ohjective circumstonces, He nede his mistrke in believing thrt it wes
1nwfu) ; therefore, it is e erime which wre conritted by mistrke, It
ehsolutely 38 nct marder.

In other words, r.s the other defen’rnus reted oezording to *he
abhsolute crders of I nnomi, Inrnami himeclt wre but & mechine whe wrs
forecd to werk ot the fronc, forced and incited by +he will of the noticm.
It vas not the vwill ard scts of Ivancml as o neroon, T sk yow: C2¢p
sonsiderrtion on this point, TPleanse let him contribute to humeaity egrin
vith bis rhility ond knowlecge. There nre meny human beinps but persons
with ability ere few, I do not hnve to stete thrt the rrineirle of
runishnent is to cducrte persons, In Jepon, there is the sayine, "Desrisc
the crime nnd not the erimirol." With the gront dirnity of Lnericn, vhizu
{e to torch rnd lord Jopen in the futurc, I ack your lcnient judpmont.

Ps T heve stoted beforc, the defendant's family consists of an nged
father of ciphly-one, rped mother of seventy-two, wife, cldest deughter,
vho ie cightcen, eldert son who i sixtoen nnd his younger drughter of teu.
Not only this hut, the hend of his wife's fanily wrs killed at the frort,
go he also hes the responsidbility to lock sftor his wife's fomily, Thee:
members of bis femily who hcve me cnc to help them are vaiting dry and
nirht, sorrovfully for his return, If he hed not becn born in deferted
Jepen, he probobly would not heve fallen into such a sorrowful predicemen’.
T ernnot help hut fecl teerful vhen I think of his fifty yerre of swrugrle,
T rsk vour sympcthetic judrment vith a1l my heert,

CONCLUSION

I have nrpued on the fncts in the cesc of cech defendent ond o8 &
conclusion, I vish to expross ot this time my opinion on the purjcse of
eriminel punisiment for the defendants in pencral,

The judge ndvoenie, Licutcnont Konny, hes statod thet the purishment
rsked for in the ecnsc of thesc defendents wes not in revengc, but in the
nome of ‘ustiecc, I nm in ccmplete accord with his sontimente, ont cven i=
the rrineiple of roverge the motive is for justice. Tne iusuc 1z, what 1.
justicc? If it 1s "Geod offect, good result and bad offoei, bed reevlu ..
in cther words if retclisticn is the demend of justice, thie feuarlistal
ray of thinking is not in neeord with the socirl 1ile of the cirilized
nntion of today end should strongly he rejected.

The dden of jusiico i3 not a mysterious rne. Tt is ecmething thas
chanaes vith the wimer, Tne ideal thet we strive for in our soswel lile
today is hrrmony betwien society nnd the indiridanl, This we cail justia-.,
To nchicve this gorl of hermony between society ¢nd the indivicarl, e
only in this srhere crn the pertinence of runiehment be recognizcd,

Concerning the purpose of eriminel punishrent there are mony 1lines ol
thought, ut it enn be Advided into two main grours. One,the revolirticn
reineiple rné two, the purpose of prineiple.

1. The retaliction rrineiple is one in vhich ¢ erime is inevitrbly

shod, 4 crime is sn ect eroinst justice, ¢ retaliotion administercd
according to the demend of justice is therefore erinminel punishment,
Retalinticn is n nrture) demend of humenity, in other words, it is seid to
be the demand of juetice,  This is n purc nrineirlc of revenge nnd is o
prineiple of erimifin]l punishment practiced in the feudnl agede
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KLNT hes' stated the following: "™When o person violates r moral prinei-
rle and hvrts snother person, it is an sbsolute order cnd neturcl demnnd of
resson thet tha person who committed the crime submit to eriminal.
punishmont in vetalisiion for the erime that he committed, and docs not heed
to be proved ia roy vry."

IFGAT hee rlso expinined thot, " erine te o nip tion ¢ 1m wd
eririnni ruasshireat ir the ropeticn of the nesrtien of the 1law, Therorere
it 48 rs% nooccasory that the crime and the crimiael runishmeat He ot ¥nc
some degrec, hul that it is necessary thet they be in eccordnnce with cech
other." Tho f'rst one is » rrinecirle of mornl retelintion, the letter is
enlled tie nrineiple of low retelintion, Both of these rrinciples rre
hased on the prineipie of rcvenge and c-1l1s for, "In eye for an cy2 rnd 2
tooth for = tos*h.® Their rotive is elcerly for revenge and thoy 2arnaot
be sastained in this civilized society of todiy, Noxt is the rriniiple of
purpcse thisk ig, “Criminel punishment is <o protect our collective 1ife
agadnct cxime vhich s an net apoinst it, In cther vords its motive 18 t
nrotest sceicty ~nd ie but o merns by which to protect it."” In It rre to
prinaiplce, pencrd preveniion nnd speeicl preventicr, Bither woy, 4t is
heeruse it 18 ncocessry for the mrintenrnce of o~ter in soclety trd thers
should not be rry eririnal runishment in excees of this nercssity.
Therofore, in determiiing the extent of eriminal runj shment it hes to he
in nonord with “he demends of the idee of rurpcsec, This hrs to he detrim’ne
hy the duprce of ‘te rrii=3ocirl nrture or Ly the prat thrt the crirdnal
pleys in rocdouy, in cther rords, the metive for thn erime, inteut, kiid ¥
reeponeilility, rnd cle impertrnee of the cet rhich the eririnel violrtel
upon the orpanizotion of society, It shcul@ never Ye the renns for revensc,
If ¢ mistcke is mede in this respect the harmony betieen soajaby nad the
individurl which is juetice, crnnot he nchioved, y

/e Troring hes stoted, "Criminel punishmont is 1ikc o double ndped
stord rné if o risteke is mede in its usc it ean huwt the crimiqul erd thoe
nrtion greatly. It ic most importent in erimirel low %o ¥now the valuc o
humea 1i7c, nnd power, i

Tedcy, the lew system in the civilized nrticns heve pceording Lo “he
prrirairle of murpore cxtreched threatening elaments ip criminel pumichaca,
end vrva rapleecd 1t vith cdueetionrl elemonts, sdopudag 3 so=cnilaa acvare
tionnl prineiple of =1imin~i punishment. But, even in the prineirle of
purpose crimincis aro divided into two closees, vlhosc who could rct bo
rendjusted end those tho could, In the former 1t is recognized *hrt the
eririnel enn be rordj sted by punishmen®; in “he iatter it wos t!cught th.d
therc wns no otter way Mt to disposc of tliem by is>lrting ther fron
socloty, Racentlv, nu o result of resecorcls dine on crimes.ond aimirole,
it hre brea mrde cicn thet thore still is o possibility to reed just
persons vho up to the present heve been thouvpt uredjustedble, [* the nem:
timo there sre changes in the ideology of the ratlon, its functicra.
nenning hee come to be strossed ond is not recognized mere.y ©8 the
omhodiment of ovthority, It hee nlso come to te stressed thoi the ideu
of eriminel punishment is in edueotion, Thercfore in the civilized soclory
of today, thc idenl mnnd rurpose of eriminnl runishment is to bring rhout
hrrmony between socicty ond the individunl, In other worde, it ecn be
rocogmised to the extont which is neecssnry to rehieve ond neintodn
justico in soeicty. Tt prturnlly has to be the aduertionnl rrim_sipla of
eriminel runishrent, cnd mever of revenge, Therofere the cepitol erime
should bo evoided rs wuech ns noseiblo. The purposc of reneral or special
provontions ernnot be schicved by tho cerdtel punishment, not only thot

but, history shove thet as o result of this not only the individunl but
tho nation is hurt Tﬂﬁl TRUE COFY
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Then what ebout wirr erimes? Do they have to be exempted from the
‘ prineiples of purposc and cducrtion? Nol Thet should never be, The |
| rrineiple of educetion should be applied all the more thoroughly in wer
erires to mnke the rcople improve end bettcr themselves,

The renson for this being thet war is rpeinst tho state end net for
its citizcns, Citizons ere rerlly innocent rs individunl rersons cven in
oprosing nrtionse in *rr cro good citizens nnd gocd frionds, All that it
nmnounts to is thrt they were forecd to move by the forecful will of the
strto, This is the seme in tho crec of the lowest rrivrte and the highest
ranking officcr, They worce nct posscassed of their oom free will but rs
mrehince thrt wore fenncé end cpped on by the masteor minde of the
niliterists, who werc the onos “the brought about this wer, They do not hrve
rny bed cheracteristics srainet socicty. They may hove made e temporery
unexpected or mechenicel misteke for which they should be reeduceted and
not runished, 1Is there a possibility thot they would nrnin comnit crimes
in n pencceful society? To vhom can they cry out their sorrow thnt they
rre cut off from the sunshine rs erininals just hecruse they hed the 1l1
fortune to hnve heen born in e ritifully defented nrtion. Most of them
did not vant to hecore soldicrs, but werc separnted from their perents,
homee, wives rnd children, by the forcefu! will of their eccuntry, end
unwillingly sent to the front, TPraised end honored ss soldiers, by stetes-
men who deceived and tricked them by their triecks, oxeited end moved by the
little school chilcrcen veving flrps ond sirging "Thrt we ore ehle to po to
school todry is becnuse of Mr, Soldicr, it is becruse of Mr, Soldicr vho
fought for his conntry," Socme beceame Krnmiknzes, some humen hombs, Horever.
once the var is lost, hew many reople rre there who exrress their grrtitucc
to the dejectedly rcturning soldicr? There is no one} 411 thet persons wi.:
4 lock like returning sevicement get are e¢old and rccusing steres, This is
the rresent condition in Jepen today, Just rccentlyone of the Jrluit |
vitnosses who wes repetrirted end wre o high school te-cher sont me e lettos
eaying th~t becnuse he hrd hecn connected vith wrr erimes he could not pget
hie former joh, cven trough he hed becn rcjoieinrly demobilized, To sry
nothing about tho ninetcen defendrnte in thie cose, vhe hrve boon eonfined
for rlmost twe end » helf ycers without knewing cnd vithout ey meens of
knowing hov their rerents were, I eennot keer terrs from wolling up in
me whonover I see them, Thoy moy hrve committod ¢ crime ond if they heve
they have elreedy 'eid the penelty 4n full ond the rurpcse of the renalty
hrs been fully cechicved, If improvemont end rerdjustment is the purpose of
sunishment and if punishment is the re~ne b which n good socicty is to be
built in the future, I em comrinced thet further runishment is neeningless.

Esrecielly cri es which were denc unexpectedly ond thosc which were
done moehenically do not show the bodness of the eriminel, I do not think
it is » good eriminnl noliey to runish such erimes with cepitel punishment.
Espocinlly sinece Jepen hes cdenounced ~'rr forever, they will never hove sucn
on oprortunity again, But, they ere persons with good tolent and they are
nceded in robuilding a new Jopan, not only thet “ut they are needed in the
furtheranec of hunenity.

Your Honor, the President rnd the Members of the Commission; Amerien
hrs et present sprend forth her rrrm hand in rrotecticn cnd in puidonce to
Jopen, and the people of Japen, In its turn the people of Jepan, in full
sincerity, have pledged to remay hor for tris help, These dcfendants, crch
end cveryone of them rre elso peo-le of Japon, I roqueet thet lenient
judgment nnd onother chenee for oo now Jife be given them,
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Final Argument
For The Defense Of
Surgeon Captain IWANAMI, Miroshi, Imperial Japanese Navy, et al
Delivered By
Commander Martin E, CARLSON, U.SeNsRe
AT
Guan , Hnrianu' Islands.

As I present this argument in behalf of all nineteen of the accused
it is my intention to cover the legal aspects of the charges and
specifications as they apply specifically to all specifications. This
may duplicate in some {nstances the arguments of the Japanese Defense
counsel but this cannot be avoided because time does not permit a
careful and studied perusal of thoir argumente by me, I shall also
discuss to a limited extent the testimony and evidence as it pertains to
each of the accused.

Before I do this I should like to roview briefly the background of
the dofendants who are charged as war oriminals, In order to consider
judicially cvery phase of this trial tho commission should understand

tho way the Japanose think, I wonder if this 1s possible for any of us?

May I quote from the "Pocket Guide to Japan", a booklot published
by tho Army Information Dranch, T & E, Division and approvod by Fleet
Admiral Nimitz:

"You will nover fully understand the way the Japaneso think or do
things to-day, bocause in almost every way our ideas are cxactly opposite
to theirs, and, as a rosult, our actions are too."

Contrast this with tho peoplos of the atie nations, The Germans,
fundamentally, are vory similar in thought, action, and reaction to
our own peoples Tho background of the Italian poople shows a similarity
to ours in culture and ideologye Musie, art, govermment, sclence,
1iterature, all of these aro known and approoiatod alike both by
those other axis mations and by our own nation, It is true that their
desire for power procipitated World War II but we can oxpoct tho
Gormans to be governed to a large extent by the same basic principles

which govarn tho other Caucasian nations and wo should certainly be
bo able to undorstand the German mind. But contrast this with the
Oriental, the Japanesec < "ou will never fully understand the way the
Japanose think or do things to-day, because im almost every way our
{doas aro oxactly opposite to thoirs, and, as a result, our actions
aro oo, oiting Pocket Guide to Japan, 0,8, Army I & E Division,
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The booklot goes on to say, "In timo, the Japancso nation can be
taught to think that othor pooplo have rights." Please note, "In timo."
Still quoting, "Threc main ¢actors have more to do than anything else
with the stromge ideas and actions of the Japs. Those three influcnces
have becn boaring down on the lives of tho peoplo of Japan for so long
that finally thoy have shapod the porsonality of the nation, They are!

1, Shinto (roligion),
2, Tonno (the Emporor), and
3, Bushido (tho Way of the Warrior) .

mShinto" e the national roligion of Japan, To bogin with, Shinto
was basod on worship of nature = the birds, trecs, waterfalls, ote. This
original type of Shinto still oxists, Howover, in the courso of reccnt
history the warlords and politiocians moved in on Shinto and doveloped
Stato Shinto, which is the onforeed roligion of all Japancse todays
Under Stato éhintu, which is dnoestor worship twistod to fit a scheme of
slavery and conquost, the Emporor 1s divinc. He worships tho Sun Goddoes
and the Impcrial ancostors, Tho rost of the nation worships tho Imperial
anccstors as woll as thoir own ancostors, Both Imperial and common
aneostors are linkoed togethor in tho Japanosc mind.

"wo other principles of State Shinto aro (1) that Japan is tho
land of the Gods; that, as such, it is a eacrod land, and (2) that
Japan has a mission on oarth = the mission of saving the world, FHonco
tho Japancso slogan "tho wholo world undor ono roof", and tho sbolief
that the world must sccopt and submit to tho lcadership of Japan.

"Porhape tho most sorious thing about State Shinto from our point of
view 4s the belicf that Japanoso soldiers killed in battlo boeome
protoctivo gods who watch ovor tho homoland, Thoy aro enshrincd in the
Yasukuni shrino in Tokyo, whore thoir names aro 1istod on little teblots."”

"Knowing this about tho roligion of Javan, 1t is casior to under=
stand why Japancsc soldiers don't expect to roturn whon thoy go off to
war and why thoy are so willing to be killed in battlo,"

The allegod ncts took placo in 1944 and wo must judge theso accuscd
by their state of mind at that time, At that time to all Japaneso the
Emporor was sacrods Even to=day too many Japancse tho Emporor 1s
sacrod,

To tho Japanose tho Emperor is sacrode Prince IT0, who wroto
Jepan's constitution said of the Emporor:

IThe Emperor is hoavon=doscondod, divino and sacred; he is
pro=ominent above all his subjects, He must bo roverenced and is
inviolablo, he has indecd to pay rospect 40 tho law, but the law
has no power to hold him accountablo to it. Not only shall there
o no irreveronce for the Emperor's person, but also he shall
not bo made a topic of derogatory comment nor one of discuseion.’

"IT0 wrote thoso linos 50 years ago, but the Japanose peoplo have
clung to his teaching, Ever since, the war lords have used the Emperor
to promoto their own schomes of conquest, Ho has been their tools Thoy
have used him to stir op tho Japanose people to now hoights of fanatacism,
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"To swe up, to tho Japancse, the Emperor is a domigod, as well as
thoir political rulor. Ho 4is roligion and politics in one., No one
can stand above him of look down on him, Whon he passes through
tho strects, blinds must be tightly drawn on all windoes above tho
first floor, Ho cannot be imitated, Only the Imporial family may
own a maroon car, No onc can touch him, All thinge cmanato from the
Erporor = the crops, 1ifc, victory, It is in the name of tho Empcror
that Japan sot out to bring "pcacc, enlightenment, truth, justiec,
and co=prospority" to the tost of the world,

"Bushido (tho way of tho warrior): After defeat the Japaneso will
bo vongoful, That is part of thoir code of bohavior. It is a code
handod down from feudal timos. It is known by thc one word: “"Bushido”.

"Bushido® is a word known to cvery Japanese boy from tho timo ho
is 0ld onough to toddle, Lytorally, "Bushido" means 'Tho way of the
warrior", It is a code bascd on tradition and legend, There is no
actual written formula for it, but it strosscs loyalty abovo all elsc =
loyalty to a mastor, In foudal times it was loyalty to a feudal lord
who was tho big boss, In modern times tho wer lords have focussod
'‘Bushido” on loyalty to the Emporor. It is a one-gided codo which calle
for loyalty and sacrificc on the part of the ordog but pute no
corrcsponding obligation on tho master. Under Dushido” the 1little
follow payse Tho Japanosc don't bolieve that loyalty bogins at the
top.

\ " .

_ _DBushido" taught its followers to keop cool, and not to draw a |
sword cxoopt to use it, The old version taught not to hit an ooponent
whon ho is down, but the Jrpanese havoe discarded that part of it as
obeolcte,

Undor the "ushido Code", docoit and treachory are perfectly
permissible, if thoy are omployed to achicve a desirable ond.

L]

Tho olassix cxample of how "Bushido" works is to bo found in
tho famous "Tzlo of the Forty=Seven Ronin", The story is familiar to
ovory Japancse, Ho considors it a perfoet example of the way he would
act, It is told to the smallost children by thoir fathors,

"Mho story is about a foudal lord named ASANO, who was in attendanco
on tho Shogun, Tho Shogun was the big chiof = tho rulor who stole,
the Emperor's powors,

"Anothor foudal lord named Koro insultoed Asano. This hapnened in
tho Shogun'e palacc but Asano drew his sword and wont to work on Kire,
without killing him,

"A private btrawl in tho palace could not be tolerated, so whon
tho Shogun heard of it he ordercd Asano to kll himeclf by committing
hara kiri tho same evening. Asano followed instructions, Aftorward,
his castlc was confiscetod, his family doslared oxtinot, and his
followers woro disbanded, Thoy bocame "ronin®,

isanols 47 'ronin' secattorod all over the country, Thoy took small
jobs hore and thero %o avoid suspicion but all the time thoy wore
plotting and scheming,

CERIIFIED TO ER & THURE CCLL

| /. fe

“zavEs P, KENNE
: // Lﬂ&ut@m' U.5. Navy, §i 4
Judge Adoveate, | 1

"332(3) "




“Suddunly{ on a snowy night two years later, they joincd in an
attack on Kiro's mansion, This time the job on Kiro was comploto,
The "ronin" earriod his hoad through the strects to the tomple yard
whore Asano was buried and sot it up on their mastor's grave. For
doing this thoy wore ordered to commit hara kiri, They also followed
instructions and were buried in the same tomple yard as their mastor,
Thoir graves in Tokyo havo sinco becn honorod as national monuments.
mt'; the difforenco botweon the way we rogard gengstors and the way
¥ Q0a

"What wo think is docont, and count on in othor people we doal with,
moans nothing to the Japancsc., His notion of honor is entirely diff=-
cront from yours,"

a Furthor information about tho Japancso idoology can be found in
Tho Pacific World", edited by Fairficld Opborn and published as a

part of "Tho Infantry Journal®. This of course is Japan boforo the war.

"The oducational systom of Japan, to which American scholars
have substantially contributod, is thorough and officicont.
When one roalizes that all learning has to be suporimposcd on
the cumborsome systom of charactor writing used by the Japanoso,
it is amazing that thoy have accomplished so much, and that the
poreontage of litoracy is onc of the highest in the world,
Fducation is compulsory through the sixth grade, even though thore
are no freco schooles

This cducational systom is directed toward croating a stato of
individual roprossion. From tho primary schools on, everything
is rogimented. The children arc 1ittle automations, and tho
principal ordors his teachcrs about as a genoral doos his officers,
Evon tho sports are cut and dried, and cnterod into with deadly
soriousnces.

The poople thomsclves arc dominated by two forces = tradition
and roprossion, The hoavy hand of tradition may be illustrated by
thoir enpital city, The census of 1940 gave Tokyo a pupulation
of woll ovor 7,000,000, It has large busincss distriecte and sover-
al large newspapers with a daily eireulation running into the
mi1lions. It's modorn subways arc cool and clean, have indirect
lighting and arc docoratod with vasos of artificial flowers. The
railroad trains coming into its thrco largo stations arrive and
start with such prompte=ncss that poople sot their watches by them,
Yot, in this groat city, the strocts with o vory fow oxcoptions
aro not named, and tho houscs in a givon aroa aro numbored in
tho order of croction, without regard to thelr rolstive position .
Tho hold of tradition is also evidonced in tho writton languagc.

There 48 no such thing as individualism in Japan. From the
timo the child is old ecnough to go to school, ho ceasos to be an
individual and bocomes a unit in a group = a COg in a machino,
First ho bolonge to tho family, 4ll his doings are docided for
him by femily council - his oducation, his subsoquent occupation,
his marriage, his futurc, If he falls he may commit suicide = not
because of discouragement, but because through his failure his
family has lost faces If his nts lose monoy and cannot
soce him W 'Mﬂuﬁmﬁmmu an obligation upon the
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whole family or clan, not beoause of sympathy with the young \
man, but beeausc the family would lose face if ono of its

mombors sterted somothing that ho could not finish, If a Jap=

anose busincssman in a foreign city is about to become insolvent,

tho othor Japancsc morchante in tha eity will unite to help him out,

for the samo roason. These imporsonal relations held in all areas

of 1ife = family, school, university, place of busincse and stateq

In Tokyo there is a groat shrino, tho Yasunkuni, whoro the names
of all Japanesc soldicrs who have given their 1ives in bettle
are inscribod, They arc thus dicfied, and, according to gencral
belief, their snirits help the living in their struggle against
tho encmy.: On the cvo of bhattlo, comrades fill their canteen
cups with cold wator and drink the toast; "Till wo mect at
Yasunkunil", Then thoy charge the enomy. It is all part of a
pattorn that was cut for thom centurios age, and from which the
Japanose peoplc have not deviatod, Nor will they, until the
military powor of Japan is dostroyed and the Pooplé develop or
aro exposed to a now philosophy of lifo,

Wo seo a peoplo shoeplike in their onthusiasm to follow,
amonable to propoganda, who belicve with fiorco fanticism that
thoy aro tho sced of the sun, the holovod of tho gods, the
predostined saviors of civilization."

Evon our occupation foreos in Japan do not undorstand the
Japancse, I would cite you an oxcorpt from an article by Gwon DEW,
a spoeial corrospondent of the Post Dispatch. The article appeared on
tho third page of the Sunday morning cdition July 20, 1947, St. Louls |
Post=Dispateh, 1 quotet

"Tho Japanese Character, One of the groatost weakncsses of
occupation has beon the lack of undorstanding of Japanesc charactor
and psychology.

The Japancsc have no religion as we think of it, Shintoism
is a nationalistic roligion glorifying all things Japancsc. Real
Duddhism is not practicod in Japan. Lacking religion , the
Japanceo have no sonso of right or wrong, no moral projudicos
about truth, no deop sonse of tho noced to 'do good unto othors.!

Thore is no such thing ms a national Japancse philosophy, Po=
litonoss is all-important, rathor than truth, Tho Japancsc have
no morals as we know them, but have moticulous codos of conduct
botwoon mon and women, A wife is a virtuanl sorvant., Extra=
marital rolations arc accepted without question.

To think wo can impose 'domoeracy' on such a civilisation
without oxports handling the situation for some timo to como, is
idlo,

A Jananese dooes not think, His life, from birth to death,
is govornod by rulo, Ho fools no sonse of responsibility, bo-
oauso all docisions aro based on family rule, with the Emperor,
the Supreme father," .
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These quotations and roferences could be multiplied oonsidorably,
but it would seom that thoso were sufficicnt to point out clearly and
unoquivoeally that tho defendants in this caso should not and cannot
be judged in thoir conduet by gencral standards, In a civilimation
over yoars old, thoy have had contact with tho wostorn world
for only approximately 90 yoars. I havo scon Sunurai swords which
worc over 500 yoars old, handed down from father to son throughout

the gonorations, Do you roalizo that those gwords wore forgod before
Amorican was oven discovorod? Can you oxpect a poople who have
followod a complotely alien philosophy and way of 1ife for that poriod
of timo to suddonly reverse ontiroly and immodiately assume tho
standards = and tho responsibilitics = of the newor nations? Be=
cnusc wo have conquerod thom, woe now are in the process of judging
thoir decds = not by the code which thoy know and to which thoy con=
form, but by our own codc, which wo have imposed upon thom after tho
act, I havo hoard the Christian doctincs cited as a basis for condemn=
ing thoir doed; unfortunately, possibly, tho Christian doctines have
not yot boon aceopted to any extont in the Orient, Exccution by tho
sword has boen condemned in this court as a particularly hoinous form
of doath = yot it is tho warrior's doath in Japan, and the acceptod
modo of exccution = so much so that Kendo oxperts aro looked up to

and roverod for their abflity, as wo award medals for marksmanship.

If this commission is to act in an impartial manncr in judging
those dofendants thon it should take into 1ts consideration the
\ 1deological differcnces between the Japenese and the westorn world,
as woll as thc actual facts in cach casce It may be at some future
dato that thoir way of thinking will conform to our way of thinking. l
To quote the "Guido to Japan" again, "The poaco=loving nations of the
world must curc tho Japenoso habit of mind which is dangerous to peace
and the rights of other pcoples", In time, the Japanese nation can be
taught to think that othor people have rights" == but until that timo
comos, we should not judgo past events by future oxpoctations.

Spccifically what cach of thoso accusod thought was exprossed,
botter than I can do so, and I point out to the commission tho
statoments which each of those accuscd read in this court. Evory
ono of theso accused by his statoment clearly showed that he thought
difforontly than any of us. Why? Bocause in 2600 yoars of
civilization thoy have had contact with our wostern world for only
90 ycars.

What 1ittle improssion these 90 ycars mado is brought out in such
a startling way whon we 1listened to thoso acocuscd as thoy tostify
in this court, Herdly a singlo ome of thesc onlistod mon had ovor oven
seen an American and those that had cortainly knew nothing about
Amoricans and yot they tostifiod thoy folt sorry for these porsons as thoy”
saw thom thore on tho hill that aftornoon in July of 1944.

A11 of those accusod said that they were ordered to go to the
hill that afternoon but many also said that they hoeard thore were
Amorica.mprisonors there and thoy wantod to see what Amoricans lookod
1liko, re were Japanose Navy mon fighting a war against Americans
and thoy had nover even socn an Americane Do you roalise tho great
significanco of that? :
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What will did thoy have to mako war? You members of the
commission are all military men of many years exporienco, You know
full woll tho importance of the "will to do" as it applice in war,
On Truk in 1944 thore must havo boen many persons who had nover secoen
an Anorican, Thoso accused werc not an excoption to the rule,

How did thoso accused find out about imoricans? Each and every
ono of thom have stated that tho hospital they were stationed at thore
on Truk and which Captain IWANAMI, one of thoso accused, plannod
and built to tako carc of the sick and woundod Japanosc was bombod
by Amoricans, Bombod in tho broad daylight notwithstanding tho fact
'cah.nt the buildings wore clearly and plainly marked with largo Rod

TOS808 .

Tho Lawe and Customs of Warl How do persons find out about the
lawe and customs of war? Thoso Japanosc accuscd of violating tho laws
and custome of war had novor bofore secn an Arerican but thoy had
experienced war booause many timos thoir hospital had beon bombed by
tho Anoricans and only ten days prior to this call for a goneral assombly
the Amoricans had bombod tho hospital in broad daylight.

S0 on or about July 20, 1944, sevonteon of thoso acoused are
said to have murderod two American prisoners of war in violation of the
laws and customs of war,

Two of thom havo tostified they weren't cvon at the scene of the
killing, one the Adjutant of tho hospital, still a canvalescent, was
told of tho plan but refuscd any part of it and the other a potty officor
TANADE, Mamoru was eick in bed, a peticnt at tho hospital, yet these two
aro joined with sixteen othors and all charged with muorders Thy?
Boeauso cortain persons, Japgnesc officers and onlistod mon decided
that if a crimo had been committod, in thelr opinion go and so should
be rosponsiblo and wo have thoso porsons tostifying in an American
court ns to thoir opinion as to who should bo guilty of the orime of
mardor, I saw opinion but these witnosses testified stating it was a
faot that tho Adjutant Liottenant KAMIKAWA was at the scene and it was
a fact that TANABE, Mamoru was there also.

Tho killing took place July 20, 1944, and more than three yoars
lator thoso witnosses under oath remomber c¢learly that Licutenant
KAMIKAWA wae thoro and that TANADE, Momoru was thero. Thoy even
roponbor that TANABE, WATANADE, SAWADA, NAMATAME, MUKAI, and KUWABARAI
was in tho 1ino of stabbors and HAMADA, Toshihisa remombers that TANABE
ovon stabbod., Yot KAMIK/WA took the stand and deniod he was ever at the
soena and TANADE, Mamoru took the stand and said ho wasn't there and that
ho nover loft hies siock bod at tho hospital except for a fow minmates
whon ho had to go to the toilot, We shall point out the woaknoss of the
prosecatdon ovidonce against both of theso accused, latere

Piftoen ef tho accused said they were ordered to go to the scene
and d4d go therc, Of thoso fiftecon five took tho stand and theso
five WATANADE, SAWADA, NAMATAME, MUKAL and KUWDIRA all dondod that thoy
wore selootod to steb the prispners 1
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Lioutonant OISHI, Ensign ASAMUR., Chicf Potty Officer YOSHIZAWA
and Chiof Potty Officor HOMIA admittcd thoy did cortain acts that day
undor orders from thoir superiors,’

The Supreme Commander for the Alliod Powors rulecs state that
"action pursuant to order of tho accused's superior, or of his govern=
ment shall not constituto a defenso, but may be considered in
mitigation of punishment if tho cormission detorminos that justioe
8o roquiros.” Quito proporly undor thoso rulos, tho defenge might well
{ntroduce tostimony as to obedionco to orders aftor tho findings of

tho commission, Novertholcss, tho dofonse has takon the position that
thoso SCAP rulce aro only pormissive, so far as this ocommission is
eoncornod, and that the defonso will bo proscnted in accordance with
tho rules and rogulations of our own military forecses And doecs thie
commission roalizo just what tho difforonco is botweon the rulos eot up
in SCAP for tho trial of war criminals and thoso sot forth in the rules
of our own army. I rofor tho commission to tho Rulos of Land Warfare
Basic Ficld Manual FM 27-10 and partioularly to scetlon 345.1

of chaptor 11, "Ponaltios for Viclations of the Laws of War." in

this soction it is statod:

"Individuals and organizations who violate accopted laws and -
customs of war may be punishod thorcfors However, the fact that
tho acts eomplaincd of wore dono pursuant to order of a supcrior
or government sanction may bo taken into consideration in
dotormining culpability, cither by way of defenso or in mitigation
of punishmont, Tho porson giving such ordors may also bo punishod."

By order of tho Secrctary of Warp

Gs C, Marshall, Chief of Steff.

This was a change that was added to our Rulos of Land Warfaro.
In tho War Dopartmont Manual EM 11, G-l Roundtablo Series, "What
Shall bo Dono with tho War Criminale® wo road on page 273

"Ono of tho most difficult probloms to be faced in trying
war criminals is that of dotermining the guilt of men who elaim
that thoy wore acting undor ordors of thoir suporior = that thoy
did not commit offenscs of their own freo will,"

You will £ind in paragraph 347 of the Rulos of Lend Warfaro
the following statomont:

"Individuals of the armed forces will not be hed for these
offonsos (violations of tho customs of laws of war) in case they
aro cormittod under the orders or sanction of their government or
commandors, The commanders ordering the commission of such acts,
or under whoso authority they are committed by thoir troops, may be
nunishod by tho belligeront into whosc hands they may fall,f

Notioe that under this rule the ordinary soldior is cxcused
bt his sommander or government is liable?
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This rule ontored the American Rules in 1944, Before that,
tho Rulos failod to montion "superior orders" and Amoriean courts
nartial uphold the prineiple that a soldior obeying his commandor's
ordors is not protocted of tho order is unlawful?

v That is this commission to do rogarding "supetior orders"?
HB;: not this comission follow tho Ameriecan Army rule ostablished in
1 wkich exouscs tho ordinary golddor, Even the rulo promulgatod
by order of tho Sccrotary of War eignod by Goneral Marshall Novembor
15, 1944 still oxousod tho ordinary soldier,

If we try Japancsc military in our military ecourts wo should
oxtond to thom all the bonofits which our own goldiere havo in
boing tried by a military court,

15 Novombor 19“1

Othorwise wo como Yo the groatest inconsistency of all; a soldier
in tho Japanosc _rmy who followed that army's rulo of absolute ohodience
to orders cennot avail himself of that doefonso when tried by an
Amoricah court = but a soldier in thc U.S. Army has that dofonsc
availablo to him undor the samo circumstancos. And ploasc note that
Gonoral Marshall has not qualifiod that dofonse by making it obedicneco
to a logel order" = tho statoment is unequivocal, Will you judge thoko
mon by a spoeial sct of rules and reguletions, eehablished after tho end
of the war = or will you judge thom bv the standards cstablished for our
own army in timo of war.

Tho specifications and particularly specification 3 of Charge 1
brings out the great advantagoe given to the prosccution and the
projudicial disndvantage to the accused in tryir%:ightean of them in
joindor for the acts of killing two prisonors, only reason for
tho acts performed by any of the sevontoon accusod and all Beventoon
woro not even thoro bocauso thoy wore first of all ordored to be at the
goono ono of tho co=defondants, Captain IWANAMI ordored them %o do
cortain acts. Yot to pload those orders as a defonsc immodiately
throws tho omis of rosponsibility on a co=dofondant, The position
is doplorablo, both from the point.of view of tho accused and from
the point of viow of their counscl The judge advocate noed do
1ittle more than throw out a fow ifoms of testimony by persons who
woro also thorc at the sceme, Most of thosc witnesses arc suspects
thomselves and certainly they have a vory definite reason for

testifying.

Wo again call the commission's attention to a well known fact,

a fact so well known that Undorhill in his book on Criminal Evidonce
pagos 81 ~ 82 says that courts do take judieial notloe, "that
cupidity is a most poworful motive to human hotion.® He cites the caso
of Stato v De%ooso, 51 Utah 5135, 172 Pae 290, Wo asked the commission
to tako judieinl notico of thie caso and the fact that ocupidity is a
most poworful motive to human action bocsuse we were convinced that as
soon as wo saw tho 14st of witnesses that thie fact well known by all
non, that it was particularly applicable in this easc, Having heard
tho prosocution witnosses, who for tho most havo beon confinod
einco tho ond of tho wa and many of whom wore in the stockade untdl
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aftor confercncos had beon hold with the /morican investigators and
cortain of thoso accused at which conferoncos it was decided

that cortain porsons must take tho rosponsibility for what hapnened
on that hill in July 1944 whether thoy werc thore or not simply
bocause it would bo a way out if overyono agreod that senior petty
officore did do tho stabbing, Cupidity is a most poworful motivo.
Such an attitudo by thoso Japaneso is boyond undorstanding by use.

Aro we surc that thoy underetand just what we charge them with
doing that day, It is no triflying mattor, bocauso wo have labcled
tho first charge "MURDER", No man with ordinary sensc would ever
agroc to such an arrangemont to agroe ho had murdercd two Amoricams
g0 in this caso the following aoccused took the stand and donied that
thoy did any of tho acts allegod in spocification 3 of Chargo b ¢}

TATANADE, Mitsuo; SAWADL, Teuncoj NIMATAME, Kaguo; MUKLAI,
Yochihisa; KUW/D/RD, Hiroyukd; KAMIKAW., Hidohiro and TANADE, Mamoru.

Thoy at loast manted no part of any schome cooked up by their
compatriots, They wore {nnocent and would spoak oute

o
It 48 charged that eightoen of those accuscd did kill two American
in violation of fho laws and customs of war, But do we apvrise )
any of thosc accused what wo moan by tho laws and oustoms of war in
the spccifications or doos the judgo advocate offor any proof as to
H what lawe and customs of war theso accuscd havo violateds

Sinco tho judge advoeate hasn't offored any proof or alloged any |
spceific laws which woro violated ho is perchance rolying only on a
violation of the "customs of war", HNot ovon as to customs arc any of
the accuscd apprised.

Wo speeifically point out to the commission what Naval Courts
and Doards says about "Customs", Soction 5(a) on page 3 of Naval
Courts and Doards sayst

ngircumstanccs from timo to time arise for the government of which
there are no writton rules to be found. In such cases customs of
the service govorn, Customs of tho sorvice may be likened, in
their origin and dovelopment, to the portions of tho common law of
England similarly ostablishod, But custom is nob to be confuscd
with usagej tho former has tho force of law, the latter is

merely a fact, Thero may be usago without custom, but therc can
be no custom unloss accompanied by usago. Usago consists

morely of the ropetition of acts, while custom is created out

of thoir repetition.®

Customs The following aro tho principal conditions to be
. fulfilled in order to constitute a valid custom:

It must be long contimuode
- It must bo cortain and uniforme

It must be compulsorys

-l
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It must bo consistont,
5) It must bo gonorale
6) It must bo known.
7) It must not be in opposition %o the terms and provisions
of a statute or lawful regulation or order.

| Bvory single spocification charges "this in violation of tho law
and customs of war." Cortainly Af the customs of war which these
| ninetesn accused are said so have violated complies with the above
seven requirements the judge advocate should be able to toll those
nincteon nccused and their dofense counscl what these customs of war
aro, Wo are dofinitely at a loss even in our final argumont to argue
the point because we do not know what these customs of war are.

In order to constituto a valid custom seven elemonts must be
present and in accordance with American law, at loast, tho burdon of
proof is always on the prosceution and it never gshifts to the defense.
8o we hold that 1t was {noumbont on the prosecution that they first of
all sct forth the oustoms of war ~hich have been violated (and not
having dono so they have prejudicod most soroly tho substantive rights
of a1l of those accused) and second they pust have shown that such
customs of war fulfill all the sovon conditions set forth in Section
5(d) , Naval Courts and Doards. 1If any one .of these conditions is

lacking then it is not a valid custom,

t Take for instancce the dissoction which is chargod as a violation
of tho laws and customs of war in snocification 6 of Chargo II. Is it
a custom long continucd, cortain, and uniform, compulsory and consistont,
gonoral and known and not in oppoeition to any gtatutes, lawful
rogulntion or order, not to disscct doad bodicse

If anyono of theso conditions is missing 1t isn't a valid
customs Are those Japanceo custons or Amoricen customs which arc being

violated?

It can hardly bec o Jopanose sustom not to disscct dead bodics
bocause Public Notification Nos 13, of 10 February 1900, amended in
1913 by Public Notification No. 102, as translated reads:

"Fhon tho fomily, rolatives, frionds, or surcly of military mon,
gunsokus, or worknon roquost to dissoct the digoasod part of tho dead
body of them with tho will of tho doad mon oOr with tho admission of thoir
fomily, rolatives, and frionds, the oommanding officer of the naval
hospital, tho commanding officor of tho Naval Modical Officers Acadomy ,
the ohicf eurgoon of the Ryojun Naval Station or tho chicf surgoons
of naval port districts may grant tho roquost or perform tho examinntion
by disscetion, Dut aftor the oxamination 1s finishod, tho dead body
ghnll be sewed W|.

Is it an can custom not to dissect doad bodies? We call
the cormissions o n to the testimony of the prosecution witness
Doctor J, J. KAUPMAN, Jre Licutenant, junior grade, United States
Haval Beserve, who testif 4 on the 35th day of the trial, Monday
August 11, 1947, Dr, KAUPMAN tostified that after the prosecution
witnese I)m&. Shigeyoshi, had commfitted suloide his body was taken

%o the U, S. Naval Hospital, Guam, and U.S. Navy dootors performed
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a dissection on his body including the brain.

Qe 7o "Was the body of the deceased person dissccted after his
doath?"
fl.h.!. HIt‘ “ﬂ.'

Q. 8, "As o rosult of this dissection and other circumstances,
was it known thnt this person committed suicide? Was it dotermined
if this person, if there was any mental changos in this porson?®

ins, "Thero was no ovidenco of organie brain diseasos on the
post mortem examination, Tho atatement in tho death cortificate that
the docoasod committed suicide during o dopression following testimony
was dorived fron conversations with witncssos who nssociated with the
docoascd sometimc before his demiso."

By tho prosecutions own witnoss, Dr, KAUFMAN, the prosecution
have proved that there 1s no such custom which provonts and mekes it
unlawful to porform a dissection, Cortainly the prosecution can not
twist this tostimony and say that it is only lawful to dissect
Japancse bodics, It is cormon knowlodge and the commission should take
judicial notico that dissections of human bodics is allowed and a
dissection performed by a doctor or surgoon doos not mutilate tho body
or doos not provent honorable burial.

Doctor IWANAMI admitted that he assisted with two dissocctions
] but ho did so as a doctor and scientist with the intent only to

furthor resoarch and as ono would porform any disscetion, In Criminal
Law thore must always be a eriminal intont, " Captnin IWANAMI had no :
more of a eriminal intont whon ho assisted with the dissection of
thoso two bodies than the American doctors who porformod the dissection
on tho body of NAK/MURA, Shigeyoshi, tho prosocutions witnaess who
committed suicido before ho had finished tostifying in this court.

Yo hold that the customs of war which thoso nineteocn accused aro
rllcged to have violated aro all the spme ns tho customs of war alloged
in Spoeification 6 of Chargoe II, The progocution have not set forth

any particular customs of war, and thoy do not intend to do so because

. thoy themselvos do not know what they moan when thoy chargo 'tﬂ.‘ls in
violation of tho customs of war", Thoy only hope that the commission
will skip over that allegation in all tho gpecifications as not boing
important and unnccessary to provoe.

Wo hold that this allegation is very importent in all the
spocifications othorwise it would not have boon alloged. It should
have boen proved 1ike any other fact and sinco it wasn't tho commiseion
should find it not proved,

It hardly scems possiblo to us that somo of theso nccusod had
novor boforo July 20, 1944, sooh an Amorican but thoy have so testificd,
Isn't it only common sonse therofere that tho customs of war which they
arc chargod with having violatcdl and which the judge advocate has
nover as much as montionod what they might bo, are not known to those
aoousod, If the oustom is not known 1t 1s not o valld custom, In tho

case of a sustom you cannot charge a person with scionter of a custom.
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This ie difforent than when a law is charged. In the caso of a law
scicnter is presumed but not so in the case of a custom, {

And it isn't enough to say that ono co-defendant had knowledge
of the customs and all are presumed to have knowledgo.

Trial by joinder in no way oreates any such prosumption and the
prosecution must show that cach and overy onc of tho nincteon accused
had knowledgo of the customs of war which he has alleged that they
violated, whatevor thoso customs of war may be, before this commission
can find them guilty of violating customs of war,

411 tho accused objected to the charges and specifications for the
following roasonst

First, the accuscd objocted to the trial in joinder. Seetion 17,
Naval Courts and Boards reads:

= Accused persons will not be joined in tho samc
charge and spocification unless for concort of action in an offensc.
"The more fact that sevoral persons happen to have committed the
game of fense at the samc timo docs not authorize thoir being joined in
tho charge."

C.M,0, 77-1919 states: Trial in joinder: Whon joint trial should
not bo had,

"The mere fact that soveral persons happen to have committod the
same offcnse at tho same time does not authorizo their being joined in
tho charge. Thus where two or more persons in the naval service takc

occasion to dosort or absent thomsclvos without loave, in company but |
not in pursuance of a common umlawful design and concert, the casc is
not onc of a single joint offonsc, but of soveral separate offonscs
of the samo charactor, which are no less soveral in law th ough commitied
at the samo timo,."
"File 26262-5'?1&, G.CeM, Roc, No, Mt'

. C.Ms0s 1=1929 reads: "It is well settled that tho neccssary

[ olements for a joint charge and joint trial are that the offense must be
one that is not in its nature soveral, and that thorec must exist a

| conspiraoy or concert of action,

In Digest of Opindons of the Jydge Advocato Goneral of the Army
(1901) p. 201 it is stated: Proporly to warrant the joining of soveral
. pergons in tho same charge and bringing them to trial together thereon
' the offensc must be such as roquired for ite commission a combination

of action and must have boen committcd by the accused in concert or in
f pursuance of a common intontsseee®

Winthrop's Military Law, p, 208 statos: "But whonever the offense
is, in its nature, several thorc can be no joinder."

In footnote 3 on page 208, Winthrop quotes 2 Hawkins, ¢ 26, 8
89, as follows: "Whore the offense indictod doth not wholly
arise from the joint act of all tho defondants, but from such act
joined with some porsomal and particular defect or ommission of each
defendant, without which it would be no offense, .esss the indictment
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Not orly woro thoso nineteen accused joined in trial to the
projudicc of cach ono individually but thoy wore joinod with “and
othors unknown", "and others to the relator unknown", "and othor
porsons unknown", ' This joindor with other persons ummown was most
projudieial to the substantivo rights of the accused beocsusc nO ONO of
thoso atoused could probebly propare his defense not knowing who was
ineluded in tho torm other porsons unknown,

Thoro is n dofinite cenflict of intercst botweon tho partios
joinod to tho projudico of all partios and to bo joinod with persons
unknown was as wo havo statod most projudicial bocauso tho acoused
would 1ike to onll as witncssos in tholr behalf cortain persons,

L1l such porsons arc roluetant to tostify on tho grounds that if thoy
wére prosont at the scene of an alloged war crime they arc as guilty
as thoso persons charged with erime, The extont of the rulo laid down
in Soection 332 of tho U,S. Criminal Codo is not applicablo in time of
war to persons who bocause of assigmment to a coertain group and boeause
of orders issued to tho group roquiring the membore of tho group to be
prosont, Wo hold that M{14tary Law should bo applied and not Civil
Low in such casoB.

C.M.0. 4=1935 is quoted on this point: Tho weight of authority
is to tho offoct that due to the differonce in logal relationship of
tho partics, the standard set by tho civil courts should not be followed
by military authoritics much loss bo binding upon thom.”

Tho term "and othor porsons unknown" 18 further objectionable
boocause this enabled tho prosecution to evade the rule laid down in
Wharton!s Criminal Bvidonce, Volume 2 Section 714, whieh reads:
"Narratives of past ovente aftor tho eonspiracy is fully executod
are to measuros taken in excoution or furthorance of tho common purposc
inndrdssible against co=conspirators." .

Stato v. Huckins holds: "One conspirator docs not = = = by its
exoeution undor his authority, awthorisocd his co=conspirator to mako
confossions or admissions of guilt for him to to narrate past events,"

"Whon tho common entorprisc is at an end, whothor by accomplishment
or abandonmont, mo onme of tho conspirators is pormittod by any
subsoquont action or doelaration of his own to affoet tho othors.” From
Wharton's Crininal Evideneo, Volume 2, paragraph 714, eiting Logan v.
Unitod States, 144 U.Se 263.: :

Brown ve Undtod States, 150 U.S. 93.

Sorenson ve State (C.C. 8th) 143F, 889,

Gu.'.l.l 7. MM Sﬁtﬂ" 1&' ug

Haugor v. Unitod States, 173F, 54.

MorTow Ve Mhd Stntﬂl 11F, (Zlﬂ 2%-

Lane v. Unitod States, 34F. (2d) g;ll.'s!.

Collongor ve United States 50F. ( .

Minnor v, Unitod States 57F. .

Dandagarda ve Unitod Statos (C.C.d, 10th) 64F, (2d) 182
Unitod Statos v, White, 5 Crunch (C.C.ks) 3€F, Cas No. 16675«
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The accused and particularly Captain ITiNAMI, Hiroshi, objocted
to spocification 1 of Charge I. Chargo I 4s laboled "MURDER" but tho
gpoecifieation does not follow the samplo specification in Section 53
Navel Courts and Boards. Spocification 1, Charge 1 contains many of
the olements of Common Law Murder end soveral of statutory Murdor.

In Amordcan Jurisprudonco Criminal Law page 158 we road: "There
aro no common law offensos against the Unitod States and the erime of
murder or manslaughtor as such 1s not known to tho Fodoral Covernment
oxeept in placos over which 1t may excreise oxelusivo jurisdiction
and whorc by Act of Gongross such offenscs are recognised and made
plmhhn'blo. Git.:lng Pottit v, hlltﬁ’ 194 U.S. 205; 18 UeSeColin
paragraph 451 ot Seq.

Soction D=13 Naval Courte and Boards statos: "In tho casos of the
moro sorious offensos trisble by Suporior Provost Court and Military
Commission, $here should be a dotailod specification as in court=
martial practico, and such specifieation should show on its face the
circumstances conforring jurisdictionjyesss o”

Fo objocted booausc spocifications 1, 2, and 3 of Charge I do not
show tho statute of murder shich hes beon violated. Not to sot out the
statuto vorbatim was prejudicial ko the gubstantdve rights of tho
accuscd and thoy wore procluded from proparing a proper dofonse not boing
fully aporiscd as to the law thoy violatod.

Tho spoeifications 1, 2, and 3 of Chargo I allege this to be in
violation of the ‘aw and customs of Wars What law and what customs of
war? Ve hold that not to sot out sueh law and customs Was projudicial
to the substantive rights of the accusod, Among other things thoy
woro not fully apprised of tho 1a and tho cumstoms thoy violated, and
could not preparc a proper defense,

Spocification 3, alleges two soparate offensos in that two victins
arc allogod yo havo boon killed, Eightcen aocuscd arc joined in this
ono spocification and tho victims arc said to bo "two (2) American
Prisonors of War, names to tho rolator unknown", This 48 and was all
vory confusing and the acoused do not yot kmow and arc ;no

appriscd of the of fonse with which thoy arc charged, All cightoen
accused arc theroby prejudiced as Yo thodr substantive rights.

Which oncs of the accused ie charged with stabbing which one
of the two prisoners or are they charged with stabbing both of tho
prisoners. Cortainly tho prosecution did not provo that any of the
accuscd stabbed or cut more than ono prisoner, Those of the .
acoused that admittod thoy partieipatod tostifiod thoy only stabbed

one prisonor or only cut one prisonore

Wo come to the further question {n this case of ®when iz a man
doad?® Is it whon his heart finally stops boating and his lungs stop
breathing, or is 1% when he is so woundod that there is no possiblo
hopo of rocovery, oven under the miracles porformed by modern surgoons,
o man has his noek merndfrommo‘balktamh an oxtont that the
spinal column and all of the ncrvos containod thorein aro forever
separatod, FPorhaps the hoart continues to function automatically for a
fow mimutos more = espocially if the jugular vion has not been cut

c747FED 10 BE A TRUE 00K 0g72(18) "

vt /.

// snms P. KENNI

-1 autenant, Uss Navy, .?

mipe Adoveate. S




and tho bleeding is thus slower, Dut the man cannot live longer than
the time nocossary for tho heart to ccese heoating., Is a hlow struck
undor these conditions murdor? Can a porson this far dead, with no
hopes of roeovery, bo furthor "killed" by anothor blow?

Can a porson who is stabbod thru tho hoart with a bayonct and eo
woundod that thore 18 no possiblo hopc of rocovory bo further killod
by another blow? Tho ovidence nll showe that onlistod men stabbed
with boyoncts and spears first onc and thon after a fow minutes the
next man, Only onc person stabbed onc prisoner at a time and no
person egtabbed a sceond time or did any porson stab at tho same time
and while anothor porson was stabbing.

Tho judge advocatc resisted cvery effort and objoctod to any
ovidonee showling whon thosc prisoncrs woro doad. In othor words he
would have tho commission belicve that neither of those two prisoncrs
wore dead until long after thoy had boon buried, In no othor way can
ho prove hig casc against Licutonant OISHI, Ensign [SAMURA, and
Chiof Potty Officor YOSHIZ'WA. Bu% the commisslion should know that
it is common knowlodgo that a porson fatally wounded or a person hanged
dies in loss than thirteen minutces and most Amerieans stabbod through
the hoart with a boyonet die in much loss timo than thirtoen mimutcs,
The judge ndvoeatc will I am sure agrece that a person cannot commit
nurder upon a dead body.

It hasn't boon shown oxcopt in the casc of HOMMA when any of thesc
accusod stabbod, It isn't vory convincing proof and no civil court
would over conviet rnyonc of murder just boecauso the statos attorney
said, "There were two Amorlecans alive on that hill that afternoon
and at the ond of tho day tho two Arericans werc dord." This 18 in
offoet what tho judgo advoeatc said, Ho would have the commission
bolicve that by forming ninmctoon accusod in trial ho thercby doosn't
have to provo anything but thattwo porsons wore alive at two delock
and at fivo ofclock thoy worc doad and thorefore all cightoen persons
who ho has formed in trial bocome guilty of the murder of two
Amoricans, DBut all eightoon accuscd do not losc their identity
as individunle simply bocausc the judgo advoeate joins them in trinl,
The commission must bring in a finding against thom individually,

"If thorc is a reasonablo doubt ns to tho guilt of the aceused, ho must
bc  aequittod, If thero is a roasonablo doubt as to the dogroec of
guilt, tho finding must be in a lowor dogrec on which there is no

such doubt, In making its finding the court must strietly observe the
rulo that it must recach its conclusion solely from tho cvidenco adduced.
Soction 158 Naval Courts and Boards.

The judgo advocate must prove individual intent ageinst theso
accused, It isn't cnough that thoro may have existod an intont
on tho part of some individuals to kill that day. Each acoused
who is found guilty of murdor must have had the requisito intent.
Soction 151 Navel Courte and Boards has this to say about intent:

"In rospect to the element of intent, crimes are distinguished
as follows: Those in which a distinet and specific intont, indepondent
of tho meroc act, is cssential to constitute tho offonsc, as murder,
larceny, burglary, dosortion, and mutiny, cte.j and those in which tho
act is the prineipal feature, tho existonce of the wrongful imtent
being simply inferablo thercfrom, as rape, slocping on wateh, drunkoneos:

 negleet of duty, ote. In casos of the forwor class, the characteristioc
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intent must be ostablishod affirmativoly as a scparatc fact; in the
latter class of cascs it is only nocessary to prove tho unlawful act,®

Wo shall look to tho third speeification of the first charge
innsmuch as cighteen of thoso accuscd aro chargoed with murdor in this
spocification,.

This Navy convonod Military Commission must deecido if those
Japnneso nationals aro guilty of tho charges as specifiod, Each of
tho accusod must be judged only as ho is chargod. Tho fact that tho
convening authority saw fit to join ninetoon accusod in onc trial
and then in apecification three of charge I only name cighteon of tho
accuscd as having cach and togother further complicates the issucs
but in no way doorivoe any of the accusod of individual rights,

The first charge is callod "MURDER®, Wo ask that the commission
carofully considor whothor tho specifieations under Charge I tochnieally
and logally a’lego murder or whethor these spocifications are only
violations of Articlo 23, paragraph (e¢) of the 1907 Hague Convontion,
which statos in part, "....eit 18 ospocinlly forbidden = ... co To kill
or wound an enomy who, having laid down hie arms, or having no longor
means of dofonsc, has surrondercd at discrotion,eees."s Wo fool it
is of tho utmost importanco that this commission docide this point,

If this 1s n murdor charge, then it does not follow tho sample
spocifieation in Section 53, Naval Courts and Doards, Tho statoment
that the nccused did kill is a conclusion of the pleader instead of a
statomont thnt the nccused did kill is a conelusion of the nleader
instond of a statomont of faet and docs not make good specifieation,
Tho corpus delicti has in our opinion not beon provod,

On tho othor hand, if thesc spocifications are violations of tho
Haguo Convontion, then we maintain that the samo should be sot forth
vorbatim in tho spoeifieation and proved like any othor fact,
Soction 27, Naval Courts and Boards:

“4 spoeification should contain allogations of all the essentdal
elemonts of tho offonsoc in simple, accurate, and concise language,
An essontinl cloment is one the omission of which in a specification
would bo ground for sustaining a timely objection on the part of
tho aeccused, or if not objoetod to and the evidonee adduecd does not
sup~ly the omission, will constitute a fatal defoct, For examplo,

o spocification of theft should allogo:

(1) A taking and earrying away of the property in quostion ,
and manner thereof,
2) Description and value of the personal property.
3) From the actuanl or constructivo possession of the owner
or person ocntitlod to poascssion oe against the accusod,
Placo and time of taking, '
Deseription of owner or person contitled to possession,
6) Intont to doprive the ownor permanently of his proporty,
For tho oloments of any particular offense tho applicable seetdon
under sample charges and spooifieations should be consulted.

| "222(37)*
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It 48 not cssential to state in a specification that an of fense

wns comitted in breach of any Pedorsl statute, article of the articles

for the govermmont of tho Navy, law of tho State in which the court

1s sitting, or gonoral rogulation, as tho court takes judieial notdce
of such statute, article, Stato law, or rogulation, undor which the
charge is laid, but whonovor tho offonse comes diroectly undor any other
enactmont (foroign law, municipal ordinancc, or local ship or station

&

The lawe and customs nrmmmdurun:mmcptufnﬂmm
as in contradistinction to a Fodoral statute. Bven if tho lawe of
war aro Pedoral statutes we hold 1% should bo sct out verbatin because
these nocusod aro not eitisens of the United Statesj they are Japanese
nntionalse In July 1944 they wero s11 in tho Japanaso Navy and werec
stationod at Truk Atoll which was e {sland possession of the Japaneso
Imporial Govornment, It was strongly fortificd and for yoars a closed
port. No /American or ¢thor national was allowed %o evon eome into
tho harbor lot alonc go ashoro. In July 1944 at Truk this olloged
orimo is said to havo taken place. In viow of thesc eircumstances we
fool that it is ¢ ssential to state in onch and overy specification
oxactly and verbatim tho law or tho custom which is sald to have boen
violatcd and proved like any othor fact, Since tho judge advocates
noithor set out verbatim the law or tho oustom or at any timo during
tho trial stotod or proved eny such law or custom wo still maintain
thal tho substantive righte of thoso nocused have boen prejudiced
thoroby and wo also eall the commission's attention to the lack of
proof as to what lam and oustoms of war Wero violated, How ean the
conmission find that this essential allegation "this in violation of
tho law and customs of war® has boon provod? '

A specification must on its faco alloge facts which constitute n
violation of somo law, rogulation, or custon of tho sorvico. It is
not sufficiont that the accused bo charged gonerally with having

committed an offonsc, but the partieular acts or ciroumstancos attesding

a spocific offcnso must bo comploto, It is not sufficient that several
spocifications taken togethor may do 80e

It is not nocessary that a specification be framed with the
proeision of a common law s0_long ¢
NOWE Tl18C i ] g O : £ & OeUBD
o with which ho 18 ¢
oseribed to adviso the aoccusc
under which it is claimod he cormittod tho erime, to onablo him to
mako any defonse he may havo. The statement of a mere conclusion of
1ew instoad of facts will not moko n good spocification. Thus, it .
would not bo a good specification which moroly statod that theft was
committod by a certain man at a certain timo and place, or that a man
unlawfully had in his posscssion cortein proporty without alloging
facts showing whorein tho possossor Was unlowful, Each specification
must support the charge under which 4% is laid,

Wo hold that this third specification of Cherge I must show
juriediction over all oighteen accused and partioularly over the ton
persons who woro demobd1isod.

Tho followifg ten porsons although prisoners of war at one time

C'Ei -+ LED 10 EE A R OG- " me

/-~ JAMES P, KEN

——



wore released from custody, roturned to Japan arid demobilized:

Lioutenant Commandor KAMIKAVA, Hidehiro;
Licutonant OISHI, Totsuoj

Licutonant ASAMURA, Shimped;

Ensign YOSHIZAYA, Konsaburoj

Warrant Paymaster WATANADE, Mitsuoj
Warrant Corpsman TANADE, Mamorwj
Warrant Corpsman MUKAI, Yoshihisa;
Chiof Corpsman AKALORI, Toichiroj

Chiof Corpsman NAMATAME, Kazwoj

Chiof Corpsman MITSUHASHI, Kichigoro.

In the case of the above ten persons tholr roturn to the custody
of 4he Unitcd States follows the samo pattorn. A Japancse policeman
appenrcd at their homo ono day and told them to como along with him
to the poldce station, From the policc station these persons wore
‘sont to Sugamo Prison which is staffod and operated bty tho United
Statos Army. After a short stay at Sugamo prison thoy were turnod
over to the custody of tho United Statcs Navy and sent to Guam where
thoy havo beon kept in elose confinemont, Wo question the legality
of the procoss by which these ton porsons werc roturned to the eustody
of tho United Statos’Navy Deparfmont,

We call the commission's attontion that those ton persons were
roloased as prisoners of war by the United States and roturned to
Japan whore they werc demobdlized from the Japanose Navye Clearly
thorcfore they arc not fugitives Trom justicc nor did they flee
from the custody of tho Unitod Statos or were they personally prescot
at tho timo the erimo was committod within the demanding state, tho
United Shatos.

Vo contimio to quote from 22 Am Jurisprudence page 2551 "The
language of the ['ederal Statutes scoms to contemplate that the erime
shall have beon commitied by one, who, at tho timo, was persomally
prosont within the demanding state, Thus, it refors to a demand
bv tho Exocutive of a stato for the surronder of a person as a
fugitive from justico to the oxcoutive of a state 'to which such
person has fled,! and it requires tho production of a copy of the
{ndictmont found, or tho affidavit mado, bofore a magistrate,
containing the nocessary charges and properly certificd by the
oxocutive of the state or territory tfrom which the person so ¢
has ﬂOdf'I-I‘IJ.O

Can it be said that any of these ton porsons wero poersonally
prosent within tho Unitod Statos or the territories over which they
cloined jurisdiction at the timeo tho erime was committod, January,
Fobruary, and July 19447 This scoms to bo one of tho roquirements
of the Federal Statute.

It is a universal rulo that a person to be extradited must
bo gharged with a crime against tho laws of the state from whoso
justice he is allogod to havo f1od, Those ten persons did not fleos
thoy wore demobilised aftor having beon turnod over as roleased
psisonors of war to the Japanesc authoritics, Even now ‘thoy are not
with e¥imos ageinst the Unitod Statos but are charged with
wviolations of the law and ewstoms of ‘wars
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These ten persons are together with eight others nccused of a
political erimo and sinece extradition is oxprossly forbidden of
persons charged with politieal crimos we maintain that this commiselon
has no jurisdiction over these ten persons. The proof also shows
that these ton persons were on Truk in July 1944 and tho Japanesc
Government had eontrol of and did oxercisc jurisdiection as a soverign
state over Truk at that timo, Theso ton porsons wore not within tho
jurigdiction of tho commission in July 1944 nor wro thoy within
tho Unitod States whon tho erimo was committed. The cormission
should thoreforc discharge at onco tho following ton porsons:

KAMIK /%A, Hidehiroj
OISHI, Tetsuo)
ASAMURL, Shimpei)
YOSHIZAVIA, Kensaburoj
TANADE, Mamora;

MUKAI, Yoshihdsaj
MRI’ Tniﬂhl.l'bl
NAMAT AME » Knll.l:rl
MITSUHASHI, Kichigoros

Tho accusod are all charged with murdor under specifieation 3 of
Chargo I. Tho murder charged is common low murder otherwise the
statute violatod should bo alloged and set out in full, There are
no common lcw offonsos against tho Unitod States and thereforo,
thoro $§ no jurisdiction ovor tho common law offonse of murder. We
quota prge 158 of the Amorican jurisprudonco Criminal Law:

ve aro no common law offonscs against the United States and
the of murder or manslaughter as such is not known to the Fodora”.
Govornmont oxeept in places over which it may exoreise oxclusive juris
diction ‘and whore by Act of Congress such offonscs are rocognised
and mado punishable, Citing 194 U,S, 205, Pottit v Winlehe; 18 UdSuhe

Paragzaph 451 ot seqe

It is common knowledge that this commission had no juriediction
on Truk in January, Fobruary, or July of 1944. This comnission should
teko judicinl notdee of this fact and also of the fact that thore is no
A% of Congrose giving the Navy Dopartmont of the Unitod States
?lgﬂw judicinl jurisdiction on Truk in January, Fobruary, and July

19444

Murder ng an offonsc is provided for as follows, Soction 53,
Naval Courts and Boards:

" Murder. This is provided for in the 6th Articlo for the
Govornment of .tho Navy. It must have beon cormitbed bty a person
belonging to a public vessel of the Unitod States and outeide the
territorial jurisdiction theroof." :

"he Gth A.C.N, provides that "if any person belonging to any
public vessel of the Unitod States commite the orime of murder without
the territerial jurisdiction thercof, he may be tried by court~nartial
and punished with death,” This precludes a courtemartial taking
jurtediotfon of mrder' comdttod within the territorisl jurisdiction
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of tho Unitod States, If the erimo 4s committod on the high seas
or within a foreign country thore 4s no doubt that courds martial
having assumed jurisdiction thercof may prococd to a final judgment.”

Article 6, A«C.Ne bofore it was emonded read:

"iurdor, = If any person bolonging to any publie vossel of the
Unitod Statos cormite the erime of murder without the territorial
jurisdiction theroof, ho may bo tricd by court martial and punishod
with donth, (R.sa B80C, 162‘, arh. 6)"

*his mst bo law applicable boeause,irticle 6 L.GeNe was anonded
by Publie Law 245 on Docember 4, 1945, AlNav 420 = 45 = 1843
Amondmont to Artielos for Govornment of Navy, JeiGe 8 Doecembor 1945

Articlo 6, A.G.N. was amondod by Public Law 245 on 4 Deccmbor 1947
and thoreforo, nono of thesc cightecon accuscd cen be tried under
Articlo 6 A.G.Ne as amondod by Pyblie Law 245 on 4 Decomber 1945 for ai
offonsc committed on Truk in July 1944.

Articlo 61, Title 34, U.S. c., Soction 1200 roadst "Limitation
of trinlas; offonses in general, no person shall bo tried by courd=
martinl or otheérwise punished for any offcnsc, except as provided in
the following article, which appears to have boen committed more thar
two years before the issuing of the order for such trial or punish-
mont, unloss by roason of having absontod himsolf, or of some othor
nanifost unpediment he shall not have boen smonable to justice within
thet poriod, (ReS. Soction 1624, articlo 61, Fobruary 25, 1895, cl7t,
28 Stat, 680)."

Aeoordingly the spocification shows no jurisdiction bocause the:s
1s no jurisdiction to punish any of thoso aighteen for the erime
nlleged in spocification 3 of Charge I, Even the ten porsons who woio
domobilizod mere always amengble to justice during the period in which
thoy lived ns civilians in Japan.

Tho. burdon of proving oxcoptions to the statuto of limitations Zs
on tho Itnt‘ﬂ {ﬂltim Stato v BB.'M, ” Idaho “’ m, Pac m'
Pooplo v Rose 325 Ill, 417, 156 NE 303.

This eormission should not considor any roferonce to the 8CAP
lettor, Rogulations Govorning the Trisls of Aocusod Wer Crirdnals G
000.5 (5 Docombor 1945) LG, as apnlieable or conforring jurisdiction
on this commission to try the acouscd, Wo ecall tho eommiesion's
attontion to paragraph 2 of tho above SCAP letter which .reads:

"2, Jurisdiction, a. ﬂ!ﬂiﬂ:ﬂﬂ- Tho military commission appoimtod
hereunder shall have jurisdiction.esee."s Cortainly this commission
{s not appointed by the Suprome Commandor Allicd Powers,

This cormission is convoned by tho Commander Harionas Area by
Sordal 3785, datod Fobruary 21, 1947.

This comnmission should earofully conaider qﬁnt- was sald in the
caso of Pottit v, Walshe 18 U.S. C.Ae paragraph 451, et seq as cited
on Page 198 American Jurisprudence Criminal Law, . :
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"Thore arc no common law offonses against the United States and the
crimo of rurder or manslaughter as such is not known to the Foderal
Govornment oxcopt in places over which it may oxeroisc oxclusive juris-
dlction and whero by act of Congress such offonses are recognisod and
nade punishablo."

Wo again ask this commission and tho prosecutdon: Phat law are
those acouscd boing charged with having violatcd? Is it the Haguo
Convention Noe IV, of 18 October 1907, artieclo 23,(1:) which roads as
followss "It is oxprossly forbiddon veesslc) to ki1l or wound an
onomy who, having ledd down his arms, or having no longer means of
dofense, has surrondorod at diserotion,"? If it is, thon wo cite
Article 2 of the same conveniion which provides that the provisions
do not apply if all of tho belligerents are not parties to the
Convention, Sinco neither Italy nor Dulgaria has ratificd the 1907
Convontdion, thesc accused elaim thoy are not bound by Article 23 (c),
although Jopan did sign the Conventlon.

Soction 27 of Navel Courts and Boards saysi

"o constituto a crime both oriminal intent and o prohibitod
nct must concur. Whore tho offense specified is one which requires o
specific intont and the act both must be sot out. For example, a
spocifiention nlloging that the accusod "did folondously have 'iu his
possossion with the intention of romoving samc from snid ship® cortain
Government property, fails to gtate an offonse, Tho eriminal intent
{s properly alleged, but the word "fcloniously® 1s o mexe gonclusion
of lam, and the only facts allogod arc that the accuscd had Governmen®,
property in hie posscesion and had the intontion of romoving it from
tho ship. The more possession of Government property is not in iteelr
a viclation of ady law; rogulation, or custom of the scrvico, nor is
it 1l1legel in itself to tako Govornmont oroperty fron the ship.”

Fo connot know with any certainty just what these cightoon accusod
aro charged with in specification 3 of Chargo I, but if it is tho
Goneva Prisoners of War Convention of 1929 we ask what article?

In tho Geneva Prisonors of Wer Convention of 1929, Article 2
providos that prisoncrs of war "mist at all timos bo humenely troatel
and protected, partieularly against acts of vi0lonoc yeessse Article
9 of the samo Convention providos: "Prisonors of war have the right to
have their porson and thoir honer rospectod.”

Wo point out however that Japan has not ratifiod or formally
adhered to 1t, The mero fact that Jepan has through tho Swiss Govorr -+
mont agrecd to observo theso provisions makes no differenco logally.
This case 1s boing tried by a judicial commission and all its findings
mst be legal, cnd tho sentence {mposed only if there has boon a lega’.
violation or crimo. This cormdseion must not try those acocusod only
because thoir morals may have been difforent than ours at the timo
thoy committed the alloged sots, Thero must bo anothor logal basis for
the chargose It 1s not eloar to tho accused upon what law tho charges

and spocifications arc based s
; w2z 22) "
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¥r, Justioce Rutledge in the dissonting opinion 4in the YAMASHITA
Caso sadd: "It is not our tradition for anyone to be charged with
erimo sess., in languago mot sufficient to inform him of tho nature
of tho offonso or to onable him to mako dofense."

In spocification 3 of Charge I the prosecution will no doubt state
that all cightecn accused arc charged with purder as prineipals, They
will probably cite section 332 of the U.8, Criminal Code as dofining
n nrincipal: "Wheovor directly conmite any act comstituting an
offonse dofined in any law of tho United States, or alds, abets, counscl:
commands, induces, or procurcs its comrdssion, ia a principal®, (ReS-pa
5323, 5421, Mer. 4,1909, c 321, 332, 35 Stat, 1152) as
found in Soction 580"pnge 21, U.S. Code Ammotatod Title 18,

Thon thoy will statc that a man may bo guilty of murdor evon
though he did not strike tho fatol blow, but if he aided, abottod,
counscled, commanded, induced, or procured its commission. Thoy will
evon go 8o far as to say a man 1s guilty of murder if ho has done no
porc than cnoouraged or advisod one to commit tho erimo, DBut they
fu.il to define murdor ns it applies to the individunls of warring
nations.

If the aot which constitutes an offonsc in spocification 3 of Chug
I, is a Fodoral offenso it should have boon sct ous or ad lenst the
stature rcforroed to. .

Tt 1s noocseary to look closoly at this seetion 332 of the
Criminal Code and also secc what decisions if any there have becne

Pirst we noto that this stobute says: Whoever directly
cormite any act constituting an offense dofincd in any law of the
United Statcs. Tho person must theroforo dircetly commit the act.

Socond, the act must bo an offenso defincd in any law of tho
Unitod Statos, that 1s it must bo a statutory offensc, Note 4
on pago 23 of Ibid says: "4, Who aro aiders, abottors, ote., with-
in soction. = Ono who porsuades anothor to conmit a erime is an
accossory undor this scetion. Ackloy v U.S. (Mo, 1912) 200 F, 217,
11!, CeCe Ao £D3n-n............"0m cannot beo uunﬂ.ctad undor this
soction of alding and abotting an offonso of which he had no know=
hdg; until aftor it was complote, Riszo ve UlS. (cca Pa, 4921)
215 F, 51."

Noto 6 on page 23 Ibid roads: %6, Accomplico definied, = An
naceomplice” is an asanciate in guilt in the commission of a erimo,
a participant in the offense as principal or aco0ssorys Singer V.
U.Ss {counfn NeJe 1922] !?B F, ‘15, mrt-inrari
donded (1022) 42 S. Cte 272,.258, U.8. 620, 66 L. Eds 795

Soction 908, of the Distwict of Columbia Code defining persons
who may bo charged as principals, and not as aocessories, and this
soction do mot fully dofinc aecomplibos and any ono who knowingly
and voluntarily coe-operates with, alds, agsists, advisos, or
encouragos, another in the commission of a crime is an "accomplice",
{;;:nou of tho dogroo of his guilt. BEgan v.'UiS. (avpt B.C,

), 287, Fo 958, :
cozy,ED T0 BE A TRUB COX

// zawes P, KENNI
“yieutensnt, Ul Navy,

Indpe Adoveale,

322(23) "




In the Cumilative Annual Pockot Part Title 18, U.S, Code
Annotated page 11, Section 550 (Criminal Code, Scction 332 "Principals"
defined wo roand: "The concopt of an 'accessory beforo the faet! pro-
supnosses n prearrangement to do the criminal act, and to constitute
one an Matder and abettor"” ke must not only be on theground and by his
presonce aid, encourage or ,ncite the principal to commit the erime
but ho must sharo the criminal intent or purpose of tho principal,

Id, Moreol v. U.B.,Gﬂ.ﬂ. Ohiﬂl 19“, 127 Fed Ml

In this trinl you have heard the cvidence which the proseccution
Antroducod against soventeen of the anccused charged undor specificaticn
3 of Chargo I and none of tho evidonce showed that any of the seventeer
by his presenco at tho secone of tho exeeution aided, encouraged, or
incited Captain IVANAMI to cormit the crimo., But the prosecution
must also prove that those scventeen shared the criminal intent or
purpose of the principal, This the proseccution falled to do,

WATANADE, SAWADA, KAMIKATA, TANADE, NAMATAME, MUKAI and KUWABARA
took the witnoss stand and donded they had any part in the incident,
TANABE was o pationt at tho hospital sick in bed the day the incident

oocurred,

Lioutonsnt KAMIKAWA tostified he wae not at the scono and ho did
not have anything to do with the incidont,

WATANADE, SAWADA, NAMAT/ME, MUKAI, and KUWABARI tostified thoy
woro ordered to bo at the scenc but thoy did not participate in the
ut-u.bhim. |

Licutonant OISHI, Ensign ASAMURA, Ohief Petty Officor HOMMA,
and Chiof Potty Officor YOSHIZANA adnitted thoy did cortedn acts bul
only beeause of Suporior Ordoers and they had no eriminal intent, It
was thoy who were incited by Captain IWANAMI, the principal and not
IWANAMI who wes incitod by them, Thoy did not volunteer, They were
ordored to do the things they dids Thero was no common purpose herc
but only a compliance with ordors from a superior,

In tho course of their tostimony these co-defendants did have tr
testify against cach othor and partioularly sgainst their co-defendart
Caotain ITANAMI, This was e to their being joined in trial and iU

was mosb projudicial to the rights of the accused, particularly Captain
IVANAMI .

Evory witness shat the prosecution produced sould well be said
to be a co-defendant, bocause they wore ordered to be at the sceme.
The rulo of law rogarding such tostimony is: "Testimony of co=-
defondands Sostifying for state must bo corroborated, Madigan v,
Us8e (CuCuls Wyos 1927) 23 P, (2d) 180,"

Wo ask that the commission considor car-fully all the testimony
of the prosecution witness, Theso prosecution witnesscs testified
as to certain acts but this is not enough to comwdet for murder,

Without guilty kmowledge ariminal intent eannot exist, and :
to establish the ﬁ‘wzﬁ-urmmnthnm.m :
ve U.8,, c}f{{‘; Reb, ;wt L0 ¥, 20 40,)" 1=(l’nsu- 195 “'SE Godo)

Annotated b gD T0 I'*E’.? _m],puh m::iz:;:i‘ - 83,

/4 JHIE-'; P, KEN :
" 1ieutenant, U.S. Navy, i




No prosecution witncss testified as to this knowlodge on the
part of any accused,

"o authorize conviction of a erime there must be ostablished
beyond reasonable doubt that accused's act was done purpcumn{
and with intent to violate the law, U.S. v. Thomas, Wash, D.C. 1943,
52’. rl- al'P‘F'- m (Ibiﬂ pago 195)0

Not a singlo prosecution witness testified that any of the acts
which he saw these accused do were done purposefully and with intent
to violate tho law. How imposeible it was for these proseuction
witnesses to so testify is casily rerliszed when we consider that
evon now there has been no showing by the prosecution as to what law
was violated by the nccused, It is fundamental that a person must know
the law before he can have an intent to violate that partiecular law wher
that intont is not presumed but must be proved as in tho crime of
murder,

In this case whore it is necessary to prove that these ncoused
had an intont to viclate the law it is nlso nocessary to prove that
they had knowlodge of tho law, Fhen tho accused did take the etand
we did attompt to show a lack of knowledge of international law,
and tho lnw nnd custome of war, by those accused but the judge
advocnte insistod that tho law prosumce knowlodgo on tho part of theso
accused nnd it wns thorofore immatoriesl as to whother the accused had

! knowledge. Evidontly tho juige advocatc nesumes that it is unmatoria.
that the accusod bo informod as to what low and customs of war he is 1
boing charged with having violatod boenusc as yet there hns been no
showing by tho prosecution as to what law and what customs he referr
to when he charpos "this in violation of the law and customs of Var,”

W grant you that one is prosumcd to have a knowledge of the
law of his stoto and of the nations (Ford v. U.Se 10 Fod, (24d)
339,}0&:1-101':1:'1 grantod 4n 271 U,S. 652, 70 L. ed, 1133, 46 Sup, ct.
4154

We also hold that "unloss otherwise shown, the prosumption exists
thot the law of anothor state is the same as that of tho former
state,” (Mass. Dutterworth v, Smith 240 Mass, 192, 133 N.E, 100)
"though only as to the common law and not statutory laws", citing
P'ﬂﬁplﬁ Ya thnl, ﬂﬁ Iilh 2&7, 1??[ Riwi 5695

Since thero are no common law offenses ageinst tho United States,
Page 158 of the American Jurisprudonce Criminal Law wo read: "There o«
no common law of fonses against the United States and tho Crime of
MURDER or manslaughtor as such is not known to the Federal Governmoni
exoopt in places over which it may oxercise oxclusive jurisdietion and
whorely Act of Congress such offenses aro rocognised and made punish=
ablo§ Thoso accusod can only properly be charged with having violated
statutory laws. The statutory laws of the United States arc as a
mattor of common knowledge not the same as tho statutory laws of
Japan, How difforent our laws arc from the Japanese lawe is cloarly
shown in tho case of both FURUKI and INOUE, In thosc cases as this
commission romembors the amccusod was charged under the first charge
oalled: "Mgrdor as having killod certain porsons,.” This in violation
of offective law, espocially Artdcle 199 of tho Criminal Code of Japan,

wz22(25)
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which roads in tonor as follows: "Evory person who has killed
another person shall bo condemned to death or punished with penal
servitude for 1ife or not less than three years,® '

In this prosent case the convening authority did not see fit
to charge thoso accused with statutory murder eithor under the
United States Fedoral Statutos or under the Criminal Code of Japan
but have charged theso acoused with murder at common law and
"this in violation of the law and customs of war,"

As I have stated thoro is no presumption that any of theseo
accused have knowlodge of our common law or of our Foderal Statutory lov
How thon can any of these accusod have had the intent to violate the
law whon they had no knmowledge of the law which they are charged with
having violatod,

"To authcrise convietion of a crime there must be cstablishod
beyond n reasonable doubt that the accuscd's aet was done purposefully
and with intent to violato the law.", citing U,S. v. Thomas, Wash,
DuCo 1943, 52 F. Supp, %71 and page 195 U,S, Code Annotatod Title 18
Cumulative Annunl Pockot Part,

¥hat makos a homicide murder? In Underhill Criminal Evidence
Section 597, pago 1088, wo road: "Malice, express or implied, is
necoseary to make a homicide a murder," citing People v, Motusas,
4 352' 111, 340, 185 M.E, 611“ Morgan v, Commonwealth, 228 Ky« 432,
154 Slis (2&) 213, I

"

The character of homicido, whether murder or manelaughter, and
tho validity and cogency of a defense involving justification or
excusc for tho act of killing, which itself is not de_lod depcnds whnllr
upon tho prosonse or absonce of a malicious intont, To constitute
the killing ns murder in the first degree; malice cxiet$ing at the -

. instant of the killing, or, at least, at some time not too remote,
must be shown, or circumstances must be shown from which it may be
prosumcd, (citing People v, Elmore, 167, Cal, 205, 138, Pac. 989,
Peoplo v. Dean, 23, Cal, App 745, 139, Pac 904; Peoplo v. Johnson,
2“ I!-‘lwm’ m. HDE! m! PﬂOP '. cﬂu’.hﬂ, 216. I’.ﬂh’.gﬂll m' m’;
NoTla .

Malice must be proved boyond a reasonable doubt, (eiting Glass v
Stato, 201 Ala, 441, 78, So, 819y Btato v. Adams, 6 Penn (22 Del,)
178, &5 atl, 510; Whitohoad v. State, 115, Nebr, 143, 212, N.W,

35; Runyan v, Stato, 116, Netr, 191, 216, N.W, 656;
State v, MoKay, 1%, N, Oar, 813, 63, 8.E. 1059,

This third specification allegos two killings.

We furthor eriticise this third speeification of the first charge
bocause two killings are alloged in one specification, What justi-
fiecation is there for naming two victims in one specification? We
objoctod to tho charges and specifications at tho proper time but werc
overruleds, The fact that we pent to trial in no way cures this and
other defective specifications.

"222(26)

oy
|:'..." B

Cv59TSED T0 BE A LHT




It 1s not incumbont for the defonse to defino such technieal
words as wilfully, foloniously, with premeditation and malice
aforothought, We do howevaor, refor the commission to Court Mortial
Order §=1921 which cloarly states, "The ddstinguishing character of
murdor is malico aforothoughts Whon 1t oxists, the homicide is always
nurder, Whon it does not exist, the homicido connot be purder,eses”e
Tho exprossion 'malico aforethought! is vory technienl, and cannot bo
takon in tho ordinary senso of tho torm 'malico'!s It must bo const=
ruod according to tho deeided cnsos which have given 1t a neaning
difforont from that which might be supposod ses Chief Justice Shaw
andd in tho colehrated Wobstor casd ses m{g intonded to donote
an action flowing from any wicked end eorrupt mctive = a thing done
malo animo = whore tho fact has boon attendod with such eircumstancoc
as carry in thom tho plain indicetions of a honrt rogardless of
soclal duty, and fetally vont on mischiei", To continue to quoto:
"If a man voluntarily and wilfully doos an act, the natural and
probablo consoquence of which is to causo anothor's death, an intent
to kill will be prosumcd.”

én page 2007 of Douvior's, Malice is dcfined as "The doing a
wrongful act inton®ionally without just causc Or OXCusSCe 4 &C
255; Com v. York, 9 Motc. (Mass) , 104; 43 Am Doc 3733 Zimmerman Ve
mtﬂl"] 134 m.ﬂh’ 39' 95 Hlﬁ- . -I.L Wiﬂkﬁd llnd miBChiﬁ?ﬂ“ﬂ
purposo which shametorizes tho perpetration of an injurious act
without lawful oxcuso, 4 T&C, 2553 Coms Ve York, 9 Mote . (Mass)
104, 43 fm, Doce 373."

In Wharton's Criminal Law, Vole 1, par 421, pp 634=636 wo rond.
wiurder 1s distinguished from other kinde of killing by the gonditio
of malice aforcthoughteeee™s

"Promoditation and deliboration, as an clomont in murdor,
consists in tho exorciso of the judgment in woighing and considering
and forming and dotormining tho intent or design to k11, State

v. Roborson (1909) 150 N.C. 837, 648 8,E, 182,

"'he eorpue delicti, or the fact th-t o crime has boon committol -
i an important clement ontering into tho tricl of every person
chargod with tho commission of a erimo. In theory, if not in practl. c
e rosoeutior 48 roquired to ostablish tho fact {hat o orime has boct
committod - bafore 4t ocon either (1) introduce evidence o show
that the nocused committed the crime, or (2) require the aceusod to
show that he did not do sos In otherwords, the corpus dolicti maat
be established by antisfactory ovidence before the nccused can be
]‘.’ll.l.t upon hie dofonsCesseececes

"The phrase corpus delicti mecns, literanlly the body of the
transgression charged, the ossenco of tho crime or offense cormd tted,
the existonce of tho sunstantiel fact that o crime or offense has beuv

m‘l’-‘tﬂﬂ TIIL]

"rno ossontisl elements of tho corpus delictl are (1) the
existonoe of a certain state of fact or result forming the basis of bic
oriminal act sharged and (2) the existonce of o criminal act or
agongy Or causo in tringing the stete of fact into cxistence; Sefe whe
a man has died,eesand that some person wrongfully trought about t.hin
ltﬂt. Df fﬂﬂh..;i'
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"Somo of the cascs go a step further and roquire (3) that the
defendant's erinminal agency in the production of the state of fact
chall alsc be cstablished; citing "The language of other decieions
however, scems to require proof of the criminal ageney of the aecusod

as part of the corpus delicti, Soo State v. Dickson (1883) 78 Mo,
438; Stato v, Shackelford (1899) 148 Mo, 493, 50 8.W, 105; Lovelady
Ve State (1883) 14 Tex. App. 560, {M} 17 Tex. App» 2873 Jackson
ve State (1891) 29 Tex. Appe 458, 164 8.W, 274; Josef v, Stato
(1395) 3‘& Tox, Crdm Rﬂpi Mﬁ. 30 S_uwi 'm; Little v, State (m,
39' Tﬂ: Gm RHP' 65‘-’ g? E'-Hi m!'

"Dofore a eonviction con rightfully bo had on o eriminal charge,
the prosocution must show (1) corpus delicti (2) that it wes prow
duced by a eriminal anct or agoney, (3) that the aceused did the
eriminal act, or set in motion the eriminal agency, or susteins
responsible complicity therowithes.

"Pirst essontial fact to bo proved is the corpus delicti, and
this must be osiablished beyond a reanscnnble doubt, Tatus v, State
(1997) 1 Ga. App. 778, 57 8.W, 956,

"A conviction very scldom occurs without diroct proof of tho
corpus delicti, cithor by oyo witncss of the homieide or by
subscquent discovery of thoe dead body; yot there may be cxcoptions
whore corups delieti nmay bo proved circumstantially or irﬁ’emntiuliy )
©+qsy a0 where the body is consumed by fire, or boiled in potash,
or dissolved in acids, rendering it impossible that it could ever be

roduoed, OCiting People v, Alivso (1880) 55 Cal, 230; Rines v, Stetc
El%:” 118 Gﬂo 120’ 65 L.Rals 33. &5 '-'!uE. 376, 12 Am, GriEi ROP-

205; Stato ve Cardell (1886) 19 Nev. 319, 10 Paec 433; Peoplo vy
Deckwith {1888), 108 N.Y, 67, 15 N,E, 53; Lovelady v, State (1883)
14 Tox App 548; Walker v, Stato (1883) 14 Tox Appe 609,

In tho case of MeDride v, People (1894) 5, Col, App. 91, 37 Pac,
993, 4t was hecld that "The confession of defendant without gliunde
eannot estaoblish the corpus delicti”,

Want of proof of the cvorups delicti eamnot be supplied by proof
of the oxtrajudicial confossion of tho accused, Poople v, Besold ,
(1900" 154 Cal, 363; 97 Pa. mlliill.

Thus in o prosecution for murdor, proof of tho corpus delicti %7~
volves tho establishment (1) that tho porson named is dead (2) that
he came to his death through the eriminal anct or ageney of another
human boingesess

- Tho facts forming tho besis of the offenso, that is, the _
corpus dolicti, must be proved either (1) by direet tostimony, or (2
by prosumptive or cireumstantial evidence; and where the evidence is o
the latter class, it must be of tho most cogent or irresistible kind, -,

In somo of the states it is held that the elemonts constituting
the legnl corpme delicti, that is, (1) the state of facts
constituting the basis of the proseeution,(2) the criminal agency
of some other human being in tringing them about, must be established

direct evidence; citing two New York cases, Ruloff v. People (1853
N.X. 179 and Peeple ve Bematt (1872) 49 N.Y. 197,
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Lord Chiof Justice Hale sayst "I would never convict any person
of murdor or manslaughtor, unloss the fact were proved %o be done,
or, at loast, tho body found dead." 2 Hale F.C. 290,

Wharton's Criminal Law, Vol I, ppe 499 = 458: "It sooms now
protty gonorally held that cirounstantial cvidonco is admissible to
ostablish the corups dolicti in a trinl for murdor, but that it mst

bo strong and cogent, Chancellor Walworth, howover, says: Onc rule
which 4s never to be doparted from ie that mo ome should be convicted

» murdor upon circunstantial ovidonce, unlese the body of the person

supposed to have been murderod has boen found, or there is clear and
irresistible proof that such person is actually doad,' Citing People V.
Videto (1825) 1 Pork, Crim, Rop, (N.Y) 603, In Now Y ork it is hold
that 4n trials for murder, that people mst establish by positive
ovidonco edther (1) the corpus dolicti or (2) the criminal agency
producing it; and that after oither is thus established, tho othor

pay bo shown by circumstantinl evidonco. Ruloff v, Poople (1858)

18 N.Y. 1793 Peoplo v, demnott (1872) 49 N.Y, 137 (by divided court).
In such a prosccution the corpus delioti is cstablished by proof of
the finding of the body of a human being under such circumstancos as
{ndicate that the death or killing was felonious, and not by aceident
or suioido. Stato ve Pottor (1879) 52 Vi, 33, But tho proof of tho
identity of the dead body must bo establishod by cvidonco outside of tk>
doath of tho party alloged; the remains of the decensed, or a portion
of thom, must be sufficlently jdontifhed to ostablish the death of

tho party. Lovelady v. Stato (1888) 4 Tox Appe 545; Gay ve Stato
(1901). 43 Tox Orim Rops 450, 60 S.Ne 771e

Fharton's Criminal Law, Vole I, pps 459 - 460, What Dlackstono
aaid of confessions was cortainly true of the adnission which tho
prosccution introduced 4in this cas:t neonfossions oven in casee of
folony at common law, wore the workost and most suspicious of all
tostimony, vory likely to be obtainod by artifice, false hopes,
promiscs of favor, or monacos; soldom remombored accuratoly, or roportcs
with procision, incapablo in their nature, of being disproved by othar
nogative tostimony." 4 Dle Come 3.

Lot us turn again to Winthrop. Ho dofinos purdor as followst
2 page M}.

"durdor, at common law, is tho unlawful killing, by a porson of
sound momory and diseretion, of any roasonable ecreature in being and
under tho peace of the State, with malice aforothought eithor oxpross
or impldod, Citing Coke, 3 Just., 473 4 Black, Oom,, 195; 1 Bast,
P.C. 2143 1 Russel, 482; 1 Gabbett, 4543 3 Oroenl, iv. para 14303
1 Wharton C.L. para 303; 2 Biship, C,L. para 732, and notoss Com V.
Webetor, 5 c“h'- 3043 G.G, ”', Dept of nﬂl' 1865,

Winthrop's Military Law and Procodents. Second Edition Volumese
Ono and Two, Page 673t

WMURIER =~ Dofinition.”

Murder, at common law, is the unlawful kdlling by a person of
sound memory and diseretion, of any rosgonable creature in being and
uﬂ;; tho poace of the Stato, with malioo aforethought either oxproes
or implied. |7 .

*The W.'Mt 1 to say 'folonous' or
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other than "justifiablo! or 'excusable; it must be committed by ono
who is noither non-compos mor an infant undor the nge of criminal
capacity; tho porson assailed must be a living boing, (not an unborn
child) such person must be entitled to the protection of the laws, not
a public enemy nor a pirate; and lastly thoe act must be characterized
by 'malice aforethought! or 'malice prepense?, 1.,0., evil and
doliberate purposcs A brief deseription of murdor whiech would

cover all cases likely to arisc under the prosent article would bo =« the
unlawful idlling, with maliec aforethought, by a legelly responsible
porson, of any othor person mot a publie enemy; or, as all killing with
malice aforethought rust bo unlawful, as a person not logally
rosponsible cannot be chargeable with nalice aforcthought, and as

no killing of a public enemy can be rogerded ns committod wish such
malice, = murder, at cormon law and unaffoctod by statute, may bo
simply and briefly described as homicide with malice aforothought."

Malice aforethoughte The term "malico® as ordinarily employed
in oriminal low, is a strictly legal term, meaning not personal spite
or hostility tut simply the wrongful intent essential to the
commission of crimo. Whon used, however, in cormoction with the
word Maforethought® or "prepensc", in defining tho particular crime
of murdor, it signifios the samo evil dntent, as the result of o
doterninod purpose, premeditation, doliberation, or brooding, and
thorafore as indieating, in the view of the law, a nalignant or
depraved naturc, or, as the early writor, Fostor, has exprossod it,

! "o hoart rogardloss of social duty and fatally bent upon mischief,"
The deliborate purpose nced not have been long ontortained; it is
sufficiont if it oxist at tho moment of the acts Malice aforethought l
is oither "expross® or ™mplied®; express, where the intont =
as manifestod by previous enmdty, throats, the absence of any or of
sufficient provocation, = is to take the 1ifo of the particular
person killed, or, since o specifio purpose to ki1l is not essential
to constitute murder, to infliect upon him some oxcessive bodily
injury which may naturally result in death; impliod, where the
intent is to conmit a folonious or unlawful act but not to kill or
injure the particular person = as where o party, intonding to kill
by shooting, etc., one porson, actually hits and kills another;j
or, when detoctod in a burglary fires his pistol 4n the derk to aid his
eseape ond kills an inmate of tho housej or, being engaged in a riot,
firos indiscriminately and kills some omoj or, in resisting an
officer of justice engnged in the axpeution of his duty, unintentdion-
ally kille him, eto, Thus a soldioer who rosists a military superior

when legally ongaged in making an arrest or oxeouting any other duty,
u:d i: resisting kills him, though not purposely, is guilty of murder
n Wa

In overy case of apparontly doliberate and unjustifiable killing,
tho law presumes the existence of the nmalice necessary to constitute
marder, and devolves upon the accused the omus of rebutting the
prosumption, In other words, where in the fact and circumstancos of
the killing as committed no defonse appears, tho nocused must show
that the act was either nmo erime at all or o crime less than marder;
otherwise it will be held to bo purdor inm law. Justifiable and
excusable homicide, The definition of Murder is well 1llustratod
by the two defences apposite %o this charge, vist 1, that the killing
wae not murder but manslaughter; 1.0, 2 m.{m without "malioce;"
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2, that it was not folondous but justifiable or excusable in
laws The distinction botween murder and manslaughter will be further
noted presently., Homicide is said to be justifiable when committed
by a publie officer in the due execoution of the laws or administration
of public justice, or when committed by any person in tho due pro=
vontion of a violent erimes Thus homicide is justifiablo whore
comnitted by an officer of the Army, or at this instance, in the
l supression of an actual mutiny or othor violent disorder, or in the

capture of an escaping prisonor or dosertor, where no other adequate
moans arc availablo for the purpose. Homicide is in law "excusable”
where 1t ie the result of aceidont of mishap, or whero it is committod
in solf=defonse.

Now led us read what there is in Corpus Jurlss:

"Intent = the fixed purpose of tho mind in connection with a
given anectj citing State V, Goldeton 103 N.C. 323, 33, c.j. P. 168,

The purpose of the mind including such knowle as is essential
to ;gh intent citing Powe v. State 48 N.J.L. 34, 36, 24 662; 33 c.:-
P, 168,

Intent implies premeditation, eiting Ernest v. State, 20 Fla,
3'53; 333; {33‘ CeJe 163)-

\ In law there is n clear distinction between motive and intent
and they are not rogarded as synonymous,"

CC Fla, 1908 "Malice,, logally, spoaking in relation to murder,
is a conscious violation of law to prejudice of another city, U.S.
v, Hart, 162, F, 192,"

111 the evidonoe clearly shows that OISHI, ASAMURA, YOSHIZATA,
HOMMA, and the other accused did not conseiously violate the law whon
they were ordered by their superior officer, Captain IWANAMI, to
carry out tho sentence of exeeution,

In /merican Jurisprudonco Criminal Law on poge 178 we reads:

"Intont is the stato of mind of tho slayer that is sought to be
deseribed,

On page 181 we find a clear statemont of the difference betwoon
murder and manslanghter,

In tho absence of any expressed or implied malice the erime of
any 1s manslaughtor,

.~ S4ince the absence of intent oxprose or implicd is elearly
shown by tho evidence the commission eannot find these eighteen acons:
including Captain IWANAMI, guilty of murder,

A hordcide committed by a soldier without malice in the pere
formance of dut¥jeesse Or kills undor the ordor of a superior officer,
citing Commonwoalth v, Shortall, 55 A, 952, 206, Pa, 165, 98 Mi 8.R.
79; Riggs,ws Statp, D Celdw™85s 'Sec Army and Navy para 37 4(2

/" "272(31) #
P, KENNY

¢ 1deutenant, l... Navy, -

Judge Adovcate, |




which doos not exprossly and cloarly show its 11legnlity on its faoce
is justifiablo, citing In ro, Fair, cc. Neb, 100F, 149"

In, 40 Corpus Juris Secundum pago 956 we roads

nJustifinble homicide is the necoseary killing of another
in tho performance of a legal duty.

Tt 18 a homicido nuthorised by lew., citing State v. Walker 14
Dol, 464,

G111 v. Commonwonlth, 31 8.V, 24, 608, By order of court, citing
Stnto v, Eﬂdgﬂ m Ae m’ m| 135, Mo, 223| 53 fuL-nq ‘Ml."

On page 959, 40 C.Je Secundum wo read: "However, a person
is not eriminally rosponeible for a homicide committod by him by
reason of a misteke as to facts, whore his ignorance or midtoke
was not duc to nogligence or bad faith on his part and where he would
have been oxompt from criminal 1iability if tho focts were as he
had :Itlppnlnd. thom to u- Gi‘hiﬂg, U.S. ¥ J.L.H. chﬂng' 15 Phil’.pﬂ’.ME: .
488 {;;t Cooks Case, Car 538, 79 Roprint 1063) 30 CeJ. Poge 38,
nose 38"

Lot us consider tho ovidence as it relates to Lieutenant OISHI,
Tetsuo who was domobilised, and was living in Japan with his wifo ana
family, Having nothing to hide Lioutonant OISHI took the stand
as o witness in his own bohalf to oxplain why ho did cortain acts
that day ot Truk, July 20, 1944.

Prior to taking the stand, there had appearcd as a defonso
witness, MINATO, Tadao, former surgoon 14outonant, Imperial Japanesc
Navy. Ho tostifiod on tho 22nd day, Friday, July 25, 1947, that
togothor with Lioutonant OISHI thoy had gono to the adjutant to
protost the Self-Dofonso Unit having to oxocute two prisoncrs at
tho hO'p".tﬂl-

In answor to Quostion #9, MINATO, in part said: "OISHI said, '
cannot do it.)! Thon tho adjutant said, 'I am agalnst it aleo, all
of tho officors aro against it, wo arc placed in a difficult positicr;
Aftor having this convorsa®ion OISHI and mysolf felt relioved and rc=
turned,."

Lioutonant OISHI tostifiod in Answer to Quoation #34 on tho
26th day of the trial:

"it this time thore wore doubts, I thought, I half bolioved that
tho prisonors would bo oxocuted bocause I percoivod this by romemborin
tho talk I hod with thoudjutantﬂnnllunttoaaehhntm
quarters and stated if the hoad of tho hospital is trying to get the
staff=dofonse scetion to dispose of the prisonors, I refuse, and the
adfutant statod this . 4s not an ordor. This is not an ordor, and hu

also statod that ho was against this and also tho other offlcors were
ageinst it, thorofore, this disposition of prisonors would not
take placo, I know about this conversation, but I 4id not know about

n222(32) "
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tho incident until tho general nseombly, As many enlistod men were
going by, I thought I would have to assemble also, and together with
Ensign YOKOTA, who was close by, we weat to the soono. Whon a
goneral assombiy was called, even though you did not want to go

at this timo, ycu woro not allowed to rofuso; evon thought you didnft
want to go."

This shows how “dcutenant OISHI folt about the ineident at that

timo, He was against any execution at the hospital and personally

wanted no part in any such execution, But this was the Japanese
Navy and Japan was ot war with the Unitod States.

There wpsn't an thought of disobedience of orders, Lieutonant
OISHI was a young do-for (be was then only 25 yoars old) and he too
had loarned Naval Baitle Regulations and he knew the penalty for
resisting an order in the Jrnpanese Navye

Some few excorpts from Naval Dattlo Regulations and the Naval
Criminal Code arc hore set forth:

NAVAL DATTLE REGULATIONS

Goneral Principles:

I Military discipline is the vory 1ife of the military forces
and harmonious relations is its blood,

Tho ossonce of military diseiplino lies in obedience. I

-

MILITARY TRAINING REGULATIONS

Goneral Principles:

II. A sound military spirit and golemn military diseipline are the
basis on which the militery forces exist. The vital importance ir
m1itary training i to foster this basis.

Chapter I, General Rulcs
Chaptor II, Dasic Training.

Soction I, Spiritual training.

Article 20t The Imperial rescript is the mirror of the nilitary eoiz?
If all military porsons rogardless of rank shall bear his majesty s
w411 in mind shall never forget it, and being of ono mind shall

oboy the Imporial teachings, then the spiritual training shall be
realiged and its objectives shall be attained.

SERVICE REGULATIONS OR PERSONNEL ON SHIPS

General Principle:

11, Military discipline in order to unify the spirits of the
nilitary forces and is the principle to mold the minds of a thousand

porsons into once
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Thereforo, military discipline aboard ships must be most
solomnly obsorved and it must be maintained without the slightest
slackoning, from tho Captain of tho ship down to tho rank, Solemnity

of military discipline can only be oxpoctod by traiming the spirit of
oach individual military person, Thoreforo, all hands on a ship
should boar the Imperial will in mind evory momont, chiofly fostor
tho military spirit, bo always sincere ncodless to say when pursuing
officinl duty, with usity 4n mind and act, rospect tho sonsoc of

honor, valuo selfrestiaint, and calmly dischargo the duties of a
military porson when faced with denth,

III, Tho offoctivoncrs of the armed forces lics in the replenishment
of its real ability, Therefsro, the truo objectivo in the training of
tho ship lice in the fostoring of the real ability togethor with the

training of a military spirit and onforcement of military diseipline.

IV. Ordor is tho source of military action, It must be preelsc and
pertinent, whon an ordor is once given out, tho commander should
supertise its erecution and thoroughness. The commander should be
caroful nct to pive out ordors that are not precise so as o bewilde: .
the receiver, or to make an impertinent demand so as to maoke the
exooution difficult, or overlook without giving any encouragement, tio
negligence of the receiver.

VI. Obedience in tho military forces is implicit and nust become a
socond nature., Dut once an order is given out compldints about the
difficulty of ite exceution, or nogligence in carrying it out, or
discussion about itz fitnoss should defiritely not bo allowed,

But thero are not a feow occassions whore arbitrary action is meccssa?v,
Fhon the situation is imminont and the condition underge a chango

and furtner insiruction eannot be had, tho intention of the commandor
should be judged and with arbitrary action the opportunity must be
grasped,

Arbitrary action is not taken to conflict with tho epirit of
obodienco. bul rlways within the scope of the commander’s intention
and without ending in self-indulgonco.

Artiele 105, In rogard to internmational matters, the Captain
should be cspeeidlly careful, and should dispose of thom within the
scape of orders, regulations, and treaties, Ip thore are natters
beyond this scape the instruction from the senicr commanding offires
or directly from tho naval mindstor should bo roquestod.

NAVAL CRIMINAL CODE
CHAPTER 4.
CRIMES OF RESISTING ORDER
Article 55. Ono who rosists the superior officer?s order or who is
not subordinatc to it shall be eondemmed to such penalties as
followes
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2, In war-time or when in neod of emorgency measures of ros=
culngz ships, from above one to ten yoars confinemont,

3, In other cases, undor five years confinemont,
T would like to read %o you the tostimony of Lieutenant OISHI:

Answor to quostion #41s "Then tho hoad of the hospital said in
a loud velce, 'Potty Officers etep forward} ™

"ihon tho head of the hospital said this
no one gpoke, And nono of the

Answor to question #421

i1t booame vory quiet, No one moved,
potty officers stopped forward."

Answer to question #43t "The hoad of the hospital suddenly called
out my namc. I stepped forward and wont to the fronts I stood in
front of the head of %he hospital,.”

Answer to question #44: "Then $ho head of tho hospital said to
me, 'Licutcnant OISHI, have the potty officers step foranrd! "

45, Q. Them wha% did you do?
A, Thon I came up the hill, I was dotermined that if it was tho

oxecution of tho prisoncrs, I would have nothing to do with it, but
when I was enlled forward and ordercd this by the head of the hoepitel

in front of almost evoryonc in the hospital, I could no nothing but

%0 perform it and I thought if I had thoso potty officers step

forward that would bo all I had to do, 8O I stopped out in front and 1

called out for the potty officers to stop forward,

“w4b, Qe Thon what did you do?
L. Noono etopped forward.

"7, Qe Then whnt happenod ?
A, TWhon I looked I saw that onlisted men were lined up in ordor of

rank, so I went forward and made a divisicn with my hand and had the
potty officors step forvard.

"j8, Q. Thon what did you do?
Ae The petty officers 1ined up in #idoways in two rows and after I

gaw thom lined up, I startod to go beck to my former position among
the officore.

"9, Qe Vhy did you have tho potty officers step forward?

A, As I statod boforo, I determinod not to take part in the ineidont
1# it occurred and I thought that I would have nothing such to do

tat whon I wos suddonly ealled forward by the head of the hospi tal

and givon this ordor in front of my superior officors and subordinates;
thero is nothing I could do but ot obey thot ordors

"50, Q. "hat did you do after the potty officors werc brought forwazd?
A. When the petty officers were lined up sidewnys, then I started

to go beck to my formor position, the head of the hospital ordered

4n n loud voloe tho two eolumns chango positions so that thoy would

be 1ined wp vortically and steel spears and rifles with bayonets be
handed them nnd also to have them 1lined up one bayonet, ono spear, ono
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\ "51s Qs Then what hnppamd‘! \
A, Then enlisted men who wore 1ined up around the prisonors who

had stopped forward came fcrwerd riflos and spoars and giving 1%

to them, handing thom the rifles and bayonets and spoarse

w52, Q. What happened then?

A. Whon tho head of tho hospital gave this order I stopped in my
tracks and lookod over my shouldor and wotchod thom, After this,
whon I saw that they had liped up, as tho hend of tho hospltal had
ordercd, I went back and took my former position among tho officers.

»53, Q. Thon what happoned?
Ao I was again called out by the hoad of tho hospital and came to
stand in front of tho head of the hospitele

%54, Q. Thon what happenod?

A. Tho hoad of the hospital ordorod me as follows: "Stand by the
petty officors and sce that thoy perform it, and see that thoy act in
an orderly fashion,"

w55, Q. Thon what did you do?
A. When I roceived this ordor, I was very surprised, and I becamo
vory upsot, and as I was ordorcd I etood by tho petiy of ficorse.

"56, Q. Thon what happoned?
Le The hoad of tho hospital made a specche

"5, Q. Bo you know tho contents of that speech, the speech of the
head of the hospital? |
L., I was vory upset and exéited, but I remombor his stating in

his spocech ns follows: "tho Amoricans have bombod the defondlose

citios in Japan, Your paronts, trothors, and sisters died of this.

Tho hospital was also bombed; therofore, thoso two prisoners are to

bo excoutod, You have nothing %o hositate about, Stab tho heart and

K11 thom with omo strokol Stab spiritodly®l

#58, Q. Thon what happoned after tho spocch of tho head of the
hospital?
A, Tho head of tho hospital said, "Dogin immodiataly®.

#s9, Q. Then what did he say?

. I did not expect, and was confusod. I looked back toward the
petty officorss Thoy all had worried oxpressions in their facos.
1 ocould mot tring myself to presont the order in 4his confusod
frame of mind, 1 facod toward the potty officers and made o shoru

speoche

"60, Q. What did you toll thom?

As I statod if you go rnmrd,ihnpri.anur-m dle, Id is $he
samo as when the wind blows toward a troo, the troc will fall. The
wind doos not blow to make the treo fall down , but i% jusd blows;
the tree falls because tho roots of that troe have boen cuts

#62, Q. What did you do nrhrrouﬂniu!ndthutnlﬂ

A, Before I finished the ta ,thlhlodufthnhnlp‘ltul
excitedly struck the ground foroefully with his stick and I remember
exactly what he stated, Ho said, "Hurry wpe. Why don't you hurry

up? What afe W ean't do 1t, I will be the
7

first one to ‘%o do 1t.%
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%3, Q. What happened then?
A, While the head of the hospital was saying this, I called out
the order to go forward,

"64, Q. Why did you call out this order?

A.. At first when I was ordered that I stand by the pebiy offieere
and act in an orderly fashien, I could no% ge againet 1t, I be=-
came all the more confused, I wondered why 1 was ordered to do ¥hilg
and was very irritated at this; also, there was most of all the
persons of the hospital were watching, the head of the hospital
called out in a loud voloe, '"Hury wpl! I ceuld do nething clse
but %0 give that order.

"65, Q. How many times did tﬁ: call out this order to iﬂ ferward?
A, As I had stated before, was the firast and only time that I
was in such a confused state of mind, and I remember giving the
firet order te go forward, but I do net remelber how many times I
gave thips erders '

"5, Q, Were you watching the petby officors as they went forward
ta stab? _

Ay T was utchimthn back of the persons whé were goingy running
forward to stab prisoners,

A, The impression that remains in my mind when I was looking at
the back of these stabbers, they leoked very small, I also
notice that there were some who missed when they stabbeds

7. Q. How leng did it take for the dtabbers to end? :
Av As I stated frequently, the scene is not at all leng, and én
the ethor hand, it seemed a very shert time, to myself I had no
sense of time,

"68, Q. Then what happened?

A, Before the prisoners were gtabbed, they were standinb by their
own power, but abéut the middle of the stabblng they were glumped
down and it was clear that they were dead,

" The Jtﬂﬂ'l advoeate moved to atrike out the words "and {t was
clear that they were dead" qlilfthimrunthngmudthntttm;
wore the mere opinion of the witness,

" The ccused made ne reply
% The éommission directed 4hat the words bo stricken out.

Qs Then what happened?
A, About this time, I felt my thrgat being very dry and I felt a
14ttle sick, I went toward the road and wag sitting on thegress,

"0, Qe !Mndidmwudhrtm'f
Ae mt-mnm.mqmmm“u-m“m, "The

head of the hespital is calling you's
L
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"1, Q. Then what did you de?
A. I went to whore the head of the hospital was.

2. Q. Them what did yeu do?

A. I was giving the following order: ICut the nock of the prisonmcr
with a sword,' As this was a ritual, it was not nooossary that their
head he cut offs

3. Qe Then what did you do? - .

A. Thip time I looked around and eaw that the 1U! shape had been
brokon up and that they were grouped closer around the prisoners. Ne
ore moved and overyons was watching at me, holding thoir btreath,

4. Q. Then what dld you do?
A, I went to the prisoners and looked at them for a short time,

5. Q. Do you romombor how the prisoner leoked whon you went
closc by and watched the prisonor for a short time?

A. Thoy were hold up by a ropo which was tiod around thoir broasts
and tied to the cross bar and also by another ropo which was tled
around tho stomach and to the othor tied to tho orose bar and thelr
hoads woro bowod vory dooply and thoir feot slumped, with both of
thoir foot touching tho ground, Their cOmploxion was a whitish
groen and very pale. I could not observe. any movomonts of breathing,
Thore was no movoment at all, It was almost 1liko a statuc.

"The eommission, then, at 10:16 a.m., tock a recoss until
10:37 a.m,, at which timo it roconvonod.

"Prosont: All tho membors, tho judge advocate, tho reporter,
tho accusod, thoir coumsel, and the imterprotors.

"Ne witnossce not othorwisc connocted with the trial wero
present,

"in accusod, OISHI, Totsus, tho witness undor oxamination whea
tho rocoss was taken, rosumod his scat as a witnoss in his own
bohalf., Ho was warned that tho oath proviously tskon was still
binding, and continucd his tostimony.

"(Examdnation conmtinued:)

"5, Q. You tostifiod that you woro orderod by the head ef the
hospital to cut the nock of tho prisoners and that you wont close
to the prisonors, What did you do after that?

A. I was standipg by tho prisonors to tho right faeing the
prisonors. I drow my sword and I swung oOlGCO. 1 struck onoo.
u“:onmlluutinthalaftlhmldor,butInnmblmduﬂiu
OULe

"7« Q. l!vdldmdr“_m-wdandltﬂhtheprmmﬂ

Ao Iiuuﬂmddireutlytvthahondnfthﬂhupitalinfroni-if
wmrioudtufrmtufwnuhurﬂufnlwho-mhnmﬂg
tholr broath watohing at mo, I was still in this confusod or
agltated stato of mind and I could mot rofuse, The head of the
hospital had sedd 'tituall, I ¥now that in Japan, oven on persons
mmm.tmmuﬁlnordm-dnmﬂqi‘anungntthau
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timo was not to mrtilato the body, but as a ritualistic fecling in
doing this.

™8, Q. Thon what did you do?
A, I stoppod back from tho prisoner and 1 lookod at tho sword,

"9, Q. What bapvonod thon?

A, When I lookod at the sword, therc was no blood on the sword,

nor was tho blado mibksd, but about three or four inches from the top
of the sword, it was clouded as if thoro was somo oil on it, When

I looked, I saw a bucket with some water in it eo I dipped the sword
{n somo water and wiped it off with a handkerchief, and I placed it 1ia
the scabberd, I did this bocauso I did not feel good to just place
the sword in the scabbard with tho clouded part on it,"

pid Licutonant OISHI do theso things wilfully? Not a single
witnoss testifiod that he did anything wilfully, Ho himsolf testifiod
how ho bocame & vietim of ciroumstancos probably becauso ho wes
hona of tho Self Devonso Soction at that time, This seoms tho only
roason that Captain IWANAMI should have singlod him out to rolay
his ordors of oxooution to tho stabbers. Yet he was reluctant to
oven relay ordors. He felt as if ho woro only a puppet, without any
intont, So too with tho stabbors ho allayed any roluctance on thoir
part by tolling thom this samo story. Thoy too, bolioved they were

only puppots.

t P14 Lioutonant OISHI relay tho ordors feloniously? Dy
foloniously is moant unlawfully, other than justifully and without |
oxouso, Winthrop says: "no killing of a public onemy can be ro=-
gardod as committed with such maldco,? OISHI cannot bo hold erimine. -}
rosponsiblc bocause he was made a mlstake of fact and there was no
nogligence or bad faith on his part, Ho objected to the oxocution.
Thon his suporior officer, a Captain Modical Officer in the Navy

has tho prisonors brought from tho guard unit, tho Captain makos a
epooch to tho assombled officors and onlisted mon, and then without
any warning tho Cuptain calls out to OISHI and ordors him to rolay

the oxooution orders,

Ihthud,ﬂt_hthonnduinthom-mra:ﬂptthﬂ
he being a doctor know theee two prisonors woro doad and so although
still roluctant to do ovort act he thuwhthaﬂtmrrmtthf

hlh:kntnnuprﬁumrwithﬂnmrdq Tho sworc
did not evon draw .

80 wo say that ldoutenant OISHI; a modical officer rolayed

eortain orders of lmﬂwdﬁnrmdmtatnprmmﬂ-..
M.lmntﬁplmrhumhomwdﬁvdh#u.
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In accordance with tho ruling in 40 Corpus Juris Secundum~page 960, ™'
"An accused is ontitled to full acquittal and dischargo whore

tho homicido 13 excusablo or justifiablos", citing Erwin v. Stato,

29 Ohic Stato 186,

Wo ask thorofcre, that the commisslon find as to Liecutenant
OISHI, Toteuo specification throo of Charge I not proved and tho
accusod Lieutenant CISHI, Totsuc is of the charge of MUREZR not
gullty and tho commlssion docs thereforo aequit the said Lioutenant
OISHI, Totsuo of the spocification and of the chargo of MURDER.

ASAMURA, Shimped, an Ensign in tho Japanoso Navy is alsO chargoec
with MUAOER of thoec samc two prisomors. ASAMURA  was only 2
yonrs old, He uad cmwered the Taoenose Navel Ncademy throo and ono-
ha'f yca s prior anc —7as graduatod in Septombo™ of 1943. Ho
reportod for daty to tho Naval Gaard Unit at Pruk in March of 1944

ASAMURA also was domobilized and thon arrostod and extradited
to Guan, In July of 1944 ASAMURA had nover scon an American prisoner
so when one of his men paid that thero wero somo prlsoners on tho
hill back of tho hospital this young boy out of curiosity went to
soo thom,

Ir enswer %0 quostion #9 on tho 29th day, ASAMURA on tho
witnoss stanc said. "Whon I heard this, as I had nover scen prisora.:

up to this timc, I wont up to tho hill to seo the prlaoners, as a

mattor of curiosity to sco what thoy looked like."

Aftor ho had had his look ho loft tho hill and went to the
hospite]l administration, Thero ho mot Captain IWANAMI. ASAMUPA
tostifiod: ": salutod tho hoad of tho hospital. Tken tho head of
tho hospital said tc we, 'Tho prisonors are going Lo bo oxacuted
on the hill, Go and watch itl! And that is how I camo to be
on the hill,." :

Te question #12: "Why did you do as tho hoad of the hospital sa'c
whon the hoad of tho hospital esid to go up the hill and watoh tn.
exoouticn? ASAMURA gave a long explaration and said: "Y wae in 4
positicr. in wkich I had to oboy the orders of the hoad of the hozn! "=l
I had ciways Loon obodient to his orders and when he said to me, "'
to tho top of tho hill and wateh! withcut thinking I just obeyed
what ho had instructed mo."

Then ASAMURA tolls of the stabbing of thoso two prisonors
aftor Captain IWANAMI's spcoch.

ASAMURA's answor to Quostion #16 is as follows: "I thought
1t was over and was about to loave when I saw Lioutonant OISHI
eallod by the hoad of tho hospital, and they talked, After thie
Tioutonant OISHI camo toward mo and called, 'Ensign ASAMURAL! As
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\ ho callod I wont up %o him, Dieutenant OISHI said, "The head {
of tho hospital has ordorod you and I to cut the necks of tho

prisonors? " I was surpriscd and leokod toward the hoad of the

hospital, Tho head of the hospital said: "Have you cvor cut

beforo?", and I ropliod, Nol!

Tho hoad of tho hospital sald: "You arc supposod to leavo
l ono inch conmecting tho hoad and the body".

At this timo without hardly thinking at all, but feeling that

tho hoad of tho hospital would bo med if I wont against his wishos, 1
wont toward tho prisoner to tho loft and stood to the right of
tho prisonors. Tho hoad of the prisoner was boned deeply; the

legs were bent; his face was colorless, The flow of blood

from tho wound had already stoppeds 48 he was An tho same position
ag when he was stebb2d and in a vory difficult position to cut, I
wondered how to go about it, Everybody there was looking at mo

and I saw the hoad of tho hoepital, but fecling the samo as

whon ycu are abcut to jump off o stand ton moters high I was
wordod, I had a werried end sort of hesried feeling, Anyway I
doldovernd the blow. It did not go wolie The foeling I had

up to thls timo was that I was foreing mysclf and so I had kept
going . Now this fooling loft mo, I felt sick and started to go
to tho roar. I bocamo sickor as I passcd YOSHIZAWA and asked him,
"Hold this sword for mo?" I wont down to the hoad back of the
hospital quartors. That is what I did."

Aftor ASAMURA had so tostifiod not ovon the judge advocate
dosired to croas=oxamine him, |

Thoro is not a doubt but that ASAMURA was forcod to do what
ho did bocause of suporior ordors. ASAMURA is charged with MURDEL.

Ono ecannot commit MURIDER on a doad body and tho body that
ASAMURL cut at but missed was alroady dead, Besidos ASANURA had nc
criminal intont to commit murdor.

I ASAMURA wore in our army thon the rulo laid down by Gener:..
MARSHALT. on Ncvember 15, 1944, would apply not somo rule laid dow..
by SCAP on Docomber 5, 1945

Wo bolieve that this commission must by some means determinc
what law and what custome of war ASAMURA is charged with violatin:
in spec’fication 3 of Chargo I and givo ASAMURA ae well as the
accused the benefit of tho defenso that an Amordean soldler would
have in carrying out orders of his superiore

-

R1los of Land Warfare Basic Flold Manual FN 27-10 Soction 247
"Ponaltics for Violations of the Laws of War."

"Individuals and organisations who violate accopted lawe
and ousoms of war may be punished thorofor. Howover, tho fact
thatthammlnmdufmedmwmuttommofn
superior or govermment sanction may bo takon into consideration
in dotormining culpability, eithor by way of dofense or in miti-
gation of punishment, Tho porson giving such orders may also
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bo punished. Signod By order of the Secretary of Warj Gs Co
MARSHALL, Chicf of Staff, dated 15 November 1944."

If ASAMURA 18 to be punished for murder which is said fo be in
violation of law and customs of war then wo hold that individuals
who violate such international law as tho Hague Convention aro not
amonablo to punishmont for any Fague Convention or Genova Red
Cross Convention rule, Thesc laws of nations are binding only on
tho soverign statos and not on tho individuals. ASAMURA, a young
naval officor in the Japanese Navy could porhaps be punished under
Japaneso Naval law but he certainly could plead obodionce to orders
of a superior officor as a dofonso and under the Amorican Army rule
1aid down by order of tho Scorotary of War on Novomber 15, 1944.
ASAMURA , if ho wore an Amorican soldior could pload orders of a
suporior officor cithor by way of defonso or in mitigation of
punishments %o pload it here by way of defofisc,

Wo also point out the nttor lack of proof by the prosecution
in the case of ASAMURAs Tho prosoocution did not even show tho
individual that ASANMURA struek at alive, Tho nocossary

olemonts for common law murder “¥o 1y, feloniously, with pro-
moditation and malieo afbrothought, and without justifiable
daude™ have hot boon proved.

Wo ask thorofore that the commission find as to Iioutenant
ASAMURA, Shimpoi, spocification 3 of Charge I, not proved and
tho accused lioutenant ASAMURA, Shimpei, is of the charge of
MURDER not guilty and the commission does therefore aoquit the
snid Lioutenant ASAMURA, Shimpoi of the spocification and of
the charge of MURIER,

Tn the caso of former Chiof Potty Officer YOSHIZANA,
Kensaburo, only 28 yoars old at tho time of the incident we oall
tho commission's attontion to tho testimony  YOSHIZAWA gave’ on
tho witnose stand the 30th day of the trial.

YOSHIZAWA was tho sonior potty officor and on thataftornoon
ho did as usunl at tho onme O'clock muster ho detailod tho men to
thoir various jobs, Togother with three men ho wont to fix the
roand behind tho Third Surgical Ward, From here he could clearly
goo the aill so when persons began to assomble thore about threo
o'clock knowing ho wns the sendor petfy officor at the hospital ix
wont thoro to soo what if anything had happenod.

YOSHIZAWA thon disgressos in his testimony and characterises
a8 falso tho tostimony of TAKAHASHI, Masayoshi and YAMAGISHI,
Michio, and the statement or deposition whieh the judgoe advocate *-.
troduced into evidenco alleged to have boen signod by IKEYA,
Kyodchd, on two oocoasions, the last timo just a mattor of hours
before IKEYA committed swicide on July 2, 1947. Now YOSHIZAYA
was & witnoss in his own behalf and thoso two witnesses had
tostifiod against him, Who bettor knows whothor their testimony
was felse than YOSHIZAWA?
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Wo ask that the commission read TAKAHASHI's tostimony of
the 12th day and in view of all tho cvidence that was brought out
and the charactorisation by YOSHIZAWA that it was falso ns concern=
ing him give no ercdonce or weight to TAKAHASHI'es testimony.
TAKLHASHI also tostificd that he know that TANABE stabbed that
day and TANAEE was sick in tho hospital, confined to a bed that doy
and yot TAKAHASHI saw him there, Littloc wonder thon that YOSHIZAWA
sald that TAKAHASHI gave fhlse tostimony against him,

YOSHIZAWA ocamc drossed only with a "gestring® and noarly
overyone remombored this and yot TAKAHASHI could not, Instoad
ho romomborod YOSHIZAWA giving tho ordor to commonce to stab,
YOSHIZLWA led TAKAHASHI and somo fifteen othor porsons up the
hill that day.

It was TAKAHASHI who alsc imaginod ho saw KAMIKAWA on the
hill that aftornoon, KAMIKAWA testifiod ho wasn't therec,

Whon TAKAHASHI's testimony is wrong as to three porsons how
ean tho commission bolieve any of it}

Thon we have the fantastic tostimony of YAMAGISHI, Mishoo,
who tostified that YOSHIZAWA ordered him to go and got his sword
and he did go to YOSHIZAWA's room and brought a sword which he gave
to YOSHIZAWA on tho hill,

ASANURA tostifiod he gavo YOSHIZAWA and that is hew YOSHIZAW!
got o sword, We ask the commlssion %o disrcgard the ontire
tostimony of Y/MAGISHI, Misheo.

IKEYA at the insistonce of the imvoestigators aftor having
boen in confinoment for two yoars signs a statement., Thie isn't
enough so thoy ask him to sign it again., He doos and thon a
fow hours lator goes out in the jungle and commits sulcide., IKEYA
was himsclf a suspoct otherwiso awhy koep him in custody for two

yoars?

But the judge advocato doosn't hesitate to use this state~
mont of a sulcide as ovidonoce, In Section 711, Naval Courts and
Boards we road: "Tho fact that a man takes his own 1lifo 1s
ovidonce of insanity, tut not enough of itself, to overcome the
prosumption of sanity, It is an act that ahouid be considered wits
the provious acts of tho docoased in dotermining whother ho was
not in possession of his mental faculties, If the provious acls
of the decoascd indicate sanity, or if a motive for killing himese.*
exists - as where by his own misconduct he has trought about a
situation from which he thereby secks to oscape = the decocased
should bo regarded as having boon sane at the moment of taking
his 1ife. An ocarmost effort should be made by the court or board
investigating tho doath ot obtain all possible ovidonco as to
state of mind of the deceased just prior to taking his life. H'ec
state of mind will often be best evidenced by previous conduct,
trouble, domestic or otherwise, considered in comnection with
brooding, preocoupation, and such like matters."

We had no opportunity to cross-exomine IKEYA becemse ho
commd ‘ted sulcide July 2, 1947 and then on the sixteenth day of
the trialy uly 11, 1947, o statenont whish TKETA had boon asked
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to sign twico was offered and admitted into evidence., It was
supposed to have been sworn to the last time,

Tn C.M.0, 8=1931, the prosecution {ntroduced into evidonce tho
statoment of the deceased Thompsons The J.AJGe Navy said:

"6, It is tho opinion of this office, in view of the fore=
going, that the court's action in admitbing over objection, any
of the doclarations (oral or writton) of tho docoased THOMPSON
was in error and should, in accordance with the motion of the accusec,
have becn strickon from the records .

», This office cannot agroe with the conolusion of the
convening authority, as notéd in the third paragraph of his action
quotod above, that tho reception of the hearsay evidonce reforred
to was nonprojudiciel, Tho Navy Departmont, in reviewing thie
record, cannot dotermine what offect such testimony had upon tho
court in arriving at ite findings and sentence, The nature
of tho hearsay evidence admitted, howover, would scem to precludo
the conclusion that it had no substantial offect upon the
court's (P.9) findings, It is tho opinion of this offico, therc=
forc, that tho errors conmitted by the court were in fact highly
damaging to the accuscd and therofore substantially projudiced
his rights.”

Tho rulecs of cvidonce protect an accused from such ovidonces
On rato oceasions depositions arc usods Soction 211, Naval Courts
and Boards, dofincs a deposition: "4 doposition is the tostimony
of o witness, put or taken down ¢n writing, under oath or
affirmatira, bofore an officor ompoworod to administer paths, in
anewor to interrogatories and eross=interrogatorics submitted by
tho party deserving tho dopoeition and tho oppositc party."

Sootion 217, Naval Courte and Boards defines an affidavit:
nAn affidavit differs from a deposition in that 4% is taken gx par-c
and offors tho opposito party no opportunity to cross=oxamino the
makor thoroof, An affidavit therofore, is not admissiblo in
ovidonco for tho purposo of proving tho subjcct mattor with which b2
affidavit deals,"

But the commission admitted the statement of IKEYA into
ovidence, YOSHIZAWA, one of tho accusod against whom thise statomont
of TKEY\ was offercd and admitted into ovidonco says the statoment
i falsc as to what IKEYA eaid about him, Is therc anyono better
qualifiod to say IKEYA's statoment is false than a witness eworn i"
toll tho truth as YOSHIZAWA = f Tho judge advoeato would have tin
commission beliove that this IKEYA who had been econfinod for two
years and thon signs under durcss a statomont which he is asked to
glgn a sooond timo and then doliberately goes out into tho junglo
and commits suicide is rather hard to belleve.

What a travesty on justice this would bo Af aceusod were tn o
found guilty on such evidonco ospocially when they havo takon the
stand as did YOSHIZAWA.
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To strike pert of the testimony of an aceused ies orror and :
projudicial to the substantive rights of tho accused especially where
tho ovidonce against him is a stotemont made by a person who him=
solf was a suepect and who committed sulecide, We challenge
the judge advoeate to show any ruling or case at law which per=
mits the court to strike such tostimony of the accusod as the

advooate requested this commission to do in the case of
YOSHIZAWA and which the commission did strike from the rocords

Sootion 454, Naval Courts and Boards protocts an accused in
those ocases whore the prosocution uses a deposition. In
every such caso the 1imitarion of punishment is {mprisomment or
confinomont for moro than one year, Nino of theoso accused have
alroady been in closo confinomont for more than two yoars already
awaiting trial,

Soction 454, Naval Courts and Boards roads: "Limitation
whon a doposition is usod, = In any caso whore a deposition is
usod in evidonco by the prosecution by roason of tho fact that
oral tostimony cennot bo obtained, as authorized by Article 68,
Articles for the Govormmont of tho Navy, the meximum punishment
which may bo imposed shall not oxtond to death or to imprisonment
or confinoment for morc than one yoars

4@ & & @ ® & & @& ® @ B B @ % B B B 8 BB @ & # ® & & @ . @

"Theso 1imitations apply to all casos, whethor or not tho trial
is for an offensc for which a 1imitation is othorwlso preseribed.
Fhore a doposition docs not lator into proof of all tho spocifi-
ontions, the limitation only to those specifications into which 11
entors,"

IKEYA'e statomont was more projudieial to the eighteen accuscc
charged with MURIER under specification 3 of Chargo I than any
deposition could ever have boen, All of thoso eightoen accused
should be allowod to comment on IKEYA's statoment and if any of
tho eightoon arc found guilty the limitation of punishmont should
bo ono years inprisonmonte.

Although SCAP rulds may permit such ovidence as a statemont
of a sulcide we know of no SCAP rule which dondcs the accusod
the right to comment on such evidenco whon the accused takes the
stand as a witness in his own bohalf,

YOSHIZAWA continued his testimony and told of the 1ittle
kindness such o giving that . prieonere cigarettes and going to
his room for bananas, and giving the prisoners water to drink
and ovon to reviving one of the prisoners who fainted.

YOSHIZAWA continuod and told about the speech Captain IWANAM.
made and its hypnotic effect on the assenmbly.

YOSHIZATIA answered question #22 bty testifying what he
remombered of Captain IWANAMI's spoech, He said:

¥Ho stated that this prisoner had attacked Truk, killod many
of our coumtrymen, bombed quarters, olothing and food, and 18 2
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despisable onomy. Ho has brought Truk to this condition. He has
bombod the hospital in violation of tho Red Cross, In placo of
Hoaven, I will punish thom, Strike spiritlyl”

As many itnos=os havo testifiod, the head of tho hospital
was vory oxciled, a lot difforont from his usual attitude, Evory
ono at tho secno bocame very quict, llko a frog which is beling
lookod in tho eyo by a snako, which has boon staped at by a snake.
Everyone was very pale im listening to the speech,

I refor tho commission to the article appoaring in July 5. 1947
1ssuc of Uolllors, pagos 24=-26, 30-31, by Dardcl P. MANNTX, titled,
"Do As You'rn Told', The author MANNIX tells about Howard KLEIN
ono of the most succossful professional hypnotests in Amorica. in
tho spring of 1943 the U,S. Navy ncoded a hypnotist to mako a
Gorman submarine commander talk end KLEIN did make him talk undor a
mmiﬂ 'Wll.

"On October 4, 1941, KLEIN causod an intornational sensation by
domonsttating that listoners ean bo hypnotizod by 12di0s eees
Simee thon, an English hypnotist has been presented over the
B.B.C, tolevision notwork, The results wero so startling that the
British passod a law forbidding any hypnotist to troadeast again,"

"Kloin belicves thero are two forms of hypnosis: 1{nformal®
and 'formal,! Informal hypnoais is tricd on us every day of our
livos., Tho radio commoreéfal that monotonously rcpeates the samo
idoa, tho mother who croons tho samo lullaby over and over until
her haby falls asloep, tho dictator who constantly scrcams the semu
110, the officor who drills troope until thoy oboy his commands
instinctivoly eee all aro using informal hypnosis. It 18 simply tho
power of suggestion. It may bo used for good purposes or for bad.

"Tho hysteria of a 1rnoh1n§ mob 4s due to informal hypnosis.
But so 48 tho courago of 'groon! troops braveoly attacking an
objoctivo,

"Tho differenec botween ¥informal'! and "formal' hypnosis is
the differcnee betweon a gontlo push and a knockout blow, Formal
hypnosis deponds for its powor on tho tranco stato, No one has cvor
boon ablo to oxplain what happons to tho mind during tho Yhypmotic
sloop.'! This sloop is inducod by a combination of oyestrain and
suggostion from the hypnotist,.

"he old time hypnotists uscd to induce oyostrain in the subjout
by tclling him to staro into thoir oyose Actually, the oyos
thomsolvos have no hypnotie powor. Modorn hypnotists usually havo
thoir subjocts staro at a bring coin or.at a spot in thecoiling, Tc
facilitato relamation, tho subjoct is told to breatho dooply and au e
definite rhythm,- This is Why 'troathing oxoreisos' aro such an

nt part of yogism, which is basod on sclfeinducod hypnoels.
Theso physical eonditions, couplod with suggostion, causc tho 'hypnci:
llﬂﬂp.' "Why, no one knows.
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"horo probably is such a thing as mass hypnotiems Crowds
usually arc controlled only by informal hypnosis. But during Kloinie
shows poople in the andioncoe froquently go imto a traneo while ho
is hyrnotdziig the subjocts on tho stagoe During ono of his Army
shows, Kloin told ary members of the audicnec who felt that thoy
had boon hypnotizod to stand up. Throe hincrod and f£ifly mon roso
Kloin had to make “hom march past him in st gle £:1¢ in order to
wako them up individually. "Thoso men wore tired from e long
day's drill,' explaincd Kloin, 'Thoy woerc highly suseeptible.

This was tho closest I ever came to hypnotizing a whole audicnee!.”

And o T say “hat on that day July 20, 1944, on the 80 called
hill b.ck of tho oiilcers quarters at tho Lch Naval Hospital,
Truk, that Coptain TYANAMI put the crown in en ifformal state of
hypnosis, Thoy worc all as so much putty in his hands. Nobody
was roally in favor of this execution but the power of suggestion
which Captain IWANAMI uscd was used by him and onabled him to carmy
out what was a lawful oxocution of two Amorican prisoners who had
bombod tho hospital at Truk,

YOSHIZAWA doseribed tho situation as woll as ho ecould and
far bottor than anyone olso has done so far whon he gaid: "Bvery-
ono at tho scone beeamo Vory quict, 1like a frog which 1s being loci™.
in tho oyo by a snako, which has beon stared at by a snako, Evory:
ono was vory pale in listening to the spcochs”

Much of YOSHIZAWA!s tostimony was on motion of tho judgo
advocato stricken out. In offoct YOSHIZAWA tostifiod that aftor
ASAMURA had failod to cut tho prisonor with his sword ASAMURA
gavo his sword to YOSHIZAWA and hurriodly left boing very sick
snd upset, Socing that ASAMURA had failod 4n cutting tho
prisonor Captain TWANAMI ordored YOSHIZAWA to cut and YOSHIZAWA
undor tho influonce of Captain IWANAMI and by orders of Captain
INANAMI cut ono of the prisonorse

YOSHIZAWA tostified he struck at a doad body but tho judgo
advocate moved to striko the word "dead" in tho Answor to
Quostion #32 on tho ground that it was not rosponsive and that it
wos the opinion of the witnoss. If YOSHIZAVWA thought tho
prisonor was dead when ho struck at him ho cloarly didn't havo
tho eriminal intent to commit murdor. If YOSHIZAWA thought
tho prisonor was doad tho prisonor was no doubt dead having boen
atabbed by at loast ton porsons although all oighteen persons arc
alloged to havo "oaech and togothoryeeeee wilfully, foloniously,
with promeditation and malico aforothought, and without
justifiable causo, assault, striko and ki1l by bayoneting with
fixcd bayonots, spearing with spoars,eceees™e

Bocauso YOSHIZAWA cut at a prisoncr in obodience to orders ¢’
Captoin IWANAMI, becauso YOSHIZAWA in his opinion know tho
prisonor was doad, and bocause ho had no eriminal intent to
comit muder , wo ask that the commission find as to Ensign
YOSHIZAVA, Konsaburo, specification 3 of shargo I mot proved

Ensign YOSHIZAWA, Konsaburo is of tho charge of
doee therofare acquit the
cification and of tho
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On the 30th day of the trianl, HOMMA, Hachiro, took the
stand as a witnoss in his own behalf, He gtatod that it wesn't
untdl about 2:30 that he heard the call for general assenbly
and ho wont to the rogular asserbly spot in front of the admin=
{stration building and was told to go %o tho hill baek of the
hospital and he went thoro, Shortly aftorward the two prisoncrs
arrived, Officors and enlistod men from the hospital continued
%o assombly and thon Captain IWANAMI and Captain TANEDA arrived.
Tho prisonors wore tiod, petty officers woro 1ined up and
sortein of thom stopped forward, HOMMA was in thie group that
was ordorod %o sten forward and ho and tho othors woro handed stool
sponrs and riflcs with fixed bayoncts, Captain TWANAMI
mado a spooch, Thore isn't any doubt that evoryone who hoard
the spoech wae hypnotiscd, HOMMA was an oxcoptionally obodicnt
potty officor, Ho toetificd in his statoment on tho stand:
WProm tho time I ontored the Navy it was gtrosscd to tho marrow of
my bono, obedicnco to ordors was tho backbono of military servico.
I have tccn tought ‘his for nine yoars and al.go to cariy out
all ordors of the superiors, Tnis bocamoe scoond naturc, In this
easo, wo tho potty officors whon ordorod to stab tho prisoners bail
no authority or duty to rojoet this whon wo wore given ordors.
Wo ware tought to carry out the aet immodiatoly, ovon though it
moant loss of 1ifo; forget your homoj forgot your parontsj
forget your wifo and childron,esees”

1f ovor thoro was an illustration of informal hypnosis it
wae thore at Truk that aftornoons Ccptain TWANAMI had so drill~c
his personnol that thoy obeyod s commands instinctivcly ho
thought, Woll, almost but it was nocossary that he get thom in e
hystorical stato and this was casy to do boeauso they wore highly
suscoptible, Tho hysteria that day was dw to informal hypnosie
and Crptain INANAMI was a mastor at the act that afternoon.

To quostion #61, HOMMA said:

"For wo tho potty officors, tho orders of tho suporior
officors wore absoluto, Wo relied upon the superior officors
and shsolutely rospected them eeese He (Captain IWANAMI) was
always training tho onlistod mon in military spiritecees"

According to paragraph 347 of tho Ruloe of Land Warfare
"Individualc of tho armed forcos will not be punishod for thoseo
of fonsos (violatieng of t stoms _and of war) in case

thoy aro committed unde o order or sanction of thoir govern-
mont or cormandors." This was tho rulo, the American Rulo sinco
1914. On Novomber 15, X944, by order of the Socrotary of

War, Gonorak MARSHALL {ssued an ordor which changoed this rule

to a slight extont, But im July 1944 whon this incidont took
placo tho Amorican rule was that an individual 1ike HOMMA had v
boon in our American Army would not have boen punished sinco Fo
cenrdttod the offonso wmder tho oxders of Captain IWANAMI,

L)

In answer to quostiom #30 HOMMA testiffed: o wero ine
stilled with the foeling that the ordors in tho Japanose military -
sorviee wero tho dircct orders of the Emporow. ,Omunnordar
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was issuod no mattor what happens that order is to bo carriod out,
As this was on order I did not think it wns wrong."

As to what would happen if he disoboyed the order HOMMA
tostificd in answer to quosbion #52: "To disoboy an ordor in
tho Jopancso military sorvico is ono of tho hoavicst penaltios
and I havé boon taught in my kino yoars that in tho front lincs
if an ordor is discboyed the penalty would bo deaths"

To quostion #36: "What did you think when you heard the
spooch of tho head of tho hospitali" HOMMA tostified: MWhem
I hoard thc spooch of tho hoad of ho hoepital 1 was of tho samo
foolinz but whon I saw those two prisonors tied boforo my oyes I
folt sorry for thom,"

Doos this sound as if HOMMA, swilfully, felohiocusly, with

promoditation and malico aforothought, rnd without justifiable
6ausC,+eses® Ho 18 80 charged, Theso are the olemonts of
bomnon Law marder and if HOMM! is to bo found guilty all those
things must be preved against hims. Malico afarethought, is a
strictly- logal term. In view of the law it indicatos &
malignant or depravoed naturce No ono testificd or could thoy
do so, that HOMMA was of a dopraved naturc. HOMMA was tho modol
chiof petty officers Whatover HOMMA did in stabblng one of
thoso prisonors that day 4t was not MURDER.

For all theso roasons we ask that the commission find as
to HOMMA, Hachiro, gpocification 3 of Charge I not provod
and the accuscd HOMMA, Hachiro, is of tho charge of MURDER
not guilty end tho commission does thereforo nequit the sald
HOMMA, Hachiro, of the speeification and of tho ehargo of MURTEL.

TANABE, Mamoru, a chiof potty officer in July 1944 was tho
chiof petty officor in charge of tho out=patient room and also
tho sonior potty officor in the first division, He, too0, is
chargod with murdor of those two prisonors although for twolve
days from July 13 to July 24 ho was sick in bed, a pationt at tho
W’-tﬂln On July m‘. 19“’ he was st411 in bod with dengue fevor
and was not ovon at tho seono of tho oxecution, Why thon is ho
charged with murdor of both of those Amorican prisonorse Wo
sincorely hope that tho Judge advocato will oxplain why TANADE
was indietod and why those prosecution witnessos KIKUCHI, Goroj
TAKAHASHI, Masayoshij HASEGAWA, Masannoj HLYASHI, !'Nasajl and
HAMADA, Toshihise tostified they saw TANADE stab, TANABE thoir
shipmato, was howovor sick in bod with denguo fover. Could 1t
be that chaln prosccution witnesses aro not erediblo witnossos?
Could it bo that theso witnosses have somothing to hide and
thinking 4f thoy tostify falsely that they will escapo? Thore
{sn't any doubt that cortain porsons got togethor and decided
thet cortain potty officors and officors woro to bo blamed for
this incideont and thogo porsons roadily decidod upon the porsonu

and agrood to tako tho witmoss stand and under oath tostify falsoly
against their own shipmatos.

hqmﬂonmrmmmmTMuhm
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in tho 1ino of stabbors but in quostion #100 ho did namo
TANADE as boing one of tho stabbors, Howevor to quostion #102
ho tostificd that ho did not know what TANABE stabbod with that

Aaye

This is an Amorican Military court and such porsones ae havo
tostifiod falsoly should bo punishod,

TANABE, Mamoru, was domobilizod and was living poacofully
with his wifc and family in Japan but becausc of this agroomont
to blamo tho loading or sonior potty officers for the stabbing
ho was oxtraditod and brought horo to Guam and has for many months
boon kopt in solitary confincmont and was Jolned with cightoon
others in trial and ho, TANABE, Mamoru, is charged with murder
of two American prisonors of war,

Lot us look at tho testimony of those flvo false witnosses,

KIKUCHI, Goro, on tho tonth and oleventh day also testified
falsely that Licutcnant Commender KAMIKAWA camo to the secono of
exooution with Captain ITANAMI,

KIKUCHI aleo testificd falsely that WATANABE, and SAWADA,
wore 4n tho 1ino of stabborss This KIKUCHI under oath to toll
tho truth tostifiod that ho saw TANAKA, WATANADE, and SAWADA

stab the prisoncrse

KIKUCHI ovon gave his opinion that the prisoncr that HOMMA
stabbod lookod as if ho woro doad. Ho qualified this statoment
howovor by saying "but as I am not e doctor and I did not tako
hie pulsc I ean not say for suro." (Answor to questiok #62.)

Noxt lot us look at the tostimony of TAKAHASHI, Masayoehd,
Ho was rocalled as a witness on the twolfth day and rocallod
that whon ho arrived on tho top of tho hill with fiftecn othor
men ho saw both Lioutonant OISHI and Lioutonant KAMIKATA And
KAMIKAVA ordorod prisonors tiod and ordored the lining up of the
porsons who woro armod,

TLKAHASHT saw MUKAI, BAWADA, WATANABE, and NAMATAME in tho lino
of stabbors, Ho also saw thosc mon stab although cach of thoso
mon tostifiod thoy did mot stab. TAKAHASHI also testifiod that
YOSHIZAWA mustored a group of mon in fromt of tho administration
building and marehod him and tho others to tho sconos He doosn'®
romombor a single man who musterod with him, YOSHIZAWA on the
witnoss stand donlod ho mustored and marched thesc men to the
BOONO ¢

Woxt lot us hoar how HASEGAWA, Mnsanao tostified on tho
thirtconth day. In answor to quostion #26 HASEGATA, names sOVOT" .
onlistod mon in the 1ine of stabbors including NAMATAME, WATANALT,
and SAWADL. Thon ho says: "I romombor tho ones I montidned abovo.
also Warrant Officor TAMADE, Yot TANABE was sick in bod all thal
day and NAMETAME , WATANADE, and SAWADLA tostifiod on tho witnose
stand that thoy did not stab, HLSEGAWA was willing to say most
anything 1t soomed bocause whon he was askod question #2011
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"iro therc any others who are here presont in court to=day that
worc in thosc two 1inos? Look at those peoplo," Ho answorod,
"horo is", and thon quostion #28: "Who olso?" Ho cnswored,
"Captain IWANAMI, Lioutonant Commandor KAMIKAWA, Lioutonant OISHI,
Ensign YOSHIZANA. - Tho rost I do not remembor," The rocord

thon shows: "Tho quostion was repoatod to tho witnoss." Answor

by HASEGAWA, "Also thorc was Corpsman Chicf Potty officor KUWABARA.®

KUWABARA also took tho stand and dopied that ho gtabbode

Then HASEGAWA trics to chango his tostimony becausoc to
quostion #43: "Name tho four you saw stab?" Ho answors: WHOMMA ,
WATANADE, SAWADA and TANAKA. Thoso I romombors®

Noxt thoro was witnoss HAYASHI, Masaji, who also testifiod
on tho thirtoenth day. Ho too sew Iioutonant KAMIKAWA on tho
hi1l and saw him loave and short ‘aftorward Captain IWANAMI cemo
%o tho hill, Ho also saw TANADE (answor to quostion #32) who was
gick in bod, MUKAX, who tostifiod he didn't stab, WATANADE, and
SAWADA who both testifiod thoy dddn't stab, all thoso witnoss
HAYASHI imagincd ho saw in the 1ino of stabbers, His answer to
quostion #138 was that ho distinctly remembored TANADE and MUKAI.
Ho thinks WATANABE and SAWADA woro lined up. Ho thinks thoy linod
up according to rank and knowing thoir rank ho thorofore can say
TANABE who was noxt sondor to HOMMA wos lined up, His answor to
qunn;tinn #1246 ho says "I am not suro they 1incd up according to
rank,"

TANABE who tostified ho was elck with dengue fover, howover,.t:
said by witnoss HAYASHI who wos askod quostion #1781 "What did ~
TANABE stab with?" Answor "With a spoars"

Quostion #179: "Did ho stab the prisoncr HOMMA aid’?
ﬂ' I’Gl-- '

Quostion #180: "Whoro did ho gtob tho prisonor?
A, Ho stabbod at tho stomach of tho prisomer, I do not know
if tho spear perced or not."

Quostion #181: “How many timos did ho stab?
As Onoo "

Quostion #182: "Did you soe blood come from tho place in
tho stomach whoro TANADE stabbed tho prisomer?
Ae No."

Question #183: "Did you sco %lood on TANADE'e spear?
A I do not romombor,"

Quostion 84t "Was the prisonor still 4n an upright positl r
aftor TANADE findshod gtabbing him?
hﬂuilluﬂhmadnndmmm:amiuasﬂm
tho “Wl. : :
4nd all during this time TANABE, Mamoru, was gick in a
hospital bod with dengue fovors '
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inothor proseeution witnoss HAMADA, Toshihisa, tries to
follow along the samo linos me thoso othor witneoss boeauso he too,
can givo us tho namos of tho men who worc in the two lines of
stabbors, Ho glibby recites tho name of Chiof Petty Officor
TANABE, In quostion #236 ho said ho saw TANABE stab, Ho also
named olovon others ineluding WATANADE, KUWABARI, SAWADA and
NAMATAME who have all tostifiod thoy did not stab, TANADE
wasn't ovon at tho seono but was sick in bed with dongue foevor,
To quostion #28 HAMADA said: "In rolation to MUKAI I have only
a faint roecolloction". HAMADA should have said this about
WATANABE, KUWADARI, SAVADA and NAMATAME, and should have checked
tho hospital rocords so that he would have known that TANADE )
Mamoru, was sick in bod with dongue fevor July 20, 1944, and was
not at tho seonc of tho oxecution,

TANABE, Mamoru, on tho witnos® stand as a witnoss in his
own behalf was askod quostion #31: "Did you romain in your
hospital bod the entiro day of tho twontieth of July?" And tho
answer was: "Yos, othor to my going to tho head or smoking a
cigarotte I stayod in bod all through tho poriod I was in the
ward,"

In answor to quostion #33 TANABE said: "Sitting in this court
room and listoning to tho testimony I havo found oud for the
first timo what tho contonts of thie incidont worc., I know about
boeausc I hoard about it in this court, I havo hoard much
testimony about tho contonts of this case. According to that
tostinony on that day of the ineidont thoro was n gencral assombly,
almost all tho mombors of tho hospital woro assombled, tho potty
officors worc brought forward by tho ordors of the hoad of tho
hospital and that thoy wore mado to stab, thorofore, I was =
mombor of tho Fourth Naval Hospital at that time, and tho
witnossce as thoy did not know tho fact that I was in tho
hospital at that timo thought TAN/BE must have naturally takon
part in this ineidont and tostificd to this offect, That is how
I beliove it 1s,"

The judgo advoeato continuod his crosseoxamination of TANABE
and quostion #34: "HAMADA, who scrved with you at the hospital,
HAYASHI who sorved with you at the hospital, and TAKAHASHI who
sorved with you at tho hospital not only said that you wore on tho
hill that day, but thoy tostifiod that thoy actually saw you stab
one of tho prisoners, How do you oxplain thoir tostimony?"
dnd he amsworod: "It 4s just as I havo stated, with that thought
in mind, for mysolf I abeolutoly did not stab tho prisoners,
naturally I was not at tho sceno, naturally I did not stab,"

80 in this Amoriean court room wo find that Japanoso will go*
up and undor oath tostify that thoy saw a porson stab an Aroriean
throo yoars ago. That porson accused of murder must thon take
the witnoss stand and as an accused try to eonvineo the court
that ho 1s tolling the truth whon ho too tostiffos under oath
that ho was sick in bod with donguo fover, that ho did not leave
his sick bod for ton days, that ho was not at tho scone, and thet
bo @44 not stab, . At ton of those aceusod have all stated
on tho witnoss stand that proscoution witnossos havo tostified
falsoly against thom, Tho judgo advoeate has roquestod that
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\ such tostimony bo stricken from the reeord and in most if not {
- all cases tho tostimony of tho agcused that witnesscs have
tostifiod falsoly against thom haa boen stricken from the rocord,
As wo havo stated boforo we can find no rules of evidonco to
uphold such o ruling or which pormits the striking of such
tostimony of an accusod from the rocords

Somo of tho accused had boon domobilized, others have boon in
confinomont simco tho cossation of hostilitios, two years agoe
Practically all tho prosocution witnessos havo becn confinod '
or hold in custody as suspocts or as witnossos sinco V=J Day,
two yoars ago. TwWo prosccution witnossos comnitted suicide
during this trial, It is all very confusing and we do not want
those accused to invade tho provinco of tho commission booause
wo know full well that it is for tho court to woigh the evidence
but wo do want to point out to the cormission how difficult
it is for thoso accused to refrain fron spoaking out against
porsons who in this court havo sworn by the Christian God to
tell tho truth and yot tostify folsoly.

In tho caso of TANABE, Mamoru, wo ask that tho commission
find as to TANABE, Mamoru, spocification 3 of charge 1, not
proved and tho accusod TANADE, Mamoru, is of the charge of
murdor not guilty and tho commission doos thorefore acquit the
sald TANABE, Mamoru, of tho spocification and of tho ¢harge of

- . - 1

KIMIKAW,, Hidohiro, who at tho time of tho incidont was a
Surgoon Lieutenant and acting as Adjutant at 4th Naval Hospitel
Truk 48 also chargod with the murder of thosc two American
prisonors on July 20, 1944. '

KAMIKAVIA wae domobilizod Jamuary 23, 1948, and roturnod to
Japan, He then socurcd a position as modical officor on the
19th of Septomber 1946, howovor, ho wao takon into custody
and brought to Cuam. Why ho Was oxpraditod from Japan and how
wo have attomptod to show but wore anable to got such thinge
into evidened, Whether ho was ever questioned about this July
incidont and if he deniod it is also important because for -
srmo roason KAMIKAWA is also charged with the murder of these
two Arerieans, It is not the American wey to indiscriminately
chargo porsons with purder or any crimo for that matter. It
roquires more than suspicion or rumors

But KAMIKAVA was on or about Moy 9&135,;»:1@.& with mﬁ
.1 for ﬂﬂﬂt'. e

pro

KAMIKAWA by calling as witnesees certain onlisted personnol and
the sendor soction hoad of the Truk hospital, Captain TANEDA.
Those prosocution witnossos wont as far as thoy darcd in trylg
to involve KAMIKANA and thus absolvo thomselves particularly

; Captain TANEDA.

"223(53)"

CYSATFIED TO Bé 4 LiT

/~ JAMES P, KENNI
uautﬂm' U-Is‘ lhw’
Mgﬂ MWﬂt!-




0 s Takno, z‘.lutlbannnt Oommandor and head of
surgical department at the time of the incident testifiocd

that ho thought KAMIKAWA wag thore on tho hill. The judgo
advoecato nak:lzg him tHo follbwing leading questions on the oighth
day of tho trialt

"y, A7, You saw Lioutonant Commander KAMIKAWA on the

hill that of tornocn?
i As I think ho was thoro."

Wo had this answor stricken but the judgo advocato again
askod tho grostior:

rQ. 42, You saw Lioutenant KAMIKAWA on tho hill that ;
aftorroon?
he As I rocall ho was thoroe"

Wo did objoet to those loading questicns but wero over sulede

Eow uncortaln this witnose wos o8 to who was present at tho
scons that aftorncon an bo soon by his ansvoro tc quostion #1313
hoter;tified: "As nlmost all the personnel cf tho hospital were
therc 1 prosumed that almost overyone was there and replaced
accordingly. Also as I have nothing dofinite to confiim
that they wore not there I tostifiod as I did.,"

This answor is typical of the ontire testimony of this
witncss, He is not testifying from his own knowledge bub on
prosumptions, {11 men aro guilty unloss they prove thomsclvus
innocont and ho is willing to testify tha® a person is guilty
beeause ho hasn't heard thoy wero innocont.

Lot us rond this answor of OKAMURASs agein: Answor %o
question #1133 "As elmost all tho personnol of the hospital
worc thore I presumod that almost everyono Was there and repliod
accordingly. Also as I have nothing definito to confirm that
thoy worc not thoro 1 tostifiod as I did."

His faint rocollections about KAMIKAWA should bo given nc
erodonce and his entire testimony ruled out whon he oxplains as "
d4d tho basis for his testimony. Only two officors wore sonior %o
OKAMURA, this witnoss, that aftornoon pn the hill whon tho
prisoners were oxoouted, It would be botter for OKAMURA to heve
KAMIKAWA thoro bocauso KAMIKAWA was tho Adjutant and can bo
given tho rosponsibility for cortain things. But the Amoricans
aro charging KAMIKATA not morcly as boing present but KAMIKATA
is actuslly chargoed with stabbing and cutting andMlling two
Amorieans. This witnese in answor to quostion #1207 4 eseoDid you
sco Lioutonant Commandor KAMIKARA stab?" answorod: "I do not
remombor,"

What kind of testimony is this for tho third sendor officc’
at tho scono of the exocution, I do not romember if tho
Adjutant Lioutonard KXMIKAWA stabbod tho prisonors He wasn'®
honest onough to oven say he didn't seo Lieutonant KAMIKAWA
stab, I eay such a witnoss should not be bolioved in anything
Ho gave tho same answor to the question #208: "Did you see
Lioutonant OISHI stab? Answer, I do not romombor," His entiro

tostimony is wi thout any morite _
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\ Tho noxt sondor officer at tho hospital was Captain
PANEDA, Ho tostifiod on tho ninth and tonth days of this trials \
Just what Xind of o witnoss is this Captadn TANEDA?

A vory important witnoss for the prosocution IKEIA,
Kyodchi, committod sulcide oarly Wednosday morning, July 2,
1947, Ho hnd beon 1iving in tho samo witnoss eamp aroa 08
Captain TANEDA. YKEYA had boon kept in confinomont since tho
ond of tho war and was duo to testify but ho was now doade

Tho judge advocato asks Captain TANEDA: "Qe #21. TFrom
whom did you hoar tho names of tho porsons who werc on tho truck
with tho prisonors? Answors: I hoard from Potty officor IKEYA."

How orn this commlssion boliove any of the prosecutlion
witnosseos wlon they arc rondy to testify not of tholr own knov~
lodge but what thoy hoard from others, particularly, o Captadr.
in tho Navy who gots his information from ~ noneratod cnlistod
man, on onlistod man who has committcd suirddo just a fow howns
boforoe Coptain TANEDA is put on tho witresu stand, What storics
thoso suspects othorwise roforred to os proseeution witnosscs

od to toll or were foreed to tc1l not only by tho
4nvostigators but by thoir formor offlcers we will probably
nover know, What wo do know however; i that two witnosses 420
comit suicide whilo in eustody hore on Guam and witnossos now Sur3
thoir infornmation is dorived from thesc gsuicldes.

Noxt “his Captain TANEDL tostifios that as throo of thom,
Vicc Admira. HARA, Captain IWANAMI and himsclf woro sitting o
tho voranda, talking that tho Adjutant Licutenant KAMIKATTA i
camo toward them saluted and roturncds

Ploasc remombor Captain TANEDA was nost eenior to Captain
IWANAMI ot the hospital and he was also a Surgeon Captain, He
too has bcon held in confinoment o long time but hae agrood to
tostify for tho prosecutions Ouestion #34: "Aftor Admiral HARS
had gono did you roport to anyone that Licutenart Commander
KAMIKAWA had approached? Answori As I statod ~bafore I told

the head of the hespital, I told him that o long time previous™)
tho prisoners had passed by and he made an gosture as if he wao
surrrisod and ho said, 'Is that so?!, and then I asked him, ‘Are
you going to do something with the prisoners os you were saying
sovoral days ago?', and he sald, 1Yos',"

#Tho Adjutant had come toward tho room and I had motdoned £ui
him to como forward but he had salutod and gono backs Then tho
hond of tho hospitel eaid, "The preparations have beon made.'

*Thon I said, 'That must bo 1t. The adjutant camo and
salutod twicol®

We, of courso, moved that tho portion of Captain TAMED.':
angwor bo Mnmmﬁmuw.n'th-m it
was on opinion and a eonslusion of Captain TANEDA, tho witnoe=
bat the cormission demded tho motdon %o strike.
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Tf over a witnoss gavo o solf serving statement and ono (

\
that not only inforrod that anothor person should take the
rosponsibdlity, but seid it in ao many words, Captain TANEDA did

thon,

Tho judge advoeato refreshed Captain T/NEDA!'s memory and
TANEDA contimocd by saying: "Bofore TANAMI said lot us go up

tho hill I asked him, 'What arc you going to do and how aro you
going to do 1t?' (Sco quostions and asnwors 35 = 41 inclusive.)
Tho answor to question #40 was that Captain IWANAMI said ho was

going to dolt with bayonote and spoarss

So thoso two wont up the hill to the oxecution side by
side but thon according to an old Japanose custom it 1s impolite

to ronch tho gonoral assembly aftor the dopartment head so
Captain TANEDA passed him and wont on ahead of Captaln IWANAMI.

Captain T/INEDA did not answor question #34 tho woy tho
judge advocate wantod hdm to do, so when tho defonso moved to
striko out part of the answer the judgo advocate agrocd,

Then the judge advocatlo rofroshed the memory of Captain

TANEDA and he put question #49: "Now, what did you say if any=
and what did Liocutenant

thing to Lioutonant Commander KAMIKA™A
Commander KAMIKAWA say to you? Answorsi KAMIKAWA said tho pro=
parations have becn made end salutod"s "I said the hoad of the
{ hospital wans saying to havo you bogin and as KAMIKAWA was stortiig
% return I stopped him and snid that as tho hoad of the hospiial
will soon bo here you report to him and as I was passing the heac |
of tho hospital on golng up tho hill he told me what I had just

tostifiod."

0., 51 "After you had this conversation wi

what happenod?
Ae Thoe head of tho hospital soon arrived and KAMIKAWA

roported to the head of the hospital,"

fle ask the commissirn to read agedn and note particularly

Cnptain TLNEDA's answor %o quostion #52« This noxt senior to
Captain ITANAMI, and himself a Surgoon Captain scys: "I forget
whethor it was before or after tho gpeech tho head of tho
hospital said to mo 'have thom take off tho blindfolds fron
tho prisoners', and I acted as 4¢ 1 d4d not hear it, and again
tho hoad of the hospital said, 'have thom-take the blindfolds
away from the prisoners', and I acted as 4f I did not hoer it
bocauso I thought it should not bo dones The hoad of tho
hospital wont toward the front of the prisoners and I do not
remenbor who did it but ho said in a lowd volco, tako away
the blindfolds, A short time after the speoch the actual

stabbing bogan,®

| Now this witness would have us beliove that having dis=
cussod tho execution with Captain IWANAMI and thon having walxcd
fron the administration building to the top of tho so callod hill

with Captain IVANAME, and thon hurriod on shead of him bocausc

it was impolite to get %o an assombly et tho samo timo as the

hoad of tho hospital that he took his place in front of where thro

officors wero grouped and thon when the head of tho hospital, his

own commanding officer spoke to him, and ordered him to havo tho

wm)IFIED 70 BE A TRUE COFY : (288
+ e/ fors i

5; JMES P, KEN N
{deutenant, U.o. Navy, _

_t-l-,-‘ - LY. | r-'l_rnpf "

th KAMIEATA

—

i e o

U g
o e e |
HH oo

i
|



blindfolds takon off the prisoncrs that ho stood there and
acted as Af he didn't hoar Captain INANAMI, I wondor how he
aetod this part out, Not once did he havo to act this part
of protonding not to hear the commanding offieor whon ho gave
him an ordor bofore a goneral assombly but ho acted as if he
d4dn't hoar him two timos, This Captain TANEDL says ho
actod s if he didn't hoar tho order "bosauso I thought it
should not bo dono,"

My but this Surgoon Coptain was squoamish about 1listle
things. He didn't go for removing blindfolds from American
prisonors but ho didn't objoct to tho idea of thoso samo
prisonors bolng gtabbod,

Why didn't ho objoet whon Captain IVANAMI told him

"ho was going to do it with bayonots and spoars" (answor to
quostion #40,) This Captain TANEDL was tho only ono anccording
to all tho ovidonco in this caso that actually know what tho
plans of Captain IWANAMI woro bofore thoy heard Captndn IWANAMI'G
spooch, Captain TANEDA was noxt sonior in rank to

Captain IWANAMI and he was also a Surgoon Ceptain and was in a
much bottor position to adorse Captain IVANAMI than tho Adjutant
but ho didn't do so, Instoad ho went with Ceptein IVANAMI up
that hill knowing there was to bo an exocution,

This is probebly what Captain TANEDA meant when ho
roplied to quostion #149¢ "Did you always ngree with the policlos
of IWANAMI?® by saying: "Frankly, as a whole I disagrocd with
thom," Ho disagrood whon Ceptain IT7ANAMI ordercd him to havo
the blindfolds teken off the prisonors but agreed to the gtabbin;
of thoso prisonorss

Thon, too, why didn't Cantain IWANAMI order the adjutant
to have tho blindfolds re movod if as Captain TANEDA said the
Adjutant cemo up and salutod TANEDA whon ho arrived and he also
gaw KAMIKAWA roport to the head of tho hospital whon he arrived,

No, Captain IVANAMI passcd his ordors thsm Captain TANEDA
boocauso tho Adjutant Licutonant KAMIKAWA wosn't thoro that
aftornoon,

That sicknose did this witnoss Captain TANEDA mean when
ho said in his statomont on tho witnoss stand: "I rogrot that
duo to my sicknoss that I could not roply definitoly to tho
dofonsc counsol to the cvents occurring on top of tho hill."?

This is the witness and by his tostimony tho judgo advoea®s
hoped to prove to tho commission that Lioutonant KAMIKAWA
d4d "wilfully, feloniousely, with premediatation and malice
aforothought, and without justifinblo causc, assault, strike
and ki1l by bayonoting with fixed bayoncte, spearing with
spoars, and bohoading with swords, two (2) Ameriean Prisonors
of Tar,."

Lioutenant KAMIKARA on tho 2%rd day of tho trial took

ﬂnnunduuﬁtmutnhhmmhnu. "Under the ecommon
law a porson was mot allowod to testify in his own intorest."
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sevesseseeTho law now provides that the accusod shall, at
his own roquost, but not othorwise, bo n eompetont witnoss, and
shall be allowed to tostify in his own bohalf, and his failuro
to mako such requost shall not croato a prosumption against him,"
Soetion 234, Naval Courts and Boards.

80 whon Lioutonant KAMIKAWA took the stand it wes in theo
bo'ief that ho would bo permitted and mallowod to tostify in
his own bohalf "

Questions #5, #8, #9, and #10 wore objected to and the
objection sustained,

The answer to quostion #28 was sticken out on the ground thni
it was a self serving declaration,
Question 29 was objected to and objection sustained,.

Tho answer to question #30 was stricken out on the ground
that it was a self sorving doclaratione.

Why an anccuscd cannot tostify in his own behalf 1s not
cloar boeauso that is the vory reason ho takos the stand, to testify
in his own bohelf,

In answor to quostion #32 Licutonant KAMIKATA told of his
boing stricken with amoobic dysontary and still sick ho nevor=
ttaless loft his sick bed and tried to carry on with his works
Captain INANAMI had authorisod him to retire to hie quarters and
rost aftor his work was completode

W+

So on the day of the July incident Liocutenant KAMIKARA recir.v
to his room, but lot him toll it in his own words:

Answor to question #34:

miftor tho work was ovor I was roturning to my room, on tho
way back to my quarters I met sevoral onlisted men who were walk!ry
toward tho hill in back of the hospital. I asked thom whore tho)
wore going and thoy told mo tprisonors havo come to the hill dn
back of the hospital, wo aro going to soo thome! As I had boen
agodnst bringing tho prisonors to tho hospital I did not want to
soo thom and I stayed in my room. That is why I remomber this
e'!.nu.'l':l_,'r.'

Part of the answer to question #35 was strickon out on the
ground that it was a solf=gorving doelaration,

Quostion #37 was objected to by tho judgo advocato and
tho objoction sustainod,

Ldoutonant KAMIKAWA to quostion #38 and quostion #39
tostified ho might havo soon Admiral HARA and salutod hin but
ho gamnot romomber "going toward tho hoad of the hospital's
Toon where ddsdyel HARA, Captain TANEDA and Oaptain IWANAMI
were talking and godng away."
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\ Tho cross=cxamination of KAMIKAWA by tho judgo advoente
was vory bittor. Howovor, KAMIKAWA porsisted in his original story }
and insistod that not only Captain TANEDA but that KIKUCHI, HAMADL,
T{;;{mﬂHhSHI, OKLMURA and HAYASHI, all gave false tostimony agoinst

Lot us listen to somo of tho questions put to KAMIKAVA
by the judgo advocate on erosg=oxanination and tho answers that
KAMIKAWA gavaoe

"Qs 72s Do you oxpoct this commission to believe that you -
a Surgeon Lioutonant = would tell the hoad of the Fourth Naval
Hospital, a full Captain, that you did not like what ho told you
to do, Is that what you want us to holieve?

A. I am only telling the truth, My rank was low but as I
was tho Adjutant it was only natural that I exprossed my opinion,

nQ, 3. Wore you asked to oxpross your opinion?

As Tho hond of the hospital did not say to oxpross my
opinion but as I was the Adjutant my work wes to aogsist him and I
could oxpress my opinion before an order was put out.

"Q. 4. Wore you in tho habit of giving Coptain IWANAMI
the bonefit of your opinion before you carricd out his ordors?

A+ Whonovor I thought it was botter that I expross my
opinion = I did.

‘ "Qe 75. In this particular Qaso you told Captain IWANAMI
tho hoad of tho hospital thot you wero opposed to his actions. Is |
that corroct?
As IDE"

Tho judgo advoeato would havo this comrdssion boliove that
Licutonant KIMIKAW. was a "Yes Man", The tostimony of KIMIKAWA
and the ovidenco is quito to the contrery, Tho "Yos Man" at the
4Lth Naval Hospital worc the othor Surgeon Captains, the witnosscs
who aro now tostifying against tho adjutant, the only officor who
had tho courage of his convictions and darod opposo Captain
IWANAME and said that tho hospital was not a fitting place to
carry out an exooution even if those Amorican prisopess had bombed
the hospital, Remember the hospital didn't capture these prisonors,
It was probebly the Army on Truk that captured thom and turned
them over to tho 4lst Naval Guard Unit. The judge advocate has
not shown who wos responsible for prisoners of war on Truk but
414 was certainly not the Naval Hospitols

Somoono n tho Naval Guard Unit turnod those two prisoncrs
ovor to Captain IWANAMI in ordoer that tho axooution might be earrio?
out at tho vory scono of thoir unlawful bombing, the hospital on
™uk, Tho Adjutant, Lioutenant KAMIKAWA was the staff officor at
tho hospitals Of and by virtuo of his position as Adjutant ho had
go command rosponsibility. Ho ocould omly ndviso and whenovor ho

sued ordors it bears o 4n the namo of tho commanding offdicor:
n this instance thero wos utonant KAMIKAWA sald no reason why
Captain IWANAMI should {nsist that tho orders for tho exocution
bo rolayced thru him or any of the othor officors nt the hospital

ngz7{ ) "
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ainco tho officors worc ngainst the cxocutions So Captain IWANAMI
arranged everything himself. Not until well after 2 o%elock

that aftornoon was the word passod to nssemblo on the hill back of
tho hospital, This ien't Aiffioult to understnnd bocause Captain
IWANAMI was an officor that ofton did thinge himsolf rather than go
thru tho rogular channels. If ho wanted somothing dome he would
order the first porson ho met to do it and so ho got things dome
without any dolays This wae and thore was 1ittlo time for delays.
8o with this cxecution Captain IWANAMI could not stop and dolay
until KAMIKAWA approved. It wasn't nocossary thot KAMIKAWA approvos
INANAME just didn't bothor with officers who didn't go along with
him, Ho wont ahoad with hds plans, Everyono know it ~nd yot fow
roally darod opposo him. KAMIKAWA was ono of the fow who didn't

say yos to evorything.

This samo characteristie of IWANAMI's to disrogard others
didn't go unnoticod bocauso OKUIAMA, NADATANI ond NAKAMURA carrdod on
nj:pnr!mntl without Captain IWANAMI's knowledge but more of this

tor.

nq, 78, You say you worc not on tho hill that afternoon
whon dho two Amcricans Woxo killed?
A, Yos, this is certains

nq, 79. You are certain that you did not arrango to get tho
Self-Defensc Soction up on tho hill that afternoon and practically
90% of the officors and practically 90% of tho enlisted men on the
hi11 that afternoon?

A Yos, I am cortein and thore werg figuros, 90% of offlcors
and onlistcd mon in the quostion and whot I moan ie that I did not hor
anything to do with the people assenb'ing on the hill, I was no%
at tho sceno, I can not say obout those figuros.”

ng, 81 Do you dony that you had a conversation with Captain
TANEDA at tho top of tho hill that aftornoon and that you tried to
roport to him that all preparations for exccution has boon made?"

Lioutonant KAMIKAWA gave o long answer in roply to this quosticn
but tho judge advoecato objocted to tho answor and most of it wos
strickon from tho rocords Finally KAMIKAWA answerod the question ac
the judgo advoeate wantod him to or ho could find no grounds for
objoction bocauso he allowod these words o gtand in the record:

"I dony ita"

"Q, 82, Do you deny that on the hill that aftornoon in July
you directod the tying up of the two prisoners on the eross=bar?
‘.. I d'ﬂ-w 1t.

"q, 834 DBo you deny that aftor Captain IWANAMI made his
speooh you passed the order on to Lieutonant OISHI to bogin
stabbing?

Ae Naturally, I deny ite

vq, 84 TANEDA, KIKUCHI, HAMADA, TLKAHASHI, OKAMURL, and
HAYASHI, all of those mon, all of thom inpﬂnﬂna and all of thom sorvinw
with you at tho hospital say you wore on tho hill that aftornoohs
How do you explain that 7 P
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KAMIKAWA gave a longthy answor and a very important state=
mont, I would like to quoto tho ontire answor bocauso I think
4¢ is most important., Howevor I shall only statoc the most
important part of tho answer knowing the commission will study
tho entire answor as it is written in tho records

KAMIKAWA said that according to prosccution witnessoe and
from what he had heard nearly everyonc wes thoro 8o it was
rolativoly oasily to stato that the adjutant was thore as 1t was a
prosunption that tho adjutant should have boon thore.

Sncond KAMIKAWA statod that cortnin porsons like Captain
TANEDA rro trying to ovado thelr rosponsibi Lity by tostifying that the
adjutaut was thore and as adjutant has a rosponsibility. TANEDA®s
tostimony is purc fobrication.

What I regrot most is that bocause KAMIKAWA was tho Adjutant
ho must have boen thero and they hnve so tostificd falsoly against mo.

Thon the judgo advoento quostioned KAMIKAWL as tc why
prosocution witnosscs had 1icd about hime

Ho askod this question on tho 24th day on eross=oxamination:
"ou have tostifiod dofinitoly thet tho tostimony of Captain TANEDA
is fnlso, Tell us now why KIKUCHI, HOMADA, TAKAHASHI, YAMAGISHI ,
and HAYASHI did nll toll 11cs nbout your participation in this
incidont,?"

KAMIKAWA tricd to honostly answor this quostion and said in

that thorc was a presumption thnt at such an assembly the adjut i
{s prosumod to be prosont and that both officors and onlistod man
plottod and schemod and docided among thomsclvos that the Amrriecan
invostigators woro to bo told thnt cortein peoplo wore involied.
Thoso schomers were all confircA and why thoy said these th.rz.
may in parv be nscritod to the hord 1ifo they wero subjectcd t9
having hcon in couf?r.omont sinca tho arristise now two full yecaz:i-

Qics:Aca by jadgl advoeatos Mo yea 1nsist that of *he sl
witnossce 7hizh wo navo produced . which tmo judgo advocotc hus
prcduced into ihis court and all of thom have identified jcu r3
boing on that 1ill that day, thore iesmn't a singlec ono of thom AT
has *0ld this commissiom tho truih?

L. At hecast all testimeny aorcerning that which porc ~int theb
mado rruraenticons for tho exocuticn cr Lthat I was at tho ~sd37ne

are all [ure cebrfcations.”

The two next quostions wero to the offoct if KAMIKATA didr*s
then who did? KAMIKAWA couldn't answor these two questions boenusc ba
'ﬁ.ﬂ.t theroe

Ono lnst quostion by tho judge atvocate: *Q, Thon, the on.y
thing thct you toll us is that six men havo lied about you and thod
you ne tho adjutant, dida't fulfi1l your dutics os adjutant that % -
1s that corrost?”
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| Our objoction to tho quostion was ovor ruled so KAMIKAWA answerod
the quostion, \

Answor: "As for the witnosses, they arc cloarly lying. As 1
gtatod bofore, tho duty of tho adjutant is to got by tho ordors of
tho hoad of tho hospitale The head of tho hospital did mot go
through tho adjutant at this timo, I do not know if tho adjutant
is rosponsiblo in such n caso, but I do fool rosponsiblo that such
an ineidont occurred at tho hospitael and that so many people aroc
sufforing by it."

Is this tostimony of KAMIKAWAts so difficult to bolieve? Wo
think not, Tho schomors who tostificd agoin it KAMIKAWA forgot two
things. Thoy nevor roalizod thai this casc sovld como to trial
as is tho Amorican wo¥a According to thoeir winrped way of thinking
thoy thought thoy worc to have tho last word and tho Amorieane would
punish tho porsons who thoy docldoed among themsclves should be
punishod, But aftor two yoars tho onso did como to trial and 1t
was to bo an Amordcan trial. Thoy would be roquirod to tostify
undor oath on tho ponalty of being punishod for porjury. But it
was too lato to turn back. Thoy had alroady writton statoments so
thoy wont on the witnose stand to tell their trumped up story.

Tt was only an oath by tho Amorieans Chrigtian'e God 8o thoy told
their storye. Then what happened to thom? Thoy wero subjocted
such a cross=oxamination as thoy had nover roalized would bo thoir
lot, Japanosc lawyers not skilled in dho Amoriecan art of
4 cross=oxamination but £111od with a dosiro to bring out tho trath
oven if it moant that Jopancse would be exposcd as liars triod ns
bost thoy could to brook down this folse tostimony but thoso
witnossos in most cnses woro too well proparod with thoir story. ’f
KAMYKAWA and cortain othor accuscd, all who took tho stond tostiriod
that those prosceution witnosscs had given falso tostimonys«

A1) mon have a conscionco and in tho casc of two witnossos.
ono NAKAMUR. who whilec st41l boing subjocted O eross=oxaminatior
committod suleido on a saturday atternoor so whon ho was dvo to
rosune the witioszs atend on Monday morning ho wns dead = a suielco
by his owr hend. Why'" Wno ean say?

Tacr. thore was IKEYA who wout out from the witneus zem) ot
tho stoci:ndo whoro ho was eonfinod and whon the marines famnd hir
ho too was dond, a suleido. But tho prosocution put hie signcd
statonont tuto crldoacos Well, it was as good as the tostimory cf
many of th> cticr prosccution witnossos. In the case of IKEL. .
who can ey Wi ho cormitted suleZde? In Amerion ther2 avo pro=
sumptions L thc caso of persons who comrit suicido. Tho mombo 8
of tho commiseion know full woll what thoso prosumptions. It 18 of
14ttlo aveil thot tho judgo advoeats soys, "Thoso suicidos woro
Japanesol" Wo oy that they woro, howevor, two of tho prosocuticn
witnossos and tio fact that o witross does commit sudeido while o
trinl is still in progross has much to do with tho erodibility or
puch sulcido wiincsscSe

It isn't onough to outnumbor witnoes and thoroby bocauso
the prosocution producos moro witnossos than the dofonsc can that
doeido tho issuo 7 Tou mombore of tho commission havo obsorved
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{ KAMIKAWA during this long trial and you saw and heard him on tho
witnoss stand, Thoe sshomors forgot that according to the Amoriean
neeusod would havo a chance to toll his story in court,

Not only KAM'KAWA hut othor witiessos tostifind ticy conid not
romombor FAMCKAWA was thorc. ALl witrncsses tostifiod as to tho
part OISHI ninyod 4r tho exocuticn thnt day, (f the edfrtant had a
duty ane tho 3udgo rdvoecate mairtains it snruld havo beon

KAMIKATA who should have rolayod tho orders cof Cantain IVANAMI to
tho onlistod stabbors and who should have aclocted those stabbere.
Did ho do 1¢? That is tho gront woakness in the story of theso
schomore., Why did UISHI do thesc things if FAMIKATA was there?

way tho

NC, FAICKAWA was no* thore anrd “or want of his tostlmony
ho made out ne if hc Aidn’t toar Soptain TTMAMI whon he gavo
orders to Captain TINTLA sc Cep’oin TUANWMI looked around and
gavo ordors to Lieutcnant UISHI. Poor Ljeutoraat OISHIl Fo
wasn't ae clover or rathor he is moro honost boecausc he has ade
mittod his part and Captoin TANEDA maintains his innocomcc at tho
oxponso of Licutcnart KAMIKAWA, tho adjutant, who wasn't oven at

tho scornas

Tot us hoar what Captain IWANAMI has to say as to whethor
KAMIKAU. mado tho plans or was at tho eoara, Jn the 27th d-y
Capteiu TTANLMT while on the witness stand he was asked thiy
questior: "Dut you ecre positivo you didn't ordor the adjutant o
do it this particular day?" He answered: "Yes, I am positive."

[
Cortainly Captain IWANAMI should know if he ordered
Lioutonant KAMIXAWA to nssemble the persons on the hill and suh |
othor ircidontels as woro nocossary in order to carry oub hls
plans for an cxocution of the two prisonors from the 41st Navel

Cuard thdt,

o, KIMIKAWA partieipatod in no way in thie ineident. Ho
wasn't ovon thores

Wo nok tho cormission %o f£ind thorafore as to KAMIK/WA,
Hydehirc, specificaiion 3 of Chargo I, not proved and the
accusod KAMIXiWA, Hidchiro, ie of tho chargo of muarder not gudliy
and tho comm'ssion doos thoroforc aequit the said KAMIKA™A ,
Hidohirn, of the specifiecation and of tho chnrge of murdor,

Ts.0 mombore of tho Paymaster Division wero by agroeront
of tho suspeec
boenuse 1% was agrood that it wos to bo a hospital inecidont and
gineco tho Paymastors group about sixtoon mon wore thore at tho
too must bo hold rosponsible and so the two sonior
cors of tho paymastor division havo beon tostified
against by thoir own shipmatos had mado an agroement and it wes

od that WAiTANABE and SAWADA must tako a certein rosponsibilitv,
Tho invostigntors bolievod the schemors and WATANABE, Mitsuo
although ho hnd been demobilisod and was living poacofully with
his family in Japan he was soized by tho American occupation
authoritics and sent to Guam on Novombor 16, 1946, Ho has alwnys

Eﬁ:wﬁmn'mmw
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maintained his immoconoce,

The dofenso procured WATANADE's division officor Warrant
Officor OTh, Soiichi, who tostificd that ho did not soe WATANAGE
stab and that he eould statc for cortein WATANLDE did not sinbe
(inswer to question #17 on tho 22nd day whon ' OTA tostifiod.)

. OTL also testifiod that SAWADA did not stab,

Quostion, "Then are you sure that SAVADA did not stab?®
Answor, ® I ap absolutoly sure that SAWADA did not stab."

WATANABE took tho stand on the 22rd cay of tho trial as a
witnoss in his own ochalf and tostified he had no part in tho
incidont.

Quostion #28: *Did you stab with a spoar that aftornoon?®
Answor, "I have nover touchod a spoar,"

Quostion £29: "Pid you stab tho prisonors with a bayonct?"
Anawor: "I did not have a riflo.”

Quostdon #30: "Did you stab borrowing a riflo from anoth:.
porson??
Answicr: "No,"

Quostion #31. "Did you eut at the hoad of tho prisonor with
a sword?"
Answor: "I aid mot havo a sword."

This tcstimony by WAT/NADE undor oath-cloarly proves ho diu no’
stab or cut with a sword, It is truc ho wos thore but so woro anLy
othors, all having bcon ordorod to bo prosont, Sinco thoy woro
mombors of a military organiszation thoy cortainly could not diso™ .

Docause WATANADE was tho senior potty offiecr of tho Payras*o
Division it wes deeidod by cortain of theso Japaneso who wero alc
prosont ot tho scono that WATANABE should bo held just as
repponsible ns the corpsmon who did the etabbing «

Without the slightest qualms of conseicnce these porsons ke
testifiod ngzainst WATANADE, It is for the commiseion to weign *o
evidence.

~ The samo five witnessos that testified thoy saw TANADE gtal
also tostified against WAT/ . TANADE you remembor was sick 1a
bod with dengue fover that day and yot these fivo witnosscs porjarcd
fhomsolvos and undor oath testificd thoy saw TANABD stab. And
so thoy anlso testified against WAT ANADE

Ono othor witnoss tostifiocd agninst WATANADE., On tho 12th
day tho prosccution prodused YAMAMOTO, Shuichi, He too had tostl:
fiod that ho saw TANABE at the scono armeds While on tho witnoss
stand tho juige adyoeato refroshod his memory: by showing him a

por and tho witnoss continuod his tostimomy. Ho too romemborod
KAMIKAW. coming up tho hill with IWANAMI whoroas overyono elso
mﬂing Coptain T/NEDA testifiod that it wasCaptain TANEDA who
eomo up tho hill that aftornoon with Captain IWANAMI, How 1ittlo
- wz222( n
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truth can be placod in such a witnoss is thus clearly pointod oute
Tho judgo advoecate asked YAMAMOTO this quostiont

"Qe 4le TWhat happened after OISHI gnve ordors to those
mon?

A, Tho stabbors who had no intent to kill could not
hold thoir positions and tho ranks bocamo confused, but no omo
loft tho ranks, Licutonant OISHI gave ordore to the first one in
the colums to stab."

This answor is typicnl of this witnoss. He was nlways
tostifying to what ho imaginod, giving his opinion and conclusion,
instond of tostifylng to what ho petunlly soaw or hoards

On tho 13th day he continuod tds tostimomy. Now of the
many mon who ho saw lincd up as stabbors ho could only say that ho
saw HOMMA, WATANADE, SAWADA and TANAKA stab.

pationts hc wns tronting in ordor to got in on this incidont.

It was more important for Mm to bo at the scono of an oxccutlr
than to tront his owm sick shipmatoss Lyttlo wondor then thel nc
tostifios ns ho Aoos ageinst porsons who wore not oven nt tnc
econo and ageinst mon of the paymastors division who did not g A

How uncortain and eonfusod this witnoss wns is shown by
quostion #138: "Was SAHADA tho only paymastor potty officor ir 153
1ino of stabbors?" Answor: #That is how I romombor it."

ng, 152, Did Warrant officor WATAN/DE have a spoar?
As I do not romomboTe "

"Q, 153, Did he havo a bayonot?
Ae I do not romomboT e

"Qe 154 Did Sn!lﬂﬂﬂ have o mmt?
A. I do not romcmbor,"

This witnoss ovon romombors as doos IKEYA tho suieide witncss
that Lioutonant OISHI was tho officer of the day at tho hospitio®
that day. Tn his onswor to quostion #177 YAMAMOTO says abou’
OISHI, "I rcmenber hie boing thoro with this bend stating ofZdcor
of the dﬂ' .- :

»Q, 180, Was OISHI woaring this arm band at the scono of
execution?
A, s I rocnll I think ho was woaring 1it."

I4ttlo if any of the tostimony oan be bolicved ospoeially
when wo consider that WAT.NABE took tho stand and omphatically d~=
mdod that ho stabbod that afternoons

Wo ask that the commiseion find as to WATANAIE, Mitsuo,
ation 3 of Charge I not provod and tho necusod WATANADE ,
M{tsuo, is of tho eharge of murdor not guilty and tho commission
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doos thoroforo sequit tho snid WATANABE, Mitsuo, of tho
spocification and of the chargo of murdore

84nco thore wore 35 or 36 mon in tho Paymastor Mvision
on duty at tho hospital that day in July of 1944, the schomors
doeidod that two sonior petty officors of this paymastor divisiocn
must pay tho ponalty for this incidont so thoy doeided that
ginoo SAWADL, Tsunoo, was moxt sonior to WATANADE, ho too was said
to havo stabbod, So SAWADL has boon hold in confinoment for
two yorrs hocnuso his formor shipmatos, KIKUCHI, Gorop TAKAHASHI ,
Masoyoshi and HASTGAWA, Masonao have all namod him as a stobbore
Tt is truo that three prosecution witnosses have also beon in
confinoment during those two years but sinco they agrood to tostify
egninst SAVADA they hovo only boon hold so far as witnossose Thoso
throo witnossos must not havo known that thoe Amorican way is to
n1low tho accused to tostify in his own bohalf,

SATILDA, Teunoo, took the stand as a witnoss in his own
behalf on the 23rd doy of this trials.

SAWADA tostified that ho was at tho hoad of the paymastors
Aivision at tho scenc but novor loft tho paymastors division
thnt aftornoon. (gquostions 22 = 26 inclusivo.)

"0, 30, Did you stab a prisoner with this rifle and bayonzt?
ﬂl HD..

»q, 31, Did you stab a prisoner with a spoar?
As Nos

vq, 32. Did you cut a prisoner with o sword?
Ls I have movor eut a prisonor with a sword."

SAFADA hns always meintainod his {nnoccnee and yot for two
yoars he hae boon confinod as a suspoet and is chargod with tho
murdor of two Amoricans. Ho was grently rolicved to know that ho
would bo nllowod to tostifyudn hie own bohalf and he did tostify
and donied that ho stabbod om cut tho prdachers that daye

Wo nsk that tho cormission find as to SAWADA, Tsunoo, _
gpocification 3 of Chargo I not proved and that the accusod SAV/D:,
Tsunoco, 1s of the chargo of murdor not guilty and tho commissior. vo9
ther foro noquit tho said SAVADL, Tgunoo, of tho spocifieation of
the chargoe of murdors '

NAMATAME, Kazuo, was anothor ‘porson who didn't stob but
novorsholoss ho was {ndintad, charged with the erimo of marders
fhat @4 ho do thatiho should bo charged with murdor ?

Ho took tho stand as w-itnoss in his own bohalf, He tostifierd
on the 3lst day of the triale On tho day of this incidont ho was
loading corpsman, Somoono ordored four or fivo corpsmon
to dig a hole and NAMATAME did as ho was ordorod to do, ho dug tho
holoe Thoy finishod Mgeing and a couplo of prisonors Woro led up

to tho hill @ T4 hedtegitho holo and porsons beogan to
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nssomblo. Somoono told MAMATAME to dig doopor and he and tho
othors dug doopor. Thon mon linod up to stab tho prisonors and
they did stab tho prisonors and aftor tho prisonors wore killed
they worc burdec in tho hole NAMATAME holpod dige That July 20,
1944. Tho war ended in August 1945 and in tho coursc of a fow
months NAMATAME was domobiliszed and sont homo to Japan., Soon,
howevor, ho was arrostod and thrown in prison and thon sent to
Guam whoro ho has been in confinoment ovor dnco. Ho has nlways
maintained his innoconeo and yot he was indicted and has beon joinod
with oightocn othors and is charged with tho murdor of thosc two
imorieans, back thore at tho hospital July 20, 1944.

Why? Boecouso the samo two siitnossos, TAKAHASHI and HAMADA ,
who tostificd they saw TANIDE stab nlthough TANABE was sick in bod
with dongwo fovor , and tostificd thoy saw SAW/DA and WATANABE stab
although thoy too didn't steb, and tostificdthoy also saw MURAL
stab although ho didn't, testificd thoy saw RAMATAME atabs

On tho 12th day of tho trial TAK:HASHI, Masayoshi, tostifiod
that YOSHIZLNL rustored 15 or 16 mon in front of tho administration
building and then YOSHIZAWA marchod thom up tho hill, But YOSHIZ, ..
said ho nevor did mustor any such group of mon,

TAKAHASHI furthor tostifiod he hoard YOSHIZAWA givo tho
ordor to stab, This too is elearly false tostimony. (Answer to
quostion #138,)

Thon ho tostifiod ho say NAMATAME standing in a 1lino
vorticlo to the two prisomors (Sec answor to quostion #22.)

In answor to quostion #34: "Can you Avo us tho namos of
thoso ton porsons?® (the porsons who stabhed, sec question #33.) ,
he cnswerod: "It is the samo as tho namos 1 gavo previously."

To quostion #100, "Will you repeat the names of the mon
that you know stabbod that day?

TAKAHASHI gave tho namo of Potty OfSicor NAMATAME.

On the 15th day HAMADL, Toshihisa, tostifiod Potty Officer
socond class NMATAME was in a line with other potiy officors (so¢
answor to queostion {l28,) To queetion #236 HIMADA said ho saw | TA LA
atab,

As ogninst this tostimony wo havo tho testimony of NAMAT/AME ,
Kaszuo, who tostificd on tho 31st day.

"Qs 25, Thon you did not ontor tho 1ino of stabbors? Is
that corroct?
Ae I absclutoly was not in tho 1ino of stabborss

"q, 26, Did you stab the prisonopd with a bayomot?
A fbsclutoly note

"q, 27. Did you stab him with a spoar?
As ‘Absolutoly not, *
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¥ho should know bottor whothor thoy stabbed or not that
day, two suspects, TAKLHLSHI and HAMADA who haro boon in confinc=
mont .sinco tho war, two yoars ago, OF NAMATAME who was roleasod,
domobilized and roturmed to Janan? NAMATIME is rathor to bo
bolioved than the two witnossos who havo givon mueh false tosti-
mw.

Wo nsk thoroforo that tho cormission find as to MAMATAME ,
Kasuo, spoeifiention 3 Chargo I, not proved and the accused
NAMATIME, Kasuo is of tho charge of mardor not guilty and tho
commission doos thoreforo nequit the soid NAMATAME, Kaguo, of the
spocifieation and of tho chargo of murdors

MUKAI, Yoshihisa, was also domobilizod but lator arrostod nnd
sont to Guam whoro hc has sinco voon in confinomont and in this
trial ho too is charged with tho murdor of thoso two prisonors,
MUKAT has always maintainod his {nnoconeo,

Against MUKAI wo havo two of thoso samo witncesos, TAKAHASHT
and HAYASHI, TAKAIASHI in tostifying on the 12th day of tho trin.
said ho saw MUKAI sald bho saw MUKAI standing in a 1lino vorticnlly
to tho prisonors (scc answor to quostion #22,)

To quostion {33 ho tostifiod:s "As I rocall I think it was
about ton porsons who 1 saw actunlly staby®

"Q, 34 Oaon you give us tho namos of thoso ton porsons?
Le It is tho samc as tho namos 1 geve proviowsly.®

"Q, 100, Will you ropoat tho namos of tho mon that you
know stabbod that day? "

In tho snswor ho included the namo of MUKAI, He eould not
howovor tostify as to what MUKAI or anyono olsc oxcopt HOMMA
stabbed with, His tostimony as o have proviously shown is vory
wonk and not all md:l.blo.

HAYASHI, Masaji, tostifiod on tho 13th day, Ho it was wlo
tostifiod ho Shought HOMMA end YOSHIZAWA tiod tho prisonovbs T+
shows thoso prosocution witnosscs tostify as to anything thoy dmarin
Ho tostifiod ho romembor MUKLI and throo othors standing in the

two 1inos facing tho prisonors, Ho further tostificd MUKAL hal A
spoar and was tho socond porson in the right row and ho saw hiu
stab, %

Tho crosseoxamination of HAYASHI commencod on tho 14th daye.

v, 69, Did YOSHIZAWA tie omo prisonor and HOMMA tio
the othor prisonor? .

Ae Mo, I thought thoy tied tho prisonors so I ropldod 1iko I
did yostorday."”

ind to question #70 ho answorod,"eese. 1 00D not say oxaetly
who tiod tho prisonors,®
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Ho furthor tostifiod OISHI had all tho onlistod mon
nur;nnhlo , 60 or 70 porsons yot no ono else tostifiod to this
offect,

nQ, 118, Why do you say that potty officors that eamo for=
ward 1ined up according to rank?

Ay Bogauso it was usual for tho potty officors and mon
of tho hospital to line up aceording to rark,"

So ho oxplained his tostimony, clearly not tostifying to what
ho saw or hoard bug giving opinions and conclusions basod on what
ho imagined pooplo did, How undopondablohls tostimony is furthor
shown by tho answor to quostion #127, Quostion #1271 "What woro thos
two or throo armod with? Answor, Whon I moan armed thoy woro
woaring working uniforms with puttcos wrappod around thelr
logss" Cortainly tho prosccution can not hopo to convict porsons
accusod of murdor on such tostigony.

Ho sald MUKAI did not havo a spoar oOF bayonot whon ho
stopped forward (sce quostion #1323 and doosn't romomtor who gavo
MUKAI n spoar or bayonet,

To quostion #138 ho romombors TANABE although TANABE was sick
4{n bod with dongwo fover, He also remembors MUKAI, I wondorl
Ho namoe sovon othors who ho tostifios "those I think 1inod up©.
Bvidontly tho oath ho took to toll the truth didn't improess
this witnose vory mush,

To quostion #166, "What did MUKAI stabd with?® ho answorod or
eross-oxaminations ¥It was with a bayonote® If in yostordays
tostimony I statod a spoar I would 14ko to chango it at this timo.”

toatifdod ihqdqhn{mhnnnhtuwmwnhow. Tids
utﬁom}‘l-mu‘-bmrm was sick with donguo

Howe $a a witnoss who can not ovon romombor what he

fovor and in Bod ot the hospital stab ho samo prisoner as
HOMMA stabbod hat with's epear in the stomachs No blood howevor
camp from the prd 0 .

As against such testimony we have tho tostimony of the
apoupod MUKAI, Yoshihisco, on tho st day, MUKAI is 34 yoars
pld and marriod, Ho was demobilisod and was 14ving in Japen with
his fandly when omo day ha was suddenly arrosted and trought to




L causo ho washft suro just llrhat Lioutonant OISHI sadd and bo=
:;d;l ho was outside the formation and bosauso ho didn't 1iko tho
olo ‘4don,

"Qe 354 You tostifiod that by ordor of Lioutonant OISHI
somo mon woro brought forward, Did you ontor this group or di“nit
you? '

Ls I did not entor this group of mon.

"Q. 36, Pid you or did jou hot stab a prisomer?
Ae I absolutoly did not stadb the prisonors, I can state
this boforo anyonoe

"Q. 37, Did you over hold a spoar or bayonot whilo you
wore on that hill?
‘As  Nog"

Thon tho judge adwoeate bogan hs cross=oxamination of MUKAT .

"Qs 54. Con you givo this commission any roason why
TAKAHASHI, HAYASHI, cnd HAMADA should tostify and say that thoy
saw you stab ono of thoso prisonors?

Ae Thoir tostimony 1e fnlso,"

Wo ask that the commission woigh tho ovidonco and find as
to MUKAI, Yoshihisa, spoeifieation 3 of GQharge I not proved and
the accusod MIYAL, Yoshihisa is of tho chargo of murdar nct grilty
\ and tko eomrisidon duvcs thoroefore ncscult the said MTEACL, Ycsalhdsa- |
of tho spocificaticn end of tiho ckargo of murdor,

Tho accusod KUWADARA, Hiryouki, has not ovon boon demobilizel
but ho has boon hold #n confinemont for two long yoars. VWhy?
Boocsuso two other suspocts = HASEGAWA, Masando, and HIMADA,
Toshihisn, havo sald that thoy saw him thorc in tho 1lino of
stabbers, On such flimey ovidoncc a porsor is hold in confinoment
for two yoars without being quoetioncd and is thon brought to
trial with cightcon othor porsons, All that KUW/.DBARA did was
go with anothor porson %o tho guntd unit and €wo prisconors wore
turncd ovor to thom, Sittdng guard ovor thom on the way back
KUWADARA and the other potty officor visitod with tho prisonors.
Thoy romoved the blindfolds from their cyos and gavo thom cig=
arotis to smc’w, Thoy brought the prisonors ‘o ihe hospital in
a truck and worc told to bring them to tho hlil, Thoy did.

KUWADARA had a rifle with him bosnuse he had boen dotailed as a
guard to holp bring tho prisonors from the gumrd unit, Many persone
worc armod on tho hill that aftorroor but sinee KUW.DARA was hold
a8 a suspoot two othor suspects decelced to tostify agninst him,

Wne nro those two witnogsos! ‘thoy are tho samo witncsses
who have given so much false tostimony against sovoral of tho other
acoused, Thoy are HASRGAWA, Masanmo, and HAMADA, Toshihisa,

On tho 13th day HASEGAWA testiffod that KUWAGBARA was in tho
line of stabbors (em answor %o quostion #28 which is basod on
quostion #27,) Quostion #2¥: "Aro thore any othors who aro hore
prosont in eourt today that wore in thobo two 1lines? Look at thoso
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"q, 28. Who olso?
Le Captain IWANAMI, Licutonant Commondor KAMIKAWA, Lioutenant
0ISHI, Ensign YOSHIZAWA, « The rost I do not romombors

"Tho quostion was ropented to the witnoss.
A, Also thoro wns Corpeman Chief Potty Officor m:.ﬁm.'

This witnoss statod ho did not romeombor scoing KUWABARA stab,
Ho was not ono of thom (8ec answor to quostions sl, 42, and 43.)

.. on cross-examination this witnoss stotod why ho sal? cortaln
persons woro in tho 1ino of stabborse

nQ, 96, You statod tho namocs of porsons who worc in tho
14nos. Do you know that thoy woro in the lince?

A I just gavo tho namos of porsons whom I have in my
rocollootione®

0f what offoct ie an onth %o guch a witnoss whon ho admits ho
just rattlos off "namos of porsons whom I have in my reecolloction.”?

On tho 15th day HAMADA, Toshihisa, tostifiod in mach tho samo
mANDOT »

Ho could only remcmbor WO officors on the hill that aftor=
noon, Captain TANAME and Licutonant OISHI but could romombor 13
names as TANADE and sald ho was in %ho 1lino of stabbers. TANADE
you remenber was aisk in o hospital bod with dengue fovors

Ho namod KOWADARA boing in this 1lino.
To question #2386 ho answorod ho saw KUWABARA gtabs

Yot ho A4id not soc any blood on tho spear cr bayonote
of tho stabbors (Soc answer to quostion #239)

On such tostimony is KUWABARA indieted and charged with
mrdor and tho judgo advocate oxpocts you mombers of tho commiasion
to convict KUTADARA of murdors

KUWADARA took tho witnoss ‘stand on $he 32nd days His %oBtl=
mony was Airoct and to tho point,

"q, 17. Didn't you entor tho column of gtabbers?
LAs No,

nq, 18, Didn't you stab tho prisonors?
h. ID..

", 52, How many.mon wero in tho stabbors line?
Le As I remombor = oight or ton. ;

"Qe 73. Wore you one of them?
Ae Woo"

llnatq-d.: questions wero asked EUWADARA whilo he was on the
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\ witnoss stand. Tho fudge advocato attemptod to quostion KUWADARA
on a statement which he was askod to sign by tho investigators
tho day after ho was served with tho charges and spocifications,
(Seo quostion #47.)

Tho jndge advoeate introduced irto evidonco a etatemont
whish was p aported to have been sfzncd by TKEYA, Kyolchl, some
timo ip loy 1947 IKEYA was askod to sign 1t ugalin on July 1,
1947. Ho was mado to add this statomen® oa Juiy 1, 1947t "I swoar
tho contonts of the above stetcomont e Sruse”

Ko porson administorad an ocath to TKEXl.

On tho 15th day tiaw prcsncution trled to prove the doatn
of TKLYA, Kycdchi, "who was oa Himortan’ witnuss", (Sov auswor
to quostion #12.)

1KEYA, Kyodishd, wac said to have dled a suleide on July z,
1947, o fow hours aftcr he signed this statomont,

) board of irvostigntion was comvenod to imnvestignto "the
eircunstancog of his doa=h", (Sece answor to quostion 4J

In viow of his suicide which called for a board of
investigntion hde statomont that KUWADARA was in the column of
potty officors ecan have no welght or boaring notwithstanding tho
' fact that tho judgo advoeato folt ho must introduce this statomen
which 1= in tho naturc of a deposition and thorefore limits I
the punishmort to to inflicted to not more than ore yoar imprdsons
mont in accordancs with Section 454 of Neval Courts and Borrde.

This statoment signod tho sceond timo by IKEYA just o
fow hours beforo ho committod suieide can in no woy influonco
tho firding in the caso of KUWADARA or any of tho othor porsons

that IKEY/ montionse

In viow of XUW.BARA's continued stand maintaining all
during his two yocars confinoment that he is innocent, the vory
f1imsy tostimony of only two witnossos and tho testimony which
KUWADARA gavo ns a witness in his own bohalf wo ask that tho
cormission find as to KUWADARA, Hiroyuki, spocification 3 of charge
I not proved and the accusod KUWADARA, Hiroyuki, is of tho chargc
of mardor not guilty and the commission docs thercfore acquit
the said KUVLDARA, Hiroyuki, of the specification and of tho
charge of murdor,

In tho caso of KAWASHIMA, Tatsusaburo, TLNAKA, Tokunosulo,
AKABORI, Toichiro, “TSIMSUI, Msaburo, TAKAISHI, Susumi, MITSUH/LEHI,
Kichigoru. .31 theso persoms werc sa'd by IKEYA, Kyoichi, who
comnmittad sulcide bofore the proscetition called him as a witnoss cna
yot introduced a statoment, which ho signed only a few hours beforo
he loft tho stockade and wont out into the junglo to commit sulcido.
into ovidenco, Wo objeetod to this statemont being rocoived into
ovidonoo but wero over ruled . We partioularly ccll tho commission’s
attontion to the type of evidence which the prosocution has had to
rosort to in order to even make any kind of a showing against
theso aceused,
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Japanese counsel h a vo pointed out tho lack of evidonce

ngainst tho above nocused so I will not go further into this phaso

of the trial,

1 only want to call the commigsion's attention to how littlo
ovidonco was presonted against tho anbove acocusod, There wrs somd
ovideneo that theae accused wore at tho scone but so were all tho
prosecutlon witnosses. And all thc prosec'ttion witnosses have
been in custody since the cessation of hostilitics now for two
Yyears.

AKADORI, Toiehiro, and MITSUHASHI, Kichigoro, were both
domobildized, Is it to be supnosed that such persecna aro gullty
beeause cortein other persons who Wero themselves ordered to bo
at the sscnc and who have boen held In custody for two yoars
have soon fit to tostify ageinst these more unt'ortunate pereong,

Those nccusod are not simply charged with boing at the
acone bub thoy arc actually eharged with having "each and ‘o=
QOLhET see.ey Wilfully, folondously, with premediatation, and
mnlice aforethought, and without justifiablo causc, assault,
strike, and kill, by bayoncting with fixed bayonots, spoaring
with spoars, and bohonding with gwords, two Amorican prisoners
of wor."

No witnoss was ablo to definitoly say that any of tho
above spearcd or that ho bayonoted or did so o both of tho
prisonors, 411 tho witnosscs could say wae to the of foet that
thoy just know thoso porsons woro in the 1ino of stabbers and thni
thoy were sxre they gtabbed, What did they stab with? Thaoy

couldntt say. Did these witnessos see blood on tho woapons of

the stabbors? No, thoy couldn't even testify as to this.

What thon ecould thoy say as %o intent. Some tried to got
into evidenco thoir opinions that the persons they tostified
against roally d4dn't have tho intont to even kill, Any such
opinions wero objested to nnd wore atrickon from the record but
the very fact that prosecution witnosses would even expross
guch opinions is worthy of noto as to tho weight to be given
tholr tostimonye

Wo ask thercfore that tho commission find as to KAWASHIMA,
Tatsusaburo; TANAKA, Tokunosuko; AKABORI, Toichiroj TSUTSUI ,
Kisaburoj TAKAISHI, Susumuj and MITSUHASHI, Kichigoro specification
3 of Charge I not prowved and that thoso accused KAVASHIMA,
Pstsusaburoj TANAKA,Tokunosuko; AKABORT, Toichiro; TSUTSUI,
Kisaburo; TAKAISHI, Susumij and MITSUHASHI, Kichigoroj arc of
tho charge of murder not guilty and tho comission docs thero~
foro ncquit the said KAFASHIMA, Tatsusaburoj TANAKA, Tokunosukoj
AKADORI, Toichiro; TSUTSUI, Kisaburo; TAKAISHI, Susumuj and
MITSUH.SHI, Kichigoro of the spocification and of the chargo of
murdors

Swurgoon Captain IWANAMY, Hiroshi, is nlso charged with
the murder of thoso two American prisonors of war on July 20,
1944, under spocification 3 of charge I, Captain IWANAMI is
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charged with assaulting striking and killing by bayoneting with
fixod bayoncts, spoaring with spoars and by beheading with swords,
two American prisoners of war,.

Undor spocifiention 4 of Charge II Captain IVANAMI is charged
with disrogarding and failing to dischargo hie duty as Commanding
Officor pf Fourth Fleot Hospital to control tho oporation of sovon=
toon of those necuscd and other porsons unknown permitting thom to
strike unlawfully, assault, and kill, anl cause to be killaod, by
bayonoting with fixed bayonots and spoaring with spesrs, and by bo-
hoading with swords, two Amorican prisonors of war.

In spocificntion 5 of Charge II ho is agein chargod with
unlawfully disrogarding and failing to dischargo his duty ns
Comnanding Officor of Fourth Floot Hospital to take such monsures
as werc within his powor and appropriate in tho circumstancos to
protoct two Amorican prisoners of war, in that he permitted the
unlawful killing with bayoncts, spoars, and swords, by membors of
his cormand and porsons subject to hie control and supervision, two
Amorican prisonors of war,

A1l threc spocifications arc founded wpon the same incident.
From reading thoso specifications it is difficult to dotormine just
what IWANAMI did do.

CMO 1932 holda that "nogligenco and wilfulnoss are tho
oppositos of each othors Thoy indicate radically diffoeront mental
states."

Tho samo distinction botwecn mogligence and wilfulnoss was maco
by the U8, Circuit Court of Appeals, Sovonth Circuit (64 Fod 823),
whore the court held that:

"Nozligonce is nogative in its nature, implying tho omission
of duty, and excludes tho idom of wilfulnoss, Wilfulness or
intentional injury implics positive and agrossive conduct and not
moro nogligont omission of duty." .

Also see 135 Fod T4; 89 Feds 3743 173 Fed 431,

Tho words "wilfully and kmowingly" camnot bo rojected as
surplusnge in tho above specification. 4n indictment which ie
ropugnant in a matorial part is altogother bad (Clark's Criminal
Procodtre, pago 171}, It has boen hold (see 24 S.W, 1015) that an
indictmont i1s bad wvhich charges that the defendant "wilfully and with
culpablo nogligonee did kill¥, In that caso the court, affirming a
judgment quashing the indictmont, sald:

*If tho killing was "wilful® as charged in tho indictmont, thon
4t could not have boen an aecidomtal, or by “eulpablo negligenco". The
torme aro inconsistent as thoy cannot both bo true, If tho killing
wad by culpablo mogligenee, then it is not intentional."”

Tho evidenco shows that both of the charges; spocification
4 of Chargo I and epocifieations 4 and 5 of Chargé II aro based on
the samo act and they aro drawn to prowide for tho exigencies of

proofs
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1If the court considers Captain IWANAMI guilty of specification 3 of
Charge I it must then aequit him of specifications 4 and 5 of Charge II
or vice versas

See C.M.Os 21932 pe 11 (File: MM Dreland, Bucldd W/A17=20 (311208),
Jan, 2, 1932, approved Peb. 1, 1932.) :

C.M.0e 1-1930 pe 12 clearly shows that in case of multiplicity of
charges and specifications that the findings on e charge and the
specifications thereunder are set aside. In that case it was held:

€jocused was tried and eonvicted inter alla of *Scandalous conduct
tending to the destruction of good morals," (embeszlement) and 'Thef%%s
These two charges were based upon the same ciroumstances and were 80
drawn t0 provide for the exigencies of proof. 4As the evidence adduced
at the trial clearly (pe 12) established the fact that the offense
committed was embeszlement and not theft, the findings on the latter
charge and specification thereunder were set aside.” (File: MM = Reader,
Howard / A17-20 (290918) Jan. 27, 1930)

o Sec Also CoM.Os 31930 Filo M = Cates, Lorwin /A17-21 (300308) March &
2. ¥

In C.M.Oy 4=1925 = ps 2 "Inasmuch as the offense Of theft includes
the conversion of the property alloged to have beon stolen as oxpressed
in the specification of Charge I by the use of the words "and did thon
and thore appropriate tho same to his own use," 1t is apparent that the
specification of Charge II allegos morely & constituent element of the
of fonse of theft sot out in the specification Charge I.

The J.A.Ge went further in this ecaso and wo contimue to road:

"In viow of the forogoing the finding of the court ¢n Charge II
and the spocification ther undor is sot asides " (Filo: 26262 - 11603
AJG+CoM, Rocs Noo 62522 .ﬂ.pril B' 1925,

This we hold to be most important and-yot tho judge advocate d4d not
include thie in his momorandum to tho Prosjdent, M1itary Commission,
Commander Marianas dated September 27, 1940+

Instead in his memoandum in that case the judge advocate saids

"The only duty to which the commissfon can bo held is to weigh the
evidenco prosentod to detormine the faots and %o apply tho law to those
facts to reach ite findings of guilty or not guilty."

Where do we ask is thero any such limitation on this commiseion or on
any law court in theso United States of Americas

Why would the J.A.Ge set aside tho findings of the court Af it
had dono ite duty? No, the court, this commssion has a further duty.

*222(75) *
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Thie is the samo commission as tried tho TACHIDANA case glthough
{ :::: mnhgrl are changod, What did the J.A.Ge Navy Department say in \
caso

In C,M.,0, 1-1939, ps 14 in the casc of multiplicity of charges and
specifications it was hold: "Held that whon tho specification of one
chargoe alleges meroly a constituont olement of the offense set forth

undor another charge gnd thore is a finding of guilty on both, 1t is $ho
duty of tho conmvening authority to disapprove the finding on tho loss
sorious chargo upon his taking action in tho caso citing C.M.0. 4-1925,
ppe 21, 22, Thorofore, the findings on Chargo II and on the first
?ocl.ﬁutiun of Chargo III wero sot asido., (Filo MM-Lofka, John Je
A17-20 (390206), Apr, 8 and 27, 1939).

Thon therc follows n stetoment of Policy of Navy Departmont which wo
note the judgo advocato did not include in his momorandum to the
Prosidont, M1itary Commission, Gommandor Marianas, Lioutenant Gonoral
TACHIBANA, ot al case, I continuo to road from C.M.O. 11939 "Bplicy
of Navy Dopartment = where an accuscd was convicted of Eleaving his
station bofore boing rogularly rolioved" and als® of the loss sorious
charge, "Negloct of Duty," hoth affenses boing hascd upon the samo act
and no aggravating circumstancos boing sot farth undor tho sccond chargo
to distinguish it from tho first, tho procoodings and findings on tho
lattor charge and spceification thercunder wero gsot aside, Romarked
that, while thorc is no ruloe of law which prohitdts making idontical facts
and cireumstancos the basis of moro than one chargo, it has long beon the
policy not to do this whon tho offenso fells oloarly within tho dofine

z ition of a specific articlo of tho Articles for tho Governmont of tho
Navy and thoro aro no aggravating circumstances to ho sot forth undor
ono charge that will distinguish it from the other, (Filo: MM= Frey !
Roinhold /K17-20 (390203), pril 6, and 26, 1939) citing CuMaOs 10-1926,
p. 8; 81927, p. 6; 11937, pb, and soc 457, Naval Courts and Boards.

C.M,0, 10~1926 p. 8 holds: "As a mattor of policy the uso of two
or moro chargos is not approvod whoro tho idontical facts a.® mado the
basie of both, and whoro there aroc no aggravating ciroumstancos set forth
undor ono chargo which distinguish it from the other (Scc 188 Navel
Courts and Doards.)

In C.M.0, 8-1927 p. 6 the policy of tho Navy Departmont is again reiter
atod, we read: "The Navy Dopartmont's instructions mercly moan thay as a
mattor of policy tho rulo which permits such duplication of charge is not
availeblo of whon tho offense falls quito clearly within the definition
of a spocific articlo, where thero are no aggravating circumstancos
distinguishing it from the ordinary caseo contomplated by euch articlo,
and whoro there is no necessity to resort to multiplicity or plurality
of chargos."

Pilo: Mie.... AY7=20 (270527) G.C.M. Rec No. 67447, August 2, 1927) .
Tho socusod IWANAMI took tho stand as a witness in his own behalfl

on the 24th day and was on the witness stand the 25th, 26th 27th and
28th day of the trial,

Surgoon Cnptain IWANAMI has been a modical officor in the Japanosc
nqmummmmmmnmtmuhmha-
most l-nuuhlquudthlnquam1 officer, He came to the
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Truk hospital in Novembor 1943 and by his wntiring offorts he built
1 this hospital up to whero it was possible to take care of the evor
mounting numbor of Japaneso casualitios, However, the American Navy {
1n19uhmughtunnrtotnknndlnm sourse of tho bombing
the Navy hospital at Truk was bombod, This was most unfortunate
particularly for two American aviators namos unknown, After a
severe Truk, July 12, 1944, during which time the
Pourth Naval Hospitel gt Dublon was badly damaged (see answor to
question #100 to 106, Smericans wore captured and soq§ were
turned over to the 4lst Naval Guard Undt.

On tho witness stand Captain IWANAMI was asked question #1001
"How did you come to exeeuteo these prisoners? AnswoT. Two days
before the oxecution the head modical officor of the Naval Guard
Undt camo to tho hospital, the hoad modical officer sald, "At tho
Naval Guard Unit thero aroc two Americans, airmen prisonors, who
are going to be oxocuted," Aftor saylng this Qommander UENO wont
homo e Ithnughtlfthn{hurdﬂ:ﬂth going to exasouto them they
should be emoutod at this hospital which they had pombod many times .
ospodially thoso two prisoners, as the hoepital was bombed on the
twolfth of July, I thought thore was no mistako that those wgre tho
onos who had bombed the hospital as it had alrcady been seven or
oight days after the bombing I thought all proeeduro concerning
tho prisoncrs wae OVers As tho Guard Unit 1s going to executo them
1 thought thoy should be exocuted at the hospital for their bombing
tho hospital with cloar markings. I let the men know about it,
persons who did such barbarie actions should he ki{lled and also
1t was mocossary to protoct tho meaning of theso markings and also %o
\ pacify the spirits of tho pationts who had died from the bombing

and also as o warning against bombing tho hospital. I thought

it appropriate to oxooute thom at the hospital," |

To question 107 as to what feeling IWANAMI had toward the
enemy who bombed the hospital IFANAMI gave & long answer. Among
othor things ho said: "I thought America who stressed ite

righh;ﬂmu and humanism that the world of this day was a black
ond e

Captain IVANAMI talkod .about what ho had heard from Commandor
UENO that thoro wore prisonors to be exooutod at tho Guard Unit
(Sco question 7108 - 118 inclusive and the answers thoroto.)

Captain IWANAMI continued to tostify again that aftorneon of
the 25th day Twosday, July 29 1947, It was suddonly discovered
that one of tho accused was lining so the Commission adjowrnod.

The following day Captain IWANAMT continuod his testimony.
Kntuldn‘buutthohoknfammtm oxecution to question
{144 ho answored:

I gavo up tho idea of having tho Self-Dofense Section do ite
I thought thoy would not be any holp. I also thought I would
do evorything muself so 1kod to tho Executivo Officer of the
Guard Unit and on the othor hand I

the prisonors at tho Guard Undt, I
M1l enlargod, I orderod this to a
not toll him why."
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Captein IWANAMI ordered a genoral assembly about 3 ofcloeck
that aftornoon, When tho persons had assomblod in the hill
Captain IWANAMI togother wont Captain TANEDA wont %o tho soens.

Captain ITANAMI imediately took charge of things himselfs
In a fiery speoch to the assemblod persons (820 answor to question
#173) Captain IWANAMI as a result of long drilling of the hospital
personnel simply used upon them the powor of suggestion. Some
people call it hypnosis. I agree that it was hypnosis used in
m-wtwnbﬂpmmnmhnﬂﬂmwpmﬂﬂ
was himself hypnotized.

Captain IVANAMI was the most susceptible of all the persons
assembled there on tne hill that aftorncon, Since 1923 he had
beeon in the Japanese Navy, as o doctor it is ‘1ue yot always
exposed to the suggestlons of the militarists, Can anyone say it
made no differences Captain IWANAMI has two brothers, all doctors
but none of thom in the Navy. Thoy are a1l still working at the Job
of saving the life of people whereas their trothée  Captain TWANAMI
Hiroshi, is here on trial for his 1ife, a docior, woll oducated and
highly skilled, charged with murdor.

So when the Naval Guard Unit of ferred the suggestimn of an
exeoution of the two prisoners who had bombed the hospital he just
couldn't rosist . Listen to his speoch that he made that day and
you would have known he pasnit himself, It is diffieult to realiszo
that this quiet, 1little man, he only woights 80 pounds, ‘eould
ever get so out of his mind as to arrange for an exooution of two
prisoners at a hospital.

To question #173: "What kind of a speech did you mako?®

He answered: "I do not remember oxactly what I said at this timo and

cannot say exactly but I was very axcited and I stated generally
as follows: 'As you know the hospital is far awoy fyom any military
{nstallations but tho Ameriecan air force has bombed it many times,
Myouullhwwtondmngufnurmﬁmmmmwa.
Amorica who preachos righteousness and humandsy of eommitting
brutal atrocious acts on tho Japanose soldiors and officers on
Saipany this is somothing God or man can not allow, They have

This certainly doosn't sound 1ike the voice of a murderecrs
It is rathor tho axocutioner trying hard to reconcile himself to
the jnh-hiehilmt.atuutohhnﬂmmajnh-hiuhuutbo
dones "In place of God weo aro going to punish thom."
ﬂunnnarthtﬂupmmmmmm'hnh spoke these
words.

Superior orders "are a defense, The fact that the accused
sincerely and honestly believes that he is doing the right thing
proves “oyond a roasonable doubt that he lacks the criminal inmtent
tooo-llumuh-rm. m-muinmutmnf
"guperior ordors.” 7o 11lustratc our point read agein what BOMMA
paid about orders. .
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emanate from tho Emperor, Alla:ﬂaﬂmthmghttubalarm

and must be carriod out without question, And how did the Japanese
people fecl about the Emperor in 1944, The Emperor was a God.

As a God the Emperor could of course do no Wrong and thercfore
mordarmuldbaawthlmbuthwrul.

But tho Japaneso also believe in Pudda. Heaven too is some=
thing supernatural, Thore is a God other than the Emperor beeauso
the Emperor is tho "Son of Heaven", Many of the Japanese have been
to Christian schools, Some Japanesc aro Chrintians,

TVANAMI has beon to Christian schools. lio knows of the Christiaa
Gods So it is our C wistian God whom ho refors to whon in his’
spooch to the personncl assembled on the hill ihat aftornoon
he said: "As you know our hospital is far away from any military

timos. As you all know ten days ago four 250 kilogram bombs were
dropped.” "America who preachos rightoousnoss and humanity is
cormitting brutal atrotious acts on tho Japancse soldiers and
officers on Salpan, Thie is somothing od or man can not allow.
Thoy have violated the sacred Rod Gross. In place of God, wo are
going to punish thom,"

Arrogoent was ho, you say? T ask you how can wo understand this
doctor? He know of Amoriqa, "America whd proaches righteousness
and humandty®, Ho also kmow the Christian Godes Now, ho,
IWANAMI, Hiroshi, A surgeon captain, Imperial Japanose Navy is going |
to punieh two American prisorors "in place of God".

Marder is unlawful killing of a human boing with maliece
aforethought.

I say to you that IVANAMI had never the motive or the malice or
the eriminal intont to commit murder, He did not commlt murder
thﬁt w- " "

How are you to punish this doctor for this erime if you find
1t was o erime? Is Copital punis ment tho answer, "In the United
$tates we rogard overy offender as an individusl, His assets and
1iabilitics are studied and a program is planned to meke the most
of hie abilitios, develop new Ones, curb his bad habits, and
gradually restore him to a useful and law-abiding place in society-"
Should this-bo the case for IWANAMI, Hiroshi? Citing p. 38 "What sba'.
be done with War Oriminals ¥ar Departmont Educayion Manual EM 13}.

You the members of the commission mst decide from the evidenco
just to what oxtent Coptain TWANAMI is guilty as he is charged under
specifieation 3 of Charge 1. Bpocifications 4 and 5 of Charge II
are tho same offemso described in different words, a multaplicity of

find Captain IWANAMI guilty of

‘m-muwthu:zwpouqmmehm
© epmmot
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These are Japanese, Only psychiatric clinics will ever be
able to learn what made Captain IVANAMI carry out this execution.

Oaptain IVANAMI had tho soflod clothes removed from the
prisoners bofore their bodles were vuried, Water was sprinkled on
the mound of earth above where they wore taried. All porsons were
ordored to bow their hoads in preyer for thoso two lAmericans now
doad, victime of what we say was an 41legal oxecution, You,
members of tho commission must deeide if Captain IWANAMI is guilty
of mmdor as he is charged under specification 3 of Charge I or
whother ho is only guilty of failing to diseharge his duty as
set forth in specifisation 4 of Tharge I, or ralling to discharge
his duty as set fortn in specification 5 of Cnargoe Iie

No proof has hoen offered by the judge advoeato to show
what tho duties of the Commanding Officer of Ath Naval Hospital ,
Truk were in July 1944 so this proocludes the commission's finding
Captain INVANAMI guilty of either specification 4 or 5 of Charge II.

WE ask that tho commission find as to TANAMI, Hiroshd, specifi-
cations 4 & 5 of Charge II not proved and the accused IWANAMI,
Hiroshi, is of the second charge as rogards specifications 4 and
5 not guilty and tho commission doos theroforo aoquit &he said
IWANAMI, Hircshi, of spocifications 4 and 5 of Chargo JI and of the
charge of noglect of duty in violation of the law and customs of
wars

|

Dofore you can find IVWANAMI guilty of murder you must consider
not only the evidence hut the way IVANAMI thought that day as a
rosult of his boing a Japancso and having boen trained in the Jap~
anese Navy. Can it bo said ho had tho eriminal intent to eommit
common law murdor as he 1s charged undor spocification 3 of Charge i
and which is said to be in violation of the law and customs of war,

Logally the ovidenco doos not supnort the charge, Te have als»
pointed out that the statute of 1imitation has run in this case as 1%
portains not only to IVANAMI, Hiroshi, but as to all ninotoen of

the acocusod.

F,nally becauso tho judge advocate found it nocessary,.in

ordor to prove certain acte particularly acts alleged in specificaticr
3 of Charge I to put into ovidence tho statoment of IKEYA who
dommittod suldlde.

"Tho torm 'doposition' is somotimos uscd in a troad sense to
deseribo any written statanont vorifiod by ocath citing State v.
mﬂ B Nl:l L' ‘9' ,3' M'. M‘ m.‘

16 Anm, Jr, F-LMI

*Tho practice of introducing or securing evidonco by dopositions
takon in advanco of the trial was unknown to the common law, and the
%o do 80 in actions at law is dopendont upon statutory pro=

visions thorefor, citing Nundor v. Goorgia, 18 9. U.8. 59
46 Lode 3’1’“ 8.0 2243 Poople v, Tumor, m, ﬂ? mﬁ’b}lizi
zﬁ: %1 ,'MB&M?.MZ&SJ.L. 21 »

Bxoopt porhaps, in tho case of lottors rogatory." 16 Am. Jre
Ps 700, "tho right to take depositions is governed, _ord!l.nuri'.lr

w2 2{80) "




by the laws of the jurisdiction in tho courts of which they are
proposed to be used, eiting Hanks Dental Asso. v. Artanational
Tﬂﬂth Crown Bu, 19%' U.S- 303 }bﬂ L. ﬂd. ”' u S.Ct, 'TCO.

So tho right to take depositions for use in the Federal

Courts is poverned by the rules and regulations promulgated under

the authority of tho Federal Governmont, citing Ibid; Exparte Tisk,
113 0.8, 713, 28 L, ed, 1117, 5 Se.Cts T24; King ve Fﬂﬂh’.nﬂtﬂﬂ.
10-‘ U.S' “i ﬁ Ll Ed- 652. Am, iTl‘. P Tm —| ?01-

With rospect to the takine end use of dopositions in oriminal
cnsos, as distinction is to he notdoed, at the outset, botween
tho right to tako tostimony by deposition in advanco of the trial
for uso upon the trial, which right doos not oxist undor common
law rulos of precedurc and is thorefore depondant upon statutory
provision theroforc,citing Mindor v. Georgla, 183, U.S. 559
?6 Li Fd. 3ﬂ| 22 S.Gt. m’ - Lmnharg Vs U-S-

c.co.0e 4th) 45F, (2d) 497, and many othor casos .

A trial court's authority to pormit dopositions of non-rosiden=
witnossos to bo takon in criminal cases is derivod from statuto.
Noithor the dof. nor tho state is roquired to conscnt to the taking
of dopositions in criminal cases in any mannor ¢ther than preo=
seribod hy statute. Dlanchard v, State, 21 Okla Crim, Rop. 263,

207, P, 96, 27 AJL.R, 1032,

16 Am, Jr, P 704.

"Pho validity of statutos authorizing the taking and uso of
dopositions in criminal cases has hoon challenged upon various
constitutional grounds, citing Annotation; 90 AJLeRe ¥77; Ann, Cas.

1916 A1091.
164 Ao Jure pe T04.

Such statomont although not tochnically a doposition as
dofinod in Soction 211 Naval Courts and Doards is for purposocs of
Soction 454, Naval Courts and Doards, a doposition and thoreforo
tho maximum punishment which may bo imposed upon Captain IWANAMI
is confinomont for ono year, "In any case whoro a deposition
is usod in ovidoneo hy tho prosaccution by roason of the fact that
oral tostimony camnot he obtained as god by article 68, A.G.l:
tho maximum punishmont which may bo imposcd ghall not oxtend to
doath or to imprisonmont or confinomont for more than one year,"

Wo say tho evidenoce doos not prove murder on the part of
IWANAMI booause in answor to quostion #206: he tostifiod:"esesss
at the time of this act I thought it wos righty I was also undor
the influcneo of war pavehnlogy."

Specification 1 of Charge I and spocification 1 of Charge II
tho same idontical incidont and alloge tho samo circumstances.
wo havo pointod out this is against the Navy policy and the use
two or moro charges is not approvod where tho idontical facts
mado the basis of both and where no aggravating circumstancos
got forth undar one chargo which distinguishes 1t from the
r chargo, Tho many C.M.Os odtod proviously all so hold,

I.,zmn/r’o.nummn. Ny
/JAMES P, KENNY '-

[/ 1deutenant, U.." Navy, [
Judge Adoveate. “\
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Tho commission must docide from Sho evideonoe whother ITANAMI
i¢ guilty wndor Chargo I or Chargo 11, He eannot bo guilty under
both chargos boecauso the jdontieal facts arc tho basis of both
chargoes, :

Tho only witnoss who tostified agninst Captain IWANAMI
as to spocification 1 of Charge T and gavo any diroct testimony
was NAKAMURA, Shigoyoshi. FHe was supposcd to havo beon the star
witnoss but aftor tostifying for tho prosccution and part way through
tho cross=oxamination NAKAMURA committod suieide, Saturdny aftore
noon, Junc 28, 1947. Undor such eiroumstancos we hold his entire
tostimony should bo oxpunged from the rocord. Tho court held
otherwise so we will consider his testimony and hie conduct and
“ohavior on the witness stand as in contrast to tho testimony of
Captain IVANAMI and SAKAGIMI.

Lioutenant NAKAMURA was not assigned to duty at the Truk
hospital but while rocuperating from sickness as he was ordored to
study up on surgery (sco answer to quostion #13.)

"Q, l4. Did you study under any particular doctor?
A. 1 roceivod the toachings of Commandor OKUYAMA.®

Commandor OKUYAMA is the co=-defendant nomed in specifications
1 and 2 of Charge I. Ho it was so NAKAMURA testifiod conducted
oxporiments on the Amorican prisonora, OKUYAMA 1s also a co=
dofendant namod in spoeification 6 of Charge 1I, The judge advoca’o
statos OKUYAMA is donde Vo questiondd tho proof of his death but
the foct is tho judgo advoeate hasn't brought him to trinl. NAKA
MURA's tostimomy shows tho charactor of this Commander OKUYAMA.

It is most significant as showing the character of NAKAMURA
himself to consider well the answer ho gave when ho said: "I
rocoived tho teachings of Commandor OKUTAMA "

Romember Liocutonant NAKAMURA conmittod suleido and the defonso
novor did havo a chaneo to finish the cross-oxamination. It isn't
of much avail to tho dofonse for the U.S. Navy doctors to testify
that thoy conductod a dissection porforming an autopey and found
no dotorioration of the brain.

Thore was good ronson for NAKAMURA to ocommit suicidos Why ho €l
1t wo will noveor know,

Lioutenant NAKAMURA tostified that his teacher, Commandor
OKUYAMA said to him: "Answor to quostion #29" .1
Commandor OKUYAMA said we werc going to the Guard Unit o conduct
shock oxporimonts, and oxporimonts with injections of hactoria
on tho prisonors.®

NAKAMURA, the studont officor, the protoge of Commandor
OKUYAMA, know beforo he went to the Guard Undit that he and OKUYAMA
wore to conduct exporimonts on American prisoncrs and yet ho wont
without any reluctanco or unoasinoss. You woll rooall how without
any feoling or emotion ho calnly rolatod the oxporined whieh
OKUY/AMA performed upon these American prisoners at the Undte

=iy 3 "
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And what does NAKAMURA say he was doing? Only taking notesl

He didn't even eponk to these eight American prisoners although
ne can spenk English, For two days ho only took notos, How
foantastiel

Commander OKUYAMA is supposed to bo doad and so is NABETANI
and since IWANAMI was the hoad of the 4th Naval Hospital it would
?idto tho advantago of NAKAMURA to testify agninst IWANAMI as ho

]

Thoro 18 a basis for his testimony beeause Captain IWANAMI
did toko OKUYAMA and NAKAMURA to tho Guard Undt that day. He
algo wont in with thom and oven made a homoglobin tost by extracting
a drop of blood from the lobe of tho enr of a prisoner, Captain
IWANAMI admite this, Then IWANAMI said ho left,

Right hore thoro is & sharp differonco in the testimony
of NAKAMURA nnd IVANAMI, It is for tho commission to woigh tho
svidanoe hut we must remind the commission that we did not have a
echnnece to complete the cross=examination of NAKAMURA beecause
NAKAMURA ecommitted sulcide.

IWANAMI 4s still here. That Baturday afternoon, June 28,
1947, both NAKAMURA and IFANAME wore confined in the same stock=
nde, NAKAMURA committed suicide. TPANAMI made no such attempt
t hat continuod to stand trinl and took the sitness stand and testi-
fiod for five doys, the 24th thru 28th days invlusive. Captain
IWANAMI e still hero in this court room and can be recalled to the |
stand by this commiseion at any fime.

We wish that we could say tho same for NAKAMURA. In his
case we have only Doctor KAUFMAN's testimony to the offoct that the
tho dissoction which tho pathologist at the Navy Hospital, Guam,
performed on NAKAMURA showed thero was evidenco of organic brain
disense.

"Q, 7. Was tho body of this deceased porson disscction aftcr
his doath?
Le It wans,.

"Q. 8, As o rasult.of this dissoction and other circumstances
wos it known that this porson committed suicido, was it detormined
4f this person, if there was any mental changes in this porson?

A. Thoro was no evidonoce of orgnnie troin diseases on tho
post mortem cxamination. Tho statomort in the death cortificate
that the decoased eommitted suleide during a dopression following
tostimony was dorived from eonvergations with witnoses who
associatod with decoased, Sometimo boforo his domise."

Question #11 put to Doctor KAUFMAN, Licutenant, jumior
grado, Modical Corpe U.S: Navy, *Ves t‘ah a boaid fowesti-
gation on the dnt.h“n* this witnesal®
As Yes, there wasi"

Doctor KAUFMAN further testified in answer to question #12:
e vg22(83) *
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"] was & membor of this board of investigation. The
hoepital pathologist who performed the &dssection testified hefore
me and the rest of thoe board as to the cause of death,"

Tf NAKAMURA was not insano thon there is a presumption
that there was a motive for committing suicide¥as wheroty his
own misconduct ho has brought about a situation from which ho
theroty sccks to escapo”, Section 711 Naval Courts and Doardse

Let us look at the testimony of NAKAMURA as ho continuos on
tho witness stand, NAKAMURA tostified ho witnossed the shoock
oxporimonts (answer to question 456) but as ho recalled Captain
IVANAMI was not present,

"Q, 59. What had becomo of Captain IFANAMI?
A. As I rocall, ho wont into tho next room,"

This was just somothing NAKAMURA imaginod bocause he had to
admit on cross=oxamination he nover saw IWANAMI go into the noxt
room and he, NAKAMURA, didn't go into that room until tho noxt
day and then only stayed five minutos.

_ NAKAMURA was thoro whon the prisonors died, however. Referring
1 to tho prisonors experimopbed upon with tourniquets the judge
advocato asked: "Nero you present in that room when these prisoners
dled?" Tho answor by NAKAMURA: "Y¥os." |

NAKAMURA who could speak English novor gaid a word to these
Amoricans, ho just stayed thore all that day and noxt day, taking
notos whiiu tho Amorican prisonors died, NAKAMURA TWould have us
holiovo that his hands were tied othorwise why didn't he 1ift
a hand to help thoso prisonors or why didn't he speak to thom?

Now throe yoars lator whon ho 1s approhended for this erimo he gots o
the witnoss stand and blamos Captain IVANAMI . Dut ho cannot go
through with it, Ho had gotton himsolf in a bad situation and

ho committod suieido in order to cseape from tho situation. Sec
Soction 711 Naval Courts and Doardse '

In tho noxt ro0m thoro wore four prisonors and Dootor
NADATANI, but NAKAMURA didn't go into this room until tho noxt day
and then only for five mimutos, This was olicited from the witness
NAKAMURA aftor tho quostion had boon answored by him that he had
novor onbered this room only when the judge advocate put the question
to NAKAMURA again.

"Q, 79. And when you entered that room, what did you

find thero?
As Through injections of “actoria, their faces werc rod

and thoy woro m,_puiu._

"Q. 80. Whoso faces and who wore in pain?
A, The four prisoners' faces Wero rod and-thoy were
suf foring,."

Lair "232(84) "
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Thie witnoss is a doctor and yet he testifios to this effoct,
For the first time ho entors a room and sce f our American
prisonors and this man of scioneo, thi s doctor knows immediately
that tho four porscns he Boes havo boen given injoctions of bacteria

and that is why their faces are rod and thoy aro in pain,

Vo know of ‘no other doctor that would so tostify. The Judge
advocato ronlizos that this bit of testimony is unboliovablo so ho
puts a quostion,

"Q, 81, How do you know thoy wore suffering through injections
of hactoria?

Ae Docause Doctor NADATANI told mo that through injections
of stroptococcus bactoria into the hlood stroam, they wero in a fover."

And NAKAMURA was supposod to be a learned man, educated to be a
doctor, mature and with a doctors attitude of mind, He testifies
instend 1ike a child: "Because Doctor NADATANI told me." No, he
1an't the niaive child he would have us believe. Ho knows more than
ho is willing %o tostify to, Dut it is for the conmission to weigh
his testimony since tho commission would hot strike it or expunge
it when NAKAMURA cormitted sulcide.

Then NAKAMURA continues and testifios that Doetor OKUYAMA,
his teacher , told him he was going to do am exporiment on the hill
back of tho hospital with dymamito (See answor to quostion #92.) «
And who is chargod with this incident? Not NAKAMURA unless he is
moant to bo "and pthers unknown", It is Captain IVANAMI who is 1
charged with this murdor and SAKAGAMI was included as an nocused bo=
onuse NAKAMURA statcd he would tostify that SAKAGAMI stranglod
tho two prisonors, Dut this is how two of the oxporiment prisoners
dlod. Tho six that OKUYAMA, NADATANT, and NAKAMURA oxporimonted
upon diod at the Guard Undt,

Now as against this tostimony of a witnoss NAKAMURA who conmitted
suleide wo have the tostimony of Captain IWANAMI, IVANAMI it
was who took tho stand and admitted that heo it was who took ovor
tho two prisoners from tho Guard Unit and carried out tho exocutlon
of two Amoricons in July 1944. But as to the experiments condusted
by OKUYAMA, NADATANI, and NAKAMURA, Captain IVANAMI disclains all
knowlodge of or rosponsibdlity for thoso oxperiments and the
rosulting doath of these prisoners. '

In answer to question #10 Oaptain IWANAMI says that about seven
thirty nmmmingomomm“tnhumnd said he
was going to mako somo physic,l tosts. IWANAMY Thought OKUYAMA
was going to make physicnl strongth tosts and asked OKUYAMA if ho
ncoded any holp, OKUYAMA said "No", Later oh OKUYAMA told IWANAMI
ho was going to tho Guard Unit at oight o'clock so IWANAME said ho
would give hinm a ride since he was going to attond Admiral
WAKADAYASHI who was siek,

Tho next momning IWANAMY gave OKUYAMA and MAKAMURA a
mmtmmwuﬁmtmmmmmm
OKUYAMA was up tos He saw eight priscners in a reeveation

E
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It is this same HASEGAWA who tostifiod that IWANAMI had
visitod Coptain TANAKA the day beforc. Captain IVANAMI dofinitely
says howovor that he novor ¥id visit Coptain TANAKA at tho Guard
Unit and this day when ho brought OKUYAMA and NAKAMURA and o donw
tist to the Guard Unit it was the first time ho had toen at tho
Guard Unit,

"Q, 2/, Proviously Lioutonant HASEGAWA tostifiod that
OKUYAMA and yoursolf visitod Captain TANAKA conocerning the loan
of tho sick bay. What do you know about this?

Ae I was surprisod whon I heard the tostimony of HASEGAWA
in this court, Dut thon HASEGAWA tostifiod to things that 1 could
not oven imagino, .Thore was no such thing."

Captain IVANAMI is tho only omo to tostify that ono of the
prisonors was o nogro. Sinco one of the prisoners was a nOgro
it is vory probable that ho was not an Amorican. It would bo
quito simple to chock tho missing persons rocords and find out
§f thoro was ono nogro missing in action in an air roid ovor
Truk in Jonuary 1944. Thoro is just aé much roason to believe
this nogro was not an American aviator as to beliove ho was. It
is up to tho judge ndvoocate to prove ho was an American and this
ho hae failed to do,

t hon Captain TWANAMI hoord that Doctor OKUTAMA said he was go’r
to tako the pulse, make hemoglobin tests, blood tests and
tosts with moroury monometors and gogo the gripping powor of 1
tho prisoners Captain IVANAMI thought he would toach them seme=
thing about blood tosts. IWANAMI'e answer to quostion #33: "Whon
I hoard about tho blood tosts, as I had a 1ot of oxperience in
taking blood tosts, I thought I would toach them somothing conecrn
ing 4t. Evon in ta“ing a drop of blood, it should be dono
eki11fully, Taking a noodle, I took one tonth of a drop of blood
and spread i1t on a slido and showod thom how to mako a test."

Captain IVANAMI explained to OXUY/MA and NAKAMURA tho dofocts
in the instrumonts thoy wore intonding to use.

"Q., 35, What did you do after this?

A. Whon I was saying this, Commandor OKUYAMA was disinfectdn,
the ear lobe 'of tho nogro to got tho bloode I told him if you wanh
4t to bo good, you should go about it 4n an ordorly fashion becausn
thore wore four sots of instruments which to test this, and I
loft tho room and went to oxamino Admiral WAKADAYASHI who was vory
sick."

ﬂuﬂlbngdiﬂm.ﬁﬂltqyﬂnmutthoﬁwdﬁnﬂ.t? Who
xnows bottor than IVANAMI, He was on his way to soc a very sick
Admizal = Admiral VAKABAYASHI and could not lingor longs At tho
most it was 20 minutes.

*Q,. 38, What was the approximato length of timo that you
wero in the sick bay of tho Neval Guard Undt?

Ae At tho moet about twenty minutess They had taken their
mealsy Ihdhldthlnhﬂthtﬂﬂ“h,mﬂ!h&dmﬁnthn
blood tosts; at the most it was about twenty mimutes."

. n22,2(86)
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Captain IVANAMI only took Commander OKUYAMA and Lioutenant
NAKAMURA to the 4lat Naval Guard Unit and while therefor a short
period of twenty minutes ho shows the other doctors how an
expart oxtracts a drop of blood from a patients car lobe and make a
homoglobin tosts Nor thnt NAKAMURA testifies ngainst him and thorow
by hopos to absolvo himsolf,

Evon if the commission believod evory word of the testimony
of Lieutenant NAKAMURA it wouldn't bo enough evidenco to convict
INANAMI of rurdor. Dut agninst this testimony of NAKAMURA the
suleido wo havo tho tostimony of Captain IWANAMY,

Wo ask thorofore tho commission find as to the accused
IVANAMI, Hiroshi, spocification 1 of Chargoe I not proved and the
accusod ITANAMI, Hiroshi, is of the chargo of muarder not guilty
ond tho commission doos thoroforc aequit tho said IVANAMI, Hiroshi,
of tho spocification and of tho chargo of murdore

Spocification 2 of Chargo I and spocifications 2 and 3 of
Chargo II aro basod on tho samc acts and thoy arc drawn to provide
for the oxigoncies of proof as far as IWANAMI is concornod.

In tho :iﬂt ﬂh-ﬂ'.l‘gl".l IWANAMI is said to have wilfully seses

killed by oxplosions of dynamito and strangulatign two American
: prisonors whorcas in spoeification 2 of Chargo INANAMI s L

charged with disroparding and failing to discharge his duty
as Comanding Offieccr of Fourth Fleoot Hospital to control
OKUYAMA, Tokikazu, and SAKAGAMI, Shinji, pormitting thom to kill
by oxplosions_of dynamite and strangulation and under specification
3 of Chargo I1 INWANAMI is chargod with disrogard and failing to
discharge his duty as Commanding Officer of Fourth Flect Hospital
to toke such measurcs as wore appropriatc and within his power to
protoct two Amoriecan prisoners of war in that ho pormittod the un-
lawful killing with oxplosions of dynamite and strangulation the two
Amorican prisonors of ware

Tho ocommission will noto that in Charge II ariscs out of the
samc identical facts and thoreforo as_to IVANAMI we have what is
known as a multiplicity of charges. Thore are no aggravating
circumstances allegod in Charge II to distinguish it from Charge I
and tho proeecdings and findings of omo of these charges must be
set asido. This wo hold to ho the duty of the commission, If the
commission do not do so then the eonvening authority mast do so.
If the convening authority fails to do so then wo are sure the
Judge Advoocato Goneral, Navy Department will do so in view of tho
many rulinge and policy get forth in Court Martial Orders which
we proviously eited,

See C.iadle 1“'19“: G-thl ﬂ-lgﬂj C.M.0, 1-19”!
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, Egg}ﬁ_{ﬁ Licutenant NAKAMURA on tho witnoss stand (4th day) Thureday,
@ e U 1 June 26, 1947 testified that his toacher Commander OKUYAMA ordered
BB w Ty him to go to tho hill back of tho officers quarters and when he
- S arrived thero ho found Commander OKUYAMA, SAKAGAMX, and two
iy E prisonors who hafl 1ivod through the shoek experiments at the
r‘ﬁﬁ Guard Unit tied to a stako.

Then NAKAMURA remembors that SAKAGAMI and OKUTAMA retied theo
wz223(87) "
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tho two prisoners a.nd SAKAGAMI placod dynamite in a holo which
was duge

Now our witnoss in court and the witness to the exporiment or
was he still a noto taker left tho scone: "Commander OKUYAMA
ordmdmtogotnthaiidoufthohﬂltohapmtnuhdfrmtha
chargo of tho oxplosion of dynamito." Answor to quostion #102,

Dut ho can still romembor what happoned evon if he cannot
soo from whoro he is (Soo answor to question #302) .

'Qe 430, On oross oxamination: "Whoro wore you whon SAKAGAMI
14% tho fusc?
Ade Imnlylngonthogmmdnnthaamuorthohﬂlbomm

I wos told to tako sholtor by OKUYAMA."

"Q. 435, Could you soo tho prisonor from your placo of
sholtor?
he IT I utoudupunqrtm:luuuldmthn prisonors."

Surcly tho witnoss NAKAMURA now roalizod ho was caught in a
110, It was almost 1130 Saturday morning June 28, 1947, and therc-
forc the commission adjourncd to moot again at 9 aeme Monday
morning.

Tho cormission woll romomber how this witnoss actod upon tho
stand tho 1ittlo time ho was under eross=oxamination, On Friday,
Juno 27, 1947, whon ho was askod quostion #204, and NAKAMURA did
not answor the quostion, ho just sat thoro on the witnoss stand.
Throo times tho commission diroctod NAKAMURA to answer tho quoeticn
before ho ovasivoly answorod,:" As I reeall I think I saw him
going or loaving."

»q, 206 . lhoro did you soo him?" and again tho witnoss
NAKAMURA didn't answor and ngain throo times the commission
diroctod NAKAMURA to answor tho quostion, tho last timo informing
NAKAMURA if ho didn't answer "tho commiseion will havo to take
somo action.™ )

And on a witnose such ag this the Judgo advocato camo forward
and asks that IWANAMI bo convietod of specification 3 of Charge Ie
Bvon this witnoss had to admit that Captain INANAMI wasn't at the
oxplosion scone or thore whon ho and OKUYAMA injoctod the
prisoners with drugs.

Captain IVANAMI tostifiod he knew not of the exporiments

with dynamito quostion #44 on tho 24th day: you know of
rimonte boing mado on prisoners on tho hill in back of tho

OxXpo
hospital with dynemite?" Answor: "io,."

#Q, 45 Do you kmow if any injootions wore made in the
prisonors or whothor prisoners wore strangled?
Ae "Bb, I do not »

"Q, ' &b udroihuiuwnporﬁtm Commander
OKUY AMA at.:;r guch an ineident had ocoured?

A " Noo" |
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Yot this officer, Captain IVANAMI is in spoeifieation 2
of Chargo I chargod.with murder. IWANAMI and BAKAGAMI seeee
acting with OKUYAMA ..s..and others unknown, did each and togethors

IWANAMI tostifiod he know nothing about tho incidont and all th
ovidonco shows ho kmow nothing about the incident nor did he
by tho furthest stretch of the imagination in any way whatsoever
aid, counsel, or abot the act.

Wo ask that the commission find ns to the acoused IWANAMI,
Hiroshi, specification 2 of Chargo I not proved and the accused
IWANAMI, Hiroshi, is of tho chargo of murder not guilty and the
commission doos thorofore acquit the said IWANAMI, Hiroshi,
of tho spocification and of tho charge of murder, os sot forth in
spocification 2 of Charge I,

Tho judge advoeato offored no proof whatscover as to what

the duties of IWANAMI, Hiroshi, Surgoon Captain, Imporial Japaneso
Navy, wero ne tho Commanding cor of tho Fourth Floot Hospita).
IWANAMI, Hiroshi was a surgoon captain in tho Japaneso Navy and tho
commanding Officer of a Japaposc Naval Hospital, What his dutioe
werc can not be determinod in a law court by more conjecture.

It isn't enough to statoc he failed to dischargo his duty and this
in violation of tho law and customs of war, Wo hold that both
spocification 2 and 3 of Charge II are mero conclusions on tho
part of tho pleador, No offonsos has boen stated and no offonse
has beon provode No offonso can bo proved until it is proved

what dutios IWANAMI, Hiroshi, had as Commanding Officor of the
Japanoso Fourth Fleet Hospital on or about February 1, 1944,

Wo ask thorofore that tho commission find as to the
accused IWANAMI, Hiroshi, spocification 2 and spocification 3 of
Charge II not provod and tho accusod IWANAMI, Hiroshi, is of tho
charge of violation of the law and customs of war not guilty and
tho commission doos thereforo emcorit the sald JWANAME, Hiroshi,
of tho spocifications 2 and 3 of Chargo I in violation of
the law and eustoms of war as sot Torth in specifications 2 and
3 of Chargo Il.

' We have said a groat deal about tho testimony of NAKAMURA
who committed suieide boforo we were through with him on cross=
oxamination., His testimony is the only testimony of any
consequence against SAKAGAMI, Shinji, Boocauso ¥ what NAKAMURA
told tho judge advocates, they ehangod spocific .iion 2 of Chargo '
by adding tho words "and strangulation® after tho chargos and
spocifications had been sorved., It was then up to NAKAMURA to go
through with his agroement and ho did take the witnoss stand and
testifiod against SAKAGAMY,

Tt is indood fortumate that the commission obsorved NAKAMURA
on the witness stand and also that ovidenco was finally brought intc
the trial showing NAXAMURA, Shigeyoshi, committod suieldo on Juno
28, 1947, abd for that roasoh tho judge advocate couldn't
produce hn that Monday momning, Juno 30, 1947, when NAKAMURA
was %0 have eontimmed on the witnoss stand su to eross=
emamdnation, We say fortunate boeauso on diroet examination
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NAKAMURA told his story-in all its grucsome dotails with a smilo.
on his faco, Ho was wo admit rathor convineing excopt we
wondored how ovon a dootor could relate tho ineidents ho did
without any omotion or feoling whatsoovor ecopt for the smilo
which came many timos to his faco,

A11 that was changed when he boconmo subjoctod to cross=
oxaminations Thon you will romembor how ho sguirmed and evon
sat thore froson with terror unablo or unwilling to answor. They
wore such simplo quostions that wore put to him on that fifth day of
this trial, Friday, Junc 27, 1947, thoso questions #204 and #206
but thrna times he had to be directed by the commission to answer.

Even this vory clever dapper little man with the heavy
glasses hehind which he hid his eyes could not eseape when sub=
jocted to cross-examination by his own countrymen, lawyers who
until they cnme to Guam knew nothing about cross-examination,

Syark torror seised NAK/AMURA and he sat there frosen with
fear. There was no way out, He managed to come hack Saturday
morning but that aftornoon he committed suicido.

What difference thorcfore doos it make what NAKAMURA testified
to against SAKAG/MI or anyono olso. 411 that NAKAMURA testifiod
to should be expunged from the record, If ever a witness was dis-
ereditod not only on cross=oxamination but bocause he committod
sulcido rathor than faco the e¢ross-oxamination he know was in
storo for him Monday morning and/or ho didn't or couldn't stand
trial himself it was NAKAMURA, Shigoyoshil.

Tho judgo advocatos have mado much of the fact that
SAKAGAMI did not take tho stand until aftor NAKAMURA commltted
suicide but lot mo assuro you if the rulos of procedure SAKAGLMI
would have boon the first to take tho witnoss stand, He has
always maintainod his innoconce. There is no good reason to have
joined him with those other eightoon aceuscd of somothing al=
togothor difforont, To have kopt SAKAGAMI in confinement for
two yoars and thon join him in trial with cighteen other persons
all accuscd of other erimoes is very unfair, Thon whon the pro=
scoutions own witness NAKAMURA commits suicido for the judge
advocato to commont that SAKAGAMI is tolling his story for tho
first time is unfair to SAKAGAMI and no justification for the
judge advocato for bringing SAKAGAMI to trial and certainly no
justification for joining him with cightoon othors all charged witn
othor offenscs,

On the 20th day SAKAGAMI, Shinji, got his chaneo for the first
timo sineo ho had becn in confinement to tell his story %o
porsons who would liston and to persons who could do something
about 1t,

SAKAGAMI tostifiod that ho did givo OKUYAMA somo black
powdor eallod "ecaritto" at the roquost of OKUYAMA who said ho was
going to oxporiment on dogss, Tho two of thom OKUYAMA and
SAKAGAMI wont to the powder storago houso and SAKAGAMI gavo

. OKUYAMA ono shargo of this black powder with a fusce He had givon

OKUYAMA. powdor before so didn't quostion the right of this
Conmander Surgoon to uso thie black powder in his oxperimenies

TFIED TO BE A TRUE CORY
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(/ JAMES P, KENN
Iisutonant, Navy,
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